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Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed for fling please find an original and thirteen (13) copies of NextGen
Communications, Inc.'s Application for a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity.

Also enclosed is a copy of this letter. Please file stamp the letter and return it
to me in the enclosed self-addressed envelope.

‘If you have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at 202-728-
3035. Thank you in advance for your attention to this matter.
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ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

Application and Petition for Certificate of Convenience and Necessity to Provide
Intrastate Telecommunications Services

Mail original plus 13 copies of completed application to: For Docket Control Only:
(Please Stamp Here)

Docket Control Center

Arizona Corporation Commission

1200 West Washington Street

Phoenix, Arizona §5007-2927

Please indicate if you have current applications pending
in Arizona as an Interexchange reseller, AQS provider,

or as the provider of other telecommunication services.

Type of Service: N/A

Docket No.: Date; Date Docketed:
Type of Service:
Docket No.: Date: Date Docketed:

A. COMPANY AND TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICE INFORMATION

the appropriate box(s).

Resold Long Distance Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B).
Resold Local Exchange Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B, C).

Facilities-Based Long Distance Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B, D).

Alternative Operator Services Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B)

XOODood

Other See attached description of proposed service. (Please attach complete description)

mail address, and World Wide Web address (if one is available for consumer access) of the Applicant:

21401
Phone: 410-349-7097 Fax: 410-295-1884 Web address: www.telecomsys.com
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(A-1)  Please indicate the type of telecommunications services that you want to provide in Arizona and mark

Facilities-Based Local Exchange Telecommunications Services (Answer Sections A, B, C, D, E)

{A-2)  The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), e-

NextGen Communications Inc. ¢/o TeleCommunication Systems Inc. 275 West Street Suite 400 Annapolis, MD




(A-3) The d/b/a ("Doing Business As") name if the Applicant is doing business under a name different from
that listed in Item (A-2): N/A

(A-4)  The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), and
E-mail address of the Applicant’s Management Contact:

Mr, Kim Robert Scovill

Senior Director, Government Affairs

NextGen Communications, Inc, ¢/o TeleCommunication Systems, Inc
275 West Street Suite 400

Annapolis, MD 21401

Tel: 410-349-7097

Fax: 410-295-1884

E-mail: kscovill@telecomsys.com

(A-5) The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), and
E-mail address of the Applicant’s Attorney and/or Consultant:

Mr. H. Russell Frisby, Jr.

Mr. Douglas E. Micheel
Stinson Morrison Hecker LLP
1150 18™ Street NW Suite 800
Washington, D.C. 20036-3816
Tel: 202-785-9100

Fax: 202-785-9163

E-Mail: rfrisby@stinson.com
E-mail: dmicheel@stinson.com

(A-6) The name, address, telephone number (including area code), facsimile number (including area code), and
E-mail address of the Applicant's Complaint Contact Person;

Mr. Kim Robert Scovill

Senior Director, Government Affairs

NextGen Communications, Inc. c/o TeleCommunication Systems, Inc
275 West Street Suite 400

Annapolis, MD 21401

Tel: 410-349-7097

Fax: 410-295-1884

E-mail; kscovill@telecomsys.com

(A-7)  What type of legal entity is the Applicant? Mark the appropriate box(s) and category.
D Sole proprietorship

|:| Partnership: Limited, General, Arizona, Foreign
r_—l Limited Liability Company: Arizona, Foreign
m Corporation: “Sv X e, Non-profit
1
L
07/09/09
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Other, specify:

(A-8)  Please include "Attachment A™:
Attachment “A” must include the following information:

1. A copy of the Applicant's Certificate of Good Standing as a domestic or foreign corporation, LLC,
or other entity in Arizona.

2. A list of the names of all owners, partners, limited lability company managers (or if a member
managed LLC, all members), or corporation officers and directors (specify). NextGen is a wholly
owned subsidiary of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. ("TCS"). TCS is a publicly traded
company. See information attached to Attachment A-19 detailing NextGen's officers and directors.

3. Indicate percentages of ownership of each person listed in A-8.2, TCS owns 100% of NextGen's
outstanding stock.

(A-9) Include your Tariff as "Attachment B".
Your Tariff must include the following information:

1. Proposed Rates and Charges for each service offered (reference by Tariff page number). See tariff
page number 21

2. Tariff Maximum Rate and Prices to be charged (reference by Tariff page number). See Tariff page
number 21.

3. Terms and Conditions Applicable to provision of Service (reference by Tariff page number). See
page numbers 22-24,

4. Deposits, Advances, and/or Prepayments Applicable to provision of Service (reference by Tariff
page number). See page 23.

5. The proposed fee that will be charged for returned checks (reference by Tariff page number). See
page 23.

Due to the special and limited services offered by NextGen, and the requirement the customer be a carrier or a
governmental agency, the proposed rates and charges will be provided for on an individual contract basis ("ICB").
See Original pages 21 through 24,

{A-10) TIndicate the geographic market to be served:
@ Statewide. (Applicant adopts statewide map of Arizona provided with this application).
D Other. Describe and provide a detailed map depicting the area.

(A-11) Indicate if the Applicant or any of its officers, directors, partners, or managers has been or are currently
involved in any formal or informal complaint proceedings pending before any state or federal regulatory
commission, administrative agency, or law enforcement agency. N/A

Describe in detail any such involvement. Please make sure you provide the following information:
1. States in which the Applicant has been or is involved in proceedings.
2. Detailed explanations of the Substance of the Complaints.

3. Commission Orders that resolved any and all Complaints,

07/09/0%
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4. Actions taken by the Applicant to remedy and/or prevent the Complaints from re-occurring,

(A-12) Indicate if the Applicant or any of its officers, directors, partners, or managers has been or are currently
involved in any civil or criminal investigation, or had judgments entered in any civil matter, judgments levied by
any administrative or regulatory agency, or been convicted of any criminal acts within the last ten (10) years. N/A

Describe in detail any such judgments or convictions. Please make sure you provide the following
information:

1. States involved in the judgments and/or convictions.
2. Reasons for the investigation and/or judgment.

3. Copy of the Court order, if applicable.

(A-13) Indicate if the Applicant's customers will be able to access alternative toll service providers or resellers
via 1+101XXXX access.

D Yes No NextGen will not be offering the type of long
distance services applicable to this question.

(A-14) Is Applicant willing to post a Performance Bond? Please check appropriate box(s).
D For Long Distance Resellers, a $10,000 bond will be recommended for those resellers who collect

advances, prepayments or deposits.

D Yes No

If "No", continue to question {A-15).

|:| For Local Exchange Resellers, a $25,000 bond will be recommended.

|:| Yes IE No

If "No", continue to question (A-15).

D For Facilities-Based Providers of Long Distance, a $100,000 bond will be recommended.

D Yes No

If "No", continue to question {A-15).

D For Facilities-Based Providers of Local Exchange, a $100,000 bond will be recommended.

D Yes No

If any box in (A-14) is marked "No", continue to question (A-15).

Note: Amounts are cumulative if the Applicant is applying for more than one type of service.

07/09/09
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(A-15) If any box in (A-14) is marked "No", provide the following information. Clarify and explain the
Applicant's deposit policy (reference by tariff page number). Provide a detailed explanation of why the
Applicant’s superior financial position limits any risk to Arizona consumers. Some of the important purposes of
deposits are to protect residential customers who may have made deposits for service or prepaid services from the
unexpected closure or withdrawal from service of a carrier. NextGen does not serve residential customers,
NextGen's deposit policy is found on Original page 23 Section 4 D of its proposed tariffs. As noted, because of
the special and limited services offered by NextGen, and the fact that the customer must be a carrier or
governmental agency, Arizona customers will not see any financial risk. Moreover, as demonstrated by the
financial information attached to Attachment D, NextGen possesses adequate financial resources to limit any risk
that may arise.

(A-16) Submit copies of affidavits of publication that the Applicant has, as required, published legal notice of
the Application in all counties where the Applicant is requesting authority to provide service.

Note: For Resellers, the Applicant must complete and submit an Affidavit of Publication Form as Attachment
“C” before Staff prepares and issues its report. Refer to the Commission’s website for Legal Notice Material
(Newspaper Information, Sample Legal Notice and Affidavit of Publication). For Facilities-Based Service
Providers, the Hearing Division will advise the Applicant of the date of the hearing and the publication of legal
notice. Do not publish legal notice or file affidavits of publication until you are advised to do so by the Hearing
Division.

(A-17) Indicate if the Applicant is a switchless reseller of the type of telecommunications services that the
Applicant will or intends to resell in Arizona:

D Yes [g No

If "Yes", provide the name of the company or companics whose telecommunications services the
Applicant resells.

(A-18) List the States in which the Applicant has had an application approved or denied to offer
telecommunications services similar to those that the Applicant will or intends to offer in Arizona: The following
states have all approved similar applications for NextGen: lowa, Michigan, Utah, Virginia, Indiana, Vermont,
Oregon, Massachusetts, and Illinois. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc, ("TCS") is certified to offer services in
California, Florida, Minnesota, Tennessee, Texas, and Washington. Neither NextGen nor TCS have ever been
denied certification.

Note: If the Applicant is currently approved to provide telecommunications services that the Applicant intends to
provide in Arizona in less than six states, excluding Arizona, list the Public Utility Commission (“PUC”) of each
state that granted the authorization. For each PUC listed provide the name of the contact person, their phone
number, mailing address including zip code, and e-mail address.

07/09/0%
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(A-19) List the States in which the Applicant currently offers telecommunications services similar to those that
the Applicant will or intends to offer in Arizona. Although approved to provide service in the states listed in
response to A-18, NextGen is not currently providing service in any of those jurisdictions.

Note: If the Applicant currently provides telecommunication services that the Applicant intends to provide in
Arizona in six or more states, excluding Arizona, list the states. If the Applicant does not currently provide
telecommunications services that the Applicant intends to provide in Arizona in five or less states, list the key
personnel empiloyed by the Applicant. Indicate each employee’s name, title, position, description of their work
experience, and years of service in the telecommunications services industry. See attachment A-19 listing key
personne! of NextGen,

(A-20) List the names and addresses of any alternative providers of the service that are also affiliates of the
telecommunications company, as defined in R14-2-801. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. is the parent of
NextGen. As noted in the response to A-18 TCS is certified to provide service in six states,

(A-21) Check here if you wish to adopt as your petition a statement that the service has already been classified
as competitive by Commission Decision:

D Decision # 64178 Resold Long Distance
[ ] Decision# 64178 Resold LEC
D Decision # 64178 Facilities Based Long Distance

l—_—| Decision # 64178 Facilities Based LEC

B. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(B-1) Indicate if the Applicant has financial statements for the two (2) most recent years.

D Yes IZl No

If "No," explain why and give the date on which the Applicant began operations.

NextGen processes sufficient financial ability to provide service in the State of Arizona. NextGen is wholly
owned subsidiary of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. ("TCS"), a public company (NASDAQ: TSYS).
Therefore, NextGen uses consolidated accounting with its parent TCS and does not make public a separate
income statement or balance sheet. However, due to its consolidated financial strength, NextGen possesses
sufficient financial ability to provide reliable and financially stable service in the State of Arizona, as
demonstrated in Attachment D.

(B-2) Include "Attachment D",

Provide the Applicant's financial information for the two (2) most recent years,
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1.

2
3.
4
5

A copy of the Applicant's balance sheet.

A copy of the Applicant's income statement,

A copy of the Applicant's audit report.

A copy of the Applicant's retained eamnings balance.

A copy of all related notes to the financial statements and information.

Note: Make sure “most recent years” includes current calendar year or current year reporting period.

(B-3)  Indicate if the Applicant will rely on the financial resources of its Parent Company, if applicable.

NextGen is a wholly owned subsidiary of TeleCommunication System, Inc. ("TCS"). NextGen uses consolidated
G.A A P. accounting with its parent TCS and does not make public a separate income statement or balance sheet.
NextGen's finances are identical to its parent company's. Attachment D demonstrates that NextGen possesses
sufficient financial resources to provide the services it proposes in this application competently and effectively.

(B-4)  The Applicant must provide the following information,
1.

Provide the projected total revenue expected to be generated by the provision of telecommunications
services to Arizona customers for the first twelve months following certification, adjusted to reflect
the maximum rates for which the Applicant requested approval. Adjusted revenues may be
calculated as the number of units sold times the maximum charge per unit.

NextGen is a wholly owned subsidiary of TeleCommunication System, Inc. ("TCS™). NextGen uses
consolidated G.A.A.P. accounting with its parent TCS and does not make public a separate income
statement or balance sheet. NextGen's finances are identical to its parent company's. Attachment D
demonstrates that NextGen possesses sufficient financial resources to provide the services it
proposes in this application competently and effectively. Similarly, assets are shared and fully
accounted for in TCS' public filings as required by securities regulations.

Provide the operating expenses expected to be incurred during the first twelve months of providing
telecommunications services to Arizona customers following certification.

Provide the net book value (original cost less accumulated depreciation) of all Arizona jurisdictional
assets expected to be used in the provision of telecommunications service to Arizona customers at
the end of the first twelve months of operation. Assets are not limited to plant and equipment. Items
such as office equipment and office supplies should be included in this list.

If the projected value of all assets is zero, please specifically state this in your response,

If the projected fair value of the assets is different than the projected net book value, also provide
the corresponding projected fair value amounts.

07/09/09
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C. RESOLD AND/OR FACILITIES-BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
SERVICES

(C-1) Indicate if the Applicant has a resale agreement in operation,
X
D Yes L No

If "Yes", please reference the resale agreement by Commission Docket Number or Commission Decision
Number,

D. FACILITIES-BASED LONG DISTANCE AND/OR FACILITIES BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

(D-1) Indicate if the Applicant is currently selling facilities-based long distance telecommunications services
ANDYOR facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services in Arizona. This item applies to an
Applicant requesting a geographic expansion of their CC&N:

I___I Yes E No

If "Yes," provide the following information;

1. The date or approximate date that the Applicant began selling facilities-based long distance
telecommunications services AND/OR facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services
in Arizona.

2. Identify the types of facilities-based long distance telecommunications services AND/OR facilities-
based local exchange telecommunications services that the Applicant sells in Arizona.

If "No," indicate the date when the Applicant will begin to sell facilities-based long distance
telecommunications AND/OR facilities-based local exchange telecommunications services in Arizona.

Given the unique nature of the services that NextGen is secking to provide in Arizona, NextGen never
intends to offer the type of services contemplated by this question. Please see description of services
attached in response to question A-1.

E. FACILITIES-BASED LOCAL EXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

(E-1)  Indicate whether the Applicant will abide by the quality of service standards that were approved by the
Commission in Commission Decision Number 59421:

[Z Yes, to the extent applicable, |:| No

(E-2) Indicate whether the Applicant will provide all customers with 911 and E911 service, where available,
and will coordinate with incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECs") and emergency service providers to
provide this service:

Yes D No

07/09/09
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(E-3) Indicate that the Applicant's switch is "fully equal access capable” (i.c., would provide equal access to
facilities-based long distance companies) pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-1111 (A):

D Yes E’ No, NextGen will not be providing switched long distance/toll
service to residential or business end user customers.

I certify that if the applicant is an Arizona corporation, a current copy of the Articles of
Incorporation is on file with the Arizona Corporation Commission and the applicant holds a
Certificate of Good Standing from the Commission. If the company is a foreign corporation or
partnership, I certify that the company has authority to transact business in Arizona. I certify that all
appropriate city, county, and/or State agency approvals have been obtained. Upon signing of this
application, I attest that I have read the Commission's rules and regulations relating to the
regulations of telecommunications services (A.A.C. Title 14, Chapter 2, Article 11) and that the
company will abide by Arizona state law including the Arizona Corporation Commission Rules. 1
agree that the Commission’s rules apply in the event there is a conflict between those rules and the
company’s tariff, unless otherwise ordered by the Commission. I certify that to the best of my
knowledge the information provided in this Application and Petition is true and correct.

Foraes

(Si gnafﬁre of Authorized Representative)

/ /zc / /0
(Date) [ '

IZ:"’\ }Zpﬁﬁmrgfc;o lf’t|"~&

(Print Name of Authorized Representative)

J"'f /0 /‘\/L'fl CI&
(Title)

£ = .
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this gé[ﬁ’b day of _SHN LiC? ij , 2010

s
Mo s JNGCk

s
/
NOTARY PUBLIC J

Theresa Mackey

07/09/09 Notary Pubiic, Distri ;
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My Commission Expires 8/ q - Q o1
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Supplemental Answer to A-1

NextGen seeks certification so that it may aggregate and transport emergency local, VolIP,
telemetric, PBX, and mobile E9-1-1 traffic, manage and transmit location and calling number
data, and provide call routing management for the delivery of emergency calls to PSAPs
throughout Arizona. NextGen's services are used by large wireless carriers, VolP providers,
cable TV system operators who provide telecommunications services and/or VoIP, telemetric
operators, PBX users, and mobile voice service providers. NextGen does not provide long
distance voice toll services or local exchange voice dial tone services and does not intend to
provide such services. However, in order to aggregate and transport emergency calls, NextGen
may require the same sort of interconnection and collection made available to certificated
Competitive Local Exchange Carriers ("CLECs").

In addition, certification will enable NextGen to acquire and manage pANI numbering resources,
which are essential to routing emergency calls, pursuant to the Federal Communications
Commission’s (“FCC’s”) directive of September 8, 2006 which states that CLEC certification is
now required for pANI management. Furtherance of this FCC objective and of the availability
of competitive sources for emergency call routing and management are in the public interest.

DB04/837404.0002/2332093.1 WP14



ATTACHMENT A-19



NextGen Communications, Inc. and TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Personnel BlOs

LIST OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

NextGen Company Directors

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Office, and President

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

NextGen Key Company Officers

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Bruce White
Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary



Maurice B. Tosé, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President of TCS
and President and CEO of NextGen Communications, Inc.

Maurice B. Tosé founded TeleCommunication Systems (TCS) in 1987, initially as a military
contractor for software development and network projects. Since then, TCS has evolved into a

‘leader in wireless messaging and location technology. Today, TCS is delivering the essential

software, services, and solutions to wireless telecommunication carriers that enable peopie to
better manage their mobile lifestyle.

Since its inception, the company has experienced significant growth, from generating $28
million in revenues during its first 10 years to $58.1 million in revenues in 2000. The company
has grown to more than 500 employees based principally in Annapolis, Seattle and Tampa. In
August of 2000, TCS launched itself as a public company with a successful Initial Public
Offering (1PO) raising $92 million.

Mr. Tosé graduated from the United States Naval Academy with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Operations Analysis. Following his graduation, he served on active duty in the United States
Navy for eight years in posts throughout the United States, rising to the rank of Lieutenant.
Tours of duty at sea included USS Bagley as Damage Control Assistant and as the Operations
Officer on USS Mauna Kea, where he was responsible for the operations and maintenance of
all voice and data communications. After his service at sea, Mr. Tose returned immediately to
the Naval Academy as an instructor. For more than 10 years, Mr. Tosé has been an active
member of the Naval Reserves, attaining the rank of Commander, including an extensive
assignment to the staff of the United States Secretary of Defense.

Prior to founding TCS, Mr. Tosé was the Director of Department of Defense Programs for
Techmatics, Inc., headquartered in Silver Spring, Maryland. At Techmatics, Mr. Tosé was
responsible for the marketing and management of systems integration contracts for the DoD.
These contracts involved the instaliation, maintenance, personnel training and integrated
logistics support for turnkey communications systems.

With over 21 years of experience providing technical solutions through operations research
techniques in engineering, telecommunications, complex automated data processing and
wireless systems, Mr. Tosé and his company have been recognized through the receipt of
numerous awards including 2000 and 1997 Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year finalist, The
Lamond Godwin Bridge Builders Award for Excellence in Minority Business Relations, The
national Association of Black Telecommunication Professional’s Granville T. Woods Award for
Outstanding Achievement, The AT&T Spectrum Award for Innovators, three-time winner of the
Greater Washington Technology Fast 50 Award, two-time winner of the Maryland Fast 50
Award, the national Technology Fast 500 Award, five times included in the Black Enterprise Top
100, and the Government Computer News Industry Information Technology Award.

Additionally, Mr. Tosé is a member of numerous professional organizations including the
Wireless Data Forum, AT&T's Diversity Roundtable, the International Engineering Consortium
and the Intelligent Network Forum.

Richard A. Young, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Young directs all day-to-day activities in the company including goal setting, performance
monitoring, and deployment of key personnel. Mr. Young joined TCSin 1992. He has over
twenty-seven years of experience in technology management, with in-depth technical



experience in hardware and software life cycle program management. Prior to TCS, Mr. Young
worked as Senior Manager for ICF Information Technology, Inc. where he was responsible for
managing over thirty technical staff in designing and developing applications to customer
specifications. From 1986 to 1989, Mr. Young was the Director of the Information Systems
Department of the Navy Recruiting Command where he managed over seventy technical
employees and was responsible for the information management requirements of the
nationwide recruiting force. Mr. Young holds a B.S. degree in Engineering from the U.S. Naval
Academy and holds a Master of Science degree in Information Technology from the Naval
Postgraduate School.

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr., Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of TCS and
NextGen Communications, Inc.

As Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Brandt is responsible for the Company’s financial management,
reporting, controls, accounting, and administration. Mr. Brandt joined TCS in early 1297. He has
twenty-seven years experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Brandt was previously Senior
Vice President and CFO of DIGEX, Inc., an Internet service provider, where he helped lead its
1996 IPO. His experience includes twelve years with Price Waterhouse, and services as CFO or
controller of other corporations including Easco Corporation, a Fortune 500 company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange. He serves on the Boards of Antenna Research Associates, Inc.,
a private technology company. He is a CPA with an AB frem Duke University and an MBA from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.

Dan Allen, Senior Vice President, Service Bureau Operations

As Senior Vice President of Service Bureau Operations for TeleCommunication Systems, Dan
has responsibility for Wireless E9-1-1 operations, Wireline E9-1-1- operations, Voice-over-
Internet Protocol (VolP) E9-1-1 operations, hosted location services, and data center operations
and for ensuring that the Company maintains its enviable record of reliability through 15O 9001
and TL 9000.

Dan has over 30 years experience in telecommunications in senior management positions,
including over 13 years in wireline systems management and over 17 years in the cellular
industry. He has been responsible for multiple telecommunication company start-ups in the
U.S. and internationally. After a long and successful career with United Telephone, Dan was
President and CEO of Airbigquity, a wireless software company providing the automotive industry
with major telematics applications. Dan was previously President of Nextel for the Mid-Atlantic
Area where he had complete responsibility for all aspects of the implementation and operation
of the iDEN® digital wireless communication company including Washington, D.C., Northern
Virginia, Maryland, Pennsylvania, Delaware, and New Jersey, covering 15 million subscribers.
Prior to that he held positions as Vice President of Operations for both Time Warner
Telecommunications and Bell South International where he started companies both
domestically and abroad.

Bruce A. White, Esq., Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Mr. White directs all of the legal and regulatory functions for TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
(TCS) and its subsidiaries. His 14 years of experience at TCS includes: developing TCS’s in-
house legal function as an integral part of this telecommunication infrastructure software
provider focused on profit optimization and risk management; Board of Directors management;
all SEC reporting; acquisition and litigation management; contract negotiations; |P protections;
and management of Human Resources, facilities and security functions,



In his role, Bruce works closely with CEO and CFO on corporate financing and capitalization,
debt restructure, venture funding, and managed TCS’s 1PO in 2000. His securities
responsibilities inciude serving as Corporate Secretary and primary interface with Board of
Directors, preparing documents and advising on offerings pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933
and preparing 10-K, 10-Q, proxy statements, annual reports, insider trading restrictions, and
other public reporting and disclosures under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 and
Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Mr. White must select and manage outside counsel and manage litigation,
Draft and negotiate international, domestic and government contracts, and also manages the
contracts department.

He received his J.D. degree from the University of Baltimore and has a B.B.A., Finance, cum
{aude, from the University of Georgia. He is a member in good standing with the Maryland Bar,
and is a member of the American Bar Association, Maryland Bar Association, Association of
Corporate Counsels.

Richard H. Dickinson, Senior Director, Public Safety of TCS and NextGen
Communications, Inc.

Richard (Dick) Dickinson has aver eighteen years experience in wireless telecommunications,
project management, and communications center management. He has built wireless networks
nationally and internationally, managing site acquisition and zoning, construction, and
warehouse logistics. Dick has managed the communications center for the University of
Washington, a 24X7 emergency response center. He has participated in all aspects of wireless
Phase | and Phase il ES-1-1 deployments, usually in a lead role for most FOAs and trail blazing
deployments for various technologies. With the emergence of VolP, Dick applied his knowledge
of E9-1-1 to develop and patent the E9-1-1 solution for nomadic VolP which has become the
basis for the NENA i2 standard. He is active in various industry forums and standards bodies,
including NENA, APCO, NRIC7, ESIF, and is Chair of the E9-1-1 Institute VolP Subcommittee
for Policy. Dick received his Masters Degree in International Studies from Pacific Lutheran
University and his Bachelors Degree from the United States Military Academy.



ATTACHMENT A



MICHAEL P, KEARNS
Intenm Bxecutive Director

Y PIERCE
PAUL HEWMAN
SANDRA D. KENNEDY LNDA ASHER
B0OB STUMP Director, Corporations Division

ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION

February 3, 2009

CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY
2338 W ROYAL PALM RD, STE)
PHOENIX, AZ 85021

RE: NEXTGEN COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
File Number: F15031201

We are pleased to notify you that the Application for Authority to transact business or
conduct affairs in Arizona for the above-referenced entity HAS BEEN APPROVED,

You must publish a copy of the Application for Authority. The publication must be in a
newspaper of general circulation in the county of the known place of business in Arizona
for three consecutive publications. A list of acceptable newspapers in each county is
enclosed and is also posted on the Commission website. Publication must be completed
WITHIN 60 DAYS after February 3, 2009, which is the date the document was approved
for filing by the Commission. The corporation may be subject to revocation of authority
if it fails to publish. You will receive an Affidavit of Publication from the newspaper,
and you may file it with the Commission.

Corporations are required to file an Annual Report with the Commission. Your Annual Report is
due on 01/30/2010, and on the anniversary of that date each subsequent year. You may receive a
postcard reminding you to file, but even if you don't, it is your responsibility to file the
corporation’s Annual Report by the deadline each year. You can visit our website at

WWW.AZcC. gov/divisionslcorporatiOns to electronically file your annual report. You can also
complete tl21§ 5form online, print it out and mail it in, or you can call the Annual Reports section at
602-542-3285,

Corporations must notify the Commission immediately, in writing, if they change their
corporate address, statutory agent, or statutory agent address. Address change orders
must be signed by a duly authorized corporate officer. A forwarding order placed with
the U.S. Postal Service is not sufficient to change your address with the Commission.

We strongly recomumend you periodically monitor your corporation/Es record with the
Commission, which can be viewed at www.azcc.gov/Divisions/Corporations, If you
have questions or need further information please contact us at (602) 542-3026 in
gg?gnix, (520) 628-6560 in Tucson, or Toll Free (Arizona Residents only) at 1-800-345-

Sincerely,
Enrique Lira
Examiner, Corporations Division

CF.07
REV. 01/2009

1300 WEST WASHINGTON, PHOENIX, ARIZGNA B5007-2928 / 400 WEST CONGRESS STREET, SUITE #2321 | TUGSON, ARIZONA 85T01.1347
W eocgoy - S02-842-9028

D



DO NOT PUBLISH
THIS SECTION

8. The total number
of authorized shares
canndt be ‘zero’ or
WA, nchsde
authorzed, not
Issued ghares in this

cr:0024
Rav: G&/2008

S&Tmmﬁdmssoﬂhehwwnplamofbusmofmemﬁn corporation in Aslzona
IF DIFFERENT from the sireet address of the stalutory agent is;

. The Annual Report and general oo:respondewm should be malled to the address
spocifiad above Insaction 4_X__or 5a

6. The purpope of the corporation is to engage in any and B fawful business in which
corporalions may engage In the state, province oF counfry under whose faw the foreign
corporstion is incorporated, with the following limitations i any:

None

7. ‘The names and business eddresses of tha curent directors and officers of the forelgn
corporation are; (Attach additional shests if nacessary.)

Name: Meurice B. Toss . President and Director __ {ute)
Address: 275 West Street
City, State, Zip_Amapotis, MD 21401

Nasme: Thomas M., Brandt, ¥r. .mlﬂdmf ﬂm’]
Address; 275 West Street

City, State, Zip Awmszpolis, MD 21401

Name; Bruoe A, White _ Secyetary fiitie}

Addrase; 275 West Strest
City, State, 2ip, Anmapolie, MD 21401

8. The forelgn corporation Is authortzed to issue_1000
(Attach additional sheeta If necessary,)

1000

shares, ltemized as follows:

ghamofm
no par value or par valuo of $_00}

Jclass or sarles) stack at
per shave,

ghares of _Jclass or sorias] stock at
no par value or par value of § per shara,
shares of fclase or eeries] stock at
no par value or paf value of $ per shara,
Arzota Corporation Commigsion

Cotporations Division
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CERTIFICATE OF DISCLOSURE
Pursuant to ARS8, §10-202. (D).

Next(Jen Communications, Inc. -
EXACT CORPORATE NAME
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4. Full name, prior name(s) and aliases, if used. 8. The natwe and destription of each coewviction or judicial sction,

2. Full birth name. date and location, the court and publia agency Involved and fie or
3, Presant home eddress. cause number of case,

4, Pﬁ«addw(bfmwmpmdhﬂwmod).
5. Dahsndlomofw.

C. Has any person seving as an officer, m.wm,mp«mwmwmwparmwuummmmmm
ghares or twenty per oent Mamowwm.mw«mhbmmmm«wm satved in any such capacity or wid a
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Yos No__ X
IF YOUR ANSWER TO THE ABOVE QUESTION IS "YES", YOU MUST ATTACH THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FOR CACH CORPORATION:
1. Name and address of the corpovation. 4, Datos of comperate opetation,
2. Full name (nchuding akases) and address of sach 8. Dats and case number af bankruptey or receiverstip.
person Involved.
3. State(s) in which the corponation:

(8) Wes Inoorporatad.
(0) Has transactsd business.

underpermsoﬂamﬁmumwﬂmmmbdcwnms)lvnl(w)mwwmhceﬂmmkadmany
schments, 3 bumdmmmmwwnhm.mwmbh,mmw&nam.m.
THE SIGNA] .REIS)MUBT‘ DATER WHHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF THE DELIVERY DATE.

;‘/ . BY.

w - -
PRINT NAME_Bruce A. White PRINT NAME
TITLE Secretaty DATE 1/29/09 TITLE DATE

DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS: ALL (NCORPORATORS MUST SIGN THE INITIAL CERTIFICATE OF DISCLOSURE. If within sixty days, any
mmmumm.mw.weammwmormmoWiw of the Issuad and outstanding shares or 10% af any other
proprietary, mmanmmmmhmewmmnmdmwmmmlnﬁﬂﬁh&bdbdm.hwmoraﬂmmmm
AMENDEDWWW;(MMMMMMMW.

FOREIGN CORPORATIONS: MLUST BE SIGNED BY AT LEAST ONE DULY AUTHORIZED OFFIGER OF THE CORPORATION.
CF: 0022 - Business Corporations Arizona Corporation Conwmisgion
Rav: 08/2008 Corporations Division
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page |
Issued by Bruce A, White, Secretary Effective , 2010

ARIZONA TELECOMMUNICATIONS
TARIFF NO. 1

FOR
NextGen Communications, Inc.

275 West Street

Annapolis, MD 21401

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, and rates applicable to the furnishing of E9-1-1
services by NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen). This tariff is on file with the Arizona
Corporation Commission and copies may be inspected during normal business hours at the principal
place of business of NextGen Communications, Inc., at the above-listed address.

NextGen Communications, Ing.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NexiGen™)Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 2
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010

CHECK SHEET
The TITLE page through page 25 inclusive of the tariff are effective as of the date shown on an

individual sheet. Original and revised pages, as named below, comprise all changes from the original
Tariff in effect on the date indicated.

SECTION PAGE REVISION EFFECTIVE DATE
Title 1 Original April__, 2010
Check Sheet 2 Original April_, 2010
Table of Contents 3 Original April__, 2010
Tariff Format and Explanation of Symbols 4 Original April__, 2010
Section 1 — Definitions 5 Original April__,2010
Section 1 — Definitions 6 Original April, ,2010
Section 1 — Definitions 7 Original April__,2010
Section 1 — Definitions 8 Original April_, 2010
Section 1 — Definitions 9 Original April__,2010
Section 2 — Rules and Regulations 10 Original April _, 2010
Section 2 — Rules and Regulations 11 Original April__, 2010
Section 2 — Rules and Regulations 12 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 13 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 14 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 15 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 16 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 - Service Offerings and Features 17 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 18 Original April_,2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 19 Original April__, 2010
Section 3 — Service Offerings and Features 20 Original April _,2010
Section 4 - Rates, Charges, and Conditions of 21 Original April__, 2010
Service

Section 4 — Rates, Charges, and Conditions of 22 Original April__, 2010
Service

Section 4 — Rates, Charges, and Conditions of 23 Original April_, 2010
Service

Section 4 — Rates, Charges, and Conditions of 24 Original April _, 2010
Service

Sectton 5- Service Areas 25 Original April__, 2010

NextGen Communications, Inc.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen”)Arizona Tariff No. 1

Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 3
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010
TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE
TITLE PAGE....coocccersnveesersorsssssssssatsarsnessnsessamensssmsenesstssssssssassssssessenasssassisssosssss 1
CHECK SHEET ....ccortrerneersssssssssosssasssersssanensssssorsnsnsnssssnseseissssssssssessassasessssssssetsss 2
TABLE OF CONTENT S i iircetttreessssnsessssnensisssmnsasusessssssasessossertas ssssasasasssssssssess 3
TARIFF FORMAT AND EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS...ccccnnvsetcrsssnanrrs 4
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NextGen Communications, Inc.

275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen”)Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 4

Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective 2010

TARIFF FORMAT AND EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

Page Numbering: Page numbers appear in the upper right hand corner of the page. Pages are
numbered sequentially. From time to time new pages may be added to the Tariff. When a new page
is added between existing pages a decimal is added to the preceding page number. For example, a
new page added between Pages 3 and 4 would be numbered 3.1.

Explanation of Symbols: When changes are made in any Tariff page, a revised page will be issued
replacing the affected Tariff page. Changes will be identified on the revised page(s) in the right hand
margin on each line changed through the use of the following symbols:

(9 To signify changed regulation

(D) To signify discontinued material

D To signify rate or charge increase

M) To signify material relocated without change in text or rate

N) To signify new material

(8)] To signify material relocated without change in text but with an increase in rate

(R) To signify reduction

S To signify reissued material
(m To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation
(Z) To signify a correction

APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the fumishing of
intrastate end-user telecommunications services by NextGen Communications, Inc., hereinafter referred to
as the Company, to customers within the State of Arizona.

NextGen Communications, Inc.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS




NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No, 1
Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 5
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective ., 2010

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS

Automatic Location [dentification (ALI) Database

See Location Database. Traditionally, the ALI Database maintained the name and address
associated with the calling party's telephone number (identified by ANI Feature). In the future,
ALI data may only be a portion of the location data available in the Location database.

Automatic Location Identification {ALI) to Automatic Location Identification (ALI) data transfer

A feature by which Automatic Location Identification (ALI) data is transferred to another
provider's Automatic Location Identification (ALI) system.

Automatic Location Identification (ALI) PSAP port

A port on the ALI database system used to deliver Automatic Number Identification (ANI) to
the PSAP.

Automatic Number Identification (ANI)

A feature by which the calling party's ANI telephone number is forwarded to the E9-1-1
Control Office and to the PSAPs Display and Transfer Units.

Business Customer

A Customer who subscribes to the Company’s Service(s) and whose primary use of the Service is of a
business, professional, institutional, or otherwise occupational nature.

Call Routing Device

An intelligent network device that, based on the identified number of the calling party (and
potentially other factors), routes an E9-1-1 call from a central office to the designated primary
PSAP. (See “Selective Routing™)

Company

Used throughout this tariff to refer to NextGen Communications, Inc., a Maryland corporation, unless
otherwise clearly indicated by the context.

Customer
A current or potential buyer or user of the services identified in this tariff. This is typically through

purchasing the services; however, the term also includes by extension anyone who uses or experiences
the services of another.

NextGen Communications, Inc.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. |
Issued Januwary 29, 2010 Original Page 6
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Database Management System (DBMS)

See Location Validation Function

Default Routing (DR)

A feature activated when an incoming E9-1-1 call cannot be selectively routed due to an ANI
failure, garbled digits, or other causes. Such incoming calls are routed from the E9-1-1 Control
Office to a default PSAP. Each incoming E9-1-1 facility group to the E9-1-1 Control Office is
assigned to a designated default PSAP. This is a standard feature of E9-1-1 Service.

Display and Transfer Unit

A console and associated common equipment for displaying ANI numbers at the PSAP attendant
position and used by the attendant to activate Fixed and/or Selective Transfer functions.

E9-1-1 Call or E9-1-1 Service

A telecommunications service that uses ANI, ALT (including non-listed and non-published
numbers and addresses), Selective Routing, and the three-digit number “9-1-1,” for a caller
wishing to report police, fire, medical, or other emergency situations (as examples) to a PSAP for
referral to a public safety agency. As used in this tariff, E9-1-1 does not include discretionary
equipment purchased, or contracted for that is not essential to the provision of E9-1-1 service.

Emergency Service Number (ESN)

Unique numbers provided by the Company to be associated by the customer with street
address ranges or other mutually agreed upon routing criteria for selective routing of calls to
unique combinations of police, fire, ambulance and any other appropriate agencies
responsible for providing emergency service in the E9-1-1 serving area.

End Office
The central office(s) which receive originating E9-1-1 calls.

Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) Service Area

The geographic area in which the E9-1-1 authority will respond to all ES-1-1 calls and
dispatch appropriate emergency assistance.

NextGen Communications, Inc.

275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DED4/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc. (*NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 7
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective ,2010

SECTION 1, — DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) Transport

Telephone lines or facilities that are dedicated to an E9-1-1 system. Enhanced 9-1-1 transport
lines for PSALI connect a customer's PBX to the E9-1-1 Control Office.

Individual Contract Basis (ICB)

A service arrangement where the regulations, rates, and charges are developed based on the specific
circumstances of the Customer's situation and set out in a separate agreement with the Customer. An
ICB may incorporate this or other applicable tariffs by reference.

Internet Protocol (IP)

The Internet Protocol (IP) is a method used for communicating data across a packet-switched digital
network, Sometimes also referred to as TCP/IP.

Location Database

An ALI Location Information Server, or other database that stores location information for
emergency services use.

Location Database Call Routing Device Port

A port on the Location database system used to deliver 9-1-1 calling information to the Call
Routing Device.

NextGen Communications, Inc.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CRD5



NextGen Communications, Inc. (*“‘NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. ]

Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 8

Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010
SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Location Validation Function

A system that stores and receives updates of the data required to provide the Call Routing Device
and Location Database features and determines whether a location description is valid for the given
area. This function was traditionally provided by a DBMS using the MSAG. For NextGen’s 9-1-1,
the data source will not be only the MSAG if an MSAG is used at all. In NextGen’s 9-1-1 system,
the creation of the valid locations is carried out by the Master Location Validation System,

Manual Transfer

A feature that enables the PSAP attendant to transfer an incoming call by depressing the
switchhook of the associated telephone or a button on the Display and Transfer Unit and
dialing either a 7-digit or 10-digit telephone number or a 2-digit speed calling code. Manual
Transfer is associated with the E9-1-1 trunk unit and is a standard feature of E9-1-1 Service.

Master Location Validation System

A system that acts as the master source for valid locations in a given area. Traditionally, a
DBMS is used to create and maintain an MSAG. In NextGen’s 9-1-1 system, the Master
Location Validation System will be a GIS system.

Master Street Address Guide (MSAG)

The document or computer file that lists the standard street names, address ranges, political
community designations, and routing codes (ESNs).

Pseudo Automatic Number Identification

A feature in which a number, assigned to the area served by a wireless communications
provider's tower or a sector of the area served by a tower, is forwarded to the ES-1-1
Call Routing Device and to the PSAPs Display and Transfer Units.

Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification Customer

The Private Switch or Location Database customer may be a municipality or other state or
local governmental unit, or an authorized agent of one or more municipalities or other state or
local governmental units to whom authority has been lawfully delegated, or a PBX
owner/operator, ot Centrex/CENTRON customer who desires to provide station location
information to the E9-1-1 system.

NextGen Communications, Inc.

275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc, (*NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. |

Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 9

Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010
SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP)

An answering location for 9-1-1 calls originating in a given area. A PSAP may be designated as
Primary or Secondary, which refers to the order in which calls are directed for answering. Primary
PSAPs respond first; Secondary PSAPs receive calls on a transfer basis only and generally serve as a
centralized answering location for a particular type of emergency call. PSAPs are staffed by
employees of service agencies such as police, fire, or emergency medical or by employees of a
common bureau serving a group of such entities.

Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) Trunk

A trunk used to deliver ANY information from a Call Routing Device to a PSAP. The PSAP trunk
may be set to receive a 9-1-1 call in several different formats. The trunk could be TDM or IP. The
PSAP trunk is also used to connect and carry voice transmission, and in the case of IP (VoIP)
possibly the location information, from the Call Routing Device.

Routing Telephone Number (RTN)

A number that when dialed rings to a specific Public Safety Answering Point. This is used for
connectivity from the PSTN to the 9-1-1 network of a Public Safety Answering Point.

Routing Telephone Number Port

A port in the Call Routing Device used to connect the routing telephone number line.

Selective Routing (SR)

A form of call routing that may or may not be applicable to the Company’s E9-1-1 that routes an
E9-1-1 call from a central office to the designated primary PSAP based upon the identified
number of the calling party (other factors may be used to determine the call routing in addition
to the calling party’s number). (See “Call Routing Device™)

Selective Transfer

A feature providing persons at the PSAP the ability to transfer an incoming call to another agency
by depressing a single button labeled with the type of agency, e.g., "Fire", on the Display and
Transfer Unit. This type of transfer is only available when the SR feature is provided.

NextGen Communications, Inc.

275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CRO5



NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued December 29, 2010 Original Page 10

Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective 2010

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS
A. Company Liability and Indemnification
1. Limitations on Company Liability

The Company's liability for any loss or damage arising from errors, interruptions, defects,
failures, delays, or malfunctions of any service, equipment, or any part thereof provided
pursuant to this Tariff or ICB, whether caused by the negligence of the Company or
otherwise, except gross negligence, shall not exceed the greater of $50.00 or an amount
equivalent to the pro rata charges for the service or equipment affected during the period
of time that the service or equipment was fully or partially inoperative.

2. Release and Indemnification / Intellectual Property

a. The customer agrees to release, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Company
from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits or other action; or any liability
whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by the customer or by
any other party or person, for any personal injury to or death of any person or
persons, or for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, whether owned by
the customer or others, caused in whole or part by the act or omissions of the
Company, its agents and its employees. Unless otherwise provided for by an ICB,
title to all facilities and intellectual property provided in accordance with this tariff
remains in the Company, its partners, agents, contractors, or suppliers. The
Company is not obligated to compensate, defend, or indemnify the Customer or any
other person for alleged or adjudicated claims of infringement by third parties for
any services offered, or for any licensing or court costs related thereto.

b. The Company will not be liable for any direct, indirect, incidental, special,
consequential, exemplary or punitive damages to Customer as a result of any
Company service, equipment or facilities, or the acts or omissions or negligence of
the Company's employees or agents.

¢. The Company shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance or
equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of
God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation,
direction, action, or request of the United States Government or any state and local
governments having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of any
department, agency, commission, bureau, corporation, or other instrumentality of
any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments, or of any civil or
military authority; national emergencies; insurrections; riots; wars; unavailability of
rights-of-way or materials; or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor
difficulties when it does not involve the Company’s employees.

3. THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR
OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS

NextGen Communications, Inc.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CRO5



NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued December 29, 2010 Original Page 11
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONTINUED
FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.
4. Invasions of Privacy

a, The customer agrees to release, indemnify, and hold harmless the Company for any
infringement or invasion of the right of privacy of any person or persons, caused or
claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation,
failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of
any service features and the equipment associated therewith provided pursuant to
this Tariff, or by any services furnished by the Company in connection therewith,
including, but not limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address or
name associated with the telephone used by persons accessing 9-1-1 service
hereunder, and which arises out of the negligence or other wrongful act of the
Company, except gross negligence, or the employees or agents of any one of them.,
Notwithstanding the foregoing, such indemnification does not apply to Company’s
use of customer data for any purpose other than the provision of 9-1-1 services.

b. The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer
against any claim, loss or damage arising from Customer's use of services, involving
claims for libel, slander, or allegations of infringement of patent or copyright arising
from the Customer's own communications.

B. General Terms and Conditions
1. Term of Service; Termination.

The Company and each customer may enter into a separate agreement specifying the term
during which the Company shall provide Services.

2. Payments; Late Fees

Payment for Services provided by the Company shall be due in accordance with the terms
and conditions of each customer’s contract. Customer agrees to pay a late fee in
accordance with the terms and conditions of each customer’s contract, but in no event to
exceed the late fees which may be charged to customer under the laws of the state of
Arizona.

| 3. Attorneys' Fees

The Company and each customer may enter into a separate agreement specifying that if any
dispute in connection with the provision of Services to customer is submitted to a court,
arbitrator, tribunal or other appropriate entity, then all costs and expenses of the parties
(including reasonable attorneys' fees) will be paid by the party against whom a
determination by such court, arbitrator, tribunal or entity is made, or, in the absence of a
determination, wholly against one party, as such court, arbitrator, tribunal or entity directs.
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONTINUED
C. Notices and Communications

1. The Customer shall designate the address to which the Company shall mail or deliver all notices
and other communications, except that the Customer may also designate a separate address to
which Company bills for service shall be mailed. The Company shall designate an address to
which the Customer shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that
Company may designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall
mail payment on that bill.

2. Except as otherwise stated in this tariff, or an ICB, all notices or other communications required
to be given pursuant to this tariff, or an ICB, or the Agreement for Services will be in writing.
Notices and other communications of either party, and all bills mailed by the Company, shall be
presumed to have been delivered to the other party on the third business day following placement
of the notice, communication or bill with the U.S. Mail or a private delivery service, prepaid and
properly addressed, or when actually received or refused by the addressee, whichever occurs first.

3. The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses
designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for giving
notice set forth herein, or as may be required in an ICB.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES
A. Description of Services
1. Enhanced Universal Emergency Number Service (E9-1-1 Service)

a. Enhanced Emergency Number Service, also referred to as E9-1-1, is a telephone

communication service whereby one or more Public Safety Answering Points (PSAP)
designated by the local 9-1-1 authority may receive telephone calls dialed to the
telephone number 9-1-1. Traditional E9-1-1 Service has typically included lines and
equipment within one telephone company exchange and/or area served by a Mobile
Telephone Switching Office, which could be connected to lines and equipment in
another telephone company exchange to permit answering, transferring and dispatching
of public emergency telephone 9-1-1 calls originated by persons within the same serving
area.

However, E9-1-1 Service may become more decentralized insofar that no single
company may provide all of the E9-1-1 hardware, software, or features. The use of
twisted pair telephone “lines” is becoming obsolete, replaced by broadband IP
connectivity via cable or DSL or other dedicated IP networks. The Company anticipates
that different companies shall provide the 1P E9-1-1 infrastructure, while other
companies provide the E9-1-1 content, features, and functions. This tariff identifies the
rules, regulations, and prices that shall govern the Company’s offering of the E9-1-1
features and functions.

b. Enhanced 9-1-1 Service is offered subject to availability of IP broadband facilities.

c. The E9-1-1 customer may be:

(1) A municipality or other state or local governmental unit, or an authorized agent
of one or more municipalities or other state or local governmental units to whom
authority has been lawfully delegated. The customer must be legally authorized
to subscribe to the service and have public safety responsibility by law to
respond to telephone calls from the public for emergency police, fire or other
emergency services within the telephone areas arranged for 9-1-1 calling.

(2) A private telecommunications provider of LEC, CLEC, wireless, or VolP
service with an obligation to route emergency 9-1-1 calls to the appropriate
PSAP.

(3) A private enterprise with a PBX telephone system with a desire and
appropriate state and/or federal authority to route emergency calls to the
appropriate PSAP.

NextGen Communications, Inc,
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401

DB04/837404.0002/2332605.1 CROS



NextGen Communications, Inc, (“NextGen”) Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued December 29, 2010 Original Page 14
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010

SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED
Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification Service

The Private Branch Exchange (PBX) switch located on a customer's premises sends Automatic
Number Identification information to an Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) Control Office or the
Company’s E9-1-1 Call Routing Device from individual PBX stations for the purpose of
providing site or station location information on an E9-1-1 call, or for selectively routing that call
to the appropriate Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP). A PS/Location Database also is
available to Centrex/CENTRON or VolIP enterprise customers who wish to provide the E9-1-1
system with more specific location and routing information. These are the only intended uses for
this service.

E9-1-1 Call Routing Device Service

The E9-1-1 Call Routing Device service will connect local telecommunications or VoIP
switches via IP and will route the calls to one or more PSAPs via IP or circuit switched
technology as required by the PSAP.

Location Database Service

The Company Location Database will provide the 9-1-1- caller’s name, address, phone
number, and location (if available) to the PSAP via IP simultaneously with the voice call as it
is routed via the IP Call Routing Device. As other content becomes available, the Company
will provide such content. For legacy PSAPs with traditional ALI requirements, the
Company will provide appropriate connectivity to the Company Location Database. The
Company will provide access for authorized users to update Location Database data.

5. Terms and Conditions

a. These services are limited to the use of the central office, VoIP, or mobile telephone
switching office telephone number, 9-1-1, as the universal emergency telephone number.
The Company does not provide the telephone number or dial tone. These services will be
provided by the telecommunications carrier.

b. The 9-1-1 emergency telephone number is not intended as a replacement for the
telephone service of the various public safety agencies which participate in the use of
this number. The public safety agencies will subscribe to other telephone services as
provided in other tariffs/price lists of other providers.

¢. E9-1-1 Service is furnished to the customer only for the purpose of receiving reports
from the public of emergencies or similar events appropriate for action by a PSAP.

d. E9-1-1 Service provides a one-way incoming service to the appropriate PSAP.
Outgoing calls can only be made on a transfer basis or to reconnect a
disconnected incoming 9-1-1 call.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

¢. E9-1-1 Service is provided solely for the benefit of the customer operating the PSAP, or
for the carrier providing telecommunications or data communications service to
individuals. The provision of the E9-1-1 Service by the Company shall not be
interpreted, construed, or regarded, either expressly or implied, as being for the benefit of
or creating any Company obligation toward any third person or legal entity other than the
customer(s). The Company does undertake to provide E9-1-1 services using facilities
obtained by the PSAP to enable the PSAPs personnel to respond to emergency calls on
the PSAPs premises. The PSAP is responsible for the provision and maintenance of
cable and wire facilities on the PSAPs side of the Demarcation Point.

f. Temporary suspension of service at reduced rate is not provided for any part of
the E9-1-1 Service.

g. E9-1-1 information consisting of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of
telephone customers of carriers using Company service is confidential. This information
will be provided via Location Database data on a call-by-call basis only for the purpose
of responding to emergency calls.

h. The E9-1-1 calling party forfeits the privacy afforded by non-listed and non-published
service to the extent that the telephone number, address, and name associated with the
originating station location are furnished to the PSAP.

i. Default Routing will be provided in lieu of Selective Routing and ANI/ALI Display
for E9-1-1 systems served from central offices or mobile telephone switching offices
not equipped to transmit ANI.

j. The rates charged for E9-1-1 Service do not contemplate the inspection or 100 percent
constant monitoring of facilities to discover errors, defects, and malfunctions in the service,
nor does the Company undertake such responsibility. The customer shall make such
operational tests as, in the judgment of the customer(s), are required to determine whether
the system is functioning properly for its use. The customer(s) shall notify the Company
promptly in the event the system is not functioning properly.

I. It is the obligation of the E9-1-1 authority to make arrangements to handle all E9-1-1
calls that originate from telephones served by central offices in the local service area,
whether or not the calling telephone is situated on property within the geographical
boundaries of the E9-1-1 authority’s public safety jurisdiction.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

m. Applications for E9-1-1 Service must be executed in writing by each PSAP or 9-1-1
authority. If application for service is made by an agent, the Company must be provided in

writing with satisfactory proof of appointment of the agent by the customer.

. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is required to fumish the Company its agreement to the
following terms and conditions. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority will subscribe to or
provide telephone equipment with a capacity adequate to handle the number of
incoming E9-1-1 calls recommended by the Company. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is
to insure that PSAP premises equipment selected to operate E9-1-1 system features is
compatible with the service furnished by the Company. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is
responsible for the provision and maintenance of cable and wire facilities on the 9-1-1
authority's side of the Demarcation Point.

. When the Selective Routing (or comparable) feature is provided, PSAP is responsible
for identifying primary and secondary PSAP locations and the unique combinations of
police, fire and ambulance or any other appropriate agencies responsible for providing
emergency service. The PSAP is responsible for identifying the E9-1-1 serving area
and for associating the Company-provided Emergency Service Numbers with the
street address ranges or other criteria for selective routing of calls. Legacy ESNs may
be used. ESNs will be carried in the Data Management System (DMS) or equivalent
to permit routing of 9-1-1 calls to the primary and secondary PSAPs responsible for
handling of calls from each telephone in the E9-1-1 serving area. The following terms
define the 9-1-1 authority's responsibility in providing this information.

(1) Initial and subsequent ESN assignments by street name, address range and area
or other mutually agreed upon routing criteria shall be furnished by the 9-1-1
authority to the Company prior to the effective date of service. If the PSAP has
legacy ESNs assigned by previous E9-1-1 service providers, these ESNs may
be retained if the PSAP prefers.

(2) After establishment of service, it is the PSAP’s responsibility to continue to
verify the accuracy of routing information contained in the address file and to
advise the Company of any changes in street names, establishment of new
streets, changes in address numbers used on existing streets, closing and
abandonment of streets, changes in police, fire, ambulance or other appropriate
agencies, jurisdiction over any address, annexations and other changes in
municipal and county boundaries, incorporation of new cities or any other
matter that will affect the routing of E9-1-1 calls to the proper PSAP.

(3) The Company will provide; with reasonable frequency to the 9-1-1 authority,
upon request a complete electronic copy of the address file previously supplied
to the Company by the 9-1-1 authority to permit the 9-1-1 authority to verify
accuracy of the police, fire, and ambulance PSAP routing designation,
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

(4) Changes, deletions, and additions which the PSAP desires to have made in the
address file should be submitted on an "as occurred” basis.

(5) The Company will furnish an electronic copy to the 9-1-1 authority for
verifications showing each change, deletion, and addition to the address file.

B. Private Switch/Location Database Service
1. Terms and Conditions
a. Private Switch/ Automatic Location Identification

(1) In a Private Switch/Location Database service application, the Private Branch
Exchange (PBX) owner/operator (or Centrex/similar service customer) must
meet the following requirements: Application for Private Switch/Location
Database Service must be executed in writing by each PBX customer. If
application for service is made by an agent, the Company must be provided in
writing with satisfactory proof of appointment of the agent by the customer.

(2) The customer will coordinate with the E9-1-1 Public Jurisdiction to ensure that
area boundaries are identified and that any required additions or medifications to
the Master Location Validation System are provided to the Company.

(3) The customer will provide full local Automatic Number Identification (ANI) for
every station within the PBX. The information must be approved by the
Company prior to implementation to ensure that no conflict exists between the
PBX's numbering plan and the numbering plans of other PBXs or
telecommunications catriers.

(4) ANI multi-frequency signaling must conform to the specifications
established by the Company.

(5) The customer must create, maintain and forward to the Company, current
telephone number and address data in the format and time intervals negotiated
between the Company and the customer.

(6) The PBX must be connected to the E9-1-1 Call Routing Device office via IP
circuits. The PBX must route 9-1-1 calls to the IP 9-1-1 facilities without
overflowing to any other access facility. The Company recommends the enterprise
customer order or maintains diverse IP connectivity to provide redundancy to the
system,
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

(7) The enterprise customer must develop and implement procedures to prevent the
unauthorized or illegal use of Private Switch/Location Database trunks. These
dedicated trunks may not be used for any purpose other than 9-1-1.

(8) The customer must use personal computer hardware and software (or PC
equivalent hardware and software) for ongoing customer record update
programs and processes that conform to specifications established by the
Company.

b. Diversification and Redundancy

Customers can request diversification and redundancy of any or all IP facility routes. These
IP facilities shall be provided by the appropriate ISP selected by the customer(s).
Additional charges for such service utilizing the facilities, or the construction and
provisioning thereof, will be the responsibility of the customer and will be assessed by the
ISP.

C. E9-1-1 Trunks

1. E9-1-1 Trunks are high speed broadband IF or equivalent data-only circuits which:

a.

Originate from the Company Call Routing Device and terminate at PSAP premises
demarcation; or

Originate from the local exchange carrier end office (LEC or CLEC) and terminate at the
Company E9-1-1 Call Routing Device; or

Originate from the mobile telephone switching office and terminate at the Company E9-1-1
Call Routing Device; or

Originate from any VoIP Service Provider softswitch and terminate at the Company E9-1-1
Call Routing Device; or

Originate from any enterprise VoIP PBX softswitch and terminate at the Company E9-1-1 Call
Routing Device; or

Originate from any Emergency Services Gateway and terminate at the Company E9-1-1 Call
Routing Device

2. The E9-1-1 Trunks are provided for the purpose of transporting only E9-1-1 traffic
information.

3. E9-1-1 traffic from various enterprises, LECs, CLECs, mobile switching centers,
and/or ESGWs may be combined on a single IP circuit.

NextGen Communications, Inc,
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401

DB04/837404,0002/2332605.1 CRO5




NextGen Communications, Inc. (“NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. |
Issued December 29, 2010 Original Page 19
Issued by Bruce A, White, Secretary Effective , 2010

SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

D. E9-1-1 Call Routing Device

The E9-1-1 Call Routing Device will be able to provide two services:

1.

Aggregation

The Call Routing Device can aggregate E9-1-1 calls originating from multiple sources in multiple
9-1-1 jurisdictions into IP circuits that terminate at the appropriate PSAPs demarcation point. The
PSAP does not need to designate or arrange for the connectivity between the local
telecommunications carrter(s) to the Call Routing Device, or from the Call Routing Device to the
customer premises demarcation point. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is obligated to acquire
connectivity to the [P network.

Alternate Routing

It is the customer’s responsibility to designate the alternate location if traffic is to be
routed to a secondary PSAP,

E. Automatic Number Identification (ANI)

Automatic Number Identification (ANI) is the feature by which the telephone number or other related
routing (pANI) number associated with an inbound 9 -1-1 caller is received by the Company and
passed on to the proper PSAP. The ANI is also used to determine the proper PSAP to receive the
inbound call.

F. ALI Management Service

1.

MSAG Management

The Company provides a data management and administration tool that automates the
viewing and communication of updates, insertions, and deletions to the MSAG
database.

. MSAG Build Services

The Company acts as the facilitator with the addressing authority in the creation and
maintenance of the MSAG utilizing recognized National Emergency Number
Association (NENA) standards.

. Subscriber Record Management

Subscriber Record Management is the collection of service order records from
Telephone Service Providers (TSPs), validation of those records against the
MSAG, and storage of the records for the generation of the ALI database.
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4. ALI Database Updates

After processing and validating subscriber record updates, the Company posts ALI
records for call routing and for retrieval and display by the PSAP during 9-1-1 calls.

5. ANL/ALI Discrepancy Resolution
An ANIVALI discrepancy occurs when an ALI record delivered to a PSAP does not match the

information of the caller. The Company will investigate ANI/ALI discrepancy reports and refer
each discrepancy to the respective TSP for resolution.
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Tariff Price Tariff Price

Feature Non-Recurring Fee Recurring Fee
Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification ICB ICB
Service

E911 Call Routing Device Service ICB ICB
Selective Routing (data) ICB ICB
Location Database Service ICB ICB
Master Location Validation System Management ICB ICB
Administer Pseudo ANI {per record) ICB ICB
E911 Trunks ICB ICB
Automatic Number Identification {ANI) ICB ICB
ALI Management Service ICB ICB

A. Rates By Individual Contract Basis (ICB)

In lieu of the rates otherwise set forth in this tariff, rates and charges, including minimum usage,
installation, and recurring charges for the Company’s services may be established at negotiated rates on an
individual contract basis (ICB), taking into account the nature of the facilities and services, the costs of
construction and operation, the volume of traffic, the length of service commitment by the Customer, and
use of facilities by other customers. Such arrangements shall be considered Special Pricing Arrangements,
the terms of which will be set forth in individual Customer contracts. However, unless otherwise specified,
the terms, conditions, obligation and regulation set forth in this tariff shall be incorporated into, and become
a part of, said contract, and shall be binding on the Company and the Customer. Specialized rates or
charges will be made available to similarly situated customers on a non-discriminatory basis. The
Company reserves the right to protection from public disclosure of proprietary information contained in
such contracts as allowed under law.

In addition to the charges specifically for the customer’s services, there may be additional surcharges as
mandated by the Arizona Corporation Commission, other Arizona state authorities, and / or the Federal
Communications Commission. The customer is hereby notified that these fees, as applicable, will be added
to the customer’s bill and that the rates may change periodically. No prior notice of any change will be
provided to the customer. The then-current surcharge rate will be applied to the customer’s bill even if this
tariff has not been updated.

NextGen Communications, Inc.
275 West Street Annapolis, MD 21401
DB04/837404,0002/2332605.1 CRO5



NextGen Communications, In¢. (*NextGen™) Arizona Tariff No. 1
Issued January 29, 2010 Original Page 22
Issued by Bruce A. White, Secretary Effective , 2010

SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED

B. Application for Service
1. Requests for this service:

a. can only be initiated by a 9-1-1 customer, a PSAP, or authorized state agency;

b. must be provided to the Company in writing; and

¢, must identify service locations and arrangements.
2. Customer Obligations

a. Customer will comply with all applicable provisions of this tariff and/or an ICB.

b. The telecommunications service provider will create, maintain, and forward to the Company
current telephone number(s) and address data according to the format and procedures specified by
the Company.

c. The PSAP must develop and implement procedures to prevent the unauthorized or illegal use of
Company Next Gen 9-1-1 services. These dedicated facilities may not be used for any purpose
other than for 9-1-1 service.

d. The PSAP must use computer hardware and software for ongoing Private Switch End User
(PSEU) record update programs and processes that conform to the specifications outlined by the
Company.

e. PS/ALI Service information consisting of the name, address, and telephone number of PSEUs is
confidential. The 9-1-1 customer agrees to use such information only for the purpose of
responding to emergency calls.

f. The PSEU forfeits the privacy afforded by non-listed and non-published service to the extent that
the telephone number, the address, and name associated with the originating station location are
furnished to the PSAP and to the Company. The PSEU (published and non-published) consents to
the storage and retention of PSEU name, telephone number, and address in the data base and also
consents to access to this information by the PSAP for the sole purpose of responding to an
emergency call.

g. Cancellation of the service in whole or in part by the 9-1-1 customer prior to establishment
thereof, will require payment to the Company of an amount equal to the cost of engineering,
manufacturers’ billings resulting from equipment orders, installation, assembly, labor, cost of
removal and any other costs incurred by the Company up to the time of cancellation resulting
from the 9-1-1 customer’s order for service. This requirement may be superseded by an explicit
Cancellation Clause in the ICB contract with the customer.
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED

h. Temporary suspension of service at the request of the customer, either partial or complete, is not
applicable.

C. Contracts

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, all services not defined in
this tariff and/or as required by the customer will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the
customer.

D. Special Information Required on Forms
Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the

customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, any special information required of the customer will be
provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

E. Establishment and Reestablishment of Credit

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all credit requirements of the customer will be provided
for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

F. Deposits

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all deposit requirements of the customer will be provided
for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

G. Notices in ICB
Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the

customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all notice requirements between the customer and the
Company may also be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

H. Issuance and Payment of Bills

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all billing procedures between the customer and the
Company will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

I. Discontinnance and Restoration of Service

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the

customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all terms and conditions for the discontinuance and/or
restoration of service will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.
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SECTION 4, RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED
J. Information on Services and Promotional Offerings
Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, the Company does not anticipate that it will offer any
promotional offerings.
K. Temporary Service
Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all temporary service needs between the customer and the
Company will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.
L. Continuity of Service
Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all determinations of interruptions of service, notice to the
customer, and apportionment of available services between the customer and the Company will be provided
for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.
M. Extension of Lines and Mains
Not applicable to the Company.
N. Facilities on Customers' Premises and Service Connections
Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all procedures regarding the installation of the services,

and the respective rights of the Company and the customer regarding access to the customer’s premises will
be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer,
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A. Service Areas

The Company proposes to serve the entire state of Arizona.
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Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affect Future Results

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, as
amended (the “Exchange Act’). Forward-looking statements are statements ather than historical information or
statements of current condition. We generally identify forward-looking statements by the use of terms such as
“believe”, "intend", “expect”, “may”, “should’, “plan”, “project”, “contemplate”, “anticipate”, or other similar
statements. Examples of forward looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not
limited to statements that

{i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in
messaging and location determination,;

(i) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand
our domestic and international carrier base;

(iii} we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer netwarks or through hosted and subscription business models and we believe that our
software is positioned for early adoption by carriers;

(iv) wireless growth is expected ta continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable
future;

{v) bath the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly;

(vi) we will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that operate on ail major types of
networks;

(vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology to unlock valuable
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers;

{viii) we will cantinue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications;

(ix) we intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to
increase the scate and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base;

{x) the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satelfite constellation expands our
opportunity for SwiftLink sales volume;

(xi) we believe our expertise in the area of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure
satellite communications can be leveraged into providing products and services to the Federal agencies;

(xii} we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of
the evolving environment of satellite communications;

(xii)) we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering;

{xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist
teams for functions such as network management, and for Jong-term projects such as software development
and systems integration;

(xv) we expect to continue generate significant portions of our total revenue from our largest customers;
(xvi) we expect to realize $116.0 million of backlog within the next twelve months,
(xvii) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete;

{xviii} we expect to require increasing levels of support from subcontractors and vendors and expand our
work under contract vehicles;
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{xix) we believe we have stufficient capital resources to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses,
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months;

{xx) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by the related products;

(xxi} we believe our intellectual property assets are valuable and that we may realize revenue from patent
infringement ciaims;

{xxii) we helieve we should not incur an material liabilities from customer indemnification requests;

(xxiiiy the WWSS procurement vehicle is expected to contribute to significant sales growth and that we
expect to fulfill the potential values under WIWSS orders;

(xxiv) expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation;
(xxv) our assumptions and e;gpectations related to income taxes and deferred tax assets,

(xxvi) we do not expect that the adoption of new accounting standards to have a material impact on the
company’s financial statements, and

(xxvii) statements about financial covenants related to our loan agreements.

Other such statements include without limitation risks and uncertainties relating to our financial results and
our ability to (i} continue to rely on gur customers and other third parties to provide additional products and
services that create a demand for our products and services, (i) conduct our business in foreign countries,

(iii) adapt and integrate new technologies into our products, (iv} develop software without any errors or defects,
(V) protect our intellectual property rights, (vi} implement our business strategy, (vii) realize backlog,

(viii) compete with small business competitors, (ix) effectively manage our counter party risks, and (x} achieve
continued revenue growth in the foreseeable future in certain of our business lines. This list should not be
considered exhaustive.

These forward-looking statements refate to our plans, objectives and expectations for future operations, We
base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions made using information currently available to us.
In light of the risks and uncertainties inharent in all prajected operational matters, the inclusion of
forward-looking statements in this document should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other
person that our objectives or plans will be achieved or that any of our operating expectations will be realized.
Revenues, results of operations, and other matters are difficult to forecast and could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as a result of
factors discussed in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Resuilts of
Operations”, the matters discussed in “Risk Factors Affecting Our Business and Future Resuits”, which are
included in ltem 1A, and those factors discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K including,
changes in economic conditions, technology and the market in general, and our ability to adapt our products
and services to these changes. We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future
revisions we make to forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We caution you not to put undue reliance on these
forward-tooking statements.

Item 1,.Business
Overview

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications
technology, with emphasis on text messaging, location-based services including enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) for
wireless carriers and Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) service providers, and secure satellite-based
communication solutions for government customers.

We are a Maryland corporation founded in 1987 with headquarters at 275 West Street, Annapolis, Maryland
21401. Our Web address is www.telecomsys.com. The information contained on our Web site does not
constitute part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, All of our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission are available through a link on our website. The terms “TCS”, "we”, “us” and “our” as used in this
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Annual Report on Form 10-K refer to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a combined
entity, except where it is made clear that such terms mean enly TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Our business is conducted through two operating segments, Commercial (46% of 2008 revenue) and
Government (54% of 2008 revenue). See discussion of segment reparting in Note 20 to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
segment information.

Commercial Segment: Qur carrier services and systems products enable wireless carriers to deliver short
text messages, location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from
wireless phones. We pravide E9-1-1 services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text
message distribution services on a hosted, or service bureau basis, that is, customers use our software
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly fees based
on the number of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or message volume. We provide hosted services
under contracts with wireless carrier networks, as wefl as ValP service providers, We eam subscriber revenue
through wireless applications including our navigation and traffic application which are available via many
wireless carriers. We earn carrier software-based revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and
customization fees and maintenance fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased
from us by the carrier. As of December 31, 2008, we had deployed 108 of our software systems in wireless
carrier networks around the world, including those of Verizon Wireless, Telefonica and its affiliate Vivo, and
Hutchison Whampoa’s “3” brand third generation networks.

Government Segment: Since our founding in 1987 we have provided communication systems integration,
information technology services, and software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other
government customers. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to
satellite airtime (known as space segment.} We design, furnish, install and operate wireless and data network
communication systems, including our SwiltLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high
speed, satellite, and internet protocol technology. More than 1,500 of our SwiftLink® deployable
communication systems are in use far security, defense, and law enforcement around the world. In 2006, we
were named one of six prime contractors on the US Army's Worldwide Satellite Systems ("WWSS”) contract
vehicle, with a ceiling value of up to $5 billion in procurements through 2011.

We currently have more than 65 patents, primarily for wireless messaging and location technology, and
more than 210 patent applications pending. During 2008, we sold one of our patents to TIP Communication
LLC netting $8.1 million, as part of settling a patent infringement suit again Research in Motion Limited. We
employ approximately 600 people.

SwiftLink®, Xypoint®, and Enabling Convergent Technologies ®, are trademarks or service marks of
TeleCommunication Systems, inc. or our subsidiaries. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains
trademarks, frade names and services marks of other companies that are the property of their respective
owners.

I. Commercial Segment:

We provide software, related systems, hosted services, maintenance and refated services to wireless
carriers, Vioice Over |P service providers, and users of electronic map and related location-based technology,
based on our portfolio of patented intellectual property.

A. Commercial Product and Service Offerings

1. Commercial services. We own and lease network operation centers that host software for which
customers make recurring monthly usage payments. Our hosted offerings include wireless and Voice over IP
E9-1-1, and commercial location-based applications. Through wireless carriers, we sell subscriptions to
services using our client software applications such as navigation, traffic, and points of interest, sometimes in
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collaboration with owners of brand names such as Rand McNally®. Our primary commercial product offerings
include:

a. Hosted Location-Based Services, including E9-1-1. Our £9-1-1 service bureau works with wircless
carriers and local emergency services in compliance with the Federal Communication Commission
requirements. When a wireless subscriber covered by this service makes a 9-1-1 call from his or her
wireless phone, the software (1) identifies the call as an emergency call, {2} accesses the handset's
location information from the wireless network, (3) routes the call to the appropriate public safety
jurisdiction, (4) translates the information into a dispatcher-friendly format, and (5) transmits the data to the
local emergency service call center. Our E9-1-1 service operates on a platform at our network operations
center in Seattle, Washington with data center redundancy in Phoenix, Arizona, As of December 31, 2008,
we are under contract to provide E9-1-1 services to more than 4C customers including wireless carriers
Verizon and AT&T Wireless, and Voice over IP service providers including Vonage and Level 3.

b. Customer subscriptions to application-based services such as Navigation, Traffic and
Points-of-interest. TCS' strategy is to provide wireless subscriber applications that use location-based
technology, which subscribers may select and pay recurring monthly fees. TCS has launched its real-time
traffic application downloadable mobile applications that deliver easy access to maps, directions and
directory listings for the entire United States, and its navigation applications on multiple networks.
Variations of all applications are sold under the Rand McNally® brand as well as carrier or other brands.

¢. Software and system maintenance. For our installed base of systems in use by customers (see
system descriptions below), we provide ongoing operational support, including administration of system
components, system optimization and configuration management. Maintenance services include tracking
customer support issues, trouble shooting, and developing and installing maintenance releases. We
typically provide maintenance services for an annual fee paid in advance, which is priced based on the
cumulative license fees we have billed for the systems being supported.

d. Professional services involving electronic map technology. We provide custom software
development and professional services to customers engaged in telematics (the use of Global Positioning
System technelogy integrated with computers and mabile communications technology in automotive
navigation systems). Customers include DENSO Corporation of Japan, and services include
points-of-interest applications, and compilation and maintenance of geographic information databases used
in vehicle navigation systems for products including Toyota, Lexus, Land Rover and Hyundai brands.

2. Commercial Licensed Software-based Systems: We design and develop software products for
wireless carrier and enterprise networks that enable the delivery of secure and personalized content, services,
and transactions to wireless devices. We design our software using industry standards for easy
implementation, customization, and interoperability with other network campanents. Most of our commercial
software is designed and delivered together with third-party software and related hardware, which is integrated
into new and existing networks by our engineers. Our primary commercial software-based system offerings
include:

a. Xypoint® Location Platform (XLP} and Applications for Location-based Services: Our Xypoint®
Location Platform system interacts with wireless network to extract location information (the “X/Y”
coordinates) of a user’s device. In order to determine a user's location with sufficient precision for
U.S. public safety compliance and for commercial location-based applications, our technology interacts with
networks that have incorporated Assisted GPS systems that use Global Positioning System (GPS) chips in
user handsets; it can also work with network triangulation software which some carriers have added to cell
towers and switches in the netwark. We have been a leader in developing the location platform standard
called Secure User Plane for Lacation {SUPL) and have incorporated the technology in our product. Our
platform also provides privacy controls so that the wireless device user controls access to the user's
location information. The “X/Y" information extracted from networks by our XLP is used by application
software including E9-1-1, driving navigation directions, identification of points of interest locations near the
end user (such as gas stations, restaurants, or hoteis), and locating other network subscribers near the
user’s current position.
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b. Short Message Service Center and Wireless Inteiligent Gateway. Our Short Message Service
Center software enables users to send and receive text or data messages to and from wireless devices.
The Wireless Intelligent Gateway is a portal for two-way data communication between users of wireless
networks and the Internet. The Gateway allows users to customize the services they receive on wireless
davices by setting up a user profile through a single internet-based procedure. Wireless carriers can access
these user profiles and usage data to gain a better understanding of customer behavior. The Wireless
Intelligent Gateway allows additional wireless applications to be added as desired, as well as
personalization, instant messaging and spam-blocking capabilities that can be independently customized
by the end-user. It can interoperate with our location-based service platform and applications.

B. Commercial Market Opportunities and Strategy

We plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deplayment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models. Our development
investment is focused on the delivery of Internet content, proprietary third-party content, short messages,
location information, corporate network data and other enhanced data-communication services to and from
wireless devices, The following trends are driving demand for our products and services:

Growth in Wireless and Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) Subscribers. The use of wireless
communications has increased significantly in recent years, driven by expanded wireless network
coverage, upgraded high-speed digital wireless networks, more affordable wireless communications service
plans, and higher quality and less expensive wireless devices. VoIP service offers cost advantages over
traditional wireline service. Wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the
world for the foreseeable future. Driving this growth is the replacement of landline connections with wireless
connections. Some househalds are now using celiular phones exclusively. This is especially true for young
adults, but also true in developing countries where wireless may often be the only means of
communications.

The FCC's £9-1-1 Mandates. We are one of the two leading providers of ES-1-1 service to wireless and
VolP service providers in the U.S. The ability to call for help or communicate with family members in need
is the reason many people cite for having a wireless phane. A key to enhancing personal safety through a
cell phone is the availability of E9-1-1 wireless capabilities. In 1996, the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) mandated the adaption of E9-1-1 technology by wireless carriers. In June 2005, the
FCC ordered providers of interconnected VolP service to provide £9-1-1 services to all of their customers
as a standard feature of the service, rather than as an optional enhancement. The FCC requires wireless
carriers to issue quarterly reports as to their pragress and compliance with FCC-mandated deployment
schedules.

Ceflular Network Improvements to Third Generation Capabilities. Mobile operators are deploying
high-spead data networks based on third generation technologies that, in many cases, equal or surpass
data rates that are typically available for residentiat wireline users. The deployments of these high-speed
wireless data networks have made it possible for individuals and enterprises to “wireless-enable” many
services that previously required a wireline connection, such as connecting to the Internet and accessing
corporate data outside the office. Our location-based technology and applications incorporating map
graphics take advantage of these network enhancements.

Improving Wireless Device Functionality. Manufacturers continue to increase the functionality of
mobile devices including phones and personal digital assistants through higher resolution, color screens,
and increased computing capability for sophisticated applications. These devices enahle the user to take
advantage of the high-speed data networks for Internet and data usage. Broad adoption of location-based
sarvices (LBS) has required, among other things, handsets incorporating components for interoperation
with Global Positioning System satellites and with LBS network components that we have developed and
provide. A growing humber of handheld wireless device models contain Global Pasitioning System (GPS)
chipsets which interoperate with our network platforms and applications.

Growing Use of Commercial Location-Based Wireless Services (LBS). A driver of wireless
communication subscriber revenue growth is the delivery of timely, highly specialized, interactive and
location-specific information. Technology incorporated in a growing number of networks and handsets now
enables
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determination of the handset's location with sufficient precision to allow useful applications beyond public
safety's £9-1-1. Wireless users benefit from the ability to receive highly customized location-specific
information in response to their queries or via targeted opt-in content delivered to the wireless device.
Enterprises benefit from wireless location technology by wtilizing routing and tracking applications for their
mobile field forces. Qur software provides wireless location solutions to mobile operators today through our
Xypoint® Location Platform (XLP.) This technology is being used, via interconnection with XLP systems
hosted in our network operations, by MetroPCS and Ntelos in the U.S., Bell Mobility in the U.S. and
Canada, Centennial Puerta Rico in Puerta Rico, and lusacell in Mexico. Our XL.P in-netwark system
customers include Alitel (now part of Verizon Wireless), Hutchison Whampoa's “3*™ networks, and
Telefonica’s Vivo network in Brazil. We are deploying hesting infrastructure in Mumbai, India to serve Tata
Teleservices and other carriers in India with location data and downloadable navigation application
software.

Growing Use of Short Messaging and Internet Applications. The number of short messaging
services (SMS) users and messages per individual are projected to continue to increase significantly.
Mabile aperators in the United States are experiencing rapid SMS traffic growth, according to statistics from
mobile operators. The Internet and intemal corporate data netwarks, or intranets, have emerged as global
communications channels that allow users to share information and conduct business transactions
electronically. We provide salutions for mobile operators to receive and route e-mail and SMS messages
through our Short Message Service Center and Wireless Intelligent Gateway systems.

The key elements of our commercial strategy are to:

+ Focus our Software and Integration Resources on Evolving Carrier Network Capabilities. Mobile
operators and the federal government increasingly seek integrated solutions that can hamess both
messaging capabilities of networks and location information of end-users. We are well positioned to
address the evolving integration needs of our commerciat and government clients through our
demonstrated expertise in both messaging and focation determination. Mobile operators have made large
capital expenditure investmants in infrastructure for wireless data and location determination
technologies. While originally envisioned as separate technologies, messaging and location
determination technologies can be integrated to provide value-added services and applications for the
operators' end-users.

« Expand Our Sales and Marketing Relationships, We are developing relationships with communication
infrastructure providers in order to expand our salas channels for our carrier software products and
services. We have historically leveraged our strategic relationships with original equipment
manufacturers to market our Commercial Segment products to wireless carriers worldwide. We have long
standing relationships with Qualcomm Incorporated and its subsidiary SnapTrack Inc., including the
BREW Locate Signature Solution. Wa are adding partnerships for our location technologies, including a
marketing alliance in China established in January 2009,

+ Grow Our Wirelass Carrier and Voice Over IP Customer Base. We now serve or are under contract
with more than 40 wireless carrier networks and VoIP service providers in 16 countries. We intend to
expand our domestic and international carrier base by capitalizing on our relationships with original
equipment manufacturers and establish new distribution partnerships and by expanding our own sales
and markating initiatives, We will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that oparate
on all major types of networks.

Leverage Our Expertise in Accessing Information Stored Inside Wireless Networks. We will
continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology, including Signaling System 7 and
Intemnet Protocol standards, to unjock valuable information such as user location, device on/off status,
and billing and transaction records that reside inside wireless networks and are difficult to retrieve ang
utilize. Using this information, we intend to expand the range of capabilities that wireless data technology
can accomplish for our customers,

Develop and Enhance Our Technology. We will continue to invest in our underiying technology and to
capitalize on our expertise to meet the growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications. As of
January 1, 2009, our staff included approximately 300 personnel with technical expertise in wireless
network, client software development, hosted wireless operations, satellite-based communication
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technology and integrated network solutions. We also have research and development relationships with
wireless handset manufacturers, wireless carriers, and content and electronic commerce providers. Qur
Xypoint® platform architecture efficiently integrates our presence, location, call control and messaging
technology, resulting in reduced costs, increased reliability, more efficient deployments, compatibility with
our existing products and a migration path to third-generation services.

« Pursue Select Acquisitions. We intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies
and technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products,
services and customer base.

il. Government Segment:

We provide secure, deployable communication systems, and engineering and technical services, with
emphasis on satellite-based communication technology, to agencies of the U.S. Departments of Defense
(DoD), State, Justice, Homeland Security, as well as the City of Baltimore and other government customers.

A. Government Products and Services

1. Government Services. We enter into fee-for-service contracts under which revenue is generated based
on contract labor billing rates or based on fixed fees for deliverables. These services, typically under muiti-year
contracts or contract vehicles, include:

a. Network Operation and Telecom Expense Management Support. We design, install, and operate
data networks that integrate computing and communications, including systems that provide
communications via both satellite and terrestrial links. We can provide complete network instaliation
services from cabling infrastructure to complex communications system components. We also provide
ongoeing network operation and management support services including telecom expense management
under multi-year contracts with government customers.

b. Secure Satellite Teleport Data Landing and Transmission Services. We own and operate a
high-speed satellite communications teleports in Manassas, Virginia that are connected to the public
switched telephone network. These facilities provide transport services for Intemet Protocol {IP)-based
media content consisting of Voice over IP (VolP), Internet, video, and messaging data using Very Small
Aperture Terminal (VSAT) satellite technology as part of our communication solutions for our customers.
We purchase space segment and resell it to customers using our facilities.

¢. Maintenance Services. We offer basic and extended maintenance services related to our SwiftLink®
products and customized deployable communication systems.

2. Government Systems. We have designed and developed our SwiftLink® product line a series of
ruggedized, wireless and satellite-based secure communication systems, which can be rapidly deployed in
remote areas where other means of reliable communications may not be available, SwiftLink® products
provide secure voice, video and data communications for multiple personnel. All of our SwiftLink® systems can
be deployed by a single person in less than ten minutes, creating critical communication channels from any
location around the world. Uses include critical communications for DoD warfighters and command
headquarters, emergency response, news reporting, public safety, drilling and mining operations, field surveys
and other activities that require remote capabilities for video and data transmission. Integration work which
typically accompanies customer purchases of our secure deployable systems is reported together with the
system sales revenue. The Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation,
which enables lower cost internet protocol traffic with broader band capability, expands our opportunity for
SwiftLink® sales. More importantly, our deployable VSAT multi-band terminals provide access to a wide array
of commercial and military satellites that make broadband capabilities available on a global basis. In addition,
our deployable broadband wireless systems provide additional extensions of secure wireless communications
services for up to 30 miles from a Switlink® point of presence.
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B. Government Market Opportunities and Strategy

We plan to continue to provide communication systems integration, information technology services,
software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense, and other government customers, in addition to
operating secure satellite teleport facilities and reselling access to sateliite airtime. Our development and
business growth is focused on continuity of operations, field service operations and increased satellite
managed handwidth services. The following trends are driving demand for our products and services;

Expanded Need for Secure, Interoperable Deployable Communication Solutions. In recognition of the
military imperative of enabling secure, broadband access to data for missions in disparate, remote locations,
the US Army awarded the WWSS 5-year procurement contract vehicle to six prime contractars, including
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. in the third quarter of 2006, with a ceiling value of up to $5 billion in
procurements through 2011. This procurement encompasses systems like our SwiftLink® family of
deliverables, and during 2008 we generated significant revenue under WWSS, including fulfillment of orders
for equipment under three WWSS programs: MiTT (Military Transition Team}, WPPL (Wireless Point-to-point
Link, and SNAP (Secure and Non-secure |P Network Access Point) systems. We are continuing to enhance
our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of the evalving environment, including
the benefits of Very Small Aperture Tarminal (VSAT) satellite communications architectures deployable in
multiple aperture sizes from 0.45 meter man pack terminals to 2.4 meters where desirable and the use of
Inmarsat Broadband Global Area Network enhancements to our satellite services.

Growing Use of Secure Wireless Communications and Location Technology for Defense,
intelligence and Homeland Security. Wireless communications and location technology are key initiativas
within the federal government for both security and supply-chain management. Wireless communications in
emergencies are of paramount importance, as emergency persannel need to be able to communicate and
share information across agencias and departments where wireline systems may be unavailable. We believe
that our expertise in the areas of wireless £9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite
communications can be leveraged to provide the needed wireless infrastructure for the U.S. Departments of
Homeland Security and Defense and we are currently pursuing opportunities to provide such products and
services. Our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems are also increasingly used by military and other
government agencies around the globe for communications in times of emergencies. SwiftLink® is designed to
provide secure voice and data communications through encrypted satellite links,

Government Outsourcing of Network and Telecom Technical Functions. Federa| agencies, as well as
state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist teams for functions such as network
management, and for long-term projects such as software development and systems integration, Since the
founding of our Company, we have built relationships with federal agencies, as well as the State of Maryland
and the City of Baltimore. Since early 2004, we have made it a management priority to aggressively expand
our base of long-term service contract engagements. We have added experienced sales personnel and
enhanced our relationships with systems integrators and specialist vendors to expand our penetration of the
government service market

Secure Teleport and Integration Capabilities along with Depfoyable Systems as a Bundied
Offering. Government customers can benefit from single-sourcing secure communications solutions which
include a secure U.S. landing site for backhaul traffic as well as network engineering expertise and secure
remote temminals. We believe that TCS enjoys a competitive advantage, because it can offer all of these
elements from a single vendor,

Application of Commercially Proven Technology to Government Solutions. Government customers
increasingly are using commercial carrier networks. Procurement officers have expressed a preference for
solutions that incorporate proven commercial technology, rather than reliance on government research and
development funding. Our portfolio of software, patented intellectual property, and teams of wireless and
encryption specialists positions us to tap into this opportunity.
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Customers

Commercial Segment. Our commercial customers include wireless telecommunications carriers in the
United States and foreign countries, either directly or through our channel partners. We provide licensed
software-based systems, and hosted service bureau offerings to carriers around the world. Our wireless carrier
customers include Verizon Wireless (22% of total 2008 revenue from continuing operations), AT&T Wireless,
T-Mobile and the Hutchison Whampoa third generation “3" brand networks. Customers for our Voice Over IP
E9-1-1 services include Vonage and Level 3. We provide electronic map technology solutions to telematics
vendors including DENSO Corporation. Qur sales efforts target wireless and Voice over IP service providers
around the world.

Government Segment. Our major Government Segment customers inciude major elements of the
U.S. Departments of Defense, Justice, Homeland Security, and State, the General Services Administration, the
City of Baltimore, and Northrop Grumman. In the aggregate, U.S. federal government entities accounted for
42% of total 2008 revenue from continuing operations.

Backiog

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had unfilled orders, or funded contract and total backlog, as
follows:

December 31, 2008 vs. 2007
%o

($ in millions)

Comiercial Sedments’ %),
Government Segment M7%
L Totalunded contract hackio 20%;.

Segment ,
GoverhmentSegment. et o :
Total backlog of orders and commitments, including
customer aptions

ExpEsted fo barealized withinnes

Co

Funded contract backlog represents contracts for which fiscal year funding has been appropriated by our
custorners {mainly federal agencies), and for our hosted services is computed by multiplying the most recent
month's recurring revenue times the remaining months under existing long-term agreements, which we believe
is the best available information for anticipating revenue under those agreements. Total backlog, as is typically
measured by government contractors, includes orders covering optional periods of service and/or deliverables,
but for which budgetary funding may not yet have been approved. Company backlog at any given time may be
affected by a number of factors, including the avaitability of funding, contracts being renewed or new contracts
being signed before existing contracts are completed. Some of our backlog could be canceled for causes such
as late delivery, poor performance and other factors, Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from period to
period is not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual revenue.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products and services through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. Our direct
sales force consists of approximately 20 professionals in the U.S. and Europe. We have also historically
leveraged our relationships with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) to market our commercial systems
to wireless carrier customers. These indirect sales relationships include Alcatel Lucent, and Qualcomm, We
are also adding partnerships for our location technologies, including a marketing alliance in China established
in January 2009. During the indirect sales process, as well as during installation and maintenance, we have
extensive direct contact with prospective carrier customers,

We are pre-qualified as an approved vendor for some government contracts, and some of our products and
services are available to government customers via the General Services Administration’s Information
Technology
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Schedule 70, and the Worldwide Satellite Services (WWSS) and the Space and Naval Warfare Fareign Military
Sales (SPAWAR FMS) contract vehicles. We collaborate in sales efforts under various arrangements with
integrators. Our marketing efforts also include advertising, public relations, speaking engagements and
attending and sponsoring industry conferences.

Competition

The markets for our products and services are competitive. The adoption of industry standards may make it
easier for new market entrants to compete with us. We expect that we will continue to compete primarily on the
basis of the functionality, breadth, time to market, ease of integration, price, and quality of our products and
services, as well as our market experience and reputation. The market and competitive conditions are
continually developing. Our software products compete with many similar products provided by other
companies. Itis difficult to present a meaningful comparison between our competitors and us because there is
a large variation in revenue generated by different customers, different products and services, as well as the
different combinations of products and services offered by our competitors. We cannot, therefore, quantify our
relative competitive position.

Our current and potential competitors include:

« Commercial Segmant. Intrado Inc. division of West Corporation; Motorola Inc.; Siemens AG; Ericsson
LM Telephone Ca.; Openwave Systems Inc.; Acision; Comverse Technology Inc.

+ Government Segment. Computer Sciences Corporation; ViaSat Inc.; General Dynamics corp.; DataPath
In¢.; CACI International Inc.; Globecomm Systems, Inc.; Comtech Telecommunications, Corp.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and
distribution resources than we da. Many of these companies have greater name recognition and more
established ralationships with their target customers. Furthermors, these competitors may be able to adopt
more aggressive pricing policies and affer customers more attractive terms than we can. With time and capital,
it would be possible for our competitors to replicate our products and services.

We partner with vendors of precise location technology. Certain of our partners may attempt to compete
with our operating platform by developing their own transmission platform or by purchasing another mobile
location platform. The markets for commercial location and other mobile wireless applications for carriers and
enterprises are relatively new and continually developing. The convergence of wireless technologies and the
Internet is creating many initiatives to bring data and transaction capabilities to wireless devices. There is a
wide array of potential competitors in this market, including providers of competing location management
platforms, competing e-mail praducts, competing enterprise mobility platforms and other competing
applications for wireless devices,

Research and Development

Our success depends on a number of factors, which include, among other items, our ability to identify and
respend to emerging tachnological trends in our target markets, to develop and maintain competitive products,
to enhance our existing products by adding features and functionality that differentiate the products from those
of our competitors, and to bring products to market on a timely basis and at competitive prices. As of
January 1, 2009, our overall staff included approximately 300 professionals with technical expertise in wireless
network, client software development and satellite-based communication technology. Since 1996, we have
made substantial investments in wireless technology research and development, most of which has been
devoted to the development of carrier and enterprise network software products and services. We are primarily
focusing our current research and development investments in cellular location-based and electronic map
technology, including £9-1-1 technology. We actively support existing telecommunications standards and
promote new telecommunications standards in order to expand the market for wireless data. We actively
participate in wireless standards-setting organizations including the Open Mobite Alliance, and we are
represented on the Board of Directors for the E9-1-1 Institute. In 1996, we co-founded the Intelligent Network
Farum, an organization dedicated to expanding the role of intelligent networks in telecommunications. As part
of our strategy to expand the role of short messaging, we co-founded the Short Message Peer-to-Peer Forum
in 1999.
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For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, our research and development expense in
continuing operations was $16.2 million, $13.1 million, and $12.8 million, respectively.

Certain of our government customers contract with us from time to time to conduct research on
telecommunications software, equipment and systems.

! Pr igh

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark, and frade secret laws and
restrictions to establish and protect certain praprietary rights in our products and services,

We currently hold more than 65 issued patents relating to wireless text messaging, inter-carrier messaging,
number portability, GPS ephemeris data, emergency public safety data routing and electronic commerce. We
have filed more than 210 additional patent applications for certain apparatus and processes we believe we
have invented to enable key features of the location services, wireless text alerts, Short Message Service
Center, mobile-originated data and E9-1-1 network software. There is no assurance that these patent
applications will result in a patent being issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or other patent
offices, nor is there any guarantee that any issued patent will be valid and enforceable. Additionally, foreign
patent rights may or may not be availabie or pursued in any technology area for which U.S. patent applications
have been filed.

We developed our Short Message Service Center software in 1996 under our development agreement with
Alcatel Lucent. Under the development agreement, we share certain ownership rights in this software
application with Alcatel Lucent. The scope of each party’s ownership interest is subject to each party’s various
underlying ownership rights in intellectual property and also to confidential information contributed to the
applications, and is subject to challenge by either party.

As a member of varous industry standard-setting forums, we have agreed to license certain of our
intellectual property to other members on fair and reasonable terms to the extent that the license is required to
develop non-infringing praducts under the specifications promulgated by those forums.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had 585 employees, of which 573 were full-time and 12 were part-time. We
believe relations with our employees are good. None of our employees is represented by a union.

G hical Inf .

During 2008, 2007, and 2008, total revenue generated from products and services of our continuing
operations in the U.S. were $211.5 million, $138.6 miilion, and $117.6 million, respectively, and total revenue
generated from products and services outside of the U.S. were $8.6 million, $5.6 million, and $7.3 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, essentially all of the long-lived assets of our
continuing operations were located in the U.S.

During 2007 and 2006, total revenue generated from products and services of our discontinued Enterprise
division in the U.S. were $5.6 million and $22.1 million, respectively. All discontinued operations were divested
in 2007.

We are subject to risks related to offering our products and services in foreign countries. See the
information under the heading “Risk Factors — Because our product offerings are sold internationally, we are
subject to risks of conducting business in foreign countries” included in ltem 1A.
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Item 1A, Risk Facfors
You should consider carefully each of the following risks and alf of the other information in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein. If any of the folfowing risks and

uncertainties develops info actual events, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

R d to Our Busines
If wireless carriers do not continue to proyide additional products and services fo their subscribers,
Qurbusiness could be harmed.

If wireless carriers limit thair product and service offerings or do not purchase additional products containing
our applications, our business will be harmed, Wireless carriers face implementation and support challenges in
introducing Internet-based services via wireless devices, which may slow the rate of adoption or
implementation of our products and services. Historically, wireless cariiers have been relatively slow to
implement complex new services such as Internet-based services. Qur future success depends upon a
continued increase in the use of wireless devices to access the Internet and upon the continued development
of wireless devices as a medium for the delivery of network-based content and services. We have no control
over the pace at which wireless carriers implement these new services, The failure of wireless carriers to
introduce and support services utilizing our products in a timely and effective manner could reduce sales of our
products and services and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

We may fail to support oyr anticipated growth in operations which could reduce demand for our
services and materially adversely affect our revenue.

Our business strategy is based on the assumption that the market demand, the number of customers, the
amount of information they want to receive and the number of products and services we offer will all increase.
We must continue to develop and expand our systems and operations to accommodate this growth. The
expansion and adaptation of our systems operations requires substantial financial, operational and
management resources. Deployment of our Government systems has increased substantially and while we
have increased our production capabilities to satisfy the increased demand, our ability to meet production
schedules for increasing demand could adversely impact our product quality and reliability. Any failure on our
part to develop and maintain our wireless data services and government system production lines as we
experience rapid growth could significantly reduce demand for our services and materially adversely affect our
revenue. Also, if we incorrectly predict the market areas that will grow significantly, we could expend significant
resources that could have been expended on other areas that do show significant growth.

A material portion of the Company's annual revenues are derived from fixed-price contracts. Due to their
nature, fixed-price contracts inherently have more risk than flexibly priced contracts. Qur operating margin is
adversely affected when contract costs that cannot be billed to customers are incurred. While management
uses its best judgment to estimate costs associated with fixed-price contracts, future events could result in
either upward or downward adjustments to those estimates which could negatively impact our profitability. The
increase in contract costs can occur if estimates to complete increase or if initial estimates used for calculating
the contract cost were incorrect. The cost estimation process requires significant judgment and expertise.
Reasons for cost growth may include unavailability and productivity of labor, the nature and complexity of the

| work to be performed, the effect of change orders, the availability of materials, interruptions in our supply

| chain, the effect of any delays in performance, availability and timing of funding from the customer, natural

| disasters, and the inability to recover any claims included in the estimates to complete. A significant change in

| cost estimates on one or more programs could have a material effect on the company’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.
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As a supplier to the U.S. government, we must comply with numerous regulations, including those
governing security and contracting practices. In addition, prime contracts with various agencies of the
U.S. government and subcontracts with other prime contractors are subject to numerous laws and regulations.

Failure to comply with these procurement regulations and practices could result in fines being imposed
against us or our suspension for a period of time from eligibility for bidding on, or far award of, new government
contracts. If we are disqualified as a supplier to government agencies, we would lose most, if not all, of our
U.S. government customers and revenues from sales of our products would decline significantly. Among the
potential causes for disqualification are violations of various statutes, including those related to procurement
integrity, export control, U.S, government security regulations, empleyment practices, protection of the
environment, accuracy of records in the recording of costs, and foreign corruption. The government could
investigate and make inquiries of our business practices and conduct audits of contract performance and cost
accounting. Based on the results of such audits, the U.S. government could adjust our contract-related costs
and fees. Depending on the results of these audits and investigations, the government could make claims
against us, and if it were to prevalil, certain incurred costs would not be recoverable by us,

The capital and credit markets have continued to experience extreme volatility and disruption. Historically,
we have occasionally accessed these markets to support certain business activities. In the future, we may not
be able to obtain capital market financing or credit availability on similar terms, or at all, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Changes in the U.S. and glo ki nditions re beyon ntrof may have a material

adverse effect on us.

The U.S. and global economies are currently experiencing a period of substantial economic uncertainty with
wide-ranging effects, including the current disruption in global financial markets. Possible effects of these
economic events include those relating to U.S. government defense spending, business disruptions caused by
suppliers or subcontractors, impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets and reduced access to capital
and credit markets. Although governments worldwide, including the U.S. government, have initiated sweeping
economic plans, we are unable to predict the impact, severity, and duration of these economic events, which
could have a material effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

Wi uld i {al costs from product liabilii ims refatin ur so i<

Our agreements with customers may require us to indemnify customers for our own acts of negligence and
non-performance. Product liability and other forms of insurance are expensive and may not be available in the
future. We cannot be sure that we will be able to maintain or obtain insurance coverage at acceptable costs or
in sufficient amounts or that our insurer will not disclaim coverage as to a future claim. A product liability or
similar claim may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

system failure or production interruptions.

Our E9-1-1, hosted location-based services and satellite teleport services operations depend on our ability
to maintain our computer and telecommunications equipment and systems in effective waorking order, and to
protect our systems against damage from fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure,
sabotage, unauthorized access to our system or similar events. Although all of our mission-critical systems and
equipment are designed with built-in redundancy and security, any unanticipated interruption or delay in our
| operations or breach of security could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and

results of operations.
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Furthermore, any addition or expansion of our facilities to increase capacity could increase our exposure to
natural or other disasters. Qur property and business interruption insurance may not be adequate to
compensate us for any losses that may occur in the event of a system failure or a breach of security.
Furthermore, insurance may not be available to us at all ar, if available, may not be available to us on
commercially reasonable terms,

Because we rely on a few key customers, gur revenue may decline if we fail to retain those
customers,

The largest customers for our product and service offerings in terms of revenue generated have been the
U.S. government, Verizon Wireless, AT&T Wireless, and Hutchison 3G. For the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, each of Verizon Wireless and the U.S. government accounted for 10% or more of our total
revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2006 each of Verizon Wireless, AT&T Wireless (formerly known as
Cingular Wireless), and the U.S. government accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue. We expect to
generate a significant portion of our total revenue from these customers for the foreseeable future. For the year
ended December 31, 2008, the largest customers for our Commercial Segment was Verizon Wireless and the
largest customers for our Government Segment were various U,S. Gevernment agencies.

Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with aur major customers and on developing other
customers and distribution channels. The loss of any of the customers discussed in this paragraph would have
a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales to various agencies of the U.S.
ltlll: .“-. JIHKe oiNe 4 z d RDOSE ':, %
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Sales to various agencies of the U.S. Government accounted for approximately 42% of our total revenue
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, all of which was atfributable to our Government Segment. A
majority of our backlog as of December 31, 2008 consisted of orders from the U.S. Government. Our ability to
earn revenue from sales to the U.S. Government can be affected by numerous factors outside of our control
including:

« The U.8. Government may terminate the contracts it has with us. All of the contracts we have with the
U.S. Government are, by their terms, subject to termination by the U.S. Government either for its
convenience or in the event of a default by us. In the event of termination of a contract by the
U.S. Government, we may have (ittle or no recourse.

« Qur contracts with the U.S. Gavernment may be terminated due to Congress failing to appropriate
funds. Our U.S. Government contracts are conditioned upon the continuing availability of Congressional
appropriations. Congress usually appropriates funds for a given program on a fiscal-year basis even
though contract performance may take more than one year.

« The U.S. Government may audit and review our costs and performance on their contracts, as well as our
accounting and general practices. The costs and prices under these contracts may be subject to
adjustment based upon the results of any audits. Future audits that result in the increase in our costs
may adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows

Any failure by Congress to appropriate funds to any program that we participate in could materally delay or
terminate the program and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows,

Because we rely on key partners to expand our marketing and sales efforts. if we fail to maintain or

XN OY AUONSIHPS W faiey Darfinero NG INQILe Gl RUUION CHANE 0 o]

We have announced strategic partnerships with Motorola and Alcatel-Lucent, and are working on additional
partnerships to provide supplemental channels for the marketing and sale of our software applications globally.
Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with these partners and on developing other distribution
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channels. The loss of any of these partners would have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
Becaus r may not generate icient cash operations, we may not b
- i . f 8 3 O 4 l able a H i 3 I - r O D .

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, and our bank line of credit, coupled with the funds
anticipated to be generated from operations will be sufficient to finance our operations for at least the next
twelve months. However, unanticipated events could cause us to fall short of our capital requirements. in
addition, such unanticipated events could cause us to violate our bank line of credit covenants causing the
bank to foreclose on the line and/or opportunities may make it necessary for us to return fo the public marksts,
or establish new credit facilities or raise capital in private transactions in order to meet our capital
requirements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional capital in the future on terms
acceptable to us, or at all.

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants including, among others,
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the
ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The agreement alsa contains a
subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or financial
condition of aur Company occur, or (i} no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any portion of
the bank credit agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders security interests in
the collateral of the bank credit agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with any of the
restrictive covenants, or if our line of credit agreement lender seeks to exercise its rights under the subjective
acceleration clause referred to above, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there
can be no assurance that our debt holders would not exercise their rights and remedies under their
agreements with us, including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable.

P 218 eXf 0 erpa

mitigate this risk effectively.

We are exposed to many different industries, counterparties, and partnership agreements, and regularly
interact with counterparties in various industries.

The insalvency or other inability of a significant counterparty or partner, including a counterparty ta the
significant counterparty, to perform its obligations under an agreement or transaction, including, without
limitation, as a resutt of the rejection of an agreement or fransaction by a counterparty in bankruptcy
proceedings, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

-{or i I

Although we have not experienced any losses on our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments,
declines in the market values of these investments in the future could have an adverse impact on our financial
condition and operating results. Historically, we have invested in AAA rated money market funds meeting
certain criteria. These investments are subject to general credit, liquidity, market, and interest rate risks, which
may be directly or indirectly impacted by the U.S. sub-prime mortgage defaults that have affected various
sectors of the financial markets causing credit and liquidity issues. If an issuer defaults on its obligations, or its
credit ratings are negatively affected by liquidity, losses or other factors, the value of our cash equivalents and
short-term investments could decline and cauld have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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We expect that the market price of our Class A common stock will continue to be volatile. We are involved
in a highly visihle, rapidly changing industry and stock prices in our industry and similar industries have risen
and fallen in response to a variety of factors, including:

+ announcements of new wireless data communications technologies and new providers of wireless data
cammunications;

« announcements of the issuance of new patents;
+ acquisitions of, or strategic alliances among, providers of wireless data communications;

» changes in recommendations by securities analysts regarding the results or prospacts of providers of
wireless data communications;

+ changes in investor perceptions of the acceptance or profitability of wireless data communications; and

- other global economic uncertainties.

ariations in quarte operating resu que CIOfrS SUCH & hanges in demand for our pro
and changes jn our mix of revenues and costs may cause our Class A common stock price to
decline,

Qur quarterly revenue and operating results are difficult to predict and are likely to fluctuate from
quarter-to-quarter. For example, 2008 revenues of our Government Segment were significantly higher in the
second half of the year than in the first half. In 2007, revenues were slightly higher in the second half of the
year than in the first, whereas in 2006 revenues from our Government Segment were higher in the first half of
the year than in the second half. In addition, we generally derive a significant portion of wireless carrier license
revenue in our Commercial Segment from initial license fees. The initial license fees that we receive in a
particular quarter may vary significantly. As these projects bagin and end, quarterly resuits may vary. We
therefore believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may not be a good indication of
our future performance, and you should not rely on them to predict our future performance or the future
performance of our Class A common stock. Our quarterly revenues, expenses and operating results could vary
significantly from quarter-to-quarter. If our operating results in future quarters fall below the expectations of
market analysts and investors, the market price of our stack may fall.

Additional factors that have either caused our results to fluctuate in the past or that are likely to do so in the
future include;

+ changes in our relationships with wireless carriers, the U.S. Government or other customers:
« timing of introduction of new products and services;
» changes in pricing policies and product offerings by us or our competitors;

+ changes in projected profitability of acquired assets that would require the write down of the value of the
goodwill reflected on our balance sheet.

+ costs associated with advertising, marketing and promaticnal efforts to acquire new customers;

capital expenditures and other costs and expenses related to improving our business, expanding
operations and adapting to new technologies and changes in consumer preferences; and

our lengthy and unpredictable sales cycle.

Growing market acceptance of “open source” software could have a negative Impact o1t us.

Growing market acceptance of open source software has presented both benefits and challenges to the
commercial software industry in recent years. “Open source” software is made widely available by its authors
and is licensed “as is” for a nominal fee or, in some cases, at no charge. For example, Linux is a free Unix-type
operating system, and the soutce code for Linux is freely available.
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\We have incorporated some types of open source software into our products, allowing us to enhance
certain solutions without incurring substantial additional research and development costs. Thus far, we have
encountered no unanticipated material problems arising from our use of open source software. However, as
the use of open source software becomes more widespread, certain open source technology could become
competitive with our proprietary technology, which could cause saies of our products ta decline or force us to
reduce the fees we charge for our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

I« id j 1 r 1 t i
busin in forei i
Wireless carriers in Europe, Asia, Australia, Africa and Central and South America have purchased our

products. We believe our revenue will be increasingly dependent on business in foreign countries, and we will
be subject to the social, political and economic risks of conducting business in foreign countries, including:

« inability to adapt our products and services to local business practices, customs and mobile user
preferences,

« costs of adapting our product and service offerings for foreign markets;
+ inability to locate qualified local employees, partners and suppliers;
« reduced protection of intellectual property rights;

« the potential burdens of complying with a variety of U.S. and foreign laws, trade standards and regulatory
requirements, including tax faws, the regulation of wireless communications and the Internet and
uncertainty regarding liability for information retrieved and replicated in foreign countries;

» general geopolitical risks, such as political and economic instability and changes in diplomatic and trade
relations; and

« unpredictable fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Any of the foregoing risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows by diverting time and money toward addressing them or by reducing or eliminating
sales in such foreign countries.

Becau e f our competit ve signific re es than we 1o

customers and market share.

Our business is highly competitive. Several of our potential competitors are substantially larger than we are
and have greater financial, technical and marketing resaurces than we do. In particular, larger competitors
have certain advantages over us which could cause us to lose customers and impede our ability to attract new
customers, including: larger bases of financial, technical, marketing, personnel and other resources; more
established relationships with wireless carriers; more funds to deplay products and services; and the ability to
lower prices of competitive products and services because they are selling larger volumes.

The widespread adoption of open industry standards such as the Secure User Plane for Location (SUPL)
specifications may make it easier for new market entrants and existing competitors to introduce products that
compete with our software products. Because our Commercial Segment is part of an emerging market, we
cannot identify or predict which new competitors may enter the mobile location services industry in the future.
With time and capital, it would be possible for competitors to replicate any of our products and service offerings
or develop alternative products. Additionally, the wireless communications industry continues to experience
significant consolidation which may make it more difficult for smaller companies like us to compete. Our
competitors include application developers, telecommunications equipment vendors, location determination
technology vendors and information technology consultants, and may include traditional Internet portals and
Internet infrastructure software companies. We expect that we will compete primarily on the basis of price, time
to market, functionality, quality and breadth of product and service offerings,
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These competitors could include wireless network carriers, mobile and/or wireless software companies,
wireless data services providers and secure portabfe communication and wireless systems integrators and
database vendors. As discussed above, mary of aur potential competitors have significantly greater resources
than we do. Furthermore, competitors may develop a different approach to marketing the services we provide
in which subscribers may not be required to pay for the information provided by our services. Competition
could reduce our market share or force us to lower prices to unprofitable levels.

Federal and state procurement laws require that certain purchases be set-aside for small business
competitors, effectively giving a preference to those small businesses even if we have better products and
better prices. We have outgrown the size standards set for the many of the categories used to purchase
products of the nature that we sall. If a particular procurement is set-aside for only small business participants,
we may lose customers and revenues and may not be able to replace those sales with purchases from other
customers, :

While we characterize a significant portion of our reyenue as being “recurring” there is no

{ 14 Vi €

A significant portion of our revenue is generated from long-term customer contracts that pay certain fees on
a month-to-month basis, While we currently believe that these revenue streams will continue, renegotiation of
the contract terms, early termination or non-renewal of material contracts could cause our recurring revenues
to be lower than expected and any growth depends on maintaining relationships with these important
customers and on developing other customers and distribution channels.

As of December 31, 2008, our estimated contract backlog totaled approximately $445.0 million, of which
approximately $159.8 million was funded. There can be no assurance that our backlog will result in actual
revenue in any particular period, or at all, or that any contract included in backlog will be profitable, There is a
higher degree of risk in this regard with respect to unfunded backlog. The actual receipt and timing of any
revenue is subject to various contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. The actual receipt of
revenue on contracts included in backlog may never occur or may change because a program schedule could
change, the program could be canceled, a contract couid be reduced, modified or terminated early, or an
option that we had assumed would be exercised not being exercised. Further, while many of our federal
government cantracts require performance over a period of years, Congress often appropriates funds for these
contracts for only one year at a time. Consequently, our contracts typically are only partially funded at any
point during their term, and all or some of the work intended to be performed under the contracts will remain
unfunded pending subsequent Congressional appropriations and the obligation of additional funds ta the
contract by the procuring agency. Approximately 80% of our backlog consisted of orders from the Government
Segment. Our estimates are based on our experience under such contracts and similar contracts. However,
there can be no assurances that all, or any, of such estimated contract value will be recognized as revenue.

business,

Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified
personnel, particularly in sales and marketing and research and development. If we are unable to do so, our
business cauld be harmed. Our future succass also depends upen the continued service of our executive
officers and other key sales, engineering and technical staff. The loss of the services of our executive officers
and other key personnel could harm our operations, We maintain key person life insurance an certain of our
executive officers. We would be harmed if one or more of our officers or key employees decided to join a
competitor or if we failed to attract qualified personnel. Our ability to attract qualified personnel may be
adversely affected by a decline in the price of our Class A common stock. In the event of a decline in the price
of our
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Class A common stock, the retention value of stock options will decline and our employees may choose not to
remain with us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

As a prime contractor, we often rely significantly upon other companies as subcontractors to perform work
we are obligated to perform for our clients and vendors to deliver critical components. As we secure more work
under our contract vehicles such as the WWSS agreement, we expect to require an increasing level of support
from subcantractors and vendors that provide complementary and supplementary products and services to our
offerings. Depending on labor market conditions, we may not be able to identify, hire and retain sufficient
numbers of qualified employees to perform the task orders we expect te win. In such cases, we will need to
rely on subcontracts with unrelated companies. Moreover, even in favorable labor market conditions, we
anticipate entering inta more subcontracts in the future as we expand our work under our contract vehicles. We
are responsible for the work performed by our subcontractors, even though in some cases we have limited
involvement in that work. |f one or more of our subcontractors fail to satisfactorily perform the agreed-upon
services on a timely basis or violate federal government contracting policies, laws or regulations, our ability to
perform our obligations as a prime contractor or meet our clients' expectations may be compromised. In
extreme cases, performance or other deficiencies on the part of our subcontractors could result in a client
terminating our contract for default. A termination for default could expose us to liability, including liability for
the agency’s costs of re-procurement, could darage our reputation and could hurt our ability to compete for
future contracts.

Qur accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial
position and results of operations, and they require management fo make estimates, judgments and
£ ; hat int !

i

Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial position
and results of operations. We have identified several accounting policies as being critical to the presentation of
our financial position and results of aperations because they require management to make particularly
subjective or complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain and because of the likelihood that
materially different amounts would be recorded under different conditions or using different assumptions. For
example, the Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes (“SFAS 109"). Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and fiabilities are computed based on the
difference betwaen the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted
marginal tax rate. SFAS 109 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a valuation allowanca if,
based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of all of the net deferred
tax asset will not be realized. This process requires the Company’s management to make assessments
regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. Actual income taxes could vary from these
estimates due to future changes in income tax law, significant changes in the jurisdictions in which the
Company operates, our inability to generate sufficient future taxable income or unpredicted results from the
final determination of each year's liability by taxing autharities. These changes could have a significant impact
on the Company's our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

The successful execution of our business strategy is contingent upon wireless network operators launching
and maintaining mobile location services, our ability to create new network software products and adapt our
existing network software products to rapidly changing technologies, industry standards and customer needs.
As a result of the complexities inherent in our product offerings, new technologies may require long
development and testing periods. Additionally, new products may not achieve market acceptance or our
competitors could
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develop alternative technologies that gain broader market acceptance than our products. If we are unable to
develop and introduce technologically advanced products that respond to evolving industry standards and
customer needs, or if we are unable to complete the development and introduction of these products on a
timely and cost effective basis, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

New laws and regulations that impact our industry could increase costs or reduce opportunities to earn
revenue. The wireless carriers that use our product and service offerings are subject to regulation by domestic,
and in some cases, foreign, governmental and other agencies, Regulations that affect them could increase our
costs or reduce our ability to sell our praducts and services. In addition, there are an increasing number of laws
and regulations pertaining to wireless telephones and the Internet under consideration in the United States and
elsewhere.

The applicability to the Internet of existing laws governing issues such as intellectual property ownership
and infringement, copyright, trademark, trade secret, taxation, obscenity, libel, employment and personal
privacy is uncertain and developing. Any new legislation or regulation, or the application or interpretation of
existing laws, may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operatians and financial
condition. Additionally, modifications ta our business plans or operations to comply with changing regulations
or certain actions taken by regulatory authorities might increase our costs of providing our product and service
offerings and could have a material adverse effect an our business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

In order for mobile focation products and services to function properly, wireless carriers must locate their
subscribers and store information on each subscriber's location. Although data regarding the location of the
wireless user resides only on the wireless carrier's systems, users may not feel comfortable with the idea that
the wireless carrier knows and can track their location. Carriers will need to obtain subscribers’ permission to
gather and use the subscribers’ personal information, or they may not be able to provide customized mobile
location services which those suliscribers might otherwise desire. If subscribers view mobile location services
as an annoyance or a threat to their privacy, that could reduce demand for our products and services and have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, resuits of operations or cash flows.

mplian
i

al nd re ula ” ur future perfe es

The Federal Communication Commission, or FCC, has mandated that certain location information be
provided to operators when they receive an E9-1-1 cali. Phase | of the FCC's 9-1-1 mandate required
providers to be able to locate wireless £9-1-1 callers within their originating cell sector site and report their
callback number by April 1998. Phase |l of the FCC mandate required providers to be able to pinpoint the
location of all £9-1-1 callers within 125 meters in 67% of all cases by October 1, 2001. Although both the
Phase | and Phase I deadlines have passed, many providers are not currently in compliance with either phase
of the FCC’s mandate. Even so, we believe that many public safety jurisdictions are continuing to deploy
Phase | technology and when available, we believe they will deploy Phase il technology.

Carriers’ obligations to provide Phase | and Phase || services are subject to request by public safety
organizations. Due to complex regulatory, funding and political issues many public safety organizations have
not yet requested this sarvice. As a result, wireless carriers and wireless users may never exhibit sufficient
demand for our mobile location services. Technical failures, time delays or the significant costs associated with
developing or installing improved location technology could slow down or stop the deployment of our mobile
location products. If deployment of improved location technology is delayed, stopped or never occurs, market
acceptance of our products and services may be adversely affected.

In addition, we will rely on third-party providers to manufacture and deploy devices that determine the
precise geographic location of wireless users to comply with Phase 1l of the FCC mandate. The extent and
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timing of the deployment of our products and services is dependent both on public safety requests for such
service and wireless carrier’s ability to certify the accuracy of and deploy the precise location technology.
Because we will rely on third-party location technology instead of developing the technology oursefves, we
have little or no inflience over its improvement. If the technology never becomes precise enough to satisfy
wireless users’ needs or the FCC's requirements, we may not be able to increase or sustain demand for our
products and services, if at all.

for Voice over Internet Protecol (VolP) services is developing.

Under the FCC's mandate, wireless carriers are required to provide E9-1-1 services only if state and local
governments request the service. As part of a state or local government's decision to request Eg-1-1, they
have the authority to develop cost recovery mechanisms. However, cost recovery is no longer a condition to
wireless carriers’ obligation to deploy the service. If state and local governments do not widely request that
EQ-1-1 services be provided or we become subject to significant pressures from wireless carriers with respect
to pricing of E9-1-1 services, our E9-1-1 business would be significantly harmed and future growth of our
business would be significantly reduced.

The FCC has determined that VolP services are not subject to the same regulatory scheme as traditional
wireline and wireless telephone services. If the regulatory environment for VolP services evolves in a manner
other than the way we anticipate, our £9-1-1 business woulid be significantly harmed and future growth of our
business would be significantly reduced. For example, many states provide statutory and regulatory immunity
from liability for wireless and wireline E9-1-1 service providers but provide no express immunities for VoIP
E9-1-1 service providers. Additionally, the regulatory scheme for wireless and wireline service providers
require those carriers to allow service providers such as us to have access to certain databases that make the
delivery of an E9-1-1 call possible. No such requirements exist for VolP service providers so carriers could
prevent us from continuing to provide VoIP E8-1-1 service by denying us access to the required databases.

The telecommunications industry generally is currently undergoing a consolidation phase. Many of our
customers, specifically wireless carrier customers of our Commercial Segment, have or may become the target
of acquisitions. If the number of our customers is significantly reduced as a result of this consolidation trend, or
if the resulting companies do net utitize our product offerings, our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Tech isk

The software products that we develop are complex and must meet the stringent technical requirements of
our customers. Our hardware products are equally complex and integrate a wide variety of components from
different vendors. We must quickly develop new products and praduct enhancements to keep pace with the
rapidly changing software and telecommunications markets in which we operate. Products as complex as ours
are likely to contain undetected errors ar defects, especially when first introduced or when new versions are
released. Our products may not be error or defect free after delivery fo customers, which could damage our
reputation, cause revenue losses, result in the rejection of our products or services, divert development
resources and increase service and warranty costs, each of which could have a serious hamful effect on our
business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Our products operate with wireless carriers’ systems, various wireless devices and, in the case of our
ES-1-1 offering, with mobile telephone switches and VolP service provider systems. If we are unabis to
continue to design our software to operate with these systems and devices, we may lose sales to competitors.
Mobile telephone switches and wireless devices can be manufactured according to many different standards
and may have different variations within each standard. Combining our products with each type of switch,
device or VoIP system requires a specialized interface and extensive testing. If as a result of technology
enhancements or upgrades to carrier and VoIP provider systems our products can no longer operate with such
systems, we may no longer be able to sell our products. Further, even if we successfully redesign our products
to operate with these systems, we may not gain market acceptance befare our competitors.

We design, develop and manufacture technologically advanced and innovative products and services
applied by our customers in a variety of environments, Problems and delays in development or delivery as a
result of issues with respect to design, technology, licensing and patent rights, labor, learning curve
assumptions, or materials and components could prevent us from achieving contractual obligations. In
addition, our products cannot be tested and proven in all situations and are otherwise subject to unforeseen
problems. Examples of unforeseen problems which could negatively affect revenue and profitability include
problems with quality, delivery of subcontractar components or services, and unplanned degradation of
product performance.

erabl i
significant costs fo protect adainst the threat of these probfems.

We provide for the delivery of information and content to and from wireless devices in a prompt and timety
manner. Any systems failure that causes a disruption in our ability to facilitate the transmission of informatian
to these wireless devices could resutlt in delays in end users receiving this information and cause us to lose
customers. Our systems could experience such failures as a result of unauthorized access by hackers,
computer viruses, hardware or software failures, pawer or telecommunications failures and other accidental or
intentional actions which could disrupt our systems. We may incur significant costs to prevent such systems
disruptions,

Increasingly our products will be used to create or transmit secure information and data to and from
wireless devices. For example, our software can be used to create private address lists and to provide the
precise location of an individual. To protect private information like this from security breaches, we may incur
significant costs. If a third party were able to misappropriate our proprietary information or disrupt our
operations, we could be subject to claims, litigation or other potentiaf liabilities that could materially adversely
impact our business. Further, if an individual is unable to use our service to receive the precise location in a
health or life-and-death situation, or if our service provides the wrong information, we could be subject to
claims, litigation or other potential liabilities that could materially adversely impact our business.

The wireless data services provided by our Commercial Segment are dependent on real-time, continuous
feeds from map and traffic data vendors and others. The ability of our subscribers to receive critical location
and business information requires timely and uninterrupted connections with our wireless network carriers. Any
disruption from our satellite feeds or backup landline feads could result in delays in our subscribers’ ability to
receive information. We cannot be sure that our systems will operate appropriately if we experience hardware
or software failure, intentional disruptions of service by third parties, an act of God or an act of war. A failure in
our systems could cause delays in transmitting data, and as a result we may lose customers or face litigation
that could involve material costs and distract management from operating our business.
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The wireless technology currently in use by most wireless carriers has limited bandwidth, which restricts
network capacity to deliver bandwidth-intensive applications like data services to a large number of users.
Because of capacity limitations, wireless users may not be able to connect to their network when they wish to,
and the connection is likely to be slow, especially when receiving data transmissions. Data services also may
be more expensive than users are willing to pay. To overcome these obstacles, wireless equipment
manufacturers will need to develop new technology, standards, equipment and devices that are capable of
providing higher bandwidth services at lower cost. We cannot be sure that manufacturers will be able to
develop technology and equipment that reliably delivers large quantities of data at a reasonable prica, If more
capacity is not added, a sufficient market for our products and services is not likely to develop or be sustained
and sales of our products and services would decline resulting in a material adverse effect on our business,
financial pasition, restilts of operations or cash flows.

Because the market for most mobile content delivery and mobile location products is new, our
future success [s uncertain.

The market for mobile content delivery and mobile location products and services is new and its potential is
uncertain. In order to be successful, we need wireless network operators to launch and maintain mobile
location services utilizing our products, and need corporate enterprises and individuals to purchase and use
our mobile content delivery and mobile location products and services. We cannot be sure that wireless
carriers or enterprises will accept our products or that a sufficient number of wireless users will ultimately utilize
our products.

i g 3 A L o 0 ana a2fo ik o
demand for our products and services may decrease.

Media reports have suggested that certain radio frequency emissions from wireless handsets may be linked
to various health concems, including cancer, and may interfere with various electronic medical devices,
including hearing aids and pacemakers. Concems over radio frequency emissions may have the effect of
discouraging the use of wireless handsets, which would decrease demand for our services. In recent years,
the FCC and foreign regulatory agencies have updated the guidelines and methods they use for evaluating
radio frequency emissions from radio equipment, including wireless handsets. In addition, interest groups have
requested that the FCC investigate claims that wireless technologies pose health concems and cause
interference with airbags, hearing aids and other medical devices. There also are some safety risks associated
with the use of wireless handsets while driving. Concerns aver these safety risks and the effect of any
legislation that may be adopted in response to these risks could limit our ability to market and sell our products
and services.

f e rote ntellectual prope ights or are sued b for infringin

Our success and competitive position depends in farge part upon our ability to develop and maintain the
proprietary aspects of our technology. We fely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark,
trade secret laws, confidentiality provisions and various other contractual provisions to protect our proprietary
rights, but these legal means provide only limited protection. Although a number of patents have been issued
to us and we have obtained a number of other patents as a result of our acquisitions, we cannot assure you
that our issued patents will be upheld if challenged by another party. Additionally, with respect to any patent
applications which we have filed, we cannot assure you that any patents will issue as a result of these
applications. If we fail ta protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on the resources
expended to create the inteliectual property or generate any competitive advantage based on it, and we may
be exposed to expensive litigation or risk jeopardizing our competitive position. Similarly, third parties could
claim that our future products or services infringe upon their intellectual property rights. Claims like these could
require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or cause us ta lose the right to use critical technology.
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Our ability to protect our intellectual property rights is also subject to the terms of any future government
contracts. We cannot assure you that the federal government will not demand greater inteflectual property
rights or restrict our ability to disseminate intellectual property. We are also a member of standards-setting
organizations and have agreed to license some of aur intellectual property ta other members on fair and
reasonabie terms to the extent that the license is required to develop non-infringing products.

ringers of our patents and other intellectual rights can be costly.

Pursuing infringers of our proprietary rights could result in significant litigation costs, and any failure to
pursue infringers could result in our competitors utilizing our technology and offering similar products,
potentially resulting in loss of a competitive advantage and decreased revenues. Despite our efforts to protect
our proprietary rights, existing patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws afford only limited protection,
In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do
the laws of the United States. Protecting our know-how is difficult especially after our employees or those of
our third party contract service providers end their employment or engagement. Attempts may be made to
copy or reverse-engineer aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as
proprietary. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent the misappropriation of our technology or prevent
others from developing similar technalogy. Furthermore, policing the unauthorized use of our products is
difficult and expensive. Litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights or to
determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. The costs and diversion of resources could
significantly harm our business, If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on
the resources expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive advantage based on it.

ented sellin 7 produ uffer I niﬂ igation expense. even :f e claims

Our competitive position is driven in part by our intellectual property and other proprietary rights. Third
parties, however, may claim that we, our products, operations or any products or technology we obtain from
other parties are infringing their intellectual property rights, and we may be unaware of intellectual property
rights of others that may cover some of our assets, technology and products. From time to time we receive
letters from third parties that allege we are infringing their intellectual property and asking us to license such
intellectual property. We review the merits of each such letter, none of which has resulted in litigation as of the
date of this report. However, any litigation regarding patents, trademarks, copyrights or intellectual property
rights, even those without merit, could be costly and time consuming, and divert our management and key
personnel from operating our business. The complexity of the technology involved and inherent uncertainty
and cost of intellectual property litigation increases our risks. if any third party has a meritorious or successful
claim that we are infringing its intellectual property rights, we may be forced to change our products or enter
into licensing arrangements with third parties, which may be castly or impractical. This also may require us to
stop selling our products as currently engineered, which could harm our competitive position. We also may be
subject to significant damages or injunctions that prevent the further development and sale of certain of our
products or services and may result in a material loss of revenue.

curity mea ve im lemen o information we collect and store may b

We take reasonable steps to protect the security, integrity and confidentiality of the information we collect
and store but there is no guarantee that inadvertent or unautharized disclosure will not occur or that third
parties will not gain unauthorized access despite our efforts. If such unauthorized disclosure or access does
occur, we may he required to notify persons whose information was disciosed or accessed under existing and
proposed laws. We also may be subject to claims of breach of contract for such disclosure, investigation and
penalties by regulatory authorities and potential claims by persons whose information was disclosed.
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Risks Related to Acquisiti

r past an isitions of companie. ologies could prove difff ntegrate
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We have in the past acquired a number of businesses and technologies, and we may in the future acquire
or make investments in other companies, services and technologies. Any acquisitions, strategic alliances or
investments we may pursue in the future will have a continuing, significant impact on our business, financial
condition and operating results. The value of the companies or assets that we acquire or invest in may be less
than the amount we paid if there is a decline of their position in the respective markets they serve or a decline
in general of the markets they serve. If we fail to properly evaluate and execute acquisitions and investments,
our business and prospects may be seriously harmed. To successfully complete an acquisition, we must:

« properly evaluate the technology;

» accurately forecast the financial impact of the transaction, including accounting charges and transaction
eXpenses;

+ integrate and retain personnel;
» retain and cross-sell to acquired customers;
» combine potentially different corporate cultures; and

- effectively integrate products and services, and research and development, sales and marketing and
support operations.

If we fail to do any of these, we may suffer losses, our management may be distracted from day-to-day
operations and the market price of our Class A common stock may be materially adversely affected. iIn
addition, if we consummate future acquisitions using our equity securities ar convertible debt, existing
stockholders may be diluted which could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our Class A
common stock.

The companies and business units we have acquired or invested in or may acquire or invest in are subject
to each of the business risks we describe in this section, and if they incur any of these risks the businesses
may not be as valuable as the amount we paid. Further, we cannot guarantee that we will realize the benefits
or strategic objectives we are seeking to obtain by acquiring or investing in these companies,

We have two classes of common stock: Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Holders of
Class A common stock generally have the same rights as holders of Class B common stock, except that
holders of Class A common stock have one vote per share while holders of Class B common stock have three
votes per share. As of January 31, 2008, Maurice B. Tosé, our President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board, beneficially owned 6,876,334 shares of our Class B common stock and
1,848,548 shares of our Class A common stock, Therefore, in the aggregate, Mr. Tosé beneficially owned
shares representing approximately 38.01% of our total voting power, assuming no conversion or exercise of
issued and outstanding convertible or exchangeable securities held by our other shareholders. Accordingly, on
this basis, Mr. Tosé& can exert significant influence over us through his ability to determine the outcoms of
elections of directors, amend our charter and by-laws and take other actions requiring steckholder action,
including mergers, going private transactions and other extraordinary transactions. Mr. Tosé could, without
seeking anyone else’s approval, transfer vating control of us to a third party. Such a transfer could have a
material adverse effect on our stock price, and our business, operating results and financial condition.

Mr. Tosé is also able to prevent a change of control regardless of whether holders of Class A common stock
might benefit financially from such a transaction.
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We are a Maryland corporation. Anti-takeover provisions of Maryland {aw and provisions contained in our
charter and hy-laws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, even if a change in
control would be beneficial to shareholders. These provisions include the following:

+ authorization of the board of directors to issue “blank check” preferred stock;

» prohibition of cumulative voting in the election of directors;

« our classified board of directors:

» limitation of the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders;

= prohibition on stockholders acting without a meeting other than through unanimous written consent;
* supermaijority voting requirement on various charter and by-law provisions; and

» establishment of advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for
proposing matters that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder mestings.

These provisions could delay, deter or prevent a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us,
depriving shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for Class A common stock. These provisions
could therefore materially adversasly affect the market price of our Class A common stock.

This report, including the documents we incorporate by reference, contains forward-locking statements and
information relating to our Company. These staterents are based upon our current expectations and
assumptions that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that would cause actual resuits to differ
materially from those anticipated. We generally identify forward-looking statements using words like “believe,”
“intend,” “expect,” “may,” “should,” “plan,” *project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate,” or other similar statements. We
base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions we made using information currently available to
us, We do not undertake to update our forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect future events or
circumstances.

Statements in this report that are forward-looking include, but are not limited to, the following statements
that

(i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in
messaging and location determination;

(i) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand
our domestic and international carrier base;

(iii) we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models and we believe that our
software is positioned for early adoption by carriers;

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable
future;

(v} both the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly;

(vi) we will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that operate on all major types of
networks;

(vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of compiex call controt technology to unlock valuable
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers:

(viii) we will continue to invest in our underying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications;
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(ix) we intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to
increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base;

(x) the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation expands our
opportunity for SwiftLink sales volume;

(xi} we believe our expertise in the area of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure
satellite communications can be leveraged into providing products and services to the Federal agencies;

(xii) we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of
the evolving environment of satellite communications;

(xii) we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering;

(xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local govermnments, are increasingly contracting with specialist
teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as saftware development
and systems integration;

{xv) we expect to continue generate significant portions of our total revenue from our largest customers;
(xvi) we expect to realize $116.0 million of backlog within the next twelve months;
{xvii) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete;

(xviii) we expect to require increasing levels of support from subcontractors and vendors and expand our
work under contract vehicles;

{xix)} we believe we have sufficient capital resources to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses,
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months;

{xx) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by the related preducts;

{xxi) we believe our intellectual property assets are valuable and that we may realize revenue from patent
infringement claims;

{xxii) we believe we should not incur an material liabilities from customer indemnification requests;

{xxiii} the WWSS procurement vehicle is expected to cantribute to significant sales growth and that we
expect to fulfill the potential values under WWSS orders;

{xxiv) expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation;
(xxv) our assumptions and expectations related to income taxes and deferred tax assets;

{(ocvi) we do not expect that the adoption of new accounting standards te have a material impact on the
company's financial statements, and

(xxvii) statements about financial covenants related to our loan agreements.

This list should not be considered exhaustive.

Item 1B.Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
lfem 2.Properties

Our principal executive office is located in Annapaotis, Maryland in a 29,000 square foot facility under a
lease expiring in March 2011. We have a second 17,000 square foot facility in Annapolis, Maryland under a
tease expiring in April 2013. The Annapolis facilities are utilized for the executive and administrative offices, as

well as portions of our Commercial and Govemnment Segments. Other leased facilities include a 49,900 square
foot facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease expiring in September 2010, an 11,000 square foot facility in
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Oakland, California under a lease expiring August 2012. During 2008, we vacated a former site and moved our
Tampa, Florida aperations to 45,600 flex-space facility under a lease expiring in December 2014. We aiso
lease a hosting facility in Phoenix, Arizona under a lease that expires in February 2010, which is utilized by our
Commercial Segment.

in addition to the ieased office space, we own a 7-acre teleport facility in Manassas, Virginia for teleport
services for our Government Segment customers.

ftem 3.L eqal Proceedings

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the
“Underwriters”): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs alfege that the Underwriters
agreed to allocate our Class A Commaon Stock offered for sale in our initial pubiic offering to certain purchasers
in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make
additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs
allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters
violated Section 10(b} of the Exchange Act, and Rute 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of
violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
2006, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a setlement agreement among class plaintiffs,
all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope
of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the
scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the
settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the
District Court's certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the
settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc
with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the
Second Circuit denied plaintiffs’ rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more
limited class in the District Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court sighed an Order terminating the
settlement. On November 13, 2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated “focus cases” filed a2 motion to
dismiss the second consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On
March 26, 2008, the District Court issued an Opinion and QOrder denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss
the amended complaints in the “focus cases.” We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is
resclved. We have purchased Directors and Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any
potential liability that may result from these claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of
the litigation will ultimately be covered by the insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More
than 300 other companies have been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the
same law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us.

On July 12, 2008, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against
Mabile 365 {now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement
related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only
Experience (“the '748 patent"), issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan
Americas, and, during the second quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365
infringed the claims of our patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million
for past damages and a 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement wiliful and upheld the
validity of tha patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied Sybase 365's
post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a permanent injunction
prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction pending the outcome of any
appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by $2.2 million and vacated the jury finding
of willful infringement. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal from the final judgment of the district court to
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 365 filed a request for
reexamination of the '748 patent
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claiming that the patent is invalid. In the second quarter of 2008, the United States Patent and Trademark
Office granted the request and began the requested reexamination of the 748 patent. There can be no
assurances to what extent the matter will continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could become
subject to counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent. To date, the Company has not
received or recorded any amounts related to this jury award.

QOther than the iterns discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of our business.

(tem 4. Submission of M Vote of Security Hold

None.
Part il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity. Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity S =

Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “TSYS"
since our initial public offering on August 8, 2000. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
high and jow closing prices for our Class A Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market:

N
L
%
o

First Q
2008

2008 s A
First Quarter 2008 _ e 271
SécondiQuEHer200e* 31062

Third Quarter 2008
ROl aaenp008 3%
2007
FirsfQuartef200757
Second Quarter 2007

845!,
$ 302

sty

fallrepBette 4 Ema b O R e aaps
Fourth Quarter 2007 $ 455

As of February 20, 2009, there were approximately 263 holders of record of our Class A Common Stock,
and there were 8 holders of record of our Class B Common Stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our commaon stock. We currently intend to retain any
future eamings to fund the development, growth and aperation of our business. Additionally, under the terms of
aur loan arrangements, our fender’s prior written consent is required to pay cash dividends on our common
stock. We do not currently anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
future.

Change in Securities and Use of Proceeds

tn March 2006, we issued (i} $10 million of secured notes due March 10, 2009, which bore cash interest at
the rate of 14% per annum, and (i) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A
Common Stack at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. We received net cash proceeds of approximately
$9.3 million from this transaction, which were used for general corporate purposes. in December 2008, the
holders of 1.1 million warrants issued in 2008 exercised those warrants and 1.1 million shares were issued.
The remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011,
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The consummation of the note purchase agreement and the issuance of notes and warranits thereunder
were conducted as a private placement made to accredited investors in a transaction exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act,

With the exception of the notes and warrants issued in March 2008, all of the other securities issued by us
in connection with these transactions have been registered under the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s Class A Common
Stock with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Global Market U.S. Index and a mobile data index
prepared by the Company of the following relevant publicly traded companies in the commercial and
government sectors in which we operate: Openwave Systems, Inc.; Comtech Telecommunications Corp.;
Sybase, Inc.; Comverse Technology Inc.; Globecomm Systems Inc.; NCI Inc.; NeuStar, Inc.; Syniverse
Holdings, Inc.; and ViaSat Inc. (the “New Peer Group”)

The composition of the Mobile Data Index has been changed from last year (the “Old Peer Group™) as
follows; Comtech Telecommunications Corp. was added to the remaining companies to comprise the “New
Peer Group” because its mobile communications systems and satellite services business lines are comparable
to our Government Segment business.

The infarmation provided is from January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2008.

This performance graph shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or
incorporated by reference inta any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except
as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing. The stock price performance shown on the
graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
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The table that follows presents portions of our consolidated financial statements. You should read the
following selected financial data together with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related
notes and with "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and
the more complete financial infarmation included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We have derived the statement
of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 and the balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, and which are included in [tem 15 of this
Form 10-K. We have derived the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, from our audited financial
statements which are not included in this Form 10-K. The historical results presented below are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any future fiscal year. See “Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” As a result of implementation of SFAS 123(R) in 2008, our
non-cash stock compensation expense has been allocated to direct cost of revenue, research and
development expense, sales and marketing expense, and general and administrative expense in our
continuing operations as well as discontinued operations.

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

(in millions, except share and per share data)

Total revenue
P Direct Cost of Services revenid

Sewlces gross rof

TReVstEmsioressipro

Depreocatlén and amort
rpr?{neﬂy and A vipment

Total operating costs and
expenses

Income/(foss) from operatlons o
Tinteréstexpense v R
Amortization of debt dlscount and
debt issuance expenses, including
$2,458 write-off in 2007 0.2y (320 (1.4) {0.5) -
Debf coriversion expernss’ e A T -
Other (expense)/mcome net

= opera
Loss from discontinued operatlons
Natincome/(ioss)
Income/(loss) from continuing

_operations per share
"am di ontm

Net income/(loss) pershare—basm $ 134 § (003 § (055 § (0. 30) $

Incorne/(loss) from continuing .
-zoperations:pershare
Loss from discontinued operations per

g

2) 5 005 S f‘-(u.'11) "o (0.48)

share — {0.01) {0.59) (0.19)
Net income/(ioss) per share'<- diluted ~$ " 123§ (0.03) "$  (0.54) '$__ (0:30). :$. (05
43,063 41,453 39,430 38,823 33,381
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As of December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in millions)

Balance Sheet Data; . .. - .
Cash and cash equivalents

Wotkingcapital -

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reparting period. On an on-going
basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments. Management bases its estimates and judgments
on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions. We have identified our most criticat accounting policies and
estimates to be those related to the following:

Revenue Recognition. The Company records revenue from multiple element arrangements under the
guidance governed by AcSEC Statement of Position (SOP) No. 97-2 “Software Revenue Recognition”, as
medified by SOP No. 98-8 “Software Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions”, SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin SAB no. 104 “Revenue Recognition in Statements™ and EITF Issue Number 00-21
“Revenug Arrangements with Muttiple Deliveries.” At the time of entering into each customer agreement or
amrangement, each glement is identified and the revenue, cost of revenue, and gross profit for each deliverable
is recorded and presented separately as either systems or services. The sale of products and product related
solutions to customers are classified as systems revenue within the Company's Statement of Operations. This
typically is an integrated solution that may include licenses, hardware and labor to deliver the product and/for
solution per the customer’s specifications. Services revenue include the elements of the contract typically
related to maintenance or other recurring services performed over an extended period. Each of these captions
represents more than 10 percent of the Company's total revenue. There is no other category of revenue
described in Rule 5-03 of Regulation S-X in which the Company is currently engaged, so that further sub
captions are not necessary at this time. The Company considered Rule 5-03 of Regulation S-X as it relates to
the labor portion of the systems revenue. The Company will continue to periodically assess the materiality of
the labor portion of systems revenue and classify the amount as services if significant.

Under the provisions of SOP 97-2, if significant custorization is not required, the Company recognizes
revenue for all delivered elements of a software sale at the point when all four criteria of revenue recognition
are met and, the Company has vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOE} of fair value for all identified
undelivered elaments. We sell communications systems incorporating our licensed software for enhanced
services, including text messaging and location-based services to wireless carriers. These systems are
designed to incorporate aur licensed software. Systems revenues typically contain multiple elements, which
may include the product license, instaflation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated
among each element based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value of each of the elemants.
Fair value is generally determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. In the
absence of evidence of fair value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first to the undelivered elements
based on fair value and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are generally
permpetual licenses for a specified volume

33

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC /FAS, 10-K, March 03, 2006

Powerad oy Morningstas® Docwnent Research®%



of usage, along with the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate, We recognize license fee
revenue when each of the following has occurred: (1) evidence of an arrangement is in place; (2) we have
delivered the software; (3) the fee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collection of the fee is probable. Software
projects that require significant customization are accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method.
We measure progress to completion using costs incurred compared to estimated total costs or labor costs
incurred compared to estimated total tabor costs for contracts that have a significant component of third-party
materials costs. We recognize estimated losses under long-term contracts in thetr entirety upon discovery. If
we did not accurately estimate total costs to complete a contract or do not manage our contracts within the
planned budget, then future margins may be negatively affected or losses on existing contracts may need to
be recognized. Software license fees billed and not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue.

The Company recognizes contract revenue as billable costs are incurred and for fixed-price product
delivery contracts using the percentage-of-completion methad or proportional performance method, measured
by either total labor costs or total costs incurred compared to total estimated labor costs or total costs to be
incurred in accordance with Statement of Position 81-1. We recognize estimated losses on contracts in their
entirety upon discovery. If we did not accurately estimate total labor costs or total costs to complete a contract
or do not manage our contracts within the planned budget, then our future margins may be negatively affected
or losses on existing contracts may need to be recognized.

Acquired Intangible Assets. The acquired intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives of
between five and nineteen years, based on the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve
method. We evaluate acquired intangible assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying values of such assets might not be recoverable. Qur review of factors present and the resuiting
appropriate carrying value of our acquired intangible assets are subject to judgments and estimates by
management. Future events such as a significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future
operating results, significant changes in the manner of aur use of the acquired assets, and significant negative
industry or economic trends could cause us to conclude that impaiment indicators exist and that our acquired
intangible assets might be impaired, There have been no changes in the valuation of the Company's acquired
intangible assets for the current period. The expense recognized in 2008, 2007, and 2006 relates to the
intangible assets acquired with the 2004 acquisition of assets from Kivera Inc., including customer lists,
customer contracts, trademarks, and patents.

Impairment of Goodwill. The Company performs an annual analysis of our geodwill for impairment in
accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and other Intangible Assets”. The analysis of goodwill includes, among
other factors, estimating future cash fiows to be received from the assets. At December 31, 2008, goodwili was
$1.8 million and we determined that the fair value of our goodwill exceeded the carrying value. Material
differences in our assumptions and valuations in the future could result in a future impairment loss.

Stock Compensation Expense. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123(R), using the modified prospective transition method. Under the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123(R), we estimate the fair value of our employee stock awards at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which requires the use of certain subjective assumptions. The most
significant of these assumptions are our estimates of expected volatility of the market price of our stock and
the expected term of the stock award. We have determined that historical volatility is the best predictor of
expected volatility and the expected term of our awards was determined taking into consideration the vesting
period of the award, the contractual term and our historical experience of employee stack option exercise
behavior. We review our valuation assumptions at each grant date and, as a result, we could change our
assumptions used to value employee stock-based awards granted in future periods. In addition, we are
required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those awards expected to
vest. If our actual forfeiture rate were materially different from our estimate, the stock-based compensation
expense would be different from what we have recorded in the current period, SFAS 123(R) requires that
employee stock-based compensation costs be recognized over the vesting period of the award and we have
elected the straight-line method as the basis for recording our expense.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted far under the provisions of SFAS 109, “Accounting for income
Taxes™. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. We assess the
likelihood
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that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. Significant management judgment is
required in determining any valuation allowance recorded against the net deferred tax assets. Qur evaluation
of the realizability of our deferred tax assets is inherently subjective and is based on our analysis and
weighting of various positive and negative evidence available to us. This evaluation includes estimates and
assumptions about a number of market, execution and economic variables. it is possible that actual results
may differ from assumptions and require adjustments to allowances, On January 1, 2007, the Company
adopted the FASB issued interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxas® (FIN 48) which
prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement,

classification, interest and penatties, accounting interim periods, disclosure and transition. If a tax position does

not meet the more-likely-than-not initial recognition threshold, no benefit is recorded in the financial
statements.

Overview and Recent Developments

We operate two business segments: (i) our Commercial Segment, which consists principally of enhanced
communication services to and from wireless phones, location application software, our E9-1-1 application and
other hosted services for wireless carriers and Voice Over |P service providers, and (i) our Government
Segment, which includes the design, development and deployment of information processing and
communication systems, mainly satellite-based, and retated services to government agencies.

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiat Condition and Results of Operations provides
information that our management believes to be necessary to achieve a clear understanding of our financial
statements and results of operations,

Our management monitors and analyzes a number of performance indicators in order to manage our
business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators include:

Revenue and gross profit. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services including recurring
monthly service and subscriber fees, maintenance fees, software licenses and related service fees for
the design, development, and deployment of software and communication systems, and products and
services derived from the delivery of information processing and communication systems to
governmental agencies.

Gross profit represents revenue minus direct cost of revenue, including certain non-cash costs. The
major items comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefits, third-party hardware and
software, amortization of software development costs, non-cash stock-based compensation, and
overhead expenses. The casts of hardware and third-party software are pamarily associated with the
delivery of systems, and fluctuate from period to period as a result of the relative volume, mix of projects,
level of service support required and the complexity of customized products and services delivered.
Amortization of software development costs, including acquired technology, is associated with the
recognition of systems revenue from our Commercial Segment.

Operating expenses. Our operating expenses are primarily compensation and benefits, professional fees,
facility costs, marketing and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as well as certain non-cash
expenses such as non-cash stock compensation expense, depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment, and amortization of acquired intangible assets.

Liquidity and cash flows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the results of our operations. Important
other sources of our liquidity are our leases secured for the purchase of equipment and potential
borrowings under our credit lines.

Balance sheet. We view cash, working capital, and accounts receivable balances and days revenues
outstanding as important indicators of our financial health,
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Resulis of Operations
Revenue and Cost of Revenue

The following discussion addresses the revenue and cost of revenue for the two segments of our business.
For information regarding the results of the Enterprise assets, see Discontinued Operations — Enterprise
assefts below.

Commercial Segment:

2007 vs.
2006

{§ in millions)

ctibost bf system:
Total Commercial Segmant cost of
revenue
SEicEsIgrosgbre
Systems gross profit

”fa%%

b

Segment gross profit as a percent of
revenue 59% 54% 52%

(1) See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consofidated Financial Statements
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. :

Commercial Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

Our hosted offerings include our E9-1~1 service for wireless and Voice over Internet Protocal (VolP) E9-1-1
service providers, hosted Position Determining Entity (PDE) service, and hosted Location Based Service (LBS)
applications. Revenue from these offerings primarily consists of monthly recurring service fees and is
recognized in the month earned. E9-1-1, PDE, VoIP and hosted LBS service fees are priced based on units
served during the period, such as the number of customer cell sites served, the number of connections to
Public Service Answering Points (PSAPs), or the number of customer subscribers served. Subscriber service
revenue is generated by client software applications for wireless subscribers such as Rand McNally® Traffic.
Maintenance fees on our systems and software licenses are collected in advance and recognized ratably over
the maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are included in deferred revenue. Custom software
development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and materials or
fixed-fee contracts.

Our commercial services revenue increased $5.6 million or 10% in 2008 from 2007 due to growth in hosted
service customer volume and hew hosted service customers and increased maintenance fees due to higher
cumulative system license sales. The 2% decrease in 2007 from 2006 was due to decreases in average fees
received per unit under pricing arrangements with some wireless ES-1-1 customers, and the loss of a mid-tier
carrier customer in the third quarter of 2006 offset by increased maintenance revenue on our installed software
base.

The direct cost of our services revenue consists primarily of compensation and benefits, network access,
data feed and circuit costs, and equipment and software maintenance. The direct cost of maintenance revenue
consists primarily of compensation and benefits expense. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the direct
cost of service revenue increased 10% over the same pericd in 2007 in direct relation to increase in revenues,
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the direct cost of services revenue decreased 6% compared to 2006.
During 2007, we incurred less labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts and deployment
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requirements of VolP E9-1-1 infrastructure than in 2006. While we increased the number of celf sites,
subscribers and public safety answering points (PSAPs) served, our overall circuit and data access costs were
relatively consistent year to year. For 2008, the cost of circuit and other data access costs accounted for
approximately 13% of total direct costs of commercial service revenues. The cost of circuit and other data
access costs accounted for approximately 15% and 11% of the total direct costs of our commercial service
revenues for 2007 and 2006 respectively.

Commercial services gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2008 was 9% higher than in 2007 on
higher revenue with a comparable percentage increase in labor, fringe and contractor costs. Commercial
services gross profit in 2007 was 4% higher than in 2006 based on improved operating efficiencies.

Commercial Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue

We sell communications systems incorporating our licensed software for enhanced services, including text
messaging and location-based services to wireless carriers. These systems are designed to incorporate our
licensed software. We design our software to ensure that it is compliant with all applicable standards.
Licensing fees for our carrier software are generally a function of its volume of usage in our customers’
netwarks, As a carrier's subscriber base or usage increases, the carrier must purchase additional capacity
under its license agreement and we receive additional revenue. We may also realize license revenue as a
result of infringement claims that we make in enforcing our patents. In 2006, we reached a settiement an a
patent infringement case and won a jury award of more than $10 million in another infringement case; no
revenue has been recognized on the second case pending post trial motions, appeals, and potential
settlement.

Commercial systems revenue in 2008 was 127% higher than in 2007 due to higher sales of licenses for text
messaging capacity and customer hardware upgrades. Commercial systems revenue in 2007 was 4% lower
than in 2006 due mainly to lower sales of text messaging licenses.

The direct cost of commercial systems consists primaily of compensation, bensfits, purchased equipment,
third-party software, travel expenses, and consulting fees as well as the amortization of both acquired and
capitalized software development costs for all reparted periods. The direct cost of the license component of
systems is normally very low, and the gross profit very high since the software development efforts ware
expensed in prior periods. The direct cast of systems includes amortization of software development costs of
$2.1 million, $1.5 million, and $1.3 million, respectively, in 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Our commercial systems gross profit was $28.5 million in 2008, a 148% or $17.0 million increase from
2007. Commercial systems gross profit was $11.5 millien in 2007, or a 4% decrease from 2006. Systems
gross margins are higher in periods when systems revenue includes a higher proportion of software licenses
relative to third party system components and integration labor, as was the case in 2008 and 2008.
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Government Segment:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006

($ In millions)

Séivices revenue !
Systems revenue

o
Direci €ostof Systems ™ 2 = -5
Total Government Segment cost af

SErvices

B

revenue
Skrvicesgrossiprofit 58"
Systems gross profit
Total Govern !
Brofit-(1) i il ki e e
Segment gross profif as a percent of
revenue 18% 19% 30%

418 75% 33.8 21.9 65%

(1} See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. (NM = Not meaningful)

For 2008, Government Segment reveriue increased 72% reflecting increases in both services and systems
revenue. Government Segment revenue in 2007 and 2006 increased 44% and 32%, respectively, reflecting
increases in both services and systems revenue. During the third quarter of 2008, we were one of six vendors
selected by the L.S. Ammy to provide secure satellite services and systems under a five year contract vehicle,
with a possible maximum value of up to $5 billion for the six vendors. The WWSS contract vehicle is expected
to continue to contribute significant government systems sales growth through 2011. The Company's
Govemment Segment has been awarded participation as a prime or sub-contractor to provide similar
satellite-based technology under several other contract vehicles. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the
Company was awarded 6 new delivery orders and received incremental funding against two delivery orders
initially issued in 2008 under the WAWSS vehicle with a total contract value of $84.5 million, of which
$61.6 million was fulfilted, resulting in 2008 revenue. The total potential value of all WWSS awards received to
date is $366.7 million of which $124 million has been funded which we currently expect to fulfill over the next
three years.

Government Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

Government services revenue increased to $36.9 million in 2008 from $29.3 miillion in 2007 and
$28.6 million in 2006. These increases were generated by new and expanded-scope contracts resulting from
increased sales emphasis on communications and information technology service work, increased revenue
generated from satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities, and maintenance and field support
associated with our systems sales. Continuing growth is expected from higher usage of our teleport -related
services and continuing incremental additions of technical outsource service personnel. System maintenance
fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance periods.

Direct cost of government service revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel incurred in
delivering these services, as well as satellite space segment purchased for resale to government customers.
These costs increased as a result of the increased voluma of service in all three years.

Our gross profit from government services increased to $7.7 million in 2008 from $6.5 million in 2007 and
$7.5 million in 2006. The growth in 2008 was realized from professional services, teleport usage, and
maintanance on the installed base of systems. The decline in gross profit in 2007 was due to the lower
average margins as a result of tighter average pricing in 2007 due to competition for the contracts as they were
renewed or newly won. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreased in all three yrars as a result of
fower average pricing on our mix of govemment customer contracts.
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Government Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and deployment of
information processing and communication systems, primarity deployable satellite-based communication
systems, and integration of those systems into our customer networks. These are largely variations on our
SwiftLink® product line, which are lightweight, secure, deployable communication systems, sold to units of the
U.S. Departmants of State, Justice and Defense, and other government agencies. Government systems sales
mare than doubled to $81.4 million in 2008 from $39.6 million in 2007, which was mare than double the
$19.3 million in 2006. The increases over the last three years in systems revenues were primarily due to
increases in sales volume from the fulfillment of task orders under the WWSS 5-year contract vehicle, for
which TCS was one of six awardees in Saptember 2006, In July 2008, TCS was named the sole awardee of g
delivery order contract with a potential value of $246 million over the next several years, under the WWSS
procurement vehicle.

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of purchased system components, compensation,
benefits, fravel, and the costs related to third-party contractors that we engage. These costs have increased
aver the three years presented as a direct result of the increase in volume. These equipment and third-party
costs are variable for our various types of products, and margins may fluctuate between periods based on
pricing and product mix.

Our government systems gross profit in 2008 increased 96% over 2007 primarily due to higher sales
volume under the WWSS procurement vehicle. Government systems gross profit was the same at $6.7 million
in 2007 and 2006. In 2007, the effect of lower margins was offset by an increase over 2008 volume.

Operating Expenses:

Research and Development Expense:

2007 vs.
2008 vs. 2007 2006
(S in milllons) 2007 $ o 2006 $ %
Research/and developmight2xianse A3 SRR, 4% L R IS IS RO S IR
Percent of revenue 10%

Our research and development expense consists of compensation, benefits, and a proportionate share aof
facilities and corporate overhead. The costs of developing software products are expensed prior to establishing
technological feasibility. Technological feasibility is established for our software products when a detailed
program design is completed. We incur research and development costs to enhance existing packaged
software products as well as to create new software products including software hosted in our network
operations center. These costs primarily include compensation and benefits as well as costs associated with
using third-party laboratory and testing resources. We expense such costs as they are incurred unless
technological feasibility has been reached and we believe that the capitalized costs will be recoverable.

The expenses we incur relate to software applications which are being marketed to new and existing
customers on a global basis. Throughout 2008, 2007, and 2006, research and development was primarily
focused on cellular and hosted location-based applications, including Voice over IP E9-1-1, enhancements to
our hosted location-based service platform, and wireless location-based service applications, Management
continually assesses our spending on research and development to ensure resources are focused on products
that are expected to achieve the highest level of success. In 2008, 2007, and 2008, we capitalized $0.5 million,
$1.5 miltion, and $1.8 million, respectively, of software development costs for certain software projects in
accordance with the above policy. The capitalized costs refate to our wireless location-based software. These
costs will be amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the products’
estimated useful life, not longer than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current
revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the
revenue curve method). lf this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Amortization of
software development costs is
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recarded as a direct cost of revenue. We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by these products.

Research and development expense increased 24% in 2008 from 2007, primarily since software
developers spent less time on work that was subject to capitalized expenditure accounting (discussed above}),
increased Company personnel assigned to software development work, and higher variable compensation in
2008, Research and development expense increased 4% in 2007 from 2006. This increase is mainly due to
more Company personnel assigned to software development work during 2007 than in 2006,

Our research and development expenditures have yielded more than 65 patents, primarily for wireless
messaging and location technology, and more than 210 pending patent applications. We believe that the
intellectual property represented by these patents is a valuable asset that will contribute positively to our
results of operations in 2008 and beyond.

Sales and Marketing Expense;

2007 vs.
2008 vs. 2007 2006
(8 In miliions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
Salés anfl farkellng eXperise 3 MO % 5 SEINT 08 0: 2%
Percent of revenue 8% 9%

Our sales and marketing expense includes compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, travel costs,
advertising and public relations costs as well as a proporticnate share of facility-related costs which are
expensed as incurred. Our marketing efforts also include speaking engagements, and attending and
sponsoring industry conferences. We selt our software products and services through our direct sales force
and through indirect channels. We have also historically leveraged our relationships with original equipment
manufacturers to market our software products to wireless carrier customers. We sell our products and
services to agencies and departments of the U.S. govemment primarily through direct sales professionals.
Sales and marketing costs increased 15% and 2% in 2008 and 2007, respectively, primarily as a result of
adding additional Government Segment sales personnel, increased public relations fees, and an increase of
appraximately $0.9 million in variable compensation charges. The increase in 2007 was partially offset by
reductions in senior sales and marketing executive staff costs.

General and Administrative Expense:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2008
{$ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % $ %
Generaliand SdHtISRalivERRpEnEs L TR TR RS AT B A% RS TR SR AR
Percent of revenue 13% 1

General and administrative expense consists primarily of costs associated with management, finance,
human resources and internal information systems. These costs include compensation, benefits, professional
fees, travel, and a proportionate share of rent, utilities and other facilities costs which are expensed as
incurred. The increase in 2008 included a charge for vacating a leased facility in Tampa, Florida, earlier than
its December 2009 expiration, and variable compensation of $8 million related to record revenue, operating
profit, and net income for the year in accordance with formulas established for key employees at the beginning
of the year. The 14% increase in 2007 over 2006 was primarily attributable to higher legal and advisory fees
associated with intellectual property related activity.
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Depreciation and Amortization of Property and Equipment:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
(% In millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2008 $ %

Qgpfaczjgli‘dn?arid“‘a’rﬁﬁﬁl“ e
~rproperty and:gquipment : e $0 e : - 5 (1.8) 23%)"
Average gross cost of property and

equipment $ 504 % 503 §$ 0.1 NM § 520 § (.7 (3%}

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs associated with our
investment in information technology and telecommunications equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, and
ieasehold improvements. We compute depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset generally ranges from five years for
furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to three to four years for most ather types of assets including
computers, software, telephone equipment and vehicles. In 2008 and 2007, our depreciable asset base has
decreased as a result of assets purchased in previous years becoming fully depreciated.

Amortization of Acquired intangible Assels:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
($ in miltions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %

The acquired intangible assets associated with the Kivera Acquisition are being amortized over their useful
lives of between five and nineteen years. The expense recognized in 2008, 2007, and 2006 relates to the
intangible assets acquired in this acquisition, including customer lists, customer contracts, trademarks, and
patents.

Interest Expense;

2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2007 2006

{$ in milllons) 2008 2007 $ % $ %

DARYOIVING C [t
Interest expense incurred o
lease obligations o ) 0.3 0.2
morfiZation-ofeferréd finaricingfées v
Wrltezoft of Unarortized deb
%yr,hd?ﬁ%bﬁ!’sé%ﬁ%g%%nse
Less: capitalized interest

alint

Interest expense is incurred under notes payable, an equipment loan, a line of credit, and capital lease
obligations. Interest on notes, is primarily at stated interest rates of between 0.25% above prime rate and
16.35% and line of credit borrowing is at the bank’s prime rate, which was 3.25% as of December 31, 2008.

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10 million secured notes with a new five year term loan payable to our
principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new term loan is the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (3.5% at
December 31, 2008) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. The
funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. This refinancing resulted in the $2.4 miliion
write-off of unamortized debt discount and debt issuance expenses in the second quarter of 2007, In March
2006, we issued $10 million of secured notes, with cash interest at the rate of 14% per annum, along with
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warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Comman Stock at an exercise price of
$2.40 per share (2006 Warrants).

In December 2006, we barrowed $5 million from Tatonka Capital under a 3 year note secured by the
accounts receivable of one customer. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid this debt in full and medified the terms
of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is
equal to the current maximum debt of $3.2 million ($1.7 million at December 31, 2008) less $0.2 miliion per
month for the number of full months that have expired since the effective date. The maturity date of the line of
credit is December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is the London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 500 basis
points. The Company has not borrowed against this Tatonka line.

Our bank line of credit expires in June 2010, and our maximum line of credit is $22 million. Borrowings at
any time are limited to an amount based principally on accounts receivable levels as defined in the amended
line of credit agreement. Our potential borrowing under the amended line of credit agreement is also reduced
by the amount of letters of credit outstanding which tataled about $2.3 million at December 31, 2008. There
were no borrowings under our bank line of credit during 2008.

Cash interest expense on notes payable was lower for the year ended December 31, 2008 due to the
lower-cost refinancing in 2007 of higher priced March 2008 debt, and lower average bank borrowings. Interest
on capital lease financing was about the same in both periods. Cash interest expense on notes payable was
slightly higher for the year ended December 31, 2007 than in 2006 mainly due to the effect of the higher priced
March 2006 debt while it was cutstanding. The interest incurred on the March 2006 notes, partially offset by
reduced average principal balances on our revolving credit and other notes payable, caused our total interest
expense to be higher in 2006.

Deferred financing fees relate to the up-front expenditures at the time of contracting for notes payable and
our revolving line of credit facility, which are being amortized over the term of the note or the life of the facility.
The higher 2007 and 2006 amortization reflects fees to borrow the 2006 Notes.

The amortization of debt discount in 2007 and 2006 relates to the 2006 Warrants as well as adjustment to
the terms of warrants issued in connection with 2004 financings. The value of the 2006 Warrants was
estimated to be $2.8 million, determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which was recorded as
a debt discount and additional paid-in capital in 2004, The value of the adjustments to the 2004 Warrants was
estimated to be $0.6 million using the Black-Scholes aption-pricing mode!, which was recorded as a debt
discount and additional paid-in capital in the first quarter of 2008. The total debt discount at issuance was
being amortized to interest expense aover the three year life of the 2006 Notes, yielding an effective interest
rate of 15.2%. The 2006 Notes were written off with the 2007 refinancing.

Our capital lease obligations include interest at various amounts depending on the lease arrangement. Qur
interest under capital leases fluctuates depending on the amount of capital lease obligations in each year, and
the interest under those leases, has remained relatively constant since 2006. The interest cost of capital lease
financings was about the same in the years ending December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Our interest and financing expense decreased in 2008 over 2007 primarily as a result of retiring our March
2006 and December 2006 borrowings. interest and financing expense increased in 2007 over 2006 due mainly
to the write-off of the amoertization of debt discount and financing fees associated with the refinancing of our
March 2006 debt.

Other Income, Net:
2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2007 2006
($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
Farelghi cirency transalion/ fransactio :
(lossjighint Yiik =t
M_iscz_euaneous other {expense)/ income
TotaliotisrTncsrre, et 7 I

0.1 (0.5)
02778 05 203 {60%)  ($ s
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For the year ended December 31, 2008, Other income, net consisted primarily of $0.7 interest income
earned on investment accounts, and $0.1 million net gain on foreign currency translationftransaction, which is
dependent on fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We record the effects of foreign currency translation on
our cash, receivables and deferred revenues that are stated in currencies other than our functional currency.
The Company also recorded a 2008 loss of $0.8 million from the decline in the fair market value of certain
securities considered to be other than temporary, The ather components of other income, net, were about the
same as in periads.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 108, Accounting for Income Taxes
(“SFAS 109"). Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the difference
between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted marginal tax
rate. Upan the adoption of FIN 48 an January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company’s uncertain tax
positions was a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include
interest and penalties. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by reducing the
value of certain tax attributes. The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on any
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consalidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2008 and the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company files
income tax returns in U.S. and state jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and
some state jurisdictions date back to 1999, due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss carry
forwards.

SFAS 109 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the
weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of all of the net deferred tax asset will
not be realized.

This process requires the Company’s management to make assessments regarding the timing and
probability of the ultimate tax impact. The Company records valuation allowances on deferred tax assets if
determined it is more likely than not that the asset wili not be realized. Additionally, the Company establishes
reserves for uncertain tax positions based upon our judgment regarding potential future challenges to those
positions. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law,
significant changes in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates, aur inability to generate sufficient future
taxable income or unpredicted results from the final determination of each year’s liability by taxing authorities.
These changes could have a significant impact on the Company's financial position.

Deferred tax assets consist primarily of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards as well as deductible
temporary differences. Prior to 2008, the Company provided a full tax valuation allowance for federal and state
deferred tax assets based on management's evaluation that the Company'’s ability to realize such assets did
not meet the criteria of *more likely than not”. The Company has continuously evaluated additional facts
representing positive and negative evidence in the determination of its ability to realize the deferred tax assets.
In the year ended December 31, 2008, management has determined, as the result of cumulative income and
anticipated future taxable income, that it is now more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be
realized in the future. Accordingly, the Company determined that it is appropriate to reverse the deferred tax
asset valuation. This has resulted in a benefit to deferred tax expense of $33.3 million for the year 2008,

Discontinued Operations:

In 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in our
Commercial Segment. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets
have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement
No. 144).

43

Souwrce: TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC /FA/, 10-K, March 03, 2009 Powered by Morringstar™ Docurnent Research SM



Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1 million and earn-out
arrangements. As at December 31, 2008, we wrote dawn the investments by $0.8 million. The Company does
not expect to receive material payments from the earn-out arrangement, During May 2007, the last Enterprise
unit was soid for $4 million in cash of which $0.2 million was in escrow and was released in June 2008, a
%1 million 18-month note which was paid in full in November 2008, and $0.2 million in equity interest.

The following table presents income statement data for the Enterprise division, currently reported as
discontinued operations. The 2005 results were previously reported as part of the results of our Commercial
Segment.

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
(§ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % $ %
Total iéveniie e G A00% 8. 26,0108 20:4) T (78%Y.
Total gross profit — 0.8 ¥ (0.8) 100% 4.5 $ (3.7 (82%)
Lossdrom discontinu O .

Net Income/(loss):

2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2000 2006
($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ %
Qé i S W‘WW‘ ot s 4 i
7 operatio 860"
Loss fro 100%

Net income/(loss) changes for each year are as a result of the discussions above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table summarizes our comparative statements of cash flow:

($ in millions)

Nel cash and cash’ éqdi\iélénts thyidgg;,byfi(USaﬂi!ri)‘:A ;
Net lncome/(loss)

Income/(loss) from contmumg opera' ns. o
‘Nons¢ash gharges - - B
Benefit from income taxes
‘Netichangas in, worlqng capltal Eps

Operating i ]
Qpe?aﬂngactl ‘fgllsponlmuexd operations
Ngt operatqg _(aclwmes

urchases of pro
+i Capltalizad softwar

Investing activities for contmumg oberatuuns
xlnvgslmgﬁhvm o diseeniinied aperatio

Bl -
Pmceeds from employee Ophon exercuses

;?;’“.é*:ﬁé;’%@w ; =
Days revenue ou(standlng in accounts receivable including unbilled receivables

GCapital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using
cash generated by our operations, as well as the net praceeds from capital including:

« June 2007 bank term loan borrowing of $10 million to refinance March 2006 secured notes, at a lower
coupon rate.

« March 2006 issuance of secured notes and warrants (described below) which generated net cash
proceeds of approximately $9.3 million.

- Capital leases to fund fixed asset purchases.

Sources and uses of cash: The Company’s cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately
$39.0 million at December 31, 2008, a $23.0 million increase from $16.0 million at December 31, 2007.

Operations: Cash generated by continuing operations increased to $26.0 million in 2008 from $9.1 million in
2007 due mainly to higher earnings. The cash generated by continuing operations in 2007 decreased
$9.1 million
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from $13.0 million in 2006 in due mainly to fluctuations in working capital. Discontinued operations used

$3.6 million and $8.0 million in 2007 and 20086, respectively. The operations and cash flows of the discontinued
operations have been eliminated and the Company has had no significant involvement in the operations since
the disposal transaction.

Investing activities: Fixed asset additions in 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $3.7, $2.6, and $2.8 million,
respectively. Investments made in the development of carrier software for resale which had reached the stage
of development calling for capitalization decreased by approximately $1 million in 2008 to about $0.5 million,
as more developer labor cost was expensed as research and development. The amounts capitalized in 2007
and 2006 were approximately $2.0 million each year. Discontinued operations generated $4 million from the
sale of assets in 2007 and $1 million from collection of a note in 2008, Investments were made during 2006 in
discontinued aperations primarily for enhancements to the care software for resale by the mobile asset
management unit.

Financing activities: We have a $22 million revolving credit line with our principal bank through June 2010
with borrowing was available at the bank’s prime rate, which was 3.25% per annum at December 31, 2008,
Botrowings at any time are limited based mainly on accounts receivable levels as defined in the line of credit
agreement. Availability under the line of credit available is also reduced by the amount of letters of credit
outstanding, which was $2.3 million at December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2008, we had no borrowings
putstanding under our bank line of credit and had approximately $19.3 million of unused borrowing availability
under the line.

On December 28, 2008, we issued a $5 million note for a term of three years, secured by accounts
receivable of one customer to Tatonka Capital. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid the term loan in full, and
modified the terms of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum
indebtedness of the line is equal to $1.7 million at December 31, 2008 less $0.2 million per month through
December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is London InterBank Offered Rate {LIBOR) plus 500 basis paints. As
of December 31, 2008, we had no borrowings outstanding and $1.7 million in unused borrowing availability
under the line.

In June 2007, we refinanced $10 million of our March 2006 secured notes with a with a five year note
payable to our principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new note was the bank's prime rate plus 0.25%
per annum, (3.5% at December 31, 2008) and the note is repayable in equal monthly installments of
$0.2 million plus interest,

tn March 2008, we issued (i) $10 million of secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14%
per annum, and (i) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at
an exercise price of $2.40 per share. Also, some warrants that we had previously issued in 2004 contained
provisions which required an adjustment in both the warrant price and the number of warrants outstanding as a
consequence of the issuance of 2006 Warrants. The resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was
$6.5 million, net of the original discount of $3.5 miflion which was amortized to interest expense over its
three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining
unamortized debt discount and deferred debt issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second
quarter of 2007 as a result of early retirement of the March 2008 note. In December 2008, the holders of these
warrants exercised their warrants and 1.1 million shares were issued for proceeds of $2.5 million. The
remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011.

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other rastrictive covenants including, among others,
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets abave prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the
ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The bank credit agreement also
contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or
financial condition of the Company to occur, or (i) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any
portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or {jii) na material impairment of value or priority of the lenders
security interests in the collateral of the agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with any
of our
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restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be no
assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the
covenants related to our line of credit and term loan agreement and we beligve that the Company will continue
to comply with these covenants,

We believe that we have sufficient capital resources with cash generated from operations as well as cash
on hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working capital, and capital expenditure and debt
sefvice needs for the next twelve months. We have borrowing capacity available to us in the form of capital
leases as well as a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank which expires in June 2010. We may also
consider raising capital in the public markets as a means to meet our capital needs and to invest in our
business. Although we may need to return to the capital markets, establish new credit facilities or raise capital
in private transactions in order to meet our capital requirements, we can offer no assurances that we will be
able to access these potential sources of funds on terms acceptable to us or at all.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had standby letters of credit totaling approximately $2.3 million at year-end 2008 and $2.9 million at
year-end 2007 in support of processing credit card payments from our customers, as collateral with a vendor,
and security for office space.

Contractual Commitments

As of December 31, 2008, our most significant commitments (including interest) consisted of long-term
debt, obligations under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases. We lease certain furniture and
computer equipment under capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases. As of December 31, 2008 our commitments consisted of the following:

{8 In millions) 2009  2010-2011 Total

LSS RSt s 5% B s SES R SV BRI, BT
8%% ease obli 2.1 2. - . .1
Uperatingeases. Hraal B 67

Total contractual commitments

Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive
Officer own a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a
member, The financial and many other teris of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive lease at this
new development site,

ltem 7A.Qualitati / Quantitative Discl bout Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

We have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As discussed above
under “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiat Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources,” we have a $22 million line of credit. A hypothetical 100 basis point adverse
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movement (increase) in the prime rate would have increased our interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2008 by approximately $0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

At December 31, 2008, we had cash and cash equivalents of $39.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents
consisted of demand deposits and money market accounts that are interest rate sensitive. However, these
investments have short maturities mitigating their sensitivity to interest rates. A hypothetical 100 basis point
adverse movement (decrease) in interest rates would have increased our net loss for 2008 by approximately
$0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consclidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. Substantially all of the Company's cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 are money market fund
investments which are backstopped as to principal under a federal guarantee program in effect through April
2009.

Foreign Currency Risk

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we generated $8.6 million of revenue outside the U.S. A majority
of our transactions generated outside the U.S. are denominated in U.S. dollars and a change in exchange
rates would not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2008,
we did not have any billed or unbilled accounts receivable that would expose us to forelgn currency exchange
risk. During 2008, our average receivables and deferred revenue subject to foreign currency exchange risk
were $0.1 million and $0.7 million, respectively. We recorded transaction income of approximately $0.1 million
on foreign currency denominated receivables and deferred revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008.

ltem 8.Financial Stat / Sugp! D

The financial statements listed in ltem 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on
page F-1.

None.

Jtem 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasanable
assurance of achieving their control objectives,

Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) were
effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
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reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, Based on this evaluation, management concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008. Management reviewed
the results of their assessment with our Audit Committee. The effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an indepsndent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in ftem 9A of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were na changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2008, that are materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSQ criteria).
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control aver
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accardance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective intemnal contral over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting pririciples. A company's internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable defail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the compary’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinian, TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the cansalidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated March 2, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinicn thereon.

/s/ Emnst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 2, 2009

50

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC /FA/, 10-K. March 03, 2008 Powerad by Mamingsta Docwrngnt Research™



Part Il

tern 10.Directors , Ex i fcers, and Corporate Gavernance

The information required by this ltem 10 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Board of Directors” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management® to be included in
the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with the 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, to be held on June 11, 2009 (the “Proxy Statement"). The Company’s Code of Ethics and
Whistleblower Procedures may be found at http://mww1.telecomsys.com/invastor — info/corp —
governance.cfm.

I 11.E tive C ion
The information required by this ltem 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Board of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” to be included in the Proxy Statement.

e 2. Security Own 7 ain Beneficial Owners and Manage

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the infarmation captioned
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” to be included in the Proxy Statement.

The information required by this ltem 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “General Information Concerning the Board of Directars”
to be included in the Proxy Statement.

ltem 14.Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required by this ltem 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Principal Accountant Fees and Services” to be included in the Proxy Statement.
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Part IV

Exhibits, Fin ial Sta dules
(a)(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in ltem 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on

page F-1.

{a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedule required by Item 15 is included in Exhibit 12 to this Annual Report on

Form 10-K.

Exhibits
The exhibits are listed in the Exhibit index immediately preceding the exhibits.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consclidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. Our
audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at kem 15. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit {o obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of materal misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to abave present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2008
and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also,
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board {United States), TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2, 2009
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 2, 2009
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
{amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007

Assets™ . ;
Current assets
+*Cash and-cash.gquivalentsis. 7

* Accounts receivable, net of allowa

e

S RB8,07F

"% Unbilled receivables™

_ Deferred income taxes
Othérassets’

Total assets
LidBilifiasang s6ckpE
_Current habllmes‘ e

008 2nd, 34
Class B Common Slock $0 01 par value
JAuiho sha Jissued’and. outstandmgé

34in'2007 .

oy other comprehensive incomeffloss)a: &ui iy g
Accumulated deficit

Total stocknolders equity CeEE e 4,27 38064
Total liabilities and stockholders' equtty $ 181,959 $ 82,124

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2008

_Services
“isystems

T
;g@ﬁgd

Operating costs and expenses
eses mﬁﬁmﬁrﬁﬁ&m&@
Sales and marketing expense
eneral ARd administratve sxs
iation an amortlzatlon of
noitizatiof S acatited

Total operatmg ‘costs and expen
IGENshsaledfpatenti’
Operating Incomel(loss)

st

InfereStRxpenEe Fia =T {"

%2755‘

Netlncémer(loss) ” $ 57568 § (1.269
Incomes(ibss) BershafgEzbadicl! GRETE. o T -

)_ er sﬁare from conti

1,014)

£

Incom

el(l688) Pershar

T sih 003 3 (054

Weighted avéragalshares oitstandingb 430637 LAL4B3 45
Weighted average shares outstanding-dilute 46,644 41,453 40,166

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net mcoﬁie!{toss) per share-diluteci
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consalidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Class A Class B Addltional Other
Common Common Deferred Paidd4n Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Stock Compensation Capital jncomse {Loss) Deficit Total

Balancedt: v
“Aanuary1;:2008 ;..

Efimination of
deferred
compensation
upan adoption of
SFAS No. 1

Opt

B0k
lssuance of
212,194 shares of
Class A Carmmon
Stock under
Employee Stock
ase Plan 2 — — 388
o ‘fva""m' g e S

Shemitnds

restricted shares of

Class A Common

Stock as payment

for payroll tax

wipho!dings . (g} = - (187) — — 188)
A

e

wECommIoN Stodc:
Stock compensation
expense for
issuance of
Class A Common
Stock options for
continuing

Foreign currency
translation

_ adjustment

Netlasg for 2005

173,833 shares of

Class A Common

Stock under

Employee Stock

Purchase Plan 2 — — 541
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3ok

Surrender of 19,358
restricted shares of
Class A Common
Stock as payment
for payroll tax

expense for

issuance of

Class A Common

Stock options for

continuing

gxperations — — - . 3 T _ 3,963

OPSIAUOnS sk,
Unrealized loss on
securities and
other
Nt TasEiTor 2007
Balance at

December 31,
2007 $ 343 $ 74 8 — 3 227,987 § {125) % {184,321) $ 43,964

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC tF—“A/, 10-K, March 03, 2008
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity — {Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Class A Class 8 Additlonal Other
Commion Common Deferred Paid4n Comprahensive Accumulated

Capltal Income {L oss)

Stock Stock Compensalion Deficit Total

134,000 shares of
Class A Comman
Stock under
Employes Stock
Purchase Plan
A

Exeikise of

Conversion of
425,000 shares of

Class B Common

Stock to Class A

Common Stock § =

> (8. " v S5
Unrealized loss on
securities and

other -
Netincarme:far'2008. “ 457,568
Balance at

December 31,

2008 $ 385 § 69 $ — 3 240,559 § 12 $ (126,753) § 114,272

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc,

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{amounts in thousands)

Year Ended Decembor 31,

2008 2007 2006
Opédrating activities:' ¥ B il
Net income/{loss) % 57588 % (1 289) $M (21, 695)
3 Loss ﬁpmdascontznued opérations SN e D e (T BY I D3 67

Net cash
Netiiggd inpperat
Total net cash prowded by operatzng aCtIVItIeS
nvesting activities

Purchases of prope ﬁy 1)

Clitalized software developi

‘Net cash used in |nvestlng actlv:tles of contmu‘ln“g operatlons
y cas@ proy iV ties of

(2,577)
S 528)
4.102)

Financing:: actuvntf
Proceeds from rlg—term
Bayinénts on lohgderm debtand capital lease | i

Proceeds from/(payments on) draws on revolvmg fline of credit,

Nef increase in cash 23,022 5,697 1,038

Cash:and cash equivalentsiat the beginning of the year - i\ 15,856 . 10,358 . 9,320
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 38977 $ 15955 $ 10,358

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC /FA/, 10-K, March 03, 2609 Poweered oy Morningstas™ Documant Resoarch®%



See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc,

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

TeleCommunication Systems, inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications
technology. We manage our business in two segments, Commercial and Government:

Commercial Segment. Our carrier software systemn products enable wireless carriers to deliver
premium services including short text messages, location information, internet content, and other
enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones. We provide enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1}
services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text message distribution services on a
hosted, or service bureau basis. As of December 31, 2008, we provide hosted services under contracts
with more than 40 wireless carrier networks and Voice-over-Internet-Protocol (VolP) service providers.
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic
application which is available via all major US wireless carriers. We earn carrier software-based
systems revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees and maintenance
fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier. We also
provide carrier technology on a hosted, i.e., service bureau basis; that is, customers use our software
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly based
on the number of subscribers, ceil sites, or call center circuits, or message volume.

Govemnment Segment. We provide communication systems integration, information technology
services, and software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers.
We design, assemble, sell and maintain satellite-based network communication systems, inctuding our
SwiftLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high speed, encrypted, Internet
Protocol technology. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to
satellite airtime (known as space segment).

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts and related disclosures, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of our wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or fess when purchased. Cash equivalents are reported at fair value, which
approximates cost.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable. Substantially all of our accounts receivable are trade
receivables generated in the ordinary course of our business. We use estimates to determine the amount of
the allowance for doubtfut accounts necessary to reduce accounts receivable to their expected net realizable
value. We estimate the amount of the required allowance by reviewing the status of significant past-due
receivables and by establishing provisions for estimated losses by analyzing current and historical bad debt
trends. Changes to our allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded as a component of general and
administrative expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Our credit and
callection policies and the financial strength of our customers are critical to us in maintaining a relatively small
amount of write-offs of receivables. We generally do not require collateral from or enter netting agreements
with our customers. Receivabies that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged-off as a reduction of
receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data})

Inventory. We maintain inventory of component parts and finished product for our Government deployable
communications systems. inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is based on the weighted
average method. The cost basis for finished units includes manufacturing cost.

Investments in Marketable Securities and Note Receivable. The Company received a $1,000 note and
some marketable securities as partial consideration from three smail divestitures during 2007. The marketable
securities, now valued at $78, are included in other current assets and are classified as available-for-sale in
accordance with the provision of SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities. These securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, the Company reported $152 net unrealized losses in stockholders' equity as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income. During 2008, the Company has determined that the losses in fair
market value of marketabie securities held were other-than-temporary and wrote down the value of these
securities by approximately $802, which the write-down is included in Other income, net. Gains or losses on
securities sold will be based on the specific identification method, The note receivable was reported in other
current assets for 2007 and was collected in full in November of 2008, including interest at 8.25%.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of equipment,
generally five years for furniture and fixtures and three to four years for computer equipment, software and
vehicles, Our depreciable asset base includes equipment in our network operations centers related to our
hosted service offerings, development costs for computer software for internal use, and company-wide
computer hardware. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method aver
the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease. Assets held under capital leases are
stated at the lesser of the present value of future minimum lease payments or the fair value of the property at
the inception of the lease. The assets recorded under capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the lease
term or the estimated useful life of the assets in a manner consistent with our depreciation palicy for owned
assets.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of acquired businesses.
Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination is not amortized, but instead is evaluated annually for
impaiment using a discounted cash flow model in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

Software Devetopment Costs. We capitalize software development costs after we establish technological
feasibility, and amortize those costs aver the estimated usefut lives of the software beginning on the date when
the software is available for general release. Acquired technology, representing the estimated value of the
proprietary technology acquired, has also been recorded as capitalized software development costs.

Costs we incurred are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products,
technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software product is
completed in the same software language as the product to be Ultimately marketed, performs all the major
functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial customer testing. Technological
feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed.
Costs that are capitalized include direct labor, related overhead and other direct costs. These costs are
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product's estimated useful life,
which has not been greater than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current
revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the
revenue curve method). If this revenue curve methed results in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our policies to
determine when to capitalize software development costs and how much to amortize in a given period require
us to make subjective estimates and judgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market
acceptance that we expect and our future revenue estimates for these products change, the amount of
amortization that we record may increase
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

compared to prior periods. The amortization of capitalized software development costs has been recorded as a
cost of revenue,

Acquired technology is amortized over the product's estimated useful life based on the purchase price
allocation and valuation procedures perfarmed at the time of the acquisition. Amortization is calculated using
the ratio of the estimated future cash flows generated in each period to the estimated total cash flows to be
contributed from sach product or the straight-line method, whichever is greater.

For 2008, 2007, and 2006 we capitalized $461, $1,525, and 1,849, respectively, of software development
costs of continuing operations for certain software projects after the point of technological feasibility had been
reached but before the products were available for general release. Accorgingly, these costs have been
capitalized and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives beginning when the products are
available for general release. The capitalized costs relate to our iocation-based software.

We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these
products.

The Company capitalizes all costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use when
management commits to funding the project and the project completes the preliminary project stage.
Capitalization of such costs ceases when the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.

Acquired Intangible Assets. Acquired intangible assets have useful fives of 5 to 19 years. We are
amortizing these assets using the greater of the straight-ine methed or the revenue curve method.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for
impairment whenhever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or
group of assets may not be fully recoverable.

If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows that we expect to generate from these assets. If the assats
are impaired, we recognize an impairment charge equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the fair value of the assets. Assets io be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying values or fair values,
less estimated costs of disposal.

Other Comprehensive Incomelloss. Comprehensive income/loss includes changes in the equity of a
business during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances fram non-owner sources.
Other comprehensive income/loss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. For
operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial statements in currencies other than the U.S, dollar, results of
operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and
liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates. Translation adjustments for our European subsidiary
are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity. Also included
are any unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities that are classified as available-for-sale. Total
comprehensive income/(loss) for each of the three years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, was not
materially different than consolidated net income/(loss).

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is generated from our two segments as described below.

Services Revenue. Revenue from hosted services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is
recognized in the month earned. Revenue from subscriber service fees is recognized in the period eamed.
Maintenance fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is
typically annual. Any unearned revenue, including unrecognized maintenance fees, is included in deferred
revenue,
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We also recognize services revenue from the design, development and deployment of information
processing and communication systems primarily for government enterprises. These services are provided
under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized
under time and materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price
service contracts are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally
aliow for manthly billing or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses on
contracts are recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident.

Systerns Revenue. We design, develop, and deploy communications systems. These systems may include
packaged software licenses. Systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include the product
license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated among each element
based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value of each of the elements. Fair value is generally
determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. In the absence of evidence of fair
value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first to the undelivered elements based on fair value and the
residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a
specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. All fees are
recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition
(SOP 97-2) when four ciiteria are met, These four criteria are (i) evidence of an arrangement (i) delivery has
occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable and (iv) the fee is prabable of collection. Software license fees
billed and not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue. Systems containing software licenses
include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have not incurred significant warranty costs on any software product
to date, and no costs are currently accrued upon recording the related revenue.

Systems revenue is also derived from fees for the development, implementation and maintenance of
custom applications. Fees from the development and implementation of custom applications are generally
performed under time and materials and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and materials
contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price product delivery contracts are
accounted for using the percentage-cf-completion or proportional performance method, measured either by
total costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labar
costs incurred compared to estimated total direct labor costs for projects for which third-party hardware
represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing
or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses under long-term contracts are
recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. Revenue from hardware sales to our monthly
subscriber customers is recognized as systems revenue. .

Under our contracts with the U.S. government far both systems and services, contract costs, including the
allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment by the Defense Contract Audit Agency. We
record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts.

Our accounting for revenues from systems and servicas contracts not accounted for under SOP 97-2 or the
proportional performance of percentage of completion methods, follows the guidance of Emerging Issues Task
Force 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables™ (EITF 00-21) for determining of the number of

. units of accounting and the allocation of the total fair value among the multiple elements.

Deferral of Costs Incurred. We defer direct costs incurred in certain situations as dictated by authoritative
accounting literature. In addition, if the revenue for a delivered item is not recognized because it is not
separable from the arrangement, then we defer incremental costs related to that delivered but unrecognized
element. Deferred costs are included in other current assets on the balance sheet,

Advaertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, Advertising expense totaled $1, $34, and
$29, for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively.
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Capitalized Interest. Total interest incurred was $1,120, $5,026, and $3,253 for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively. Approximately $18, $74, and $55 of total interest incurred
was capitalized as a component of software development costs during the year ended December 31, 2008,
2007, and 2006 respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note 17.

Beginning January 1, 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123(R)
(“Statement No. 123(R)") requires us to report all share based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options in the income statement based on their fair value. We adopted Statement No. 123(R)
effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method.

Research and Development Expense. We incur research and development costs which are primarily
comprised of compensation and travel expenses related to our engineers engaged in the development and
enhancement of new and existing software products. All costs are expensed as incurred prior to reaching
technological feasibility.

Income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the asset and liability method of
accounting for income taxes as prescribed by SFAS 109. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse.

in June 2008, the FASB issued interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes"
(FIN 48) which prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting interim periods, disclosure and transition. If a
tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not initial recognition threshold, no benefit is recorded in the
financial statements. Upon the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company's
uncertain tax positions was a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not
include interest and penalties. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by
reducing the value of certain tax attributes, The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on
any unracognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 or
the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008 and 2007. The Company files income tax returns in
U.S. and state jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and some state
jurisdictions date back to 1999, due to the taxing authorities’ ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company's major categories of financial assets and liabilities
subject to fair value measurements include cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities that are held
as available for sale. Both categories use observable inputs only and are measured using a market approach
based on quoted prices, see Note 14,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In September 20086, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 was effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASS
decided to issue a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for non-financial
assets and non-financial liabilities that are recognized or disciosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
non-recurring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 157 to exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The adoption of SFAS 157
for financial assets and :
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liabilities in the first quarter of 2008 did not have an effect on the Company's results of aparations and financial
position. The Company is evaluating the impact of the non-financial asset and liability provisions of this
standard and does not expect the adoption of those provisions to have a material impact on its financial
statements. In October 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 157-3, “Determining The Fair Market Value of a Financial
Asset When the Market for That Asset is not Active” (“SFAS 157-3), which clarifies the application of

SFAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate in determining fair market value
in that market. The Company is evaluating the impact of SFAS 157-3 provisions of this standard and does not
expect the adoption of those provisions to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities."
SFAS 158 allows companies to elect to measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect the fair value measurement of
SFAS 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), “Business Combinations.” This standard establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquired and the goodwill
acquired. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements which will enable users to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) is effective for us for acquisitions made
after Dacember 31, 2008. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard. The adoption of
SFAS 141(R) may have a material impact on the Company's financial statements for acquisitions
post-adoption.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of ARB No, 51" (SFAS 160). SFAS 160 amends ARB No. 51 to establish
accourtting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of
a subsidiary, It also amends certain of ARB No. 51's consolidation procedures for consistency with the
requirements of SFAS 141(R). This statement is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The statement shall be applied prospectively as of the
beginning of the fiscal year in which the statement is initially adopted. The adoption of SFAS 160 will not have
a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement 133" (SFAS 161). SFAS 161 amends and expands the
disclosure requirements of SFAS 133 with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced
understanding of: {i) How and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (ii) How derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations and (iii) How derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial performance and cash
flows. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning
after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The Company does not expect the adoption of
SFAS 161 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”
(SFAS 162). SFAS 162 is intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or
hierarchy, for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental
entities that are presented in conformity with GAAP. This statement shall be effective 60 days following the
Securities and Exchange Commission's approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing
amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles”. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard and does nat expect the
adoption of SFAS 162 to have a material impact on the Campany’s financial statements.
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2. Enterprise Assets-Discontinued Operations

ln 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in its
Commercial Segment. The operations and cash flows of the business have been eliminated from those of
continuing operations and the Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal
transactions, Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets have been
classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Consalidated Financial Statements in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 144, Accounting for the impaimment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement No. 144}. Impairment charges of $15,500 to adjust the estimated
carrying value of Enterprise long-lived assets and goodwill were recorded during 2006 based on information
obtained during the process of offering the operating assets for sale and the declines in the Subscriber
businesses being sold.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1,000 and earn-out
arrangements. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we wrote down the public securities to §78. The
Company does not expect to receive material payments from the earn-out arrangement. During May 2007, the
last Enterprise unit was sold for $4,000 in cash (of which $200 was released from escrow in June 2008), a
$1.000 18-month note which was paid in full in November 2008, and $250 in equity interest,

3. Income/(loss) Per Common Share

Basic income/{loss) per common share is based upon the average number of shares of commmon stock
outstanding during the peried. Stock options to purchase approximately 2.6 miflion, 2.5 million and 6.5 millian
shares were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share because their inclusion would
have been anti-dilutive for the years ended 2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively. Because we incurred a loss
from continuing operations in 2007 potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation because
the result would be anti-dilutive. These potentially dilutive securities consist of stock options, restricted stock,
and warrants as discussed in Notes 1 and 17,
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The following table summarizes the computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31:

Iigomei(loss) from continling eperations +-
Loss from discontinued operations
Netlossi % ¢
Denominator for basic earnings per share — weighted-average common
SRABS QUISKANGING e e ek,
Net effect of diliive*s1GEk OhtibHs Based on (8 asuy stock rigthioa
Net effect of dilutive warrants based on treasury stock method
Deneiminatorfot dlited arnings afe L weidhté
 Vshares oUtstandingand stons)

Incomel(lass) per share — b

Income/{loss) pershadefrany:
Loss per share from disco
Netincomel(I68s)ipershare:zbasic
Income/(loss) per share —diluted: .
Incomme/(loss) perishare from ontinliing operation
Loss per share from discontinued operations

Netiricome/(1ass) per*Sharedilited”

4. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled $3,343, $1,979, and $1,725 during the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively.

As partial consideration for our 2007 divestitures, we received publicly trade common stock in two of the
acquiring companies valued at approximately $1,000 at the time of January 2007 closing on the transactions.
During 2008, the Company returned a portion of tha common stock of one of the acquiring companies in
settlement of a divestiture post closing adjustment claim. We recorded a $140 expense as part of this
settlement.

Interest paid totaled $922, $1,002, and $607 during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively.

Alternative minimum income taxes and estimated state income taxes paid totaled $559 during 2008. No
income taxes were paid for 2007 and 2006,

5, Unbilled Receivables

Unbilled receivables consist of the excess of revenue eamed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles over the amounts billable at contract milestones. Substantially all unbilled receivables are
expected {o be billed and collected within twelve months.
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6. Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following at December 31:

Component parts - = 1
Finished goods

" Totalinventory at yeai end:

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

2008 2007
s L CLRERA R I
16,360

s:Total Prperty i SFDIBTMenCAGREalyear end elma i eh

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization

ENetptopeny amequinent alea id vt B

8. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs

Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Acquired Intangible asselsad
Customer Lists 521
Tlaaemarks & PatenlS TL i 13575%

Software development costs,
including acquired technology 9,646 6,873 2,773
: EIRD)

7529 73,83

e

2Ty

zall
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We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been capitalized.
Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and remaining useful lives of
the respective assets.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Our accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31:

Accolints’payable A4
Accrued expenses
i Total ACcBUnfs payable arid accried expenses 3l yéar end - 1

Accrued expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for which we have not yet been invoiced, accrued
sales taxes, and amounts due to our E9-1-1 customers that we have billed and collected from regulating
agencies on their behalf under cost recovery arrangements.

10. Line of Credit

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. In June 2007, we
amended the agreement to extend our line of credit and decrease the cost of borrawing. Under the amended
agreement, the availability of the line was extended to June 2010, and the borrowing rate decreased from
prime plus 1.25% to the bank's prime rate which was 3.25% per annum at December 31, 2008. Our maximum
borrowing availability remained the same at $22,000, Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based
principally on accounts recaivable levels and a working capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of
credit agreement, The line of credit available is also reduced by the amounts of leiters of credit outstanding
which totaled $2,280 at December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007 we had no borrowings
outstanding under the line of credit and we had approximately $19,300 and $11,000, respectively, of unused
borrowing availability under this line.

Our amended line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a
minimum adjusted guick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including,
among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake
actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt,
distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and maintenance of a minimum tangible net worth. The
agreement also contains a subjective cavenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business,
operations, or financial conditiaon of the Company occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of
repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or
priority of the lenders security interests in the collateral of the bank credit agreement. As of December 31,
2008, we were in compliance with the covenants refated to our line of credit and we believe that the Company
will continue to comply with its restrictive covenants. If our performance does not result in compliance with any
of these restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be
no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable.

In December 2006, we borrowed $5,000 under 3-year notes secured by accounts receivable of one
customer. Effective March 28, 2008, we prepaid this debt in full and modified the temms of the note to a line of
credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is equal to $1,700 at
December 31, 2008 less $150 per until the maturity date of December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is the
London InterBank Offered Rate {LIBOR) plus 500 basis points. As of December 31, 2008, the Company has
not borrowed against this line.
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11. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:

2008 2007

- per-ahiuim; See further deserptia ; e
Note payable dated December 28, 2006, paid in full March 28, 2008 and modified 1o a line of
_mredit (see Note 10 for furlhegr description)

er paitl

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10,000 of March 2006 secured notes with a five year bank term loan.
The borrowing rate under the new term loan was the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (3.5% at December 31,
2008) and payments are due in equal monthly installments of $167 plus interest. In March 2006, we issued
(i) $10,000 of secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14% per annum, and (ii) warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per
share. In December 2008, the holders of 1.1 million of the warrants exercised those warrants and 1.1 million
shares were issued. The remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011. The
resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was $6,500, net of the ariginal discount of $3,500 which was
being amortized to interest expense over its three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an
effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining unamartized debt discount and issuance expenses of
$2.458 million were written off in the second guarter of 2007 as a result of early retirement of the March 2006
note.

12. Capital Leases

We lease certain equipment under capital leases. Property and equipment included the following amounts
for capital ieases at December 31:

2008 2007

CorBUTBpHsHt

Computer software

FUTIoFé and itires (7
|

‘Ehuipmait Dnder capitaliease at cos
ccumulated amortization
N&tpropety and eqiipnient under tapital leases

| 7,037
090)

_

Capital leases are collateralized by the leased assets. Our capital leases generally contain provisions
whereby we can purchase the equipment at the end of the lease for a one dollar buyout or the current fair
market value
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capped at 18.5% of the original purchase price. Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and
amartization expense.

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations consisted of the following at December 31, 2008;

fesent valiie of netminimum lease payhents (incitiding current portion of $1.837

13. Common Stock

Our Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of stack held for all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Qur Class B stockholders are entitled to three votes for each share owned.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the first quarter of 2008, we adopted SFAS 157 “Fair Value Measurements” for financial assets and
liabilities. This standard defines fair value, provides guidance for measuring fair value, and requires certain
disclosures. This standard does not require any new fair value measurements, but rather applies to all other
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. This standard does not apply
measurements ralated to share-based payments, nor does it apply to measurements related to inventory.

SFAS 157 discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach {(comparable market prices}, the
income approach (present value of future income or cash flows), and the cost approach (cost to replace the
service capacity of an asset or replacement cost). The statement utilizes a fair value hierarchy that pricritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The following is a brief
description of those three levels:

Leve! 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities,
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly, These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3: Qbservable inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions.

Our population of financial assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements and the necessary
disclosures are as follow:

Fair Value as of Fair Value Measurements at 12/31/2008
12/3172008 Using Fair Value Hierarchy

Total Levat 1 Lavel 2 Level 3

Cash and cash equivalents ]
“Marketable secirities avatlablefor sale ;- 58 Y Gy

39,055
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The fair values of marketable securities are based on quoted market prices from various stock exchanges.

15. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS 109 using the asset and liability approach to
aceounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon differences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax
rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Net deferred tax assets are
recorded when it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized.

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following at December 31:

) (29,938)
SEEE0Y)

o e

"ri o Total behieftioriricome taxesifior

In previous years, the Company recorded a full valuation aliowance against its deferred tax assets due to
uncertainty surrounding the realization of the benefits of such assets; therefore, there was no tax pravision in
2007 or 2006. For 2008, based on historical taxable income from continuing operations and projections for
future taxable income, the Company determined that it is more likely than not that its deferred tax assets are
expected to be realized, and reversed the valuation allowance. The reversal of the valuation allowance and
other adjustments to the deferred tax assets resulted in the recognition of income tax benefits of $33,257 in
2008. The $33,257 benefit is comprised of a federal benefit of $29,302 and a state net benefit of $3,855.
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Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were:

2008 2007

rafing loss camryforwards
 and development §

Capitalized software developme:

Total deferred tax liabilitie
Neldeforiod takAssel i shiipraiiiion .
Valuation allowance for net deferred tax asset

Net deferred tax @8 set Fedogrizedin theiconsclidated balance shieets

p 5 A

43

At December 31, 2008, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of
approximately $81,643, which includes approximately $24,177 of remaining acquired net operating losses from
the acquisition of Xypoint ih 2001, and $9,361 from the excess tax benefits related to stock-based
compensation deductions which will increase additional paid in capital once the benefit is realized, through a
reduction of income taxes payable. The net operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with the
purchase of Xypoint in 2001 will begin to expire in 2018. Tha remaining net operating loss carryforwards will
expire from 2019 through 2027.

The timing and manner in which we may utilize the net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits in future
tax years will be limited by the amounts and timing of future taxable income and by the application of the
ownership change rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Utilization of the Xypoint net
operating losses are limited as a result of ownership changes occurring in 1997 and 2001. Additionally, the
Company determined that they had an ownership change in December 2001, which imposes an annual
limitation of the net operating losses created in 1999 to 2001. As of December 31, 2007, the Company reduced
its deferred tax assets related to the portion of the research and development tax credits acquired from Xypaint
that are limited under Section 382, which cannot be used before they expire.

The remaining U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards may become subject to limitations under the
Internal Revenue Code as well. We have state net operating loss carryforwards available which expire through
2027, utilization of which will be limited in a manner similar to the federal net operating loss carryforwards. At
December 31, 2008, the Company had federal alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards of approximately
$636, which are available to offset future regular federal taxes. Research and development credits of
approximately $294 will begin to expire in 2011.
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The reconciliation of the reported income tax benefit to the amount that would result by applying the
U.S. federal statutory rate of 34% to loss from centinuing operations for the year ended December 31 is as
follows:

Ingome (8% (Benetl} at statiifory rate
Change in valuation allowances
White-t ix: 3t

Koh deduciiblersiock campensation'expensed
Research and development tax credit _
Ghangein Slate dnportionmen(iax tales.on deteired assets/

3 (33,257) $

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the estimated value of the Company's uncertain tax pasitions was a liability of
$2,736 resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include interest and penalties. It is
reasonably possible theses unrecognized deferred tax benefits will be recognized in the next twelve months
through the tax provision. The Company doss not currently anticipate that the total amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company recorded the estimated value of
its uncertain tax positions by reducing the vatue of certain tax attributes.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company's unrecognized tax benefits (excluding
interest, penalties and related tax carry forwards).

P

Fetd

Balaneaal Desamber 3172006 55 e Sl
Gross increases related to prior year tax position
%ﬁjﬁ’ﬁﬁ&saﬁﬁ%’ﬁl‘éﬂg@%v&‘&mﬁmﬁ?ﬁ%%
Gross increases related to curent year t i
isSettieimerifaiapse in'statlfie B umitation = RS
Balance at December 31,2007~ . ... .
LGIgsYilicrenses ietated to'prior year tax Dosdi
157086 [ner@Ases related to.ciiTent yRAT X Best
Settlements/apse in statute of fimi

Beliice Bl OBsEmber 8172008

If the Company’s positions are sustained by the taxing authority in favor of the Company, approximately,
$2,736 (excluding interest and penalties) of uncertain tax position liabilities wauld favorably impact the
Company’s effective tax rate.

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the Company's policy is to classify any interest and penalties accrued on any
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2008 and the
consoiidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008. The Company files income tax returns in U.S. and state
jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and some state jurisdictions date back to
1999, due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards.
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16. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401{k) plan covering defined employees who meet established eligibility
requirements. Under the provisions of the plan, the Company may contribute a discretionary match. The plan
may alse contribute a non-elective contribution determined by the Company. For 2008, the Company matched
35% of employee deferrals. The Company contribution was $798, $575, and $218 for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 respectively.

17. Stock-based Compensation Plans

We maintain two stock-based compensation plans: a stock incentive plan, and an employee stock purchase
plan. ‘

Stock Incentive Plan. We maintain a stock incentive plan that is administered by our Compensation
Committee of our Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan vest over periods ranging from one to five
years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the principal share-based compensation plans, the
Company may grant certain employees, directors and consultants options to purchase common stock, stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock units, Options are rights to purchase common stock of the Company at
the fair market value on the date of the grant. Stock appreciation rights are equity settled share-based
compensation arrangements whereby the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is based upon the
appreciation of the Company's common stock and the number of awards granted to an individual. Restricted
stock units are equity settled share-based compensation arrangements of a number of share of the Company's
common stock. Restricted stock unit holders do not have voting rights until the restrictions lapse.

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method.
Consistent with the requirements of SFAS 123(R), we recognized compensation expense net of estimated
forfeitures over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of 5 years. The Company
estimates the fair value of each stock option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company'’s stock. The Company estimates
forfeitures based on historical experience and the expected term of the options granted are derived from
histarical data on employee exercises. The risk free interest rate is based on the U,S, Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of the grant. The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near
future.
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A summary of our stock option activity and related information consisted of the following for the years
ended December 31 (all share amounts in thousandsj;

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Options Price Options Price Options Price

Forfeited
Outstanding e oy 3 ;
Exercisable, at end of year 6,308 § 4.12 6515 $ 414

Estimaled
weighted-average grant-
date fair value of options
granted dunng the year § 2.07 $ 3.69 $ 242

Weighted Weighted Welghted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Options Fair Value Optlons Fair Value Options Fair Value
Neipested, beginnin (6925 ; 5 : ) DRI SR
Forfeited
Vested &4
Exercisable, at year end

Noreyested, af gid of year

Exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2008 ranged from $0.29 to $26.05 as follows (all
share amounts in thousands):

Weighted-Average
Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Contractual Life Exerclse Prices
QOptions of Options of Options Options of Options
Exercise Prices Outslandlth Outstandmg Qutstanding (years) Exercisable Exerclsable

$0.29° $2.81:0 ¢
$2.61— $5, 21 "
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As of December 31, 2008, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable was $56,348. As of
December 31, 2008, we estimate that we will recognize $3,385 in expense for outstanding, unvested options
over their weighted average remaining vesting pertod of 3.9 years.

In calculating the fair value of our stock options using Black-Scholes for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively, our assumptions were as follows:

For The Years Ended
December 31,
2007

ed life (inyéars) ;-
Risk-free interest rate(%)
Volatilify(%y "85 2

Dividend yaeld(

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company granted a total of 20,556, 89,600,
and 22,025 of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to directors and certain key executives. The
restrictions expired at the end of ene year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for
executives conditional on continued employment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance
is recognized as non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. We
recognized $105, $328, and $244 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively. We expect to record future stock
compensation expense of $50 as a result of these restricted stock grants that will be recognized over the
remaining vesting periods.

Employes Stock Purchase Plan. We have an employee stock purchase pian {the Plan) that gives all
employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock. The Plan allows for the purchase
of 1,384,932 shares of our Class A Common Stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market value. The discount
of 15% is calculated based on the average daily share price on either the first or the last day of each quarterly
enrollment period, whichever date is more favorable to the employee. Option periads are three months in
duration. As of December 31, 2008, 1,092,821 shares of Class A Common Stock have been issued under the
Plan. Compensation expense relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is not material.

As of December 31, 2008, our total shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for future issuance is
comprised of,

(in thousands)

Stock incentive pla ‘ LR G AN

Warrants (see Note ) 700

Employee stock purchase plan : i
Total shares restricted for future use 5,516

As of December 31, 2008, the composition of non-cash stock compensation expense was as foliows:

2008 2007

3 ing
General and administrative expense
Total fidr-cash Stock coinpensationiexpens
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18. Operating Leases

We lease certain office space and equipment under nan-cancelable operating leases that expire on various
dates through 2015, Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms of one
year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:

Our leases include our offices in Annapolis, Maryland under a lease expiring in March 2011, a second
facility in Annapolis under a lease expifing in Aprit 2013, a facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease expiring
in September 2010, a facility in Qakland, California under a lease expiring August 2012, and we relocated our
production facility in Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 2014. The Annapalis facilities are
utilized for executive and administrative offices, as well as portions of our Commerciat and Government
Segments. The Seattle and Qakland facilities are utilized by our Commercial Segment and the Tampa facility
is utilized by our Government Segment. Future payments on all of our leases are estimated hased on future
payments including the minimum future rent escalations, if any, stipulated in the respective agreements.

Rent expense for continuing operations was $4,079, $3,823, and $3,603 for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, and 20086, respectively.
19. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily
of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Those customers that comprised 10% or more of our
revenues, accounts receivable, and unbilled receivables from continuing operatians are summarized in the
following tables.

% of Total Revenues

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Customer Segment 2008 2007 2006
USTGevemment SRR EEERRRE AR TTGHVEm S Pl e L
Customer A Commercial 22% 20% 20%

As of December 31, 2008 As of December 31, 2007

Accounts Unbilled Accounts Unbilled

Customer Receivable Receivables Receivable Receivables
UGB ‘ 40% o

As of December 31, 2008, our total exposure to credit risk was $69,532 based on the amount due to us by
the above customers. As of December 31, 2007, our exposure to such risks was $23,689. We did not
experience significant losses from amounts due to us by any customers for the year ended December 31,
2007.

20. Business and Geographic Segment Information

Our two reporting segments are the Commercial Segment and the Government Segment.
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Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text messages,
{ocation information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from wireless
phones. Our Commercial Segment also provides ES-1-1 services, commercial location-based services,
inter-carrier text message distribution services, and carrier technology on a hosted, or service bureau, basis.
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic
application.

Our Government Segment designs, assembles, sells and maintains data network communication systems,
including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems. We also own and operate secure satellite
teleport facilities, resell access to satellite airtime (known as space segment), and provide communication
systems integration, information technology services, and software systems and services to the
U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintain information
regarding segment assets, Accordingly, asset information by reportable segment is not presented.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, our revenues include
approximately $8,598, $5,551, and $7,349 of revenues generated from customers outside of the United States.

The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments as of December 31, 2008. All revenues
reported below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to net loss for the
respective periods is also included befow:

Year Ended Dacember 31,
2008 2007 2006
Comm. Gvmit Total Lomm. Gyt Comm, Gvmt Total

Y 3 062 $ $ 28639 S 80,380

= @ ? 2
S S TAT Uy A58 378357 £ 799588 e 2 19,387 51 0a)e
101,870

= Sysheime grost PORLEY 35 28438, LT 113056 ST 40T 1 I MOT 2 G
Totel Gross Frofit  $ 81257 § 40044
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2008 2007 2006

estiexpepse™ s AR 2 D
rtization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, including $2,458
_ wiite-off in June 2007
FAGEIBTsale or Patent’

Eossieaimdiscainiied e i - et e SRR
Net income/(loss) $ 57568 $ (1,280) § (21,605)

21. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The foliowing is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007. The quarterly information has not been audited, but in our opinion, includes alt normal recurring
adjustments, which are, in the opinion of the Management, hecessary for fair statement of the results of the
interim periods.

2008
Three Months Ended

{unaudited)
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

SR R ho ' AR e e Oy e e Rl e

Gross profit
Inctmeraiianthiing ppesation
Loss from discantinued operations
Net Incomsyaiie s AR
Earmings per share — basic from continuing
i Q!;SF%E?!’%@B,. et e e N )
e %
Net income per share — basic $ 0.11 3 028 % 0.06 § 0.87
SAEOREE A e 0 o ‘ .

£ gr%\br??éw%”ﬁi%« e
Loss per share — diluted from discontin

operations

Netircome pet sl
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2007
Three Months Ended
{unaudited)
March 31 June 30 September 30
Revenue, - T W 01035336 L TEIEAy 635 g
Gross profit

10681 $ 14,138
- (6,893)  +§ GE

Incomenloss) fronicontinuing operagor
Income/(loss) fro discontinued opera

Earnings/(loss) per share — basic from
Mcontmumg operegln

Nel mcome/(loss) per r dlluted from

discontinued operations

©.00) $ (0.00) $ 000 § (6.00)
Nefiigomel(\oks) pershare ZHited

¢ {T00027% - $ i 018) 004 g R 0,065

22. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has been notified that some customers may seek indemnification under its contractual
arrangements with those customers for costs associated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of
certain patents through the use of ocur products and services in combination with the use of products and
services of multiple other vendors. The Company will continue to negotiate with these custemers in good faith
because the Company believes its technology does not infringe on the cited patents and due to specific
clauses within the customer contractuat arrangements that may or may not give rise to an indemnification
obligation, Although the Company cannot currently predict the outcome of these matters, we do not expect the
resolutions will have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the
“Underwriters”): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc,, et al., United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-8500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The fawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of aur Class A Comman
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers
in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make
additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs
allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters
violated Section 10(b} of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of
violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs,
all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a medification narrowing the scope
of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the
scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the
settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the
District Court's certification of
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the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the
underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit
on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied
plaintiffs’ rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited class in the District
Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On November 13,
2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated “focus cases” filed a motion to dismiss the second
consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District

. Court issued an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in
the “focus cases.” We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is resolved. We have purchased
Directors and Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any potential liability that may result
from these claims, but can provide no assurance that any or ali of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be
covered by the insurance. No reserve has been created far this matter. More than 300 other companies have
been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law fims that represent the
plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us.

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against
Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement
related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only
Experience (“the '748 patent’), issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan
Americas, and, during the second quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365
infringed the claims of our patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million
for past damages and a 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365’s infringement willful and upheld the
validity of the patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied Sybase 365's
post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a permanent injunction
prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction pending the outcome of any
appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by $2.2 million and vacated the jury finding
of willfu! infringement. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal from the final judgment of the district courtto
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 365 filed a request for
reexamination of the '748 patent claiming that the patent is invalid. In the second quarter of 2008, the United
States Patent and Trademark Office granted the request and began the requested reexamination of the "748
patent. There can be no assurances to what extent the matter will continue to be successful, if at all.
Additionally, we could become subject ta counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent.
To date, the Company has not received or recorded any amounts related to this jury award.

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of our business.

23. Related Party Transactions

in February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive
Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive agreement at
this new development site.

F-30

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC /FAS, 10-K, March 03, 2008 Pewerad oy Moringsta™ Dogument Reseatch ™M



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
TeleCommunication Systems, inc.

By: /s/ MAURICE B. TOSé
Maurice B. Tosé
Chief Exacutive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persans on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. The
undersigned hareby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tosé€, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. and Bruce A. White, and
each of them, their true and lawful agents and attorneys-in-fact with full power and authority in said agents and
atterneys-in-fact, and in any one or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective names as
directors and officers of TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment or supplement hereto. The
undersigned hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact, and any one or more of them,
as herein authorized

Name Title Date
s/ MAURICE B, TOSé Chief Executive Officer, President and March 3,
Chairman of the Board {(Principal Executive 2009
Maurice B. Tosé Officer) _
fs/ THOMAS M. BRANDT, ¢R. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice March 3,
President {Principal Financial Officer) and 2009
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. Director
fs! JAMES M. BETHMANN Director March 3,
2009
James M. Bethmann
/s! CLYDE A HEINTZELMAN Director March 3,
2009
Clyde A. Heintzelman
18/ JAN C. HULY Director March 3,
2009
Jan C. Huly
/s/ RICHARD A. KOZAK Director March 3,
2009
Richard A. Kozak
Director March 3,
2009
Weldon H. Latham
18/ BYRON F. MARCHANT Director March 3,
2009
Byron F. Marchant
/s/ RICHARD A. YOUNG Executive Vice President, Chief Operating March 3,
Officer and Director 2009
Richard A. Young
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Numbers Description

4.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to the company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

4.2 Secend Amended and Restated Bylaws. (Incorporaled by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

4.3 Form of Class A Common Stock certificate. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

4.5 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement for each of the
investors party to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 13, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004)

46 Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Purchasers named
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

4.7 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13,
2006 to each of the Purchasers named therein {Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

4.8 Notes issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 to each of the Purchasers
named therein {Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for
the year ended December 31, 2005)

4.9 Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Investors named
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

410 Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Bonanza
Master Fund Ltd., as Agent, and the Secured Parties named therein (Incofporated by reference to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year-ended December 31, 2005)

411 Subordination Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Silicon Valley Bank, and the
Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as
amended, far the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.1 West Garrett Office Building Full service Lease Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the
Company and West Garett Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

102t  Form of Indemnification Agreement, (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10.31  Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference o Appendix Ato the
Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of stackholders as filed with the SEC on
June 17, 2004 (No. 000-30821))

1041  First Amended and Restated Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan. {Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Mo. 333-136072))

10.5¢  Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young.
(incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Staterment an Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10.6+ Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. {Incorporated
by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10.7t Opfionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10.81  Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10.9t  Optionee Agreement dated April 1, 1999 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
(incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Stalement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

10,101 401(k} and Profit Sharing Plan of the Company dated January 1, 1999. (incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No, 333-51656))
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10.111 Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.12+ Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt.
{Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.13t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Drew A. Morin.
{incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.14t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Timothy J. Lorello,
{Incorporated by reference to the Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.156% Services Integration Agreement dated January 31, 2002 by and hetween the Company and Hutchison 3G.
{Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001)

10.16  Deed of Lease by and between Annapalis Partner, LLC and the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

10.17+ Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. {Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.181 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.19t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman. {Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.201 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.211 Restricted stack award certificate to Mr. Weldon H. Latham. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.221 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepiember 30, 2003)

10.231 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello, {Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.241 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Bryon F. Marchant. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.251 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.261 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Repaort on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.27t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tosé. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.281 Restricted stock award cedtificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tosé. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.29% Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.301 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.31t Resfricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.321 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference te the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)
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Exhibit

Numbers Description

10.33  Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 18, 2003 by and among the Company and the
investors party to the 2003 SPA. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated December 18, 2003)

10.34  Trademark License Agreement by and among Aether, TSYS and the Company dated as of January 13,
2004. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004}

10.35 Registration Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Aether dated as of January 13, 2004.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004)

1036 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Campany and Silicon Valley
Bank. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004)

10.37% Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman ({Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Annual Repart on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005}

10.381 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.391 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon F. Latham (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.40t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Byron F. Marchant (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.46  Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon
Valley Bank (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2005)

10.471 Form of Incentive Stack Option Agreement

10.48t Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

10.48% Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement

121 Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule I

211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

231 Consent of Emnst & Young LLP

23.2 Consent of James Cowper

311 Certification of CEQ required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14({a) or 15d-14(a)

31.2 Certification of CEQ required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxiey
Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 L.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

99.01 Report of Independent Auditors- James Cowper

1+ Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K.

+ Confidential treatment has been far certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-144742, 333-136072,
333-118610, 333-107466, 33366676, 333-51656, and 333-48026) pertaining to various stock incentive and option plans
and in Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-133018, 333-119431, 333-112758, and 333-104305) pertaining to
various stock offerings of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. of our reports dated March 2, 2009, with respect to the
consalidated financial statements and schedule of Telecommunication Systems, Inc¢. and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2008.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 2, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1

" TeleCommunication
TCS Systems

B :cbiing Convergent Technologies®

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Maurice B. Tosé, certify that:

a)

by

c)

d)

e}

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit {o state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e})) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) dssigned such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the peried in
which this report is being prepared,

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially
affect the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
" reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s Maurice B. Tosé

Maurice B, Tosé
Chairman, CEQ and President
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Exhibit 31.2

TeleCommunication
TS Systems

I :nabling Convergent Technologies®

CERTIFICATIONS

[, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr, certify that:

a)
b)

¢

d)

e)

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this repart;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control aver financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpeses in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure contrals and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially
affect the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Sr. Vice President & CFO
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Exhibit 32.1
TCS TeleCommunication
" Systems
I :rcbiing Convergent Technologies®

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

|, Maurice B. Tosé, President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of TeleCommunication Systems,
Inc. (the “Registrant”), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report’) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

s/ Maurice B. Tosé
Maurice B. Tosé
Date: March 3, 2009

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. ‘
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Exhibit 32.2

TeleCommunication
TCS Systems

I =::cbling Convergent Technologies®

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(Section 206 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.,, Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the
“Registrant”), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

{s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Date: March 3, 2009

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the year ended December 31, 2007

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d} OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File No. 0-30821

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland 52-1526369
(State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

275 West Street, Annapolis, MD 21401
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(410) 263-7616

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

{Mark One)
4|

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b}) of the Act: None.
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Class A Common Stock, Par Vaiue $0.01 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act YesO NoH

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act: YesO Nod

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15{d} of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 manths (or for such shorter period that the regisirant was
required to file such reports) and {2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days: Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated
by reference in Part Il! of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer’ and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company O
company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in rule 12b-2 of the Act): YesO No®

As of June 30, 2007, the aggregate market value of the Class A Common Stock held by non-affiliates, as reported on
the NASDAQ Global Market, was approximately $166,917,421.*

As of January 31, 2008 there were 34,962,487 shares of Class A Common Stock and 7.301,334 shares of Class B
Common Stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Document Part of 10-K into which incorporated

Portions of the registrant's Proxy Statement for the Partill
Annual Meeting of Stockholders
* Excludes 1,437,292 shares of Class A Common Stock and 7,425,672 shares of Class B Common Stock deemed to be held by
stockholders whose ownership exceeds ten percent of the shares outstanding at June 30, 2007. Exclusion of shares held by any person

should not be construed to indicate that such person possesses the power, direct or indirect, to direct or cause the direction of the
management or policies of the registrant, or that such person is controlied by or under comman contral with the registrant.
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Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affect Future Results

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements are statements other than historical information or
statements of current condition. We generally identify forward-looking statements by the use of terms such as
“believe”, “intend’, “expect”, “may”, “should", “plan”, “project’, "contemplate”, “anticipate”, or other similar
statements. Examples of forward looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not
limited to statements that

(i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in
messaging and location determination;,

(i) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand
our domestic and international carrier base,

(iii} we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models and we believe that our
software is positioned for early adoption by carriers,

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable
future,

(v) both the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly,

(vi) we will continue to develop network software for wireless camiers that operate on all major types of
networks;

(vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology to unlock valuable
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers,

{viii) we will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications,

(ix) we intend to continue to selectively pursue acquisitions of companies and technalogies in order to
increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base,

{x) the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation expands our
opportunity for SwiftLink sales volume;

(xi) we believe our expertise in wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite
communications can be leveraged into the Federal agencies;

{xii) we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems praduct line to take advantage of
the evolving environment of satellite communications;

(xiii} we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering;

{xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist
teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as software development
and systems integration,

(xv) we expect to realize $84.6 million of backlog within the next twelve months;
{xvi) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete;

{xvii) we believe we have sufficient capital resources to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses,
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months,

{xviii) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by the related products,

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008
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{xix) we believe our inteltectual property assets are valuable and may realized revenue from patent
infringement claims;

{xx) the WAWSS contract is expected to contribute to significant sales growth,
(xxi) expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation, and
(xxii) statements about financial covenants related to our foan agreements.

Other such statements include without limitation risks and uncertainties relating to our financial results and
our ability to (i) reach recurring annual profitability as early as anticipated or at all, {ii) continue to rely on our
customers and other third parties to provide additional products and services that create a demand for our
products and services, (i) conduct our business in foreign countries, (iv) adapt and integrate new technologies
into our products, (v) develop software without any errors or defects, (vi) protect our intellectual property rights,
{vil) implement our business strategy, (viil) realize backlog, and (ix) achieve continued revenue growth in the
foreseeable future in certain of our business lines. This list should not be considered exhaustive,

These forward-looking statements relate to our plans, objectives and expectations for future operations. We
base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions made using information currently available to us.
In light of the risks and uncertainties inherent in all projected operational matters, the inclusion of
forward-looking statements in this document should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other
person that our objectives or plans will be achieved or that any of our operating expectations will be realized.
Revenues, results of operations, and other matters are difficult to forecast and could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as a result of
factors discussed in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations”, the matters discussed in “Risk Factors Affecting Our Business and Future Results”, which are
included in Item 1A, and those factors discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Farm 10-K including,
changes in economic conditions, technology and the market in general, and our ahility to adapt our products
and services to these changes. We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future
revisions we make to forward-looking statements to reflect events aor circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We caution you not to put undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements,

tem 1,
Business
QOverview

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications
technology, with emphasis on text messaging, location-based services including enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) for
wireless carriers and Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) service providers, and secure satellite-based
communication solutions for government customers.

We are a Maryland corporation founded in 1987 with our headquarters located at 275 West Street,
Annapolis, Maryland 21401. Our Web address is www.telecomsys.com. The information contained on our Web
site does not constitute part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All of our filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission are available through a link on our website. The terms “TCS’, "we’, "us” and “our” as
used in this Annua! Report on Form 10-K refer to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a
combined entity, except where it is made clear that such temms mean only TeleCommunication Systerns, Inc.

Our business is conducted through two operating segments, Commercial (52% of 2007 revenue) and
Government (48% of 2007 revenue). See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
segment information.

Commercial Segment: Our carrier software system products enable wireless carriers to deliver short text
messages, location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from
wireless phones. We provide E9-1-1 services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text
message distribution services on a hosted, or service bureau basis, that is, customers use our software
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly fees based
on the number
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of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or message volume. As of December 31, 2007, we provide hosted
services under contracts with wireless carrier networks, as well as VolP service providers. Wa also earn
subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic application which is
available via all major U.S. wireless carriers. We earn camier software-based systems revenue through the
sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees and rmaintenance fees. Pricing is generally based on the
volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier. As of Decermber 31, 2007, we had deployed 98 of our
software systems in use by wireless carrier networks around the world, including those of Verizon Wireless,
Telefonica and its affiliate Vivo, Alitel, and Hutchison Whampoa's “3" brand third generation networks. We also
provide carrier technology on a hosted or service bureau basis.

Government Segment. Since our founding in 1887 we have provided communication systems integration,
information technology services, and software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other
government customers. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to
satellite aitime (known as space segment.) We design, furnish, install and operate wireless and data network
communication systems, including cur SwiftLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high
speed, satellite, and internet protocol technology. Maore than 1,000 of our SwiftLink® deployable
communication systems are in use for security, defense, and law enforcement around the world. We believe
that our ability to provide teleport, deployable device, and integration capability from a single source is uniquely
competling.

We currently have more than 50 patents, primarily for wireiess messaging and location technology, and
approximately 190 patent applications pending. We employ approximately 500 people.

SwiftLink®, Xypoint®, Enabling Convergant Technologies ®, and Wireless Internet Gateway'™ are
trademarks or service marks of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. or our subsidiaries. This Annual Report on
Form 10-K also contains trademarks, trade names and services marks of other companies that are the
property of their respective owners.

I. Commercial Segment:

We provide software, reiated systems, hosted services, maintenance and related services to wireless
carners, Voice Qver IP service providers, and users of alectronic map and related location-based technology,
based on our portfolio of patented intellectual property.

A. Commercial Product and Service Offerings

1. Commercial services. We own and lease network operation centers that host software for which
customers make recurring monthly usage payments. Our hosted offerings include wireless and Voice over IP
E9-1-1, and commercial location-hased applications. Through wireless carriers, we sell subscriptions to
services using our client software applications such as navigation, traffic, and points of interest, sometimes in
collaboration with owners of brand names such as Rand McNally®,

a. Hosted location-Based Services, including £9-1-1. Our E9-1-1 service bureau works with wireless
carriers and local emergency services in compliance with the Federal Communication Commission
requirements. When a wireless subscriber covered by this service makes a 9-1-1 call from his or her
wireless phone, the software (1) identifies the call as an emergency call, (2) accesses the handset's
location information from the wireless network (either imprecise or precise}, (3) routes the call to the
appropriate public safety jurisdiction, (4) translates the information into a user friendly format, and
(5) transmits the data to the local emergency service call center, Our E9-1-1 service operates on a platform
that resides at our network operations center in Seattle, Washington with data center redundancy in
Phoenix, Arizona. As of December 31, 2007, we are under contract fo provide E9-1-1 services to wireless
carriers, including Verizon and AT&T Wireless. We are also under contract to provide £9-1-1 service to 13
Voice over IP service providers, including Vonage and Level 3.

b. Customer subscriptions to application-based services such as Navigation, Traffic and
Points-of-Interest. TCS' strategy is to have a suite of location-based applications that carrier subscribers
may select and for which they pay recurring monthly fees. TCS has launched its real-time traffic application
downloadable mobile applications that deliver easy access to maps, directions and directory listings for the
entire
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United States, and its navigation applications on multipte networks. Variations of all applications are sold
under the Rand McNally® brand as well as carrier or other brands.

c. Software and system maintenance. For our installed base of systems in use by customers (see
system descriptions below), we provide ongoing operational support, including administration of system
components, system optimization and configuration management. Maintenance services include tracking
customer support issues, trouble shoating, and developing and instailing maintenance releases. We
typically provide maintenance services for an annual fee paid in advance, which is priced based on the
cumulative license fees we have billed for the systems being supported.

d. Location-based technical service prajects. We provide telematic location database maintenance
setvices for DENSO Corporation of Japan, (a global supplier to the automotive industry) through the
compilation of geographic information databases used in DENSO's in-vehicle navigation systems that are in
products including Toyota, Lexus, Land Rover and Lincoin brands.

2. Commercial Licensed Software-based Systems: We design and develop software products for
wireless carrier and enterprise networks that enable the delivery of secure and personalized content, services,
and transactions to wireless devices. We design our softwarg using industry standards for easy
implementation, customization, and interoperability with other network components. Most of our commercial
software is now designed and delivered fogether with third-party software and related hardware, which is
integrated into new and existing networks by our engineers. Our commerciat software-based system offerings
include:

a. Xypaint® Location Platform (XLP) and Applications for Location-based Services: Our Xypoint®
Location Platform system interacts with the wireless network to extract location information (the “X/Y"
coordinates) of the user's device. In order to determine a user’s location with sufficient precision for public
safety compliance and for commercial location-based applications, our technology interacts with network
triangulation software which some carriers have added to cell towers and switches in the network; it can
also work with networks that have incorporated Assisted GPS systems that use Global Positioning System
{GPS) chips in user handsets. We have been a leader in developing the location platform standard called
Secure User Plane for Location (SUPL) and incorporated the technology in our product, Qur platform also
provides privacy controls 50 that the wireless device user controls access to the user’s location information.
The “X/Y” information extracted from networks by our XLP is used by application software including E9-1-1,
driving directions, identification of locations near the end user (such as gas stations, restaurants, or hotels),
and locating other network subscribers near the user’s current position,

b. Short Message Service Center and Wireless Intelligent Gateway. Our Short Message Service
Center software enables users to send and receive text or data messages to and from wireless devices.
The Wireless Intelligent Gateway is a portal for two-way data communication between users of wireless
networks and the Internet. The Gateway allows users to customize the services they receive on wireless
devices by setting up a user profile through a single Internet-based procedure. Wireless carriers can access
these user profiles and usage data to gain a better understanding of customer behavior. The Wirgless
Messaging Gateway allows additional wireless applications to be added as desired, as well as
personalization, instant messaging and spam-blacking capabilities that can be independently customized
by the end-user. It can interoperate with our location-based service platform and applications.

B. Commercial Market Opportunities and Strategy

We plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business modets. Our development
investment is focused on the delivery of internet content, proprietary third-parnty content, short messages,
location Information, corporate network data and other enhanced data-communication services to and from
wireless devices. The following trends are driving demand for our products and services:

Growth in Wireless and Voice over Internet FProtocol (VolP) Subscribers. The use of wireless
communications has increased significantly in recent years, driven by expanded wireless network
coverage, upgraded high-speed digital wireless networks, more affordable wireless communications service
plans, and higher quality and less expensive wireless devices. Likewise, VolP service offers cost
advantages over
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traditional wireline service. Wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the
world for the foreseeable future, Driving this growth is the replacement of landline connections with wireless
connections. Some households are now using cellular phones exclusively. This is especially true for young
adults, but also true in developing countries where wireless may often be the enly means of
communications.

The FCC’s £9-1-1 Mandates. We are one of the two leading providers of E9-1-1 service to wireless and
VolP service providers in the U.S. The ability to call for help or communicate with family members in need
is the primary reason many people cite for having a wireless phone. A key to enhancing personal safety
through a cell phone is the availability of E9-1-1 wireless capabilities. In 1998, the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) mandated the adoption of E9-1-1 technology by wireless carriers. In June 2005, the
FCC ordered providers of interconnected VolP service to provide E3-1-1 services to all of their customers
as a standard feature of the service, rather than as an optional enhancement. The FCC requires wireless
carriers to issue quarterly reports as to their progress and compliance with FCC-mandated deployment
schedules. We are under long-term contracts, usually three to five years, with 41 wireless and 13 VoIP
service providers, including all of the four largest wirsless carriers in the United States.

Cellular Network Improvements to Third Generation Capabilities. Mobile operators are deploying
high-speed data networks based on third generation technologies that, in many cases, equal or surpass
data rates that are typically available for residential wireline users. The deployments of these high-speed
wireless data networks have made it possible for individuals and enterprises to “wireless-enable” many
services that previously required a wireline connection, such as connecting to the Internet and accessing
corporate data outside the office. Our campany’s location-based technology and applications incorporating
map graphics take advantage of these network enhancements.

Improving Wireless Device Functionality. Manufacturers continue to increase the functionality of
mobile devices including phones and personal digital assistants through higher resolution, color screens,
and increased computing capability for sophisticated applications. These devices enable the user to take
advantage of the high-speed data networks for Internet and data usage. Broad adoption of location-based
services (LBS) has required, among other things, handsets incorporating components for interoperation
with Global Positioning System satellites and with LBS network components that we have developed and
provide.

Growing Use of Commercial Location-Based Wirefess Services (LBS). A driver of wireless
communications growth is the delivery of timely, highly specialized, interactive and location-specific
information. Technology incorporated in a growing number of networks and handsets now enables
determination of the handset's location with sufficient precision to allow useful applications beyond public
safety’'s E9-1-1. Wireless users benefit from the ability to receive highly customized location-specific
information in response to their queries or via targeted opt-in content delivered to the wireless device,
Enterprises benefit from wireless location technology by utilizing routing and tracking applications for their
mobile field forces. Our software provides wireless location solutions to mobile operators today through our
Xypoint® Location Platform (XLE.) This technology is being used, via interconnection with XLP systems
hosted in our company's netwark operations, by Sprint in the U.S. and lusacell in Mexico. Our XLP
in-network system customers include Alltet, Hutchison Whampoa's “3"'™ networks, and Telefonica’s Vivo
network in Brazil,

Growing Use of Short Messaging, E-mail and Internet Applications. E-mail and short messaging
services (SMS) are increasingly important means of communication, with both the number of users and
messages per individual are projected to increase significantly. Mobile operators in the United States are
experiencing rapid SMS traffic growth, according to statistics from mobile operators. The Internet and
internal corparate data natworks, or intranets, have emerged as global communications channels that allow
users to share information and conduct business transactions electronically. We provide solutions for
mobile operators to receive and route e-mail and SMS messages through our Short Message Service
Center and Wireless Messaging Gateway systems.

5

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



The key elements of our commercial strategy are to:

Focus our Software and Integration Resources on Evolving Carrier Network Capabilities. Mobile
operators and the federal government increasingly seek integrated solutions that can harness both
messaging capabilities of networks and location information of end-users. We are well positioned to
address the evolving integration needs of our commercial and government clients through our
demonstrated expertise in both messaging and location determination. Mabile operators have made large
capital expenditure investments in infrastructure for wireless data and location determination
technalogies. While originally envisioned as separate technologies, messaging and location
determination technologies can be integrated to provide value-added services and applications for the
operators’ end-users.

Expand Our Sales and Marketing Relationships. We are developing relationships with communication
infrastructure providers in order to expand our sales channels for our carrier software products and
services. We have historically leveraged our strategic relationships with original equipment
manufacturers to market our Commercial Segment products to wireless carriers worldwide. We are
adding partnerships for our location technologies.

Grow Our Wireless Carrier and Voice Over IP Customer Base. We now serve or are uhder contract
with 61 wireless carrier networks in 16 countries, and with 13 VoIP service providers. We intend to
expand our domestic and international carrier base by capitalizing on our relationships with original
equipment manufacturers and establish new distribution partnerships and by expanding our own sales
and marketing initiatives. We will continue to develop network saftware for wireless carriers that operate
on all major types of networks.

Leverage Our Expertise in Accessing Information Stored Inside Wireless Networks. We will
continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology, including Signaling System 7 and
Internet Protocol standards, to unlack valuable information such as user location, device on/off status,
and billing and transaction records that reside inside wireless networks and are difficult to retrieve and
utilize. Using this information, we intend to expand the range of capabilities that wireless data technology
can accomplish for our customers.

Develop and Enhance Our Technology. We will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to
capitalize on our expertise to meet the growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications. As of
January 1, 2008, our staff included approximately 260 personnel with technical expertise in wireless
network, client software development, hosted wireless operations, satellite-based communication
technology and integrated network solutions. We also have research and development relationships with
wireless handset manufacturers, wireless carriers, and content and electronic commerce providers. Our
Xypoint® platform architecture efficiently integrates our presence, location, call control and messaging
technology, resulting in reduced costs, increased reliability, more efficient deployments, compatibility with
our existing products and a migration path to third-generation services.

Pursue Select Acquisitions. We intend to continue to selectively pursue acquisitions of companies and
technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products,
services and customer base.

. Government Segment:

We provide secure, deployable communication systems, and engineering and technical services, with
emphasis on satellite-based cammunication technology, to agencies of the U.S. Departments of Defense,
State, Justice, Homeland Security, as well as the City of Baltimore and other government customers.
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A. Government Products and Services

1. Government Services. We enter into fee-for-service contracts under which revenue is generated based
on contract laber billing rates or based on fixed fees for deliverables. These services, typically under multi-year
contracts or contract vehicles, include:

a. Network Operation and Telecom Expense Management Support. We design, install, and operate
networks that integrate computing and communications, including systems that provide communications via
both satellite and terrestrial links. We can provide complete network installation services from cabling
infrastructure to complex communications system components. We also provide ongeing network aperation
and management support services including telecom expense management under multi-year contracts with
government customers,

b. Custom Software. We develop custom software applications to support specific customer
requirements. We have histarically tailored enhancements of our software products for wireless carrier
customers and developed custom applications for govemment agencies.

¢. Secure Satellite Teleport Data Landing and Transmission Services. We own and operate
high-speed satellite communications teleports in Baltimore, Maryland and Manassas, Virginia that are
conhected to the public switched telephone network. These facifities provide transport services for Internet
Protocol (IP)-based media content consisting of Voice over IP (VolP), Internet, video and messaging data
using Very Small Aperture Terminal (VSAT) satellite technology as part of our communication solutians for
our customers. For some customers we purchase space segment and resell it to customers using our
facilities.

d. Maintenance Services. We offer basic and extended maintenance services refated to aur SwiftLink®
products and customized deployable communication systems.

2. Government Systems. We have designed and produced SwiftLink®, a lightweight, satellite-based
secure communication system, which can be immediately deployed in remote areas where other means of
reliable communications may not be available, SwiftLink® provides secure vaice, video and data
communications for up to eight people and a single parson can deploy the system in Iess than ten minutes,
creating critical communication channels from any location around the word. Uses include; emergency
response, news reporting, public safety, drilling and mining operations, field surveys and other activities that
require remote capabilities for video and data transmission. Integration work which typically accompanies
customer purchases of our secure deployable systems is reported together with the system sales revenue.
The Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation, which enables lawer cost
internet protocol traffic with broader band capability, expands our opportunity for SwiftLink® sales volume.

B. Government Market Opportunities and Strategy

Growing Use of Secure Wireless Communications and Location Technology for Defense,
Intelligence and Homeland Security. Wireless communications and location technology are key initiatives
within the federal government for both security and supply-chain management. As was dramatically illustrated
during 2005 by Hurricane Katrina, wireless communications in emergencies are of paramount importance, as
emergency personnel need to be able to communicate and share information across agencies and
departments where wireline systems may be unavailable. We believe that our expertise in the areas of
wireless E8-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite communications can be leveraged to
provide the needed wireless infrastructure for the U.S. Departments of Homeland Security and Defense and
we are currently pursuing opportunities to provide such praducts and services. Our SwiftLink® deployable
communication systems are also increasingly used by military and other government agencies around the
globe for communications in times of emergencies. SwifiLink® is designed to provide secure voice and data
communications through encrypted satellite links.

Government Outsourcing of Network and Telecom Technical Functions. Federal agencies, as well as
state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist teams for functions such as network
management, and for long-term projects such as software development and systems integration. Since the
founding of our Company, we have built relationships with federal agencies, including the Special Operations
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Command and the FBI, as weli as the State of Maryland and the City of Baltimore. Since early 2004, we have
made it a management priority to aggressively expand our base of long-term service contract engagements.
We have added experienced sales personnel and enhanced our relationships with systems integrators and
specialist vendors such as SAP America, Inc. to expand our penetration of the government service market

Expanded Need for Secure, Interoperable Deployable Communication Sofutions. During 2008,
disaster response efforts in the U.S. Guif Coast area by the Department of Homeland Security’s Federal
Emergency Management Agency illustrated the need for enhanced communication capabilities in such
circumstances. Military responders in New Orleans used our SwiftLink® systems to coordinate deployable
resources. We are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take
advantage of the evolving environment, including the benefits of Very Smalt Aperture Terminal (VSAT) satellite
communications architectures where desirable, and the Inmarsat Broadband Global Area Network
enhancements to its satellite services.

Secure Teleport and Integration Capabilities along with Deployable Systems as a Bundled
Offering. Government customers can benefit from single-sourcing secure communications solutions which
include a secure U.S. landing site for backhaut traffic as well as network engineering expertise and secure
remote terminals. We believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage, because it can offer all of
these elements from a single vendor.

Application of Commercially Proven Technology to Governinent Solutions. Government customers
increasingly are using commercial carrier netwarks. Procurement officers have expressed a preference for
solutions that incorporate proven commercial technology, rather than reliance on government research and
development funding. Our company's portfolio of software, patented intellectual property, and teams of
wireless and encryption specialists positions us to tap into this opportunity.

Customers

Commercial Segment. Our commercial customers include wireless telecommunications carriers in the
United States and foreign countries, either directly or through our channel partners. We provide licensed
software-hased systems, and hosted service bureau offerings in our Commercial Segment to carriers around
the world. Our wireless carrier customers include Verizon Wireless (20% of total 2007 revenue from centinuing
operations), AT&T Wireless, Sprint, and the Hutchison Whampoa third generation “3” brand networks.
Customers for our Voice Over IP E9-1-1 services include Vonage and Level 3. Our sales efforts target wireless
and Voice over IP service providers around the world.

Government Segment. Our major Government Segment customers include units of the U.S. Departments
of Defense, Justice, Homeland Security, and State, the General Services Administration, the City of Baltimore,
and Northrop Grumman. In the aggregate, U.S. federal government entities accounted for 37% of total 2007
revenue from continuing operations.

Backiog
As of December 31, 2007 and 2008, we had unfilled orders, or funded caontract and total backlog, as
follows:
December 31, 2007 vs. 2006
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Funded cantract backlog represents contracts for which fiscal year funding has been appropriated by our
customers {mainly federal agencies), and for our hosted services is computed by multiplying the most recent
maonth's recurring revenue times the rematining months under existing lang-term agreements, which we believe
is the best available information for anticipating revenue under those agreements. Total backlog, as is typically
measured by government contractors, includes orders covering optional periods of service and/or deliverables,
but for which budgetary funding may not yet have been approved. Company backlog at any given time may be
affected by a number of factors, including the avaitability of funding, contracts being renewed or new contracts
being signed before existing contracts are compieted. Some of our backlog could be canceled for causes such
as late delivery, poor performance and other factors. Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from period to
period is not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual revenue.

Sal | Marketi

We sell our products and services through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. Our direct
sales force consists of approximately 20 professionals in the U.S. and Europe. We have also historically
leveraged our relationships with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) to market our commercial systems
to wireless carrier customers. These indirect sales relationships include Alcatel Lucent, Nortel, Motorola and
Qualcomm. During the indirect sales process, as well as during installation and maintenance, we have
extensive direct contact with praspective carrier customers,

We are pre-qualified as an approved vendor for some government contracts, and some of our products and
services are available to government customers via the General Services Administration's Information
Technology Schedule 70, and the Worldwide Satellite Services (WWSS) and the Space and Naval Warfare
Foreign Military Sales (SPAWAR FMS) contract vehicles. We collaborate in sales efforts under various
arrangemants with integrators including General Dynarics and SAP America, Inc. Our marketing efforts also
include advertising, public relations, speaking engagements and attending and sponsoring industry
conferences.

c it

The markets for our proeducts and services are compstitive. The adoption of industry standards may make it
easier for new market entrants to compete with us. We expect that we will continue to compete primarily on the
basis of the functionality, breadth, time to market, ease of integration, price, and quality of our products and
services, as well as our market experience and reputation. The market and competitive conditions are
continually developing. Our software products compete with many similar proeducts provided by other
companies. It is difficult to present a meaningful comparison between our competitors and us because there is
a large variation in revenue generated by different customers, different products and services, as well as the
different combinations of products and services offered by our competitors. We cannot, therefore, quantify our
relative competitive position.

Cur current and potential competitors include:

« Commercial Segment. West Corporation's Intrado subsidiary; Ericsson; Openwave; Acision, Huawei
Technologies, Comverse Technology Inc.

« Government Segment. Computer Sciences Corporation; Electronic Data Systems Corporation; Northrop
Grumman; DataPath; Tactical Communications, a division of Sierra Nevada Corporation; Globecomm
Systems, In¢.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and
distribution resources than we do. Many of these companies have greater name recognition and more
established relationships with their target customers. Furthermore, these competitors may be able to adopt
more aggressive pricing policies and offer customers more attractive terms than we can, With time and capital,
it would be possible for our competitors to replicate our products and services.

We partner with vendors of precise location tachnology. Certain of our partners may attempt to compete
with our operating platform by developing their own transmission platform or by purchasing another maobile
location platform. The markets for commercial location and other mobile wireless applications for carriers and
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enterprises are relatively new and continually developing. The convergence of wireless technologies and the
internet is creating many initiatives to bring data and transaction capabilities to wireless devices. There is a
wide array of potential competitors in this market, including providers of competing location management
platforms, competing e-mail products, competing enterprise mobility platforms and other competing
applications for wireless devices.

Research and Development

Our success depends on a number of factors, which include, among other items, our ability to identify and
respond to emerging technological trends in our target markets, to develop and maintain competitive products,
to enhance our existing products by adding features and functionality that differentiate the products from those
of our competitors, and to bring products to market on a timely basis and at competitive prices. As of
January 1, 2008, our overail staff included approximately 260 professionals with technical expertise in wireless
network, client software development and satellite-based communication technology. Since 1996, we have
made substantial investments in wireless technology research and development, most of which has been
devoted to the development of carrier and enterprise network software products and services. We are primarily
focusing our current research and development investments in cellular location-based technology, including
E9-1-1 technology. We actively support existing telecommunications standards and promote new
telecommunications standards in order to expand the market for wireless data. We actively participate in
wireless standards-setting organizations including the Open Mabile Alliance, and we are represented on the
Board of Directors for the E9-1-1 Institute. In 1996, we co-founded the Intelligent Network Forum, an
organization dedicated to expanding the role of intelligent networks in telecommunications. As part of our
strategy to expand the rale of short messaging, we co-founded the Short Message Peer-to-Peer Forum in
1999. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, our research and development expense in
continuing operations was $13.1 million, $12.6 million, and $13.9 million, respectively.

Certain of our gavernment customers contract with us from time to time to conduct research on
telecommunications software, equipment and systems.

Inteliectual Property Rights
We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark, and trade secret laws and
restrictions to establish and pratect certain proprietary rights in our products and services.

We currently hold more than 50 issued patents relating to wireless text messaging, inter-carrier messaging,
number portability, and GPS ephemeris data, emergency public safety data routing and electronic commerce,
We have filed approximately 180 additional patent applications for certain apparatus and processes we believe
we have invented to enable key features of the location services, wireless text alerts, Short Message Service
Center, mobile-originated data and E9-1-1 network software. There is no assurance that these patent
applications will result in a patent being issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or other patent
offices, nar is there any guarantee that any issued patent will be valid and enforceable. Additionally, foreign
patent rights may or may not be avaitable or pursued in any technology area for which U.S. patent applications
have been filed.

Under our development agreement with Alcatel Lucent, we developed our Short Message Service Center
software in 1996. Under the development agreement, we share ownership rights in this software application
with Alcatel Lucent. The scope of each party's ownership interest is subject to each party's various underlying
ownership rights in intellectual property and also to confidential information contributed to the applications, and
is subject to challenge by either party.

As a member of various industry standard-setting forums, we have agreed to license certain of our
intellectual property to other members on fair and reasonable terms to the extent that the license is required to
develop non-infringing products under the specifications promulgated by those forums.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 500 employees, of which 481 were full-time and 9 were part-time. We
believe relations with our employees are good. None of our employees is represented by a union.
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G hical Inf g
During 2007, 2006, and 2005, total revenue generated from products and services of our continuing
operations in the U.S. were $138.6 million, $117.6 million, and $95.3 million, respectively, and total revenue
generated from products and services outside of the U.S. from our continuing operations were $5.6 million,
$7.3 million, and $6.9 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, essentially all of the

long-ived assets of our continuing operations were located in the U.S.

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, total revenue generated from products and services of our discontinued
Enterprise division in the U.S. were $5.6 million, $22.1 million, and $23.1 million, respectively.

We are subject to risks related to offering our products and services in foreign countries. See the
information under the heading “Risk Factors — Because our product offerings are sold internationally, we are
subject to risks of conducting business in foreign countries” included in ltem 1A.

Item 1A, Risk Factors

You should consider carefully each of the following risks and all of the other information in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein. If any of the following risks and
uncertainties develops into actual events, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

Risks Related fo Qur Business
to rice, like that of ol companies. has been inue to be
volatile,

We expect that the market price of our Class A common stock will continue to be volatile. We are involved
in a highly visible, rapidly changing industry and stock prices in our industry and similar industries have risen
and fallen in response to a variety of factors, including:

+ announcements of new wireless data communications technologies and new providers of wireless data
communications,

+ announcements of the issuance of new patents

.

acquisitions of, or strategic alliances among, providers of wireless data communications;

+ changes in recommendations by securities analysts regarding the results or prospects of providers of
wireless data communications;

+ changes in investor perceptions of the acceptance or profitability of wireless data communications: and
+ other global economic uncertainties.

i j dditi d| n fi eir sub.
our business could be harmed.

If wireless carriers limit their product and service offerings or do not purchase additional products containing
our applications, our business will be harmed. Wireless carriers face implementation and support challenges in
introducing Intemet-based services via wireless devices, which may slow the rate of adoption or
implementation of our products and services. Historically, wireless carriers have been relatively slow to
implement complex new services such as Internet-based services, Qur future success depends upon a
continued increase in the use of wireless devices to access the Internet and upon the continued development
of wireless devicas as a medium for the delivery of naetwork-based content and services. We have no control
over the pace at which wireless carriers implement these new services. The failure of wireless carriers to
introduce and support services utilizing our products in a timely and effective manner could reduce sales of our
products and services and seriously harmm our business.
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v d 3 [¢ b g &
ervi n erigll ersely affect our

Our business strategy is based on the assumption that the market demand, the number of customers, the
amount of infarmation they want to receive and the number of services we offer will all increase. We must
continue to develop and expand our systems and operations to accommadate this growth. The expansion and
adaptation of our systems operations requires substantial financial, operational and management resources.
Due to the limited deployment of our services to date, the ability of our systems and operations to connect and
manage a substantially larger number of customers while maintaining superior performance is unknown. Any
failure on our part to develop and maintain our wireless data services as we experience rapid growth could
significantly reduce demand for our services and materially adversely affect our revenue. Also, if we incorrectly
predict the market areas that will grow significantly, we could expend significant resources that could have
been expended on other areas that do show significant growth,

jal iability clail i r

Our agreements with customers may require us to indemnify customers for our own acts of negligence and
non-performance. Product liability and other forms of insurance are expensive and may not be available in the
future. We cannot be sure that we will be able to maintain or obtain insurance coverage at acceptable costs or
in sufficient amounts or that our insurer will not disclaim coverage as to a future claim. A product liability or
similar claim may adversely affect our business, operating results or financial candition.

ur ing resu dvarsely affected by any § uption of our data delj
or system failure.

Our E9-1-1, hosted location-based services and mobile asset delivery operations depend on our ability to
maintain our computer and telecommunications equipment and systems in effective working order, and to
protect our systems against damage from fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure,
sabotage, unauthorized access to our system or similar events. Although all of our mission-critical systems and
equipment are designed with built-in redundancy and security, any unanticipated interruption or delay in our
operations or hreach of security could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Furthermore, any addition or expansion of our facilities to increase capacity could
increase our exposure to natural or other disasters. Our property and business interruption insurance may nat
be adequate to compensate us for any losses that may occur in the event of a system failure or a breach of
security. Furthermore, insurance may not be available to us at all or, if available, may not be available to us an
commercially reasonable terms.

we rely on a few ke our revenue may decli faif to retain th

customers.

To date, the largest customers for our product and service offerings in terms of revenue generated have
been AT&T Wireless, Sprint, Hutchison 3G, Verizon Wireless, and the U.S, government. For the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007, each of Verizon Wireless and the U.S. government accounted for 10% or more of
our total revenue. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, each of Verizon Wireless, AT&T
Wireless (formerly known as Cingular Wireless), and the U.S. government accounted for 10% or more of our
tatal revenue. We expect to generate a significant partion of our total revenue from these customers for the
foreseeable future, For the year ended December 31, 2007, the largest customers for our Commercial
Segment were Verizon Wireless and AT&T Wireless, and the largest customers for our Government Segment
were various U.S. government agencies,

Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with aur major customers and on developing other
customers and distribution channels. The loss of any of the customers discussed in this paragraph would have
a material adverse impact on our husiness.

12

Source; TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



g H -1- = A. !,1 “A"“.. f '.‘. gi€ i 2 i Oi .
expand our relationships with strategic partners and indirect distribution channels our license

revenues could decline,

We have announced strategic partnerships with Motarola and Alcatel-Lucent, and are working on additional
partnerships to provide supplemental channels for the marketing and sale of our software applications. Our
growth depends on maintaining relationships with these partners and on developing other distribution
channels. The loss of any of these partners would have a material adverse impact on our business.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, and our bank line of credit, coupled with the funds
anticipated to be generated from operations will be sufficient to finance our operations for at least the next
twelve months, Although we currently believe that we have sufficient capital resources to meet our anticipated
working capital and capital expenditures requirements beyond the next twelve months, unanticipated evants
could cause us to fall short of our capital requirements. In addition, such unanticipated events could cause us
to violate our bank line of credit covenants causing the bank to foreclose on the line and/or opportunities may
make it necessary for us to return to the public markets, or establish new credit facilities or raise capital in
private transactions in order to meet our capital requirements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
raise additional capital in the future on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as ather restrictive covenants including, amang others,
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the
ordinary course of our business {including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The agreement also contains a
subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or financial
condition of our Company occur, or (i) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any portion of
the bank credit agreement; or (i) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders security interests in
the collateral of the bank credit agreement. We believe that we will continue to comply with our restrictive
covenants under our debt agreements. If our performance does not result in compliance with any of the
restrictive covenants, or if our line of credit agreement lender seeks to exercise its rights under the subjective
acceleration clause referred to above, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there
can be no assurance that our debt holders would nat exercise their rights and remedies under their
agreements with us, including declaring all cutstanding debt due and payable.

Our short-term investments are subject to market fluctuations which may affect our liquidity.

Although we have not experienced any losses on our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments,
declines in the market values of these investments in the future could have an adverse impact on our financial
condition and operating results. Historically, we have invested in AAA rated money market funds meeting
certain cniteria. These investments are subject to general credit, liquidity, market, and interest rate risks, which
may be directly or indirectly impacted by the U.S. sub-prime mortgage defaults that have affected various
sectors of the financial markets causing credit and liquidity issues. If an issuer defautts on its obligations, or its
credit ratings are negatively affected by liquidity, losses or other factors, the value of our cash equivalents and
short-term investments could decline and could have an adverse impact on our liquidity and financial condition,

Our quarterly revenue and operating results are difficult to predict and are likely to fluctuate from
quarter-to-quarter. For example, 2007 revenues of our Government Segment were higher in the second half of
the year than in the first half, whereas its 2006 revenues were higher in the first half of the year than in the
second. In 2005, revenues from our Government Segment were significantly higher in the second haff of the
year than in the first half. In addition, we generally derive a significant portion of wireless carrier license
revenue in our
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Commercial Segment from initial license fees. The initial license fees that we receive in a particular quarter
may vary significantly. As these projects begin and end, quarterly results may vary. We therefore believe that
quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may not be a good indication of our future
performance, and you should not rely on them to predict our future performance or the future performance of
our Class A common stock. Our quarterly revenues, expenses and operating results could vary significantly
from quarter-to-quarter, If our operating results in future quarters fall below the expectations of market analysts
and investors, the market price of our stock may fall.

Additional factors that have either caused our results to fluctuate in the past or that are likely to do so in the
future include:

» changes in our relationships with wireless carriers, the U.S. government or other customers;
- timing of introduction of new products and services;
- changes in pricing policies and product offerings by us or our competitors;

« changes in projected profitability of acquired assets that would require the write down of the value of the
goodwill reflected on cur balance sheet.

+ costs associated with advertising, marketing and promotional efforts to acquire new customers;

+ capital expenditures and other costs and expenses related to improving our business, expanding
operations and adapting to new technologies and changes in consumer preferences, and

» our lengthy and unpredictable sales cycle.

Growing market acceptance of “open source” soffware could cause a decline in our revenues and
s >

Growing market acceptance of open source software has presented both benefits and challenges to the
commercial software industry in recent years. “Open source” software is made widely available by its authors
and is licensed “as is" for a hominal fee or, in some cases, at no charge. For example, Linux is a free Unix-type
operating system, and the source code for Linux is freely available.

We have incorporated some types of open source software into our products, allowing us to enhance
certain solutions without incurming substantial additional research and development costs. Thus far, we have
encountered no unanticipated material problems arising from our use of open source software. However, as
the use of open source software becomes more widespread, certain open source technology could hecome
competitive with our proprietary technology, which could cause sales of our products to decline or force us to
reduce the fees we charge for our products, which could have a material adverse impact on our revenues and
operating margins.

8 s5e our fferings are sol ationally, we are subj o risks of conductf,
busi in forei niries.

Wireless carriers in Europe, Asia, Australia, Africa and Central and South America have purchased our
products. We believe our revenue will be increasingly dependent on business in foreign countries, and we will
be subject to the social, political and economic risks of conducting business in foreign countries, including:

- inability to adapt our products and services to local business practices, customs and mobile user
preferences;

»+ costs of adapting our product and service offerings for foreign markets;
+ inability to locate qualified local employees, partners and suppliers;

- reduced protection of intellectual property rights;
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* the potential burdens of complying with a variety of U.S. and foreign laws, trade standards and regulatory
requirements, including the regulation of wireless communications and the Internet and uncertainty
regarding liability for information retrieved and replicated in foreign countries;

* general geopolitical risks, such as political and economic instability and changes in diplomatic and trade
relations; and

» unpredictable fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Any of the foregoing risks could have a material adverse effect on our business by diverting time and
money toward addressing them or by reducing or eliminating sales in such foreign countries.

We derive a significant portion of gur revenue from sales to varioys agencies of the U.S.

n cial om expo.

Sales to various agencies of the U.S. government accounted for approximately 37% of our total revenue for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, all of which was attributable to our Government Segment. Our ability
to earn revenue from sales to the U.S. government can be affected by numerous factors outside of our control
including:

« The U.S. government may terminate the contracts it has with us. All of the contracts we have with the
U.S, government are, by their terms, subject to termination by the U.S. government either for its
convenience or in the event of a default by us. In the event of termination of a contract by the
U.8. government, we may have little or no recourse.

+ Our contracts with the U.S. government may be terminated due to Congress failing to appropriate
funds. Our U.S. govemment contracts are conditioned upon the continuing availability of Congressional
appropriations. Congress usually appropriates funds for a given program on a fiscal-year basis even
though contract perfarrmance may take mare than one year. Any failure by Congress to appropriate funds
to any program that we participate in could materially delay or terminate the program and have a material
adverse effect on our business.

« We are subject to procurement and other related laws and regulations which carry significant penalties
for non-compliance. e are subject to extensive and complex U.S. government procurement laws and
regulations. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations and with laws governing the export of
controlled products and commodities, and any significant violations of any other federal law, could
subject us to potential contract termination, civil and criminal penalties, and under certain circumstances,
suspension and debarment from future U.S. government contracts.

Additionally, the U.S. government may audit and review our costs and performance on their contracts, as
well as our accounting and general practices. The costs and prices under these contracts may be subject to
adjustment based upon the results of any audits, Future audits may ham our businsss,

veral of our competitors have signifi reater resources than we do, we o.

Our business is highly competitive. Several of our competitors are substantially larger than we are and have
greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. In particular, larger competitors have certain
advantages over us which could cause us to lose customers and impede our ability to attract new customars,
including: larger bases of financial, technical, marketing, personnel and other resources; more established
relationships with wireless carriers; mare funds to deploy products and services; and the ability to lower prices
of competitive products and services because they are selling larger volumes.

The widespread adoption of open industry standards such as the Secure User Plane for Location (SUPL)
specifications may make it easier for new market entrants and existing competitors to introduce products that
compete with our software products. Because our Commercial Segment is part of an emerging market, we
cannot identify or predict which new competitors may enter the mobile location services industry in the future.
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With time and capital, it would be possible for competitors to replicate any of our products and service offerings
or develop alternative products. Additionally, the wireless communications industry continues to experience
significant consolidation which may make it more difficult for smaller companies, like us, us to compete. Qur
competitors include application developers, telecommunications equipment vendars, lacation determination
technology vendors and information technology consultants, and may include traditional Internet portals and
Internet infrastructure software companies, We expect that we will compete primarily on the basis of price, time
to market, functicnality, quality and breadth of product and service offerings.

These competitors could inciude wireless network carriers, mobile and/or wireless software companies,
wireless data services providers and wireless systems integrators and database vendors. As discussed above,
many of our potential competitors have significantly greater resources than we do. Furthermore, competitors
may develop a different approach to marketing the services we provide in which subscribers may not be
required to pay for the information provided by our services. Competition could reduce our market share or
force us to lower prices to unprofitable levels.

i haracterize 3 significant portion of ou nue ing “recurting” there is no
gauarantee that we will actually achieve this revenue.

A significant portion of our revenue is generated fram long-term customer contracts that pay certain fees on
a month-to-month basis. While we currently believe that these revenue streams will continue, renegotiation of
the contract terms, early termination or non-renewal of material contracts could cause our recurring revenues
to be lower than expected and any growth depends on maintaining relationships with these important
customers and on developing other customers and distribution channels,

We cannot quarantee that our esfimated contract backloag will result in a al revenue

As of December 31, 2007, our estimated contract backlog totaled approximately $232.2 million, of which
approximately $130.6 million was funded. There can be no assurance that our backlog will result in actual
revenue in any particular period, or at all, or that any contract included in backlog will be profitable. There is a
higher degree of risk in this regard with respect to unfunded backlog. The actual receipt and timing of any
revenue is subject to various contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. The actual receipt of
revenue on contracts included in backlog may never occur or may change because a program schedule could
change, the program could be canceled, a contract could be reduced, modified or terminated early, or an
aption that we had assumed would be exercised not being exercised. Further, while many of our federal
government contracts require performance over a period of years, Congress often appropriates funds for these
contracts for only one year at a time. Consequently, our contracts typically are only partially funded at any
point during their term, and all or some of the work intended to be performed under the contracts will remain
unfunded pending subsequent Congressional appropriations and the obligation of additional funds to the
contract by the procuring agency. Our estimates are based on our experience under such contracts and similar
contracts. However, there can be no assurances that all, or any, of such estimated contract value will be
recognized as revenue.

personnel or 3 abili attract and retain additional pe el could ha

Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified
personnel, particulary in sales and marketing and research and development. If we are unable to do so, our
business could be harmed. Our future success also depends upon the continued service of our executive
officers and other key sales, engineering and technical staff. The loss of the services of our executive officers
and other key personnel could ham our operations. We maintain key person life insurance on certain of our
executive officers. We would be harmed if one or more of our officers or key employees decided to join a
competitor or if we failed to attract qualified personnel. Our ability to aftract qualified personnel may be
adversely affected by a decline in the price of our Class A common stack. In the event of a decline in the price
of our Class A common stock, the retention value of stock options will decline and our employees may choose
not to remain with us, which could harm our business.
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s a prime contractor and our ability to ain usiness could suffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely significantly upon other companies as subcontractors to perform work
we are obligated to perform for our clients. As we secure more work under our contract vehicles such as the
WWSS agreement, we expect to require an increasing level of support from subcontractors that provide
complementary and supplementary products and services to our offerings. Depending on labor market
conditions, we may not be able ta identify, hire and retain sufficient numbers of qualified employees to perform
the task orders we expect to win. In such cases, we will need to rely on subcontracts with unrelated
companies. Moreover, even in favorable labor market conditions, we anticipate entering into more
subcontracts in the future as we expand our wark under our contract vehicles. We are responsible for the work
performed by our subcontractors, even though in some cases wa have limited involvement in that work. If ane
ar more of our subcontractors fail to satisfactorily perform the agreed-upon services on a timely basis or violate
federal government contracting policies, laws or regulations, our ability to perform our abligations as a prime
contractor or meet our clients’ expectations may be compromised. In extreme cases, performance or other
deficiencies on the part of our subcontractors could result in a client terminating our contract for default. A
termination for default could expose us to fiability, including liability for the agency’s costs of re-procurement,
could damage our reputation and could hurt our ability to compete for future contracts.

Qur past and future acquisitions of companies or technologies could prove difficulf to integrate,
i ina it de alue adve i 5 3

) i1 (1T DCKI10 @ O oy affe: e rating re i1sS O

We have in the past acquired a number of businesses and technologies, and we may in the future acquire
or make investments in other companies, services and technologies, Any acquisitions, strategic alliances or
investments we may pursue in the future will have a continuing, significant impact on our business, financial
candition and operating results. The value of the companies or assets that we acquire or invest in may be less
than the amount we paid if there is a decline of their position in the respective markets they serve or a decline
in general of the markets they serve. If we fail to properly evaluate and execute acquisitions and investments,
our business and prospects may be seriously harmed. To successfully complete an acquisition, we must;

« properly evaiuate the technology;

+ accurately forecast the financial impact of the transaction, including accounting charges and transaction
EexXpenses;

« integrate and retain personnel;
« retain and cross-sell to acquired customers;
« combine potentially different corporate cultures; and

- effectively integrate products and services, and research and development, sales and marketing and
support operations.

i we fail to do any of these, we may suffer losses, our management may be distracted from day-to-day
operations and the market price of aur Class A common stock may be materially adversely affected. In
addition, if we consummate future acquisitions using our equity securities or convertible debt, existing
stockholders may be diluted which could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our Class A
common stock,

In addition, the companies and business units we have acquired or invested in or may acquire or invest in
are subject to each of the business risks we describe in this section, and if they incur any of these risks the
businesses may not be as valuable as the amount we paid. Further, we cannot guarantee that we will realize
the benefits or strategic objectives we are seeking to obtain by acquiring or investing in these companies.
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Industry Risks
Because the wi fata indu. isa 1 volving market, our pr and servi Fid
i1 fete unl we re ffectively and on a timel is to rapid fechnologi

changes.

The successful execution of our business strategy is contingent upon wireless network operators launching
and maintaining mobile location services, our ability to create new network software products and adapt our
existing network software products to rapidly changing technologies, industry standards and customer needs.
As a result of the complexities inherent in our product offerings, new technologies may require long
development and testing periods. Additionally, new products may not achieve market acceptance or our
competitors could develop alternative technologies that gain broader market acceptance than our products, If
we are unable to develop and introduce technologically advanced products that respond to evolving industry
standards and customer needs, or if we are unable to complete the development and introduction of these
products on a timely and cost effective basis, our business will suffer.

New laws and regulations that impact our industry could increase costs or reduce opportunities to earn
revenue. The wireless carriers that use our product and service offerings are subject to regulation by domestic,
and in some cases, foreign, governmental and other agencies. Regulations that affect them could increase our
costs or reduce our ability to sell our products and services. In addition, there are an increasing number of laws
and regulations pertaining to wireless telephones and the Internet under consideration in the United States and
elsewhere,

The applicability to the Internet of existing faws goveming issues such as inteliectual property ownership
and infringement, copyright, trademark, trade secret, taxation, obscenity, libel, employment and personat
privacy is uncertain and developing. Any new legislation or regulation, or the application or interpretation of
existing laws, may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition. Additionally, modifications to our business plans or operations to comply with changing regulations
or certain actions taken by regulatory authorities might increase our costs of providing our product and setvice
offerings and materially adversely affect our financial condition.

n about pe riv. a ommerci licitation may limit th h of i
ion servi d reduce deman r our products an rvic

In order for mabile location products and services to function properly, wireless carriers must locate their
subscribers and store information on each subscriber's location. Although data regarding the location of the
wireless user resides only on the wireless carrier's systems, users may not feel comfortable with the idea that
the wireless carrier knows and can track their location. Carriers will need to obtain subscribers' permission to
gather and use the subscribers’ personal information, or they may not be able to provide customized mobile
location services which those subscribers might otherwise desire. If subscribers view mabile location services
as an annayance or a threat to their privacy, that could reduce demand for our products and services and have
an adverse effect on prospective sales.

The Federal Communication Commission, or FCC, has mandated that certain location information be
provided to operators when they receive an E9-1-1 call. Phase | of the FCC's 9-1-1 mandate required
providers to be able to locate wireless E9-1-1 callers within their originating cell sector site and report their
callback number by April 1998. Phase Hl of the FCC mandate required providers to be able to pinpoint the
location of all E9-1-1 callers within 125 meters in 87% of all cases by October 1, 2001. Although both the
Phase | and Phase |l deadlines have passed, many providers are not curently in compliance with either phase
of the FCC’s mandate. Even so, we believe that many public safety jurisdictions are continuing to deploy
Phase | technology and when available, we believe they will deploy Phase [l technology.
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Carriers’ obligations to provide Phase | and Phase Il services are subject to request by public safety
organizations. Due to complex regulatory, funding and political issues many public safety organizations have
not yet requested this service. As a result, wireless carriers and wirgless users may never exhibit sufficient
demand for our mobile location services. Technical failures, time delays or the significant costs associated with
developing or installing improved location technology could slow down or stop the deployment of our mobile
location products. If deployment of improved location technology is delayed, stopped or never occurs, market
acceptance of our products and services may be adversely affected.

In addition, we will rely on third-party providers to manufacture and deploy devices that determine the
precise geographic location of wireless users to comply with Phase 1l of the FCC mandate. The extent and
timing of the deployment of our products and services is dependent both on public safety requests for such
service and wireless carrier’s ability to certify the accuracy of and deploy the precise location technology.
Because we will rely on third-party location technology instead of developing the technology ourselves, we
have little or no influence over its improvement. If the tachnology never becomes precise enough to satisfy
wireless users’ needs or the FCC's requirements, we may not be able to increase or sustain demand for our

. products and services, if at all.

Under the FCC's mandate, wireless carriers are required to provide E9-1-1 services anly if state and local
governments request the service. As part of a state or local government's decision to request £9-1-1, they
have the authority to develop cost recovery mechanisms. However, cost recovery is no langer a condition to
wireless carriers’ obligation to deploy the service. If state and local governments do nat widely request that
ES-1-1 services be provided or we become subject to significant pressures from wireless carriers with respect
to pricing of E9-1-1 services, our E9-1-1 business would be significantly harmed and future growth of our
business would be significantly reduced.

The FCC has determined that VolP services are not subject to the same regulatory scheme as traditional
wireline and wireless telephone services. If the regulatory environment for VolP services evolves in a manner
other than the way we anticipate, aur E9-1-1 business would be significantly harmed and future growth of our
business would be significantly reduced. For example, many states provide statutary and regulatory immunity
from liability for wireless and wireline E9-1-1 service providers but provide no exprass immunities for VolP
E9-1-1 service providers. Additionally, the regutatory scheme for wireless and wireline service providers
require those carriers to allow service providers such as us to have access to certain databases that make the
defivery of an E9-1-1 call possible. No such requirements exist for VolP service providers so carriers could
prevent us from continuing to provide VolP E9-1-1 service by denying us access to the required databases.

we r ( i nsolidati U
u: mayb hich could result i s of revenue for pur bu

The telecommunications industry generally is currently undergoing a consolidation phase. Many of our
customers, specifically wireless carrier customers of our Commercial Segment, have or may become the target
of acquisitions. If the number of our customers is significantly reduced as a result of this consolidation trend, or
if the resulting companies do not utilize our product offerings, our financial condition and results of operations
could be materially adversely affected.

errors adverselv affect our reputation or delays shipmenpts of our software,

The software products that we develop are complex and must meet the stringent technical requirements of
our customers, We must quickly develop new products and product enhancements to keep pace with the
rapidly changing software and telecommunications markets in which we operate. Software as complex as ours
is likely to contain undetected errars or defects, especially when first introduced or when new versions are
released.
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Our software may not be error or defect free after delivery to customers, which could damage our reputation,
cause revenue losses, result in the rejection of our software or services, divert development resources and
increase service and warranty costs, each of which coutd have a serious harmful effect on us.

Our products operate with wirgless carriers’ systems, various wireless devices and, in the case of our
£9-1-1 offering, with mobile telephone switches and VoIP service provider systems. If we are unable to
continue to design our software to operate with these systems and devices, we may lose sales to competitors.
Mobile telephone switches and wireless devices can be manufactured according to many different standards
and may have different variations within each standard. Combining our preducts with each type of switch,
device or VolP system requires a specialized interface and extensive testing. If, as a result of technology
enhancements or upgrades to carrier and VolP provider systems, our praducts can no longer operate with
such systems, we may no longer be able to sell our products. Further, even if we successfully redesign our
products to operate with these systems, we may not gain market acceptance before our competitors.

8 ur ms m Inerable fo syste ilures and security ri. we may incur
significant costs to protect against the threat of these problems.

We provide for the delivery of information and content to and from wireless devices in a prompt and timely
manner. Any systems failure that causes a disruption in our ability to facilitate the transmission of information
to these wireless devices could result in delays in end users receiving this information and cause us to lose
customers. Our systems could experience such failures as a result of unauthorized access by hackers,
computer viruses, hardware or software failures, power or telecommunications failures and other accidental or
intentional actions which could disrupt our systems, We may ifcur significant costs to prevent such systems
disruptions.

Increasingly our products will be used to create or transmit secure information and data to and from
wireless devices. For example, our software can be used to create private address lists and to provide the
precise location of an individual, To protect private information like this from security breaches, we may incur
significant costs. If a third party were able to misappropriate our proprietary information or disrupt our
operations, we could be subject to ctaims, litigation or other potential liabilities that could materially adversely
impact our business. Further, if an individual is unable to use our service to receive the precise location in a
health or life-and-death situation, or if our service provides the wrong information, we could be subject to
claims, litigation or other potentiat liabilities that could materially adversely impact our business.

The wireless data services provided by our Commercial Segment are dependent on real-time, continuous
feeds from map and traffic data vendors and others. The ability of our subscribers to receive critical location
and business information requires timely and uninterrupted connections with our wireless network carriers. Any
disruption from our satellite feeds or backup landline feeds could resuit in delays in our subscribers’ ability to
recaive information. We cannot be sure that our systems will operate appropriately if we experience a
hardware or software failure, intentional disruptions of service by third parties, an act of God or an act of war. A
failure in our systems could cause delays in transmitting data, and as a result we may lose customers or face
fitigation that could involve material costs and distract management from operating our business.

i uipment man do not gverco 11 chnol ipmen
I I« rvi

The wireless technalogy currently in use by most wireless carriers has limited bandwidth, which restricts
network capacity to deliver bandwidth-intensive applications like data services to a large number of users.
Because of capacity limitations, wireless users may not be able to connect to their network when they wish to,
and the connection is likely to be slow, especially when receiving data transmissions, Data services also may
be more expensive than users are willing to pay. To overcome these obstacles, wircless equipment
manufacturers will need to develop new technology, standards, equipment and devices that are capable of
providing higher bandwidth services at lower cost. We cannot be sure that manufacturers will be able to
develop technology and equipment that refiably delivers large quantities of data at a reasonable price. If more
capacity is not added, a
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sufficient market for our products and services is not likely to develop or be sustained and sales of our
preducts and services would decline and our business would suffer,

Because the market for most mobife content delivery and mobile location products is new, our
future success js uncertain.

The market for mobile content delivery and mabile location products and services is new and its potential is
uncertain. In order to be successful, we need wireless network operators to launch and maintain mobite
location services utilizing our products, and need corporate enterprises and individuals to purchase and use
our mobile content delivery and mohile location products and services. We cannot be sure that wireless
carriers or enterprises will accept our products or that a sufficient number of wireless users will ultimately utilize
our products.

If wi s handse ose health an risks, we may be subject fo new requlations
e

Media reports have suggested that certain radio frequency emissions from wireless handsets may be linked
to various health concerns, including cancer, and may interfere with various electronic medical devices,
including hearing aids and pacemakers. Concerns over radio frequency emissions may have the effect of
discouraging the use of wireless handsets, which would decrease demand for our services. In recent years,
the FCC and foreign regulatory agencies have updated the guidelines and methods they use for evaluating
radio frequency emissions from radio equipment, including wireless handsets. In addition, interest groups have
requested that the FCC investigate claims that wireless technologies pose health concerns and cause
interference with airbags, hearing aids and other medical devices. There also are some safety risks associated
with the use of wireless handsets while driving. Concems over these safety risks and the effect of any
legisiation that may be adopted in response to these risks could limit our ability to market and sell our products

and services.
{f we are upable to protect our intellectual property rights or are sued by third parties for infringing
inte incur sy, tia

Our success and competitive position depends in large part upon our ability to develop and maintain the
proprietary aspects of our technology. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark,
trade secret laws, confidentiality provisions and various other contractual provisions to protect our proprietary
rights, but these legal means provide only limited protection. Atthough a number of patents have been issued
to us and we have obtained a number of other patents as a result of our acquisitions, we cannot assure you
that our issued patents will be upheld if challenged by another party. Additionally, with respect to any patent
applications which we have filed, we cannot assure you that any patents will issue as a result of these
applications. If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on the resources
expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive advantage based on it, and we may
be exposed to expensive litigation or risk jeopardizing our competitive position. Similarly, third parties could
claim that our future products or services infringe upon their intellectual property rights. Claims like these could
require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or cause us to lose the right to use critical technology.

Our ability to protect our intellectual property rights is also subject to the terms of any future government
contracts. We cannot assure you that the federal government will not demand greater intellectual property
rights or restrict our ability to dissaminate intellectual property. We are also a member of standards-setting
organizations and have agreed to license some of our intellectual property to other members on fair and
reasonable terms to the extent that the license is required to develop non-infringing products.

Pursuing infringers of our proprietary rights could result in significant litigation costs, and any failure to
pursue infringers could result in our competitors utilizing our technology and offering similar products,
potentially resulting in loss of a competitive advantage and decreased revenues. Despite our efforts to protect
our praprietary rights, existing patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws afford only limited protection.
In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do
the
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Jaws of the United States. Pratecting our know how is difficult especially after our employees or those of our
third party contract service providers end their employment or engagement. Attempts may be made to copy or
reverse-engineer aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as proprietary.
Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent the misappropriation of our technology or prevent others from
developing similar technology. Furthermore, policing the unauthorized use of our products is difficult and
expensive. Litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights or to determine
the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. The costs and diversion of resources could
significantly harm our business. If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on
the resources expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive advantage based on it.

Third parties may glaim we are infringing their intellectual property rights. and we could be

CQ JTOf] 2l il /]

Our competitive position is driven in part by our intellectual property and other proprietary rights. Third
parties, however, may claim that we, our products, operations or any products or technology we obtain from
other parties are infringing their intellectual property rights, and we may be unaware of intellectual property
rights of others that may cover some of our assets, technology and products. From time to time we receive
letters from third parties that allege we are infringing their intellectual property and asking us fo license such
intellectual property. We review the merits of each such letter, none of which has resuited in litigation as of the
date of this report. However, any litigation regarding patents, trademarks, copyrights or intellectual property
rights, even those without merit, could be costly and time consuming, and divert our management and key
personnel from operating our business. The complexity of the technalogy involved and inherent uncertainty
and cost of intellectuat property litigation increases our risks. If any third party has a meritorious or successful
claim that we are infringing its intellectual property rights, we may be forced to change our products or enter
inte licensing arrangements with third parties, which may be costly or impractical. This also may require us to
stop selling our products as currently engineered, which could harm our competitive position. We also may be
subject to significant damages or injunctions that prevent the further development and sale of certain of our
products or services and may result in a material loss of revenue.

We take reasonable steps to protect the security, integrity and confidentiality of the information we collect
and store but there is no guarantee that inadvertent or unauthorized disclosure will not occur or that third
parties will not gain unauthorized access despite our efforts. If such unauthorized disclosure or access does
oceur, we may be required to notify persons whose information was disclosed or accessed under existing and
proposed laws. We alsa may be subject to claims of breach of contract for such disclosure, investigation and
penalties by regulatory autharities and potential claims by persons whose information was disclosed.

Risks Related to Our Capital Structure and Common Stock

majori fass A common s is beneficially owne il number of hol
those holders could thereby transfer control of us to a third party without anyone else’s approval or

prevent a third party from acquiring us.

We have two classes of common stock: Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Holders of
Class A common stock generally have the same rights as holders of Class B common stock, except that
holders of Class A common stock have one vote per share while holders of Class B common stock have three
votes per share. As of January 31, 2008, Maurice B. Tosé, our President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board, beneficially owned 7,301,334 shares of our Class 8 common stock and
1,529,601 shares of our Class A common stock. Therefore, in the aggregate, Mr. Tosé beneficially owned
shares representing approximately 41.21% of our total voting power, assuming no conversion or exercise of
issued and outstanding convertitle or exchangeable securities held by our other shareholdars. Accardingly, on
this basis, Mr. Tosé controls us through
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his ability to determine the outcome of elections of directors, amend our charter and by-laws and take other
actions requiring stockholder action, including mergers, going private transactions and other extraordinary
transactions. Mr. Tosé could, without seeking anyone else’s approval, transfer voting control of us to a third
party. Such a transfer could have a material adverse effect on our stock price, and our business, operating
results and financial condition. Mr. Tosé is also able to prevent a change of control regardless of whether
holders of Class A common stock might benefit financially from such a transaction.

We are a Maryland corporation. Anti-takeover provisions of Maryland law and provisions contained in our
charter and by-laws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, even if a change in
control would be beneficial to shareholders. These provisions include the following:

« authorization of the board of directors to issue “blank check” preferred stock;
+ prohibition of cumulative vating in the election of directors;
+ our classified board of directors;

+ limitation of the persans who may call special meetings of stockholders; and

prohibition on stockholders acting without a meeting other thgn through unanimous written consent:

« supermajority voting requirement on various charter and by-law provisions;

.

establishment of advance notice requirements for naominations for election to the board of directors or for
proposing matters that can be acted on by stackholders at stockholdsr meetings.

These provisions could detay, deter or prevent a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us,
depriving shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for Class A commeon stock. These provisions
could therefore materially adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock,

e this report contains fo rd-fooking statements, it may not prove to be accu

This report, including the documents we incorporate by reference, contains forward-looking statements and
information relating to our company. These statements are based upon TCS’ current expectations and
assumptions that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that would cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated. We generally identify forward-looking statements using words like “believe,”
‘intend,” “expect,” “may,” “should,” “plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate,” or other similar statements. We
base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions we made using information currently available to
us. We do not undertake to update our forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect future events or
circumstances,

Statements in this report that are forward-looking include, but are not limited to, the foliowing statements
that

(i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in
messaging and location determination;,

{ii} we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand
our domestic and international carrier base,

(i) we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business madels and we believe that our
software is positioned for early adoption by carriers,

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable
future,

(v} both the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly,

23

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



(vi) we will continue to develop network softwars for wireless caniers that operate on all major types of
networks;

{vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology to unlock valuable
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers,

{viii} we will continue to invest in our underlying technolegy and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications,

(ix) we intend to continue to selectively pursue acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to
increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base,

(x) the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation expands our
apportunity for SwifiLink sales volume;

(i) we believe our expertise in wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite
communications can be leveraged into the Federal agencies;

(xii} we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of
the evolving environment of satellite communications;

(xiii) we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering;

(xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local govemments, are increasingly contracting with specialist
teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as software development
and systems integration,

{(xv) we expect to realize $84.6 million of backlog within the next twelve months;
(xvi) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete;

(xvii) we believe we have sufficient capital resources to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses,
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve moniths,

(xviii} that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recaverable from future
gross profits generated by the related products,

{xix) we believe our intellectual property assets are valuable and may realized revenue from patent
infringement claims;

(xx) the WWSS contract is expected to contribute to significant sales growth,
{xxi} expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation, and
(3dii) statements about financial covenants related to our loan agreements.

This list should not be considered exhaustive.

Item 1BLinresoived Staff Comments
None.

Item 2Properties

Our principal executive office is located in Annapolis, Maryland in a 27,000 square foot facility under a
lease expiring in March 2008. We have a second 26,000 square foot facility in Annapolis, Maryland under a
lease expiring in April 2008. We are currently negotiating extension of our lease terms. The Annapolis facilities
are utilized for the executive and administrative offices, as well as portions of our Commercial and Government
Segments. Other leased facilities include a 47,500 square foot facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease
expiring in September 2010, an 11,000 square foot facility in Oakland, California under a lease expiring August
2012, and a 32,000 flex-space facility in Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 2015, We also
lease
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a hasting facility in Phoenix, Arizona under a lease that expires in February 2010, which is utilized by our
Commercial Segment.

In addition to the leased office space, we own a 7-acre teleport facility in Manassas, Virginia, and lease
space in Baltimore, Maryland for teleport services for our Government Segment customers.

ltem 3Leqal Proceedings

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the
“Underwriters”). Highstein v. Telecommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Caurt for the
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December &, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers
in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make
additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs
allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters
violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Ruile 10b-6 promulgated thereunder. The ¢laims against us of
violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
20085, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs,
all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope
of the bar order set forih in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the
scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the
settiement, On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the
District Court’s certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the ¢laims that would be settled in the
settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing £n Banc
with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision, and have informed
the District Court that they would like to be heard by the District Coart as to whether the settlement may stifl be
approved even if the decision of the Court of Appeals is not reversed. The District Court indicated that it would
defer consideration of final approval of the settlement pending plaintiffs' request for further appellate review.
We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the settlement has received final approval or the matter is
resolved otherwise. More than 300 other companies have been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have
been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the fawsuit against us, and we believe
that the majority of those companies will participate in the same settlement if approved.

On July 12, 2008, we filed suit in the US District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Mabile 365
(now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement related to
U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only Experience,
issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan Americas, and during the secand
quarter of 2007 we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 infringed the ¢claims of our patent. The
jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million for past damages and a 12% royalty.
The jury aiso found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the validity of the patent. The jury's findings
remain subject to post trial motions. After the judge rules on the post trial motions, either side may appeal to
the US Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. There can be no assurances to what extent the matter will
continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could be subject to counter claims.

In October 2006, two former shareholders of Xypoint Corporation sued the former officers and directors of
that corporation for breach of fiduciary duty and violation of certain Washington state securities and consumer
protection acts when they approved, and recommended that shareholders approve, the merger of Xypoint into
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. The plaintiffs request unspecified damages. The merger agreement from
2001 provided that we would indemnify the officers and directors of Xypoint for a period of six years after the
merger (ending January 2007) for their actions in approving the merger. In December 2006, the complaint was
amended to include TCS and Windward Acquisition Corporation (our acquisition subsidiary), an extinguished
corporation, as defendant. On May 7, 2007, the Honorable Jeffrey M. Ramsdel! of the King County Superior
Court (Washington)
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entered an order dismissing the complaint, with prejudice. On October 19, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an appeal of
the dismissal order with the Washington Court of Appeals. The briefing on plaintiffs appeal is completed, but
no date has been set for the appeal hearing. We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit vigorously. We have
purchased Directors and Officers insurance policies to cover claims against the former officers and directors of
Xypoint and us, and believe that one or more of those insurance policies may cover some or all of the costs of
this lawsuit. On January 4, 2008, we filed suit in the King County Superior Court {Washington) against Great
American Insuranca Gompany for the costs we have incurred in defending the suit and any potential
settlement or judgment. There can be no assurances that the outcome will be favorable to us or that the
insurance policies will be sufficient to cover the costs incurred or any settlement or judgment that may result,

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of our business.

[51 ¢
None.
Part ll
m SMark Istrant’s Common Equit d Stockholder Matter. suer Purchases of
Eguity Securities

Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Globat Market under the symbol “TSYS"
since our initial public offering an August 8, 2000. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
high and low closing prices for our Class A Common Stack as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market:

2007 FL 0
X ir'.s‘t Quarter 2007

Third Quarter 2007
Falirth dUarer2007
2006
Eirstat
econd Quarter 2
Third Qualtet. 2006
Fourth Quarter 2006
As of February 5, 2008, there were approximately 295 holders of record of our Class A Commion Stock, and
there were 8 holders of record of our Class B.Common Stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings to fund the development, growth and operation of our business. Additionally, under the terms of
our loan arrangements, our lender's prior written consent is required to pay cash dividends on our commaon
stock. We do not currently anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
future.

Change in Securities and Use of Proceeds

On January 13, 2004, we closed on $21 million of financing with two accredited institutional investors,
which included a subordinated convertible debenture with stated principal of $15 million, bearing interest at a
stated rate of 3% per annum and due in lump sum on January 13, 2009 {the “Debenture”), 1,364,288 newly
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issuad shares of Class A Common Stock and warrants to purchase 341,072 shares of Class A Common Stock
at a strike price of $6.50 expiring in January 2007. The proceeds were used for acquisition of an Enterprise
division from Aether Systems, Inc. (“Enterprise Acquisition™) The Debenture provided for an original conversion
price of $5.38 per share, subject to adjustment. The Debenture was converted into shares of Class A
Commons Stock in December 2004. The warrants issued in the January 2004 financing described above
contained provisions requiring an adjustment in both the warrant price and the number of warrants outstanding
as a conseguence of the issuance of the new warrants in March 2006. Consequently, the warrants from 2004
were adjusted fo a purchase price of $2.50 per share and the total numbar of January 2004 warrants
outstanding was adjusted to 886,787, In January 2007, the holders of the warrants issued in 2004 exercised
thosa warrants and 886,787 shares were issued.

On March 10, 2006, pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated the same date, we issued and sold to
twa institutional tenders (i) $10 million in aggregate principal amount of secured notes due March 10, 2009,
which bore cash interest at the rate of 14% per annum, or non-cash interest, in the form of additional notes, at
the rate of 16% per annum, at our option, and (i) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,75 million shares of
our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. We received net cash proceeds of
approximately $9.3 million from this transaction, which were used for general corporate purposes.

The consummation of the note purchase agreement and the issuance of notes and warrants thereunder
were conducted as a private placement made to accredited investors in a transaction exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced the $10 million of secured notes with a five year bank term loan, The
horrowing rate under the new term loan is the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (7.5% at December 31,
2007) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. The funds were
used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes.

With the exception of the notes and warrants issued in March 2008, all of the other securities issued by us
in connection with these transactions have been registered under the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s Class A Commaon
Stock with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Global Market U.S. Index and a mobile data index
prepared by the company of the fallowing relevant publicly traded companies in the commercial and
govemment sectors in which we operate: Openwave Systems, Inc.; Sybase, Inc.; Camverse Technology Inc.;
Globecomm Systems Inc.; NCI Inc.; NeuStar, Inc.; Syniverse Holdings, Inc.; and ViaSat Inc. (the “New Peer
Group™)

The caomposition of the Mobile Data Index has been changed from last year {the “Qid Peer Group®) as
follows: Infospace, Inc. sold it's mobile services business to Motricity, Inc., in 2007, and Mapinfo Corp. was
purchased by Pitney Bowes in 2007. Both companies were removed from the index. ViaSat Inc. was added to
the remaining companies to comprise the *“New Peer Group” because its satellite services business is
comparable to our Government Segment business.

The information provided is from January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2007. The graph for the "Old Peer
Group" may not be meaningful because there is no 2007 data available for companies which are no longer
publicly traded and the data for the remaining companies in the "Old Peer Group” therefore may not be
comparably batanced for 2007 when compared to prior years.

This performance graph shalt not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except
as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing, The stock price performance shown on the
graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price perfomance.
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Itemy 6Sefected Financial Data

The table that follows presents portions of our consolidated financial statements. You should read the
fallowing selected financial data together with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related
hotes and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
the more complete financial information included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We have derived the statement
of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 and the balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Emst &
Young LLP, mdepenclent registered public accounting firm, and which are included in Item 15 of this
Form 10-K. We have derived the statement of aperations data for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, from our audited financial
statements which are not included in this Form 10-K. The historical results presented below are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any future fiscal year. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." As a result of implementation of SFAS 123(R), our non-cash
stock compensation expense has been allocated to direct cost of revenue, research and development
expense, sales and marketing expense, and general and administrative expense in our continuing operations
as well as discontinued operations as detailed in Note 2 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Farm 10-K.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

{in millions, except share and per share data)

Statdmeiitor.ObeFatich

Revenue

,.D irect cost of serw‘cesr ei(
< DirseteBstof SYSIERS revéii

_Total dlrect cost of revenue

. Systems gross profit
LSBTl A0S SDIOnE s o

Research and development expense

sﬁu[e&%%arkﬁzmm‘eﬁé

mtang|ble asse}s

ETHBOPErATY S5t

income loss) fro

IntetestExpense’

Amortization of debt discount and debt
issuance expenses, including $2,458
wnte—off in 2007

i '(23'7) \
TiRiD 5T

om discontinued operations per

share ] (0.01) __ (0.59) (0.19) {0.08) —
Netloss per shars -~ diluted : -0 77§ (0.03)" §° (054) $ —(030) ‘§ (0:56)" § _(045)
Basic shares used in computation (in
thousands) ) 41 453 35,430 38,823 33,381 29,796
Dttuted shares’ sed in oomput i "*('_n;» : e N TR e VA e
. thousands) ' 41 453 - 40,166 - 38,8237 . 33,3B1ui 129,796
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As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

{in millions)

Balance $heet Da
Cash and cash equivalents
capita

Working
!

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going
basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments. Our most significant estimates relate to accounting
for our percentage-of-completion and proportional performance contracts, accounts receivable reserves,
inventory value, evaluating goodwill for impairment, the realizability and remaining useful lives of long-lived
assets, and contingent liabilities. Management bases its estimates and judgments on historical experience and
on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We identified our most critical accounting policies to be those related to revenue recognition for our
contracts with multiple elements, revenue recognition for our contracts accounted for using the
percentage-of-completion and proportional performance methads, capitalized software development costs,
acquired intangible assets, goodwill impairment, stock compensation expense, and income taxes. We describe
these accounting policies in relevant sections of this discussion and analysis. This discussion and analysis
should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere
in this report.

Overview and Recent Developments

We operate two business segments: (i) aur Commaercial Segment, which consists principally of enhanced
communication services to and from wireless phones, location application software, our ES-1-1 application and
other hosted services for wireless carriers and Voice Over [P service providers, and (i) our Govemment
Segmenit, which includes the design, development and deployment of information processing and
communication systems and related services to government agencies.

During 2005 and 2004, we operated three business units comprising an Enterprise division which was part
of our Comrmercial Segment. As of December 31, 2005, as a result of management's strategic decision to
focus on our carrier and govemment markets, we committed to a plan to sell the Enterprise division. Two of the
units were subscriber businesses, which sold BlackBerry® services and pravided real-time financial market
data to wireless device users under annual subscriber contracts in the U.S. and Europe, and a wireless data
solutions for mabile asset management business. The two subscriber business units were sold effective
January 1, 2007 to two different buyers, as more fully described in Note 2 — Enterprise Assets-Discontinued
Operations to the Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The third unit was sold in May 2007. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and resuits of operations
for the Enterprise assets have been ciassified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the
Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations provides
information that our management believes to be necessary to achieve a clear understanding of our financial
statements and results of operations.

Our management monitors and analyzes a number of performance indicators in order to manage our
business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators include:

Revenue and gross profit. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services including recurring
monthly service and subscriber fees, software licenses and related service fees for the design,
development, and deployment of software and communication systems, and products and services
derived from the delivery of information processing and communication systems to governmental
agencies. ’

Gross profit represents revenue minus direct cost of revenue, including certain non-cash expenses. The
major items comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefits, third-party hardware and
software, amortization of software development costs, non-cash stock-based compensation, and
overhead expenses, The costs of hardware and third-party software are primarily associated with the
delivery of systems, and fluctuate from period to period as a result of the relative velume, mix of projects,
level of service suppart required and the complexity of customized products and services delivered.
Amortization of software development costs, including acquired technology, is assaciated with the
recognition of systems revenue from our Commercial Segment.

Operating expenses. Qur operating expenses are primarily compensation and benefits, profassional fees,
facility costs, markating and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as weil as certain non-cash
expenses such as non-cash stock compensation expense, depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment, and amortization of acquired intangible assets.

Liguiaity and cash flows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the resuits of our operations. Important
other sources of our liquidity have been cash raised from our 2007 debt refinancing as described below
under “Liquidity and Capital Resources”, borrowings under our bank credit agreement, and lease
financings secured for the purchase of equipment.

Bafance sheet. We view cash, working capital, and accounts receivable balances and days revenues
outstanding as important indicators of our financial health.
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Results of Operations
Revenue and Cost of Revenue

The following discussion addresses the revenue and cost of revenue for the two segments of aur business.
For information regarding the results of the Enterprise assets, see Discontinued Operations — Enterprise
assets below.

Commercial Segment:

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
2006 2005

[$ In millions)
Systems revenue X
i Total Corimercial Segment:revenue 12 2175.:
Direct cost of service
Dirgct cost of Systems
Total Commercial Segment cost of
revenue

)% 31.6
A%

Sedment groSs profit as a percent of
revenue 54% 52% 52%

* See discussion of seqment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements presented
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. (NM = Not meaningful)

Commercial Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

Our hosted offerings include our E9-1-1 service for wireless and Voice Over IP service providers, hosted
Position Determining Entity (PDE) service, and hosted Location Based Service (LBS) applications. Revenue
from these offerings primarily consists of monthly recursing service fees and is recognized in the month
earned. E9-1-1, PDE, VoIP and hosted LBS service fees are priced based on units served during the period,
such as the number of customer cell sites served, the number of connections to Public Service Answering
Points (PSAPS), or the number of custamer subscribers served. In 2008, we expedited deployment of
connections to PSAPs for VoIP and ES-1-1 service, and continued to increase the number of carriers and
carrier billable units served. In addition, we increased revenue from our VoIP ES-1-1 and hosted LBS recurring
services primarily due to new service contracts signed in mid-2005. These increases were partially offset by
decreases in the average fee received per unit under pricing arrangements with some customers and the loss
of a mid-tier wireless camier customer during the third quarter of 2006. Subscriber service revenue is
generated by client software applications for wireless subscribers such as Rand McNally® Traffic. Maintenance
fees on aur systems and software licenses are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the
maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are included in deferred revenue. Custom software
development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and materials or
fixed-fee contracts.

Overall, commercial services revenue decreased 2% in 2007 from 2006, as the effect of decreases in
average fees received per unit under pricing arrangements with some wireless E9-1-1 customers, and the loss
of a mid-tier carrier customer in the third quarter of 2006 offset increased maintenance revenue on our
installed software base. The 10% increase in 2006 over 2005 was due to increases in maintenance revenue
from our installed base of commarcial systems, along with an increase in revenue from ES-1-1 services to
Voice over IP service providers, which more than offset a smalt decrease in revenue from E8-1-1 services to
wireless carrier customers.
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The direct cost of our services revenue consists primarily of network access, data feed and circuit costs,
compensation and benefits, equipment and software maintenance. The direct cost of maintenance revenue
consists primarily of compensation and benefits expense. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the direct
cost of services revenue decreased 6%. During 2007, we incurred less labor and direct costs related to custom
development efforts and deployment requirements of VolP ES-1-1 infrastructure, For the year ended
December 31, 2008, the direct cost of services revenue increased 21%, principally because we increased
labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts responding to customer requests and depltoyment
requirements for VoIP. While we increased the number of cell sites, subscribers and public safety answering
paints (PSAPs) served, our overall circuit and data access costs were relatively consistent year to year. For
2007, the cost of circuit and other data access costs accounted far approximately 15% of total direct costs of
hosted, subscriber, and maintenance revenues. The cost of circuit and other data access costs accounted for
approximately 11% and 13% of the total direct costs of our commercial hosted, subscriber, and maintenance
revenues for 2006 and 2005 respectively. Also, $1.1 million, $0.8 million, and nil of non-cash stock
compensation cost is included in the direct cost of commercial services revenue in 2007, 20086, and 2005
respectively.

Commercial services gross profit in 2007 was 4% higher than 2006 based on improved operating
efficiencies. Commercial services gross profit in, 2006 was about equal to that in 2005 ($28.3 million), as a
slightly lower average margin offset the effect of 10% higher revenue.

Commercial Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue

We sell communications systems for enhanced services, including messaging and location-based services,
to wireless carriers. These systems are designed to incorporate our licensed software. We design our software
to ensure that it is compliant with all applicable standards, including the GSM/UMTS standards for
location-based wireless services that were established in 2005 and, as such, we believe our software is
positioned for early adoption by carriers.

Licensing fees for our carrier software are generally a function of its volume of usage in our customer’s
networks. As a carrier's subscriber base or usage increases, the carrier must purchase additional capacity
under its license agreement and we receive additional revenue. Systems revenues typically contain multiple
elements, which may include the product license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement
fee is allocated among each element based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the relative fair value of
each of the elements. Fair value is generally determined based on the price charged when the element is sold
separately. In the absence of evidence of fair value of a delivgred elament, revenue is allocated first to the
undelivered elements based on fair value and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software
licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a specified volume of usage, along with the purchase of annual
maintenance at a specified rate. We recognize license fee revenue when each of the following has occurred:
(1) evidence of an arrangement is in place; (2) we have delivered the software; (3) the fee is fixed or
determinable; and (4) collection of the fee is probable. Software projects that require significant customization
are accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method. We measure progress to completion using
costs incurred compared to estimated total costs or labor costs incurred compared to estimated total labor
costs for contracts that have a significant component of third-party materials costs. We recognize estimated
losses under long-term contracts in their entirety upon discovery. If we did not accurately estimate total costs
to complete a contract or do not manage our contracts within the planned budget, then future margins may be
negatively affected or losses on existing contracts may need to be recognized. Software license fees bifled and
not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue. We may also realize license revenue as a result
of infringement claims that we make in enforcing our patents. In 2006, we reached a settlement on a patent
infingement case and won a jury award of more than $10 million in another infringement case; no revenue has
been recognized on the second case pending post trial motions, appeals, and potential setlement.

Systems revenug in 2007 was 4% lower than in 2006 due mainly to lower sales of text messaging capacity.
Systems ravenue in 2006 was 47% higher than in 2005, mainly as a result of higher messaging and location
system license sales. The direct cost of commercial systems consists primarily of compensation, benefits,
purchased equipment, third-party software, travel expenses, and consulting fees as well as the amortization of
both acquired and capitalized software development costs for all reported periods. The direct cost of the
license
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compenent of systems is nommally very low, and the gross profit very high since the software development
efforts were expansed or capitalized in prior periods, The direct costs of systems includes amortization of

software development costs of $1.5 miflion, $1.3 miflion, and $0.8 million, respectively, in 2007, 2006, and
2008.

Qur commercial systems gross profit was $11.5 million in 2007, a 4% or $0.5 million decrease from 2006.
Commercial systems gross profit was $12.0 million in 2006, more than double the $6.0 million in 2005.
Systems gross margins are higher in periods when systems revenue includes a higher proportion of software
licenses relative to third party system components and integration labor, as was the case in 2006. The lower
revenue and related gross profitin 2005 was due to later than expected implementation of location-based
service technology by wireless carriers. .

Government Segment:
2007 vs. 2006 vs.
2006 2005
in milllons)
Sefvices reventien

Direct cost of services e
DIEEoRISYSETERE R RTE

Tolal Gevernment Segment cast of
Aol ST
ServicesGross piont
Systems gross profit

I CovBimi
orofittit
Segment gross profit as a percent

of revenue 19% 30% 30%

* See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements presented
efsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We provide government products and services under long-term contracts, We recoghize contract revenue
as billable costs are incurred and for fixed-price product delivery contracts using the percentage-of-completion
method or proportional performance method, measured by either total labor costs or total costs incurred
compared to total esiimated labor costs or total costs to be incurred. We recognize estimatad losses on
contracts in their entirety upon discovery. If we did not accurately estimate total labor costs or total costs to
complete a contract or do not manage our contracts within the planned budget, then our future margins may be
negatively affected or losses on existing contracts may need to be recognized. Under our contracts with the
U.S. govemment, contract costs, including the allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment
by the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA}. Since the company's inception, no significant adjustment has
resulted from a DCAA audit. We record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts.

For 2007, Government Segment revenue increased 44% reflecting increases in both services and systems
revenue. For 2006, Government Segment revenue increased 32% reflecting increases in both services and
systems revenue, During the third quarter of 2008, we were one of six vendors selected by the U.S. Army to
provide secure satellite services and systems under a five year contract vehicle, with a possible maximum
value of up to $5 bilfion for the six vendors. This new Worldwide Sateliite Services contract vehicle is expected
to contribute to significant government systems sales growth over the next five years. The company's
Government Segment has been awarded participation as a prime or sub-cantractor to provide similar
satellite-based technology under several other contract vehicles. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the
company was awarded 10 contracts under the VWVSS vehicle with a total contract value of $107.5 million, of
which $28.3 million was fulfiled resulting in 2007 revenue. The total backlog for this vehicle was $79.2 million
of which $10.9 million was funded.
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Government Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

Government services revenue primarily consists of communications engineering, program management,
help desk outsource, network design and management for government agencies. Our Government Segment
also operates teleport facilities for data connectivity via satellite. Most such services are delivered under time
and materials contracts.

Government services revenue increased to $29.3 million in 2007 from $28.6 million in 2006 and
$20.8 million in 2005, These increases in 2007 and 2006 were generated by new and expanded-scope
contracts resulting from increased sales emphasis on communications and information technology service
work, and increased revenue generated from satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities and in some
cases associated with our systems sales, Continuing growth is expected from higher usage of our teleport
related services and continuing incremental additions of technical outsource service personnel. Also, we offer
basic and extended maintenance contracts on our systems. These maintenance fees are collected in advance
and recognized ratably over the maintenance periods.

Direct cost of government service revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel incurred in
delivering these services, and these costs increased as a result of the increased services volume in 2007 and
2006. Also, as a result of the implementation of SFAS 123(R), $0.7 million in 2007, $0.5 million in 2006, and nit
in 2005 of non-cash stock compensation cost is included in the direct cost of revenye.

Our gross profit from gavernment services decreased to $6.5 million 2007, from $7.5 million in 2006, and
$7.4 million in 2005. Despita higher revenue, gross profit declined due to the lower average margins as a result
of tighter average pricing in 2007, and due to competition for the contracts as they were renewed or newly
won. During 2005, our government services contract mix included some work with unusually favorable pricing,
and similar contracts were not part of the revenue mix in 2006 and 2007. :

Govemment Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and deployment of
information processing and communication systems, primarily deployable communications systems, which are
largely variations on our SwiftLink® product line, and integration of those systems into customer networks.
Swiftlink® systems are secure, deployable commenications systems, sold mainly to units of the
U.S. Departments of Defense, State, and Justice, as well as to other agencies. We recognize contract revenue
as billable costs are incurred, and for fixed-price product delivery contracts using the percentage-of-completion
method or proportional performance method, measured by either total labor costs, total costs incurred or units
shipped compared to total estimated labor costs, costs incurred, or units as appropriate under the contract. We
recognize estimated losses on contracts in their entirety upon discovery.

Government systems sales increased to $39.6 million in 2007 from $19.3 million in 2006 and $15.5 million
in 2005. The 2006 and 2007 variations in systems revenues were primarily due to increases in the volume of
unit sales of our SwiftLink® and deployable communications systems resulting from competitive wins, largely
under the World Wide Satellite Systems Army procurement vehicle,

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of compensation, benefits, travel, satellite “space
segment” and airtime, costs related to purchased equipment components, and the costs of third-party
contractors that we engage. These equipment and third-party costs are variable for our various types of
products, and margins may fluctuate between periods based on the respective preduct mixes.

Our government systems gross profit was the same at $6.7 million in 2007 and 2008 and increased from
$3.5 million in 2005 primarily due to higher volume. In 2007, the effect of lower margins was offset by an
increase aver 2006 volume,
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Operating Expenses:

Research and Development Expense:

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
2006 2005
{$ In millions) 2007 2006 $ % 2005 $ %
Research and development expense $ 1341 $ 126 $ 05 4% $ 139 $ (1.3) (9%
Percent of revenue 9% 10% 14%

Our research and development expense consists of compensation, benefits, travel costs, and a
proportionate share of facilities and corporate overhead. The casts of developing software products are
expensed prior to establishing technological feasibility. Technological feasibility is established for our software
products when a detailed program design is completed. We incur research and development costs to enhance
existing packaged software products as well as to create new software products including software hosted in
our network operations center. These costs primarily include compensation and benefits as well as costs
associated with using third-party laboratory and testing resources. We expense such costs as they are
incurred unless technological feasibility has been reached and we believe that the capitalized costs will be
recoverable.

The expenses we incur relate to software applications which are being marketed to new and existing
customers on a global basis. Throughout 2007 and 2006, research and development was primarily focused on
cellular and hosted location-based applications, including Voice over IP E9-1-1, enhancements to our hosted
location-based applications and enhancements to our hosted location-based service platform and to our
wireless text messaging software. Management continually assesses our spending on research and
development to ensure resources are focused on products that are expected to achieve the highest level of
success. In 2007, we capitalized $1.5 million of software development costs for certain software projects in
accordance with the above palicy. The capitalized costs relate to our software for wireless location-based
services. These costs are being amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method aver
the products, estimated useful life, not fonger than three years, Amortization is also computed using the ratio
that current revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product
(the revenue curve method). If this reveriue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Amortization of
software development costs is recorded as a direct cost of revenue. We believe that these capitalized costs
will be recaoverable from future gross profits generated by these products. Prior to the second quarter of 2005,
our estimates did not sufficiently demonstrate future realizability of our software development costs expended
on such products; and accordingly, all such costs were expensed as incurred.

Research and development expense increased 4% in 2007 from 2006. This increase is mainly due to more
company personnel assigned to software development work during 2007 than in 2006. The 9% decrease in
research and development costs in 2006 as compared ta 2005 is mainly due to fewer company personnel
assigned to software development work. Also, due to the implementation of SFAS 123(R), we included
$0.9 million, $0.6 million, and nil of non-cash stock compensation costs in research and development costs in
2007, 2006, and 2005 respectively.

Our research and development expenditures have yielded more than 50 patents, primarily for wireless
messaging and location technology, and approximately 190 pending patent applications. We believe that the
intellectual property represented by these patents is a valuable asset that will contribyte positively to our
results of operations in 2008 and beyond.

Sales and Marketing Expense:

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
2006 2005
($ In millions) 2007 2006 $ % 2005 $_ %
Sales and marketing expense $ 19 $ 117 $ 02 2% $ 105 $ 12 11%
Percent of revenue 8% 9% 10%
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Qur sales and marketing expense includes(compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, travel costs,
advertising and public relations costs as well as a proportionate share of facility-related costs which are
expensed as incurred. Our marketing efforts also include speaking engagements, and attending and
sponsoring industry conferences. We sell our software products and services through our direct sales force
and through indirect channels. We also leverage our relationships with original equipment manufacturers to
market our software products to wireless carrier customers. We sell our products and services to agencies and
departments of the U.S. gavernment primarily through direct sales professionals. Sales and marketing costs
increased 2% and 11% in 2007 and 2006 respectively, primarily as a result of adding additional Government
Segment sales personnel, and increased public relations fees. This was offset by reductions in senior sales
and marketing executive staff costs.

General and Administrative Expense:

2007 vs. 2006 2006 v8, 2005
{8 in millions) 2007 2006 $ % 2005 $ %
General and administrative expense $ 19.3 § 170 $ 23 14% § 15.0 $ 20 13%
Percent of revenue 13% 14% 15%

General and administrative expense consists primarily of costs associated with management, finance,
human resources and internal information systems. These costs include compensation, benefits, professional
fees, travel, and a proportionate share of rent, utilities and other facilities costs which are expensed as
fneurred. The increases in both 2007 and 2006 were primarily attributable to higher legal and advisory fees
associated with intellectual property related activity. G&A expense included $0.8, $0.7, and $0.7 million of
non-cash stock compensation 2007, 2008, and 2005, respectively.

Depreciation and Amortization of Property and Equipment:

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005
($ in millions} 2007 2006 $ % 2005 $ %
Depreciation and amortization of property
and equipment § 62 §$ 80 § (1.8 (23)% § 86 § (06) 7%
Average gross cost of property and
equipment $§ 503 % s20 § (17 (% § 474 § 46 10%

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs associated with our
investment in information technology and telecommunications equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, and
leasehold improvements. We compute dapreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset generally ranges from five years for
furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to three years for most other types of assets including
computers, software, telephone equipment and vehicles. Our depreciable asset base has decreased as a
result of assets purchased in previous years becoming fully depreciated. In the second quarter of 2006, a
review of experience with equipment and software used in our service bureau operations, led us to adjust their
average asset lives from three years to four years on a prospective basis. Depreciation expense in 2006 was
$0.4 million less than it would have been if the shorter lives had been used.

Amartization of Acquired intangible Assets:

2007 vs. 2006 vs.
2006 2005
{$ in millions) 2007 2006 $ % 2005 $ %
Amortization of acquired intangible assets $ 01 $ 041 $ — NM $ 02 § (0.9) (50%)

The acquired intangible assets associated with the Kivera Acquisition are being amortized over their useful
lives of between three and nineteen years. The expense recognized in 2007, 2006, and 2005 relates to the
intangible assets acquired in this acquisition, including customer lists, customer contracts, trademarks, and
patents.
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Interest Expense:

2007 vs 2006 vs.
2006 2005

($ in millions)

Jreredit.agreenm G ;0.8
Interest expense incurred on capital
lease obligations 02 0.3 ©1n  @33% 0.3
Amortization.of déféfted financiig fees . 7 "0.377. . 0.4 8% 08 “{0.4)
Amortization of debt discount 1.0

&0t of | iized debt U

0y __= — 1
NE 34 318 - 58%E 28 TG RS8R

Interest expense is incurred under notes payable, an equipment loan, a line of credit, and capital lease
obligations. Interest on notes, is primarily at stated interest rates of between 7.75% and 10.35% and line of
credit borrowing is at the bank’s prime rate, which was 7.25% as of December 31, 2007.

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced the $10 million secured notes with a new five year term loan payable to
our principat bank. The borrowing rate under the new term loan is the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (7.5%
at December 31, 2007) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest.
The funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. This refinancing resulted in the
$2.4 million write—off of unamortized debt discount and debt issuance expenses in the second quarter of 2007.

{in March 2008, we issued $10 million of secured notes, with cash interest at the rate of 14% per annum,
along with warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an
exercise price of $2.40 per share (2006 Warrants). In December 2006, we borrowed $5 million under 3 year
notes secured by accounts receivable of one customner.

Our bank line of credit expires in June 2010, and our maximum line of credit is $22 million, subject to
borrowing base limitations and working capital metrics. There were no borrowings outstanding under our line of
credit at December 31, 2007.

Cash interest expense on notes payable was slightly higher for the year ended December 31, 2007 than in
2006 mainly due to the effect of the higher priced March 2006 debt while it was outstanding. The interest
incurred on the March 2006 notes, partially offset by reduced average principal balances on our revolving
credit and other notes payable, has caused our total interest expense to be higher in 2006 than it was in 2005.

Deferred financing fees relate to the up-front expenditures at the ime of contracting for notes payable and
our revolving line of credit facility, which are being amortized over the term of the note or the life of the facility.

The amortization of debt discount relates to the 2006 Warrants as well as adjustment to the terms of
warrants issued in connection with 2004 financings. The value of the 2006 Warrants was estimated to be
$2.9 million, determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which was recorded as a debt discount
and additiona! paid-in capital in 2004. The value of the adjustments to the 2004 Warrants was estimated to be
$0.6 miltion using the Black-Schales option-pricing model, which was recorded as a debt discount and
additional paid-in capital in the first quarter of 2006, The total debt discount at issuance was being amortized to
interest expense over the three year life of the 2006 Notes, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%.
Amortization expense in 2006 includes $1.0 million associated with the March 2006 notes. There was no
comparable expense in 2005.

Our capital lease obligations include interest at various amounts depending on the lease amangement. Our
interest under capital leases fluctuates depending on the amount of capital lease obligations in each year, and
the interest under those leases, has remained relatively constant since 2006. The interest cost of capital lease
financings was about the same in the years ending December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005.
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Deferred financing fees relate to the up-front payment of fees to secure our notes payabie and our revolving
line of credit facility. All other deferred financing fees are being amortized over the terms of the nates or, in the
case of the amended line of credit, the life of the facility, which now expires in June 30, 2010.

Our interest and financing expense increased in 2007 over 2006 due mainly to the write-off of the
amortization of debt discount and financing fees associated with the refinancing of our March 2006 debt. Qur
interest and financing expense increased in 2006 over 2005 due mainly to the issuance of the 14% March
2006 notes and 2006 Warrants.

Other (Expense)lincome, Net:

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005

{$ In miltions) 2007 2006 $ %

liscellaneaus other (expense)/ income
Totalpther (Bxbenselfincome, et !
Other (expense)/income, net consists of interest earned on investment accounts and foreign currency

translation/transaction gain or loss. We record the effects of foreign currency translation on our cash
receivables and deferred revenues that are stated in cutrencies other than our functional currency.

fncome Taxes:

Because we have incurred net losses since 1999, no provision for federal or state income taxes has been
made for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005. As a result of uncertainties regarding the
realizability of the related assets, we have recorded a full valuation allowance for our deferred tax assets in our
audited Consolidated Financial Statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our net
operating loss carryforwards from acquired businesses will begin to expire in 2011 and the net operating loss
carryforwards from our operations will expire from 2019 through 2026.

Discontinued Operations:

(

In 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in our
Commercial Segment. The operations and cash flows of the business have been eliminated from those of
continuing operations and the Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal
transactions. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets have been
classified as discontinued operations for alt periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets {Statement No. 144).

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies and eam-out arrangements. The Mobile Finance
unit, including its U.S. and European operations, was sold to Stockgroup Information Systems, Inc. for
1.5 million shares of common stock. Assets of the Mobile Office unit, doing business as mobeo®, were
acquired by MobilePro Corporation for 9 million shares of common stock. During May 2007, the last Enterprise
unit was sold to TPA Acquisition Carporation for $4 million in cash of which $0.2 million is in escrow, a
$1 million 18-month note, and $0.2 million in equity interest of this privately held company.
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The following tabie presents income statement data for the Enterprise division, currently reported as
discontinued operations. The 2005 results were previously reported as part of the results of our Commercial
Segment.

2007 vs.
2006 2006 vs. 2005
{$ In millions) 2007 2006 $ % 2005

58T $.0260° 8 (204) (78)%)1

45 §_ (B0 (2%

Total reveniie
Total gross profit
LossHfron dise
‘“includin
ot §15.5'millio)

2006 vs. 2005

(8 In millions) %
Ay e (<A o

%
i

irect ¢ services (24
GEEORTOf systems x|
Entqrp(i§g cost of revenue (}

§ Gross profite. - A

< LEnterinseorossorofilgct:
Research and development, sales, marketing, and general
and administrative erses
T T T
Write-down of goodwill and other long-lived assets
FEosF frontdiscontintisd dparations £

Lower volume and resulting lower gross profit in 2006 from Enterprise operations resulted from losses of
subscribers to next generation networks from data-only and pager networks, and new subscriptions to our
offerings were fewer than churn from our old technology network offerings. Enterprise systems revenue and
gross profit grew in 2006 due to larger project volume. We sustained development spending to preserve the
then pending business sale, and incurred other expenses in 2006 in connection with European staffing
reductions. In accordance with the relevant accounting literature, we ceased depreciation and amortization of
the long-lived enterprise assets when they became classified as discontinued operations in 2005. In 2006, we
recorded an impairment charge of $15.5 million to write-down the value of goodwill and other long lived assets
to its estimated fair value.

Net Loss:
2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005
{$ in_millions) 2007 2006 % 2008 $ %

Net loss changes for each year are as a result of the discussions above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes our comparative statements of cash flow:
{$ in millions) 2007
Net cashiand cashiequivalents provided by (usediin): . . -

)

nvestin
&j s

rivesting:activities.for.contining operations -y o Lo T @)

tnvesting activities for discontinued operations 4.0
SSNETRVESRG Actities U i e
Financing activities: =~ :
SPaimeritsidebtand ledse (16.0)

Proceeds from/(finance fees related to

viies from continuing operations
EffeCt ] <fafeS fiom disGantinled operations ., = 5i
Change in cash and cash vgﬂg_piygl,gan‘t;g from c_grgﬂginuirl%éopera_tionsr

ChangeTTEasTTAd gashiEquvalents from; discontintiéd operations

,Nf"t change in cash and czigt;

e IISHENdIY i aceounts receivable inclu
Capital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using

cash generated by our operations, as well as the net proceeds from investor capital including:

* June 2007 bank term loan borrowing of $10 million to refinance March 2006 secured notes, at lower
COUpPON rate.

« March 2006 issuance of secured notes and warrants (described below) which generated net cash
proceeds of approximately $9.3 mittion,

+ December 2006 issuance of a $5 million note for a term of three years secured by accounts receivable of
a customer.

+ Capital leases to fund fixed asset purchases.

r of cash. The company’s cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately
$16 million at December 31, 2007, a $5.6 million increase from $10.4 million at December 31, 2006.

Operations: Cash generated by continuing operations decreased to $9.1 million in 2007 from $13.0 million
in 2006 and increased from $8.0 million in 2005 due to fluctuations in working capital. Discontinued operations
used $3.6 million, $8.0 million, and $3.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The operations and cash
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flows of the discontinued operations have been eliminated from those of continuing operations and the
Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal transaction.

Investing activities: Fixed asset additions in 2007, 2008, and 2005 were $2.6, $2.8, and $4.6 miillion
respectively. Also, investments were made in development of carrier software for resale which had reached the
stage of development calling for capitalization, in the amounts approximately $2.0 million each year.
Discontinued operations generatad $4 million from the sale of assets in 2007. Investments were made during
2005 and 2008 in discontinued operations primarily for enhancements to the core software for resale by the
mobile asset management unit.

Financing activities: On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10 million of secured notes with a five year bank
term loan. The borrowing rate under the new term loan was prime plus 0.25% per annum (7.5% at
December 31, 2007) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 million plus interest. The
funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. In March 2006, we issued (i) $10 million of
secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14% per annum, and (i) warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. Also,
some warrants that we had previously issued in 2004 contained provisions which required an adjustment in
both the warrant price and the number of warrants outstanding as a consequence of the issuance of 2006
Warrants. The resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was $6.5 million, net of the original discount of
$3.5 miflion which was amortized to interest expense over its three-year temm using the effective interest
method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15,2%. The remaining unamartized debt discount and deferred
debt issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second quarter of 2007 as a result of early
retirement of the March 2006 note.

We have a $22 million revalving credit line with our principal bank through June 2010. Upon amendment of
our agreement with the bank in the second guarter of 2007, the berrowing rate was reduced to the bank's
prime rate, which was 7.25% per annum at December 31, 2007. Borrowings at any time are limited based
mainly on accounts receivable levels and a working capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of credit
agreement. The line of credit available is also reduced by the amount of letters of credit outstanding, which
was $2.9 million at December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, we had no borrowings outstanding under
our bank line of credit and had approximately $11 miflion of unused borrowing avaitability under the line.

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants including, among others,
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the
ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The bank credit agreement also
contains a subjective covenant that requires {i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or
financial condition of our Company occur, or (i) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any
portion of the bank credit agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders security
interests in the collateral of the bank credit agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with
any of our restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be
no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. As of December 31, 2007, we were in comgpliance with the
covenants related to our line of credit and term loan agreement and we believe that the Company will continue
to comply with these covenants.

On December 28, 2006, we issued a $5 million note for a term of three years, with cash interest at 10.35%
per annum, secured by accounts receivable of one customer to an institutional lender, Scheduled payments for
term debt, leases, and net reduction of our revolver borrowings totaled $16.0 million during 2007.

During 2005, we made $6 million of scheduled payments under term debt and capital lease obligations
while making a small net increase in borrowings under our line of credit.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had standby letters of credit totaling approximately $2.9 million at year-end 2007 and $3.8 million at
year-end 2006 in support of processing credit card payments from our customers, as collateral with a vendar,
and security for office space.

Contractual Commitments

As of December 31, 2007, our most significant commitments (including interest) consisted of long-term
debt, obligations under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases. We lease certain furniture and
computer equipment under capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases. As of December 31, 2007 our commitments consisted of the following:

($_in miltions) 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012 Beyond Total

) T R W SRR R R ety Hds
2.0 16 0.2
SR e

3 12.7 $

Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreemeant with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of
relocating our Annapalis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Exscytive
Officer own a controliing voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at
the sole discretion of pur Board of Directors if the tarms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive lease at this
new development site.

t: fitati titats isclosure. Market Ris.
Intarest Rate Risk

We have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As discussed above
under “ltem 7, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources,” we have a $22 miliion line of credit. A hypothetical 100 basis point adverse
movement (increase) in the prime rate would have increased our interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2007 by approximately $0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact an our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

At December 31, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents of $16.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents
consisted of demand deposits and money market accounts that are interest rate sensitive. However, these
investments have short maturities mitigating their sensitivity to interest rates, A hypothetical 100 basis paint
adverse movement (decrease) in interest rates would have increased our net loss for 2007 by approximately
$0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Foreign Currency Risk

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we generated $5.6 million of revenue outside the U.S. A maijority
of our transactions generated outside the U.S. are denominated in U.S. dolfars and a change in exchange
rates would not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2007,
we had
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appraximately $0.1 mitlion in unbilled receivables that are denominated in foreign currencies and would be
exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. As of December 31, 2007, we did not have billed accounts
receivable that would expose us to foreign currency exchange risk. During 2007, our average receivables and
deferred revenue subject to foreign currency exchange risk were $0.1 million and $0.6 million, respectively. We
recorded transaction losses of less than $0.1 million on foreign currency denominated receivables and
deferred revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Item 8Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements listed in ltem 16 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on
page F-1.

I i 1 ntan { nd Fi ial Di
None,

ALontrols and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision and with the participation of cur management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclasure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable
assurance of achieving their control objectives.

Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) were
effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated te our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal Control -Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cammission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007, Management reviewed
the results of their assessment with our Audit Committee. The effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by Erst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in Iltem 8 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2007, that are materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited TeleCommunication Systems Inc.’s infernal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issuad by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
TeleCommunication Systems Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financiai reporting
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Contral over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal control aver financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal cantrol over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any avaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, TeleCommunication Systems Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consoclidated statements of operations, stockholders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion therean. :

fs! Emst & Young LLP

Battimore, Maryland
February 29, 2008
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Part il

{tein 10Directors . Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance

The information required by this ftem 10 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Board of Directors” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” to be included in
the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, to be held on June 12, 2008 (the “Proxy Statement”). The Company’s Code of Ethics and
Whistleblower Procedures may be found at http:/Avww.telecomsys.com/investorinfo/corpgovemance. ¢fm.

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Board of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” to be included in the Proxy Statement. -

2 i wit ip of in Benefici. ner: n

The information required by this ltem 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owtiers and Management® to be included in the Proxy Statement.

13Certain Relati Ips and Related Transactions and Director ! ndenc

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and “General Information Concerning the Board of Directors”
to be included in the Proxy Statement.
tem 14Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this ltem 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Principal Accountant Fees and Services” to be included in the Proxy Statement.
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Part IV

tem hibits, Financial ment Schedules
(a}{1) Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on
page F-1.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedule required by ltem 15 is included in Exhibit 12 to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Exhibits
The exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We havs audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of aperations,
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. Qur
audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at ltem 15. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. For the year ended December 31, 2005, we did not audit the
financial statements of TeleCommunication Systems {Holdings) Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary, which
statements reflect a net loss, which represents 25 percent of the consolidated loss from discontinued
operations for the year ended December 31, 2005. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd., is based salely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditars, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of TeleCommunication
Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consalidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all matarial respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2006, the Company
changed its method of accounting for stock-based compensation in accordance with guidance provided in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 29, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

fs! Emnst & Young LLP

Battimore, Maryland
February 29, 2008
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TeleCommunication Systems, {nc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
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IS i
Total Ilabllltles and stockholders' equity
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
{amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
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See accompanylng Notes to Consolsdated Fmancvai Statements
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TeleCommunication Systems, inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
{amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Class A Class B Additional Other
Cormmon Gommon Deferred Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Stock Campensation Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total

Balange’

% Janugl 5.0

Options e ercised for
the purchase of
290,980 shares of
Class A Comman

209776

310

lssuance of 14,816
restricted shares of
Class A Common
Stock to directors
and key executives

Ty Lo

restricted shares of

Class A Common

Stock as payment

for payroll tax

withholdings 1 — — (249) — — (250}
e e i , Y s

A0 : i
Stock compensation
expense for
issuance of
Class A Common
Stock options at
below fair market °

3 e
Valuatnon ad;ustment
to stock options
issued to
nan-employees for
service —_

(231) § 210275 §

Ellmmatlon of
defesred
compensation upon
adoption of

{ssuance of
212,194 shares of
Class A Common

Stock under

Employee Stock

Purchase Plan 2 — — 388

suance: e : i— 3,455

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



SGemmen Stoge: L LT D e By . o R
Surrender of 67,827 : - R (e
restricted shares of
Class A Common
Stock as payment
for payrall tax
withholdings (1)
Conysrsion of* R

S5
sEommorn:Stock
Stock compensation
expense for
issuance of
Class A Common
Stock options for
continuing
operations — - — 2,872 — —

Stoct it - e L L e T e

Leper )

Vesting of employee V
stock options - = - . e
Valiia TR £ [ ;

translation

adjustment — 40
Netdgss otz Ry T B
Balance at ;
December 31,

2006 § 322 ¢ 76 § = $§ 217739 3§ — $ (183,032 §.__35105

F-5

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity — {Continued)
{(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Class A Class B Additional Other
Common Common Deferred Paid-tn Compreheasive Accumulated

Stock Stock Compensation Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total
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Issuance of
173,833 shares of
Class A Comman |
Stock under
Employee Stock
Purchase Plan .y 2

Surrender of 19,358
restricted shares of
Class A Common
Stock as payment
for payroll tax

expensea for

issuance of

Class ACommon

Stock options for

continuing

operations 3,863 — — 3,963

securities and

other — — — o {125)
Nef{588 Tor 2007 e T 1,789y 5L ( 1.80);
Balance at

Oecember 31,

2007 $ 348 $ 74 $ — 3 237,987 3 (125) § {184.321) § 43,964

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
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See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highty reliable wireless data communications
technology. We manage our business in two segments, Commercial and Government:

Commercial Segment. Our cartier software system products enable wireless cariers to deliver
premium servicas including shor text messages, location information, internet content, and other
enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones. We provide enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1)
sefvices, commercial location-pased services, and inter-carrier text message distribution services on a
hosted, or service bureau basis. As of December 31, 2007, we provide hosted services under contracts
with more than 30 wireless carrier networks and Voice-over-internet-Protocol (VolP) service providers.
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic
application which is available via all major US wireless carriers. We earn carrier software-based
systems revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees and maintenance
fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier. We also
provide carrier technology on a hosted, i.e., service bureau basis; that is, customers use our software
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly based
on the number of subscribers, cell sites, or calt center circuits, or message volume.

Govemment Segment. We design, assemble, sell and maintain satellite-based network communication
systems, including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high speed,
encrypted, Internet Protocol technology. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities,
and resell access to satellite aittime (known as space segment).

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of our whally
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash equivalents are reported at fair value, which
approximates cost

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable. Substantially all of our accounts receivable are trade
receivables generated in the ordinary course of our business. We use estimates to determine the amount of
the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to reduce accounts receivable to their expected net realizable
value. We estimate the amount of the required allowance by reviewing the status of significant past-due
receivables and by establishing provisions for estimated losses by analyzing current and historical bad debt
trends. Changes to our allowance for goubtful accounts are recorded as a component of general and
administrative expenses in our accompanying Consclidated Statements of Operations. Qur credit and
collection policies and the financial strength of aur customers are critical to us in maintaining a relatively small
amount of write-offs of receivables. We generally do not require collateral from or enter netting agreements
with our customers. Receivables that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged-off as a reduction of
receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventory. We maintain inventory of component parts and finished product for our Government deployable
communications systems. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is based on the weighted
average method, The cost basis for finished units includes manufacturing cost,

/
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

Investments in Marketable Securities and Note Receivable. The Company holds approximately
$0.9 million of marketable securities and a $1.0 million note receivable which were obtained as partial
consideration from three small divestitures during 2007. The marketable securities and note receivable are
included in ather current assets and marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale in accordance
with the provision of SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain investments in Debt and Equity Securities. These
securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price with net unrealized losses of
$0.1 million reported in stockholders’ equity as a compenent of accumulated other comprehensive income. The
Company considers the loss on one of the securities to be temporary because of restructuring in process at
the issuing company and the Company has the ability and the intent to hold the investments for a reasonable
period of time. If the Company determines that a decline in fair value of one or both of the marketable
securities is other than temporary, a realized loss would be recognized in earnings. Gains or losses on
securities sold will be based on the specific identification method. The note receivable bears simple interest at
8.25% over an 18-month term and is due in November of 2008,

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line methad based an the estimated useful lives of equipment,
generally five years for furniture and fixtures and three years for computer equipment, software and vehicles.
Our depreciable asset base includes equipment in our netwoark operations centers refated to our hosted
service offerings, development costs for computer software for internal use, and company-wide computer
hardware. In the second quarter of 2006, a review of experience with equipment and software used in our
service bureau operations led us to adjust their average asset lives from three years to four years on a
prospective basis. Depreciation expense in 2006 was $0.4 million less than it would have been if the shorter
lives had been used. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method aver
the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease. Assets held under capital leases are
stated at the lesser of the present value of future minimum lease payments or the fair value of the property at
the inception of the lease. The assets recorded under capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the lease
term or the estimated useful life of the assets in a manner consistent with our depreciation policy for owned
assets.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of acquired businesses.
Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination is not amortized, but instead is evaluated at least
annually for impairment using a discounted cash flow model in accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Gooawill and Other Intangible Assefs.

Software Development Costs. We capitalize software development costs after we establish technological
feasibility, and amortize those costs over the estimated useful lives of the software baginning on the date when
the software is first installed and used. Acquired technology, representing the estimated value of the
proprietary technology acquired, has also been recorded as capitalized software development costs.

Costs we incurred are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products,
technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software product is
completed in the same software language as the product to be ultimately marketed, performs all the major
functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial customer testing. Technological
feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed.
Costs that are capitalized include direct labor, related overhead and other direct costs. These costs are
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product’s estimated useful fife,
which has not been greater than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current
revenue far the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the
revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our palicies to
determmine when to capitalize software development costs and how much to amortize in a given period require
us to make subjective estimates and judgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market
acceptance that we expect and our
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future revenue estimates for these products change, the amount of amortization that we record may increase
compared to prior periods. The amortization of capitalized software development costs has been recorded as a
cost of revenue.

Acquired technology is amartized over the product's estimated useful life based on the purchase price
allocation and valuation procedures performed at the time of the acquisition. Amortization is calculated using
the ratio of the estimated future cash flows generated in each period to the estimated total cash flows to be
contributed from each product or the straight-line method, whichever is greater.

For 2007, 2006, and 2005, we capitalized $1,525, $1,849, and 1,960, respectively, of software development
costs of continuing operations for certain software projects after the point of technological feasibility had been
reached but before the products were available for general release. Accordingly, these costs have been
capitalized and are being amortized over their estimated useful fives beginning when the products are
available for general release. The capitalized costs relate to our location-based software, which is part of our
continuing operations.

We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these
products.

Acquired Intangible Assets. Acquired intangible assets have useful lives of 5 to 19 years. We are
amortizing these assets using the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve method.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or
group of assets may not be fully recoverable.

If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows that we expect to generate from these assets. If the assets
are impaired, we recegnize an impairment charge equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying values or fair values,
less estimated costs of disposal.

Other Comprehensive Income/Loss. Camprehensive income/loss includes changes in the equity of a
business during a pericd from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner Sources.
Other comprehensive incomefloss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. For
operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, results of
operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates dusing the period, and assets and
liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates, Translation adjustments for our European subsidiary
are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive 1oss in stockholders’ equity. Also included
are any unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities that are classified as available-for-sale. Total
comprehensive loss for the three years ended December 31, 2007 was not materially different than
consolidated net loss.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is generated from our two segments as described below.

Services Revenue. Revenue from hosted services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is
recognized in the month earned. Revenue from subscriber service fees is recognized in the period earmned.
Maintenance fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is
typically annual. Any unearned revenue, including unrecognized maintenance fees, is included in deferred
revenue.

We also recognize services revenue from the design, development and deployment of information
processing and communication systems primarily for government enterprises. These services are provided
under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized
under time and materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price
service contracts
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are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally allow for monthly
billing or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses on contracts are recognized
in their entirety at the date that they become evident.

Systemns Revenue. We design, develop, and deploy communications systems. These systems may include
packaged software licenses. Systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include the product
license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated among each element
based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the relative fair value of each of the elements. Fair value is
generally determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. In the absence of
evidence of fair value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first ta the undelivered elements based on
fair value and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are generally perpetual
licenses for a specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate.
All fees are recognized as revenug when four criteria are met. These four criteria are (i) evidence of an
arrangement (i) delivery has occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable and (iv) the fee is probable of
collection. Software license fees billed and not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue.
Systems containing software licenses include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have not incurred significant
warranty costs on any software product to date, and no costs are currently accrued upon recording the related
revenue,

Systems revenue is also derived from fees for the development, impiementation and maintenance of
custom applications. Fees from the development and implementation of custom applications are generally
performed under time and materials and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognjzed under time and materials
contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred, Fixed-price product delivery contracts are
accounted for using the percentage-of-completion or proportianal performance method, measured either by
total costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labor
costs incurred compared to estimated total direct labor costs for projects for which third-party hardware
represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing
or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses under long-term contracts are
recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. Revenue from hardware sales to our monthly
subscriber customers is recognized as systems revenue.

Under our contracts with the U.S. government for both systems and services, contract costs, including the
allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment by the Defense Contract Audit Agency. We
record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts.

Our accounting for revenues from systems and services contracts follows the guidance of Emerging Issues
Task Force 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” (EITF 00-21) for determining of the
number of units of accounting and the allocation of the total fair value among the multiple elements.

Deferral of Costs Incurred. We defer costs incurred in certain situations as dictated by authoritative
accounting literature. In addition, if the revenue for a delivered item is not recagnized because it is not
separable from the arrangement, then we defer incremental costs related to that delivered but unrecognized
element.

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $34, $29, and
$120, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

Capitalized interest. Total interest incurred was $5,026, $3,253, and $1,312 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. Approximately $74, $55, and $140 of total interest incurred
was capitalized as a component of software development costs and construction in progress during the year
ended Decemnber 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note 17.
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Beginning January 1, 20086, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123(R)
(“Statement No. 123(R)"} requires us to report all share based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options in the income statement based on their fair value. We adopted Statement No, 123(R)
effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method. Had we adopted Statement No, 123(R) in
prior periads, the impact of that standard would have appraximated the impact of Statement No. 123 as
described in the disclosure of pro forma net loss and loss per share below.

On October 28, 2005, our Board of Directors adopted resolutions to accelerate the vesting of certain
outstanding, unvested “out-of-the-money” stock options. The accelerated vesting provisions applied to all
qualifying options with an exercise price of $6,00 or greater and as a result, options to purchase
1,455,000 shares of our stock became fully exercisable as of that date. The primary purpose of the accelerated
vesting was to eliminate future compensation expense the Company would otherwise recognize in its
statement of operations with respect to these options upon the adoption of Statement No. 123(R), which we
adopted on January 1, 2006 as discussed above. Statement No, 123(R) requires that compensation expense
associated with stock options be recognized in the statement of operations rather than as a pro forma footnote
disclosure in our consolidated financial statements. The acceleration of the vesting of these options eliminated
the future non-cash stock compensation expense associated with these outstanding options. We estimated
that the related future compensation expense to be recorded under Statement No. 123(R) that was eliminated
as a result of the acceleration of vesting these options was approximately $1,200.

Prior to 2006 we recorded compensation expense far all stock-based compensation plans using the
intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Qpinion No. 25, {(Accounting for Stock fssued
to Employees) (“APB No, 25"} and related interpretations. Under APB No. 25, compensation expense is
recorded pro-rata over the vesting period to the extent that the fair value of the underlying stock on the date of
grant exceeds the exercise or acquisition price of the stock or stock-based award. The related compensation
constitutes portions of our direct cost of revenue, research and development expense, sales and marketing
expense, and general and administrative expense as detailed in the table presented with our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

We have also granted restricted stock to directors and certain key executives. The restrictions expired at
the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for executives and are
based on continued employment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance is recognized as
non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire.

The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and loss per common share if we had applied the fair
value recognition provisions of FASB Statement 123(R), to stock-based employee compensation, for the years
ended December 31, 2005.

Pro forﬁ;é n
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Research and Development Expense. We incur research and development casts which are primarily
comprised of compensation and travel expenses related to our engineers engaged in the development and
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enhancement of new and existing software products, All costs are expensed as incurred prior to reaching
technological feasibility.

income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the liability method of
accounting for income taxes and deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax
rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In Septernber 2006, the FASE issued SFAS 157, *Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, In February 2008, the FASB decidad
to issue a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
nonrecurring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 157 to exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The Company is evaluating
the impact of this standard and does not expect the adoption of SFAS 157 to have a material impact an its
financial statements.

In June 2008, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(FIN 48} which prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. If a
tax position does not meet the mare-likely-than-nat initial recognition threshold, no benefit is recorded in the
financial statements. The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 for which there was no cumulative
effect of applying the provisions of this interpretation. The Company classifies interest and penalties accrued
on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended Decembeér 31, 2007 and the
consalidatad balance sheet at December 31, 2007. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company files
income tax returns in U.S. and state jurisdictions, The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, and
local tax examinations in major tax jurisdictions for periods before 2003.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, "Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities.”
SFAS 159 allows companies to elect to measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 159 to
have a material impact on its financial statements,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141{R), “Business Combinations.” This standard
establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial
statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any non-controlling interest in the acquired
and the goodwill acquired. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements which will enable usars to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination, SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for us for
acquisitions made after November 30, 2008. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard and does
not expect the adoption of SFAS 141(R) to have a material impact on its financial statements.

2. Enterprise Assets-Discontinued Operations

As of December 31, 2005, we committed to a plan to sell our Enterprise division operations, which had
previously been included in our Commercial Segment. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, results of operations,
and cash flows for the Enterprise assets have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods
presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement No. 144), As a
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result of the classification of these assets as discontinued operations, we had continued to perform guarterly
reviews of the associated goodwill and other long lived assets for impairment. During 2008, we recorded an
impairment charge of $15,500 in our loss from discontinued operations which is included on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. They continued to be a part of our business until sold during the first half of 2007.
The operations and cash flows of the businesses have been eliminated from those of continuing operations
and the Company has ne significant involvement in the operations since the disposaktransactions.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1,000 and earn-out
arrangements. The Company does not currently expect to receive material payments from the earn-out
arrangements. During May 2007, the last Enterprise unit was sold to TPA Acquisition Corparation for $4,000 in
cash {$200 remains in escrow), a $1,000 note receivable bearing interest at 8.25% over 18-months, and $250
in equity interest.

Enterprise assets and liabilities classified as discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated
December 31, 2006 balance were as follows:

December 31,
2006

Asselsis s
_ Current assets .
xLonGHivea/d3sets and goodivill
Other long term assets )
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Liabilities: e A e ot
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Deferred revenue an i
“ExpaBlitied oraisconlinied cperatons.
Net assets of discontinued operations

Impairment charges of $15,500 to adjust the estimated carrying value of Enterprise long-lived assets and
goodwill were recorded during 2006 based on infarmation obtained during the process of offering the operating
assets for sales and the declines in the Subscriber businesses being sold. Summarized results of operations
for the Enterprise assets included in the accompanying Consalidated Statement of Operations are as follows:

2005
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During 2007, 2008, and 2005 total revenues generated from Enterprise systems and services in the
U.S. were $5,569, $22,020 and $23,127, respectively, and the total revenues generated from products and
services of our Enterprise division outside of the U.S. were $4,000 and $5,000, respectively for 2006 and 2005.
The Enterprise division did not have any customers that constituted a significant portion of our consolidated net
revenues. As of December 31, 2006 our Enterprise division had approximately $1,800 of assets located
outside the U.S.

Leases for European offices have been assigned to the buyer of one of the subscriber units sold effective
January 1, 2007. We incurred rent expense related to these facilities of $1,318 in 2006 and $900 in 2005.
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3. Loss Per Common Share

Basic loss per common share is based upon the average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the period. Because we incurred a loss from continuing aoperations in 2007 and 2005 potentially dilutive
securities were excluded from the computation because the result would be anti-dilutive. These potentially
dilutive securities consist of stock options, restricted stock, and warrants as discussed in Notes 1 and 17.

The following table summarizes the computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31:

i -7. ,f;/" Vaabiad ¥ 3 S WL E
Denornlnator for basic earnings per share —weughted average common
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Neti3ss pershafe: , S R R N S T
income JLoss) rshare—dlluled

m(@gﬁjpe@hw frofn continging operations

Loss per share from discontinued operations
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4. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled $1,979, $1,725, and $3,761 during the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2008, and 2005, respectively.

As partial consideration for our 2007 divestitures, we received publicly trade common stock in two of the
acquiring companies valued at approximately $1,000 at the time of January 2007 closing on the transactions.

Interest paid totaled $1,002, $607, and $843 during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.
5. Unbilled Reaceivables

Unbilled receivables consist of the excess of revenue earned in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles over the amounts billable at contract milestones. Substantially all unbilled receivables are
expacted to be billed and collected within twelve months.
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6. Inventory
tnventory consisted of the following at December 31:

2007 2006

L SR SRR TR S D8 26700 % 2042
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7. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

8. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs
Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs considged of the following:

December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amouat Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
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Software development costs,
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We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been capitalized.
Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and remaining useful lives of
the respective assets.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Qur accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:
December 31, 2007

ABeounts payable .1 Wiy SELTE T T 5848 g
ed expenses ‘ 6611
Total Agcounts payableiand aéoried.expenses atiyearend. v § e o 12 480 I 0 L T

Accrued expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for which we have not yet been invoiced, accrued
sales taxes, and amounts due to our E9-1-1 customers that we have billed and collected from regulating
agencies on their behalf under cost recovery arrangements,

10. Line of Credit

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. In June 2007, we
amended the agreement to extend our line of credit and decrease the cost of borrowing. Under the amended
agreement, the availability of the line was extended to June 2010, and the borrowing rate decreased from
prime plus 1.25% to the bank's prime rate which was 7.25% per annum at December 31, 2007. Qur maximum
borrowing availability remained the same at $22,000. Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based
principally on accounts receivable levels and a warking capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of
credit agreement. The line of credit available is also reduced by the amaunts of letters of credit outstanding
which totaled $2,921 at December 31, 2007.

Our amended line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a
minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including,
among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake
actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt,
distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and maintenance of a minimum tangible net worth, The
agreement also contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business,
operations, or financial condition of our Company occur, or {ii) ne material impairment of the prospect of
repayment of any portion of the borrowings; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders
security interests in the collateral of the bank credit agreement.

As of December 31, 2007, we were in compliance with the covenants related to our line of credit. We
believe that the Company will continf® to comply with its restrictive covenants. If our performance does not
result in compliance with any of our restrictive covenants, we would seek to further madify our financing
arrangements, but there can be no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under
its agreement with us, including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable,

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006 we had no borrowings outstanding under the line of credit and we had
approximately $11,000 and $9,000, respectively, of unused borrowing availability under this line.
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11. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31:

2007 2006

Jotal long ferm debt
Less: enifentidattion

December 31, 2007 are as follows:

20420 G e BB R L g SR e T e
Total $.12669

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10,000 of March 2006 secured notes with a five year bank term loan.
The borrowing rate under the new term loan was the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum {7.5% at December 31,
2007} and payments are due in equal monthiy installments of $167 plus interest. In March 2006, we issued
(i) $10,000 of secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14% per annum, and (i) warrants ta
purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per
share expiring March 10, 2009. The resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was $6,500, net of the
original discount of $3,500 which was being amortized to interest expense over its three-year term using the
effective interest method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining unamortized debt discount
and issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second quarter of 2007 as a result of early

retirement of the March 2006 note.
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12. Capital Leases

We lease certain equipment under capital leases. Property and equipment included the following amounts
for capital leases at December 31:

2007 2006
Complter equipment ' 3 T5p8s 5
Compriy 1,474
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Capital leases are collateralized by the leased assets. Our capital leases generally contain provisions
whereby we can purchase the equipment at the end of the lease for the current fair market value, capped at
18.5% of the original purchase price Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and amortization
expense,

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations consisted of the following at December 31, 2007

T

13. Common Stock

Our Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of stock held for all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Our Class B stockholders are entitied to three votes for each share owned.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of our cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and long-term debt approximate
their respective carrying values as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, note receivable, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate fair value because of the
short maturity of these instruments.

15. Income Taxes

During the years ended December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively, we did not record either a current or
deferred tax provision due to our current loss position and uncertainty regarding the realization of our net
deferred tax assets,
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‘ TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
|

1 Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were:
|

Deferred tax-assets: i = oL s
Net operating loss carryforward L
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Research and development tax credit
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At December 31, 2007, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of
approximately $107 million, which includes $31.2 million, acquired upon the acquisition of Xypoint in 2001. The
net operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with the purchase of Xypoint Corporation in 2001 will
begin to expire in 2011, The remaining net operating loss carryforwards will expire from 2019 through 2026.

The timing and manner in which we may utilize the net operating loss carryforwards in future tax years will
be limited by the amounts and timing of future taxable income and by the application of the ownership change
rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Utilization of the Xypoint net operating losses are
limited as a result of ownership changes. As of December 31, 2007, the product of the remaining Xypoint net
operating loss carrryforward period in comparison to the annual limitation amount, results in excess acquired
tax attributes which will expire prior to utilization. Therefore, our deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2007
were reduced for the pdftion of the Xypoint net operating lass totaling, $3,568, as well as a portion of the
research and development tax credit totaling $557, which cannot be used before they expire.

The remaining U.S. federal net operating loss carryfarwards may become subject to limitations under the
Internal Revenue Code as well. We have state net operating loss carryforwards available which expire through
2026, utilization of which will be limited in a manner similar to the federal net operating loss carryforwards, At
December 31, 2007, $5 million of our deferred deductions related to stock options exercises. To the extent that
carryforwards, when realized, relate to stock option deductions, the resulting benefits will be credited to
stockholders’ equity. We have established a full valuation allowance with respect to these federal and state
loss camyforwards and other net deferred tax assets due to uncertainties surrounding their realization.
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The reconciliation of the reported income tax benefit to the amount that would result by applying the
U.S. federal statutory rate of 34% to loss from continuing operations for the year ended December 31 is as

follows:
2007 2006 2005

Income'tax (benefit) at statutéry cate . U8 (364) a0 RA 6537 81,4675
Expired Xyp above - 1,894 — —
Nonideducti i : RS -

(2,241)

S 689 e

. {4y ‘

RO i

52

16. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) ptan covering defined employees who meet established eligibility
requirements, Under the provisions of plan, the Company may contribute a discretionary match. The pian may
also contribute a non-elective contribution determined by the Company. For 2007, the Company matched 35%
of employee deferrals. The Company contribution was $0.6 million, $0.2 million and $0,1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 respectively.

17. Stock-based Compensation Plans

We maintain two stock-based compensation plans: a stock incentive plan, and an employae stock purchase
plan.
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Stock incentive Plan. We maintain a stock incentive plan that is administered by our Compensation
Committee of our Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan vest over periods ranging from one to five
years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the principal share-based compensation plans, the
Company may grant certain emplayees, directors and consultants options to purchase common stock, stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock units. Options are rights to purchase common stock of the Company at
the fair market value on the date of the grant. Stock appreciation rights are equity settled share-based
compensation arrangements whereby the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is based upon the
appreciation of the Company’s common stock and the number of awards granted to an individual. Restricted
stock units are equity setled share-based compensation arrangements of a number of share of the Company's
common stock. Restricted stock unit holders do not have voting rights until the restrictions lapse. A summary of
our stock option activity and related information consists of the following for the years ended December 31 (afl
share amounts in thousands):

2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Qptions Price

fi

; s
Ouifstaifding’ efi of year - I

Exercisable, at end of

weighted-average grant-
date fair value of options

at end of year 6.6 years 7.0 years 7.3 years

Exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2007 ranged from $0.01 to $26.05 as follows (all
share amounts in thousands):

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Contractual Life Exercise Prices
Options of Options of Qptions Options of Options
Exercise Prices = Qutstanding Qutstanding Outstanding (years)  Exercisable

PR R U S BT R L9838

TIRTS
3

4,848 & 667 2307 ¢

2ags s RGN 2,185 18
‘ 308 5.01 30
et '11,144‘ PRI DT HERERREE R - X1 Vs
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In calculating the fair value of our stock aptions using Black-Scholes for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, our assumptions were as follows:

For the Years Ended

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
B N S I R T T € e N T
i _ 4.24% - 4.90% 4.56% 4.25%
N . . g ST BBI1% IB3% Y S 78% " 105%
0% 0% %

Prior to our initial public offering in 2000, we granted incentive stock options to employees and directors to
purchase 885,083 shares:of Class A Common Stock. The options were granted at an exercise price less than
the estimated market value of Class A Common Stock at the date of grant. Net loss, as reported, includes $123
of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the year-ended December 31, 2005.
These options had fully vested as of December 31, 2005, and accordingly we will not recognize any future
expense related to these options.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company granted a total of 89,600, 22,025,
and 14,816 of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to directors and certain key executives. The
restrictions expired at the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for
executives conditional on continued empfoyment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance
is recognized as non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. We
recognized $328, $244, and $597 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. We expect to record future stock
compensation expense of $55 as a resuit of these restricted stock grants that will be recognized over the
remaining vesting periods.

Employee Stock Furchase Plan. We have an employee stock purchase plan (the Plan) that gives all
employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock. The Plan allows for the purchase
of 1,384,932 shares of our Class A Common Stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market-value. The discount
of 15% is calculated based on the average daily share price on either the first or the last day of each quarterly
enrallment period, whichever date is more favorable to the employee. Option periods are three months in
duration. As of December 31, 2007, 958,821 shares of Class A Common Stock have been issued under the
Plan. Compensation expense relating to the Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan is not material.

As of December 31, 2007, our total shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for future issuance is
comprised of:
{in thousands)
ST A T L e g 7002
) o B 1,750
e LU e L A0

s

Stock incentive plan’”
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Compasition of non-cash stock compensation expense,was as fallows; - L T SO
Direct costs of revenue ) $ 2,080 $ 1,509 $ 16
Regéarch and developiment expense - L : EO - BB - L e e
Sales and marketing expense - 628 326 18
wGeneraland administrative expense - " e y e 758 .+ 723 .. BTH”
Total non-cash stock compensation expense $ 4,333 $ 3,116 $ 720

18. Operating Leases

We lease certain office space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases that expire on various
dates through 2015. Future minimum payments under hon-cancélable operating leases with initial terms of one
year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2007:

4,369
5937,
891

: G : . 1§ 102781

Our leases include our offices in Annapolis, Maryland under & lease expiring in March 2008, a second

facility in Annapolis under a lease expiring in April 2008, a facility in Seattle, Washington under a ease expiring
in September 2010, a facility in Qakland, California under a lease expiring August 2009, and a facility in
Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 2009 and a production facility in Tampa, Florida under a
lease expiring in December 2015. The Annapolis facilities are utilized for executive and administrative offices,
as well as portions of our Commercial and Government Segments. We are currently negotiating extension of
our lease terms for our Annapalis facilities. The Seattle and Oakland facilities are utilized by our Commercial
Segment and the Tampa facility is utilized by our Government Segment. Future payments on all of our leases
are estimated based on future payments including the minimum future rent escalations, if any, stipulated in the
respective agreements.

Rent expense for continuing operations was $3,823, $3,603, and $3.480 for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

19. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily
of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Those customers that comprised 10% or more of our
revenues, accounts receivable, and unbilled receivables from continuing operations are summarized in the
following tables.

% of Total Revenues For the
Year Ended December 31,

Customer Segment 2007 2006 2005

U.S. Government Government 7% 25% 17%

Customer A Commercial 20% 20% 17%
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As of December 31, 2007 As of December 31, 2006
Accounts Unbilled Accounts Unbilled
Customer Recelvable Receivables Receivable
U.S Goveroment. ol , G 0% 66% L 24%

CustomerA o C<10% <10% . <10% <10%
Customer,B-v 70 - S s 1% <10% o o M% e s ie 0%

As of December 31, 2007, our total exposure to credit risk was $23,689 based on the amount due to us by
the above customers. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our exposure to such risks was $12,645 and
$15,588 respectively. We did not experience significant losses from amounts due to us by any customers for
the year ended December 31, 2007.

20. Business and Geographic Segment Information
Our two reporting segments are the Commercial Segment and the Government Segment.

Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text messagas,
location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from wireless
phones. Our Commercial Segment also provides E9-1-1 services, commercial location-based services,
inter-carrier text message distribution services, and carrier technology on a hosted, or service bureau, basis.
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic
application. ‘

Our Government Segment designs, assembles, sells and maintains data network communication systems,
including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems. We also own and operate secure satellite
teleport facilities, resell access to satellite airtime (known as space segment), and provide communication
systems integration, information technology services, and software systems and services to the
U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintain information
regarding segment assets. Accordingly, asset information by reportable segment s not presented.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, our revenues include
approximately $5,551, $7,349, and $6,874 of revenues generated from customers outside of the United States.
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The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments as of December 31, 2007. All revenues
reparted below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to net loss for the
respective periods is also included below:

Year ended December 31,
2007 2006
Gvmt Comm, Gvmt

A sa741” 57 P
ByseTE 7 S ABEI ¢ . BGERE . RIS A06 T Lr e AT218 o 19387
To(al revenue ) 76,960

33,603

profit X 28,332 7,508

12,008 b 06,68

ToualGrnssProﬁ g 40944 § 1315 $ 54101 § 40340 % 4,173 § 54613 § 34271 g 10,933 2 45 204

2007 2006

Tatal segment grésE profit
Research and develogmen( expense
ﬁeﬁ’s

Clation Jrop
] " Amortization of acqmred intangible assets
Fintetest expenset
Amortization of debt discount an
wnte-off in 2007

. (1 014) 978
Net foss § 51!289} $ (21,695
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21, Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited}

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007
and 2006. The guarterly information has not been audited, but in our opinion, includes all normal recurring
adjustments, which are, in the opinion of the Management, necessary for fair statement of the results of the
interim periods,

2007
Three Months Ended
{(unaudited})

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
’ Y $% 353367 g Gt dress 5 gy
$ 10681 14,138

Income (loss) from discontinued operations _ (124)\
MEtinehme loss) /E s T

Eamings per share — basic from contmmng
operations

Income (loss) per share — difuted from”

discontinued ogerat‘lgns' $ _{0.00)
Natiocomeioss) per share $oii$ i (05Y
20086
Three Months Ended
(unaudited)
June 30 September 30 December 3
5 ¥ F1043 7 g '

14,240

: SRR 780
. (2.314)
Netidss 5 b AT AEEEY S
Eamings per share — basic from contlnumg
. operations 5 001 .5 o002 §
Loss per hare T R
g g (0 OS)i w8 HQ06) S
4 004y $ $
L8 $ R S
operations - 3 005 § {008 % 039 § (0.11)
Netloss per share: T TR 004 T 04y 8 e (036) 0§ ()
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22. Commitments and Contingencies

In Oclober 20086, twa farmer shareholders of Xypoint Corporation sued the former officers and directors of
that corporation for breach of fiduciary duty and violation of certain Washington state securities and consumer
protection acts when they approved, and recommended that shareholders approve the merger of Xypoint into
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. The plaintiffs requested unspecified damages. The merger agreement from
2001 provided that we would indeminify the officers and directors of Xypoint for a period of six years after the
merger (ending January 2007} for their actions in approving the merger. in December 20086, the complaint was
amended to include TCS as a defendant, as the successor-in-interest to Xypoint Corporation and Windward
Acquisition Corporation (our acquisition subsidiary}, both extinguished corporations. On May 7, 2007, the
Honorable Jeffrey M. Ramsdell of the King County Superior Court (Washington) entered an order dismissing
the complaint, with prejudice. On Octaber 19, 2007, the plaintiffs filed an appeal of the dismissal order with the
Washington Court of Appeals. We have purchased Directors and Officers insurance policies to cover claims
against the former officers and directors of Xypaint and us, and believe that one or bath of those insurance
policies may cover some or all of the costs of this {awsuit. We intend to continue to defend the appeal
vigorously, Although we believe a material loss is remote, we can make no assurances that the outcome will
be favorable to us or that the insurancs policies will be sufficient to cover the costs incurred or any judgment
amounts that may result.

On July 12, 2008, we filed suit in the US District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against Mobile 365
(now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement related to
U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Setvice Providing Phona Number Only Experience,
issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan Americas, and during the second
quarter of 2007 we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 infringed the claims of our patent. The
jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million for past damages and a 12% royalty.
The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement wiliful and upheid the validity of the patent. The jury’s findings
remain subject to post trial motions. After the judge rules on the post trial motions, either side may appeal to
the US Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. There can be no assurances to what extent the matter will
continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could be subject to counter claims.

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the
“Underwriters™): Highstein v. Telecommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our common stock
during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters agreed
to allocate common stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers in exchange for
excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers te make additional purchases
of common stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs allege that all of the defendants
violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters violated Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of violation of
Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. We will continue to defend the
lawsuit vigorously. On February 15, 2005, the District Court iszsued an Order preliminarily approving a
settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties
agree to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties
agreed to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an
order preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the
Second Circuit overturned the District Court’s certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims
that would be settled in the settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for
Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second
Circuit's decision, and have informed the
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District Court that they would like to be heard by the District Court as to whether the settlement may still be
approved even if the decision of the Court of Appeals is not reversed. The District Court indicated that it would
defer consideration of final appraval of the settlement pending plaintiffs’ request for further appellate review.
We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the settlement has received final appraval or the matter is
resolved otherwise. More than 300 other companies have been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have
been filed by some of the same law fims that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us, and we believe
that the majority of those companies will participate in the same settlement if approved.

We are subject to certain litigation, claims and assessments which occur in the normal course of business.
Based on consultation with our legal counsel, management is of the apinion that such matters, when resolved,
will not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

23. Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive
Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to
us or the overall cost is nat in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or reguiatory restrictions
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive agreement at
this new development site.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

By: [s/ Maurice B _Tose
Maurice B. Tosé
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. The
undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tosé, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. and Bruce A. White, and
each of them, their frue and lawfu) agents and attorneys-in-fact with full power and authority in said agents and
attorneys-in-fact, and in any one or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective names as
directors and officers of TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment of supplement hereto. The
undersigned hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact, and any one or more of them,
as herein authorized

Name Title Date
fs/ Maurice B, Tosé Chief Executive Officer, President and March 5,
Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive 2008
Maurice B, Tosé Officer)
fs! Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice March 5,
President (Principal Financial Officer) 2008
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Is{ James M. Bethmann Director March §,
2008
James M. Bethmann
/s! Clyde A. Heintzelman Director March 5,
2008
Clyde A. Heintzelman
/s! Richard A. Kozak Director March 5,
2008
Richard A. Kozak
Is! Weldon H. Latham Director March 5,
2008
Weldon H. Latham
/si Byron F. Marchant Director March §,
2008

Byron F. Marchant
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10.1

10.2¢
10.31

10.4t
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10.8t
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Amended and Restated Articles of incorporation. (Incorporated by reference {o the company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws. (Incorporated by reference to the company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)

Fom of Class A Common Stock certificate, (Incorporated by reference to the company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement for each of the
investors party to the Securitics Purchase Agreement dated January 13, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to
the company's Current Report on Form §-K filed on January 23, 2004)

Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company and the Purchasers named
therein (Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13,
2006 to each of the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2Q05)

Notes issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 to each of the Purchasers
named therein (Incorparated by reference to the company's Annuat Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for
the year ended December 31, 2005)

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company and the Investors named
therein {Incorporated by reference to the company's Annual Repart on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company, Bonanza Mastar
Fund Ltd,, as Agent, and the Secured Parties named thergin {Incorporated by reference to the company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

Subordination Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the company, Silicen Valley Bank, and the
Purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference ta the coempany's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as
amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

Wast Garrett Office Building Full service Lease Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the
company and West Garrett Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to the company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

Form of Indemnification Agreement. {Incorporated by reference to the company’s Registration Statement on
Form $-1 (No. 333-35522))

Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A lo the
company's definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of stockhalders as filed with the SEC on
June 17, 2004 {No. 0D0-30821))

First Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan, (Incorporated by reference to the company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Na. 333-136072))

Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the company and Richard A. Young.
{Incorporated by reference to the company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))
Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the company and Richard A, Young. (Incorporated
by reference to the company's Registration Staterent on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
(Incorporated by reference to the company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))
Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
(Incorporated by reference to the company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Na. 333-35522))
Optionee Agreement dated April 1, 1999 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
{Incorporated by reference 1o the company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan of the compary dated January 1, 1989. (Incorporated by reference to the
company’s Registration Statement on Form 5-4 (No. 333-51656))
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10.111+ Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the company and Richard A. Young.
(Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gquarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.12t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the company and Thomas M. Brandt.
(Incorporated by reference to the company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10,13t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the company and Drew A. Morin.
(Incorporated by reference to the campany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.141 Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the company and Timothy J. Lorello.
{incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

10.15¢ Services Integration Agreement dated January 31, 2002 by and between the company and Hutchison 3G.
(Incorporated by reference to the company’s Annual Report on Farm 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001}

10.16  Deed of Lease by and between Annapolis Partner, LLT and the company. (Incorporated by reference to the
company’s Annual Report on Farm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

10,171 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thamas M. Brandt, Jr. (incorporated by reference to the company's
Quartedly Repori on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.181 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr, Thamas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.191 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.20t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarferly Repart on Farm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.211 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon H. Latham. (Incorporated by reference to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) )

10.221 Restricted stock award cedtificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the gquarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.23t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lerello. (Incorporated by reference to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.241 Restricted stock award certificate ta Mr. Bryon F. Marchant. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2303)

10.251 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003}

10.26t1 Reslricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quartery Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003}

10.27+ Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Mausice B. Tosé. {Incorporated by reference to the company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.281 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tosé. {Incorporated by reference ta the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10,291 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr, Kevin M. Webb. {Incorporated by reference to the company’s
Quarterly Report an Form 10-C for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.30%1 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference ta the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Seplember 30, 2003)

10.311 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. {incorporated by reference to the company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.32t1 Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the company’s
Quarterly Repert on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003}
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Exhibit

Numbers Description

10.33  Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 18, 2003 by and among the compary and the
investors party to the 2003 SPA. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 ta the company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 18, 2003)

10.34  Trademark License Agreement by and amang Aether, TSYS and the company dated as of January 13, 2004.
{Incorporated by reference to the company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004)

10.35  Registration Rights Agreement by and between the company and Aether dated as of January 13, 2004.
{Incorporated by reference to the company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004)

10.361 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the company and Silicon Valley Bank.
{Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004)

10.37  Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman (Incorporated by reference to the company's
Annual Report on Farm 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2008)

10.38  Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak (Incarperated by reference to the company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.39  Resfricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon F. Latham (Incorporated by reference to the company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.40  Restricted stock award cerlificate to Mr. Byron F. Marchant (incorporated by reference to the company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)

1046  Second Amended and Restaled Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon
Valley Bank (Incerporated by reference to the company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the guarter
ended September 30, 2005)

10.471 Formm of Incentive Stock Option Agreement

10.48t Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement

10.491 Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement

121 Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule 1l

211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

23.2 Consent of James Cowper

KR Certification pursuant to 18 L1.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

31.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Acl of 2002

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxfey
Act of 2002

32.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adapted pursuani to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

99.01  Report of Independent Auditors- James Cowper

T Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
ltem 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K.

T Confidential treatment has been for certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1834, as amended, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

51

Saurce: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



|
|
Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



Exhibit 10.47

Incentive Stock Option Grant Agreement
Under The
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan

1. Terminology. All capitalized words that are not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Pian. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following meanings:

(a) “Cause” has the meaning ascribed to such term or words of similar import in the Employee's written
employment or service contract with the Company and, in the absence of such agreement or definition, means: (i) the
willful commission by the Employee of a criminal or other act that causes or is likely to cause substantial economic
damage to the Company or substantial injury to the business reputation of the Company; (i} the commission by the
Employee of an act of fraud in the performance of such Employee's duties on behalf of the Company; or (iii) the
continuing willful failure of the Employee to perform the duties of such Employee to the Campany (cther than such failure
resulting from the Employee's incapacity due to physical or mental iliness), all as determined by the Administrator, which
determination will be conclusive. For purposes of this Agreement, no act, or failure to act, on the Employee’s part shall be
considered “willful” unless done or omitted to be done by the Employee not in good faith with the reasonable belief that
the Employee's action or omission was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) “Change in Control’ means: {i) an acquisition (other than from the Company) in a transaction, or a series of
related transactions, by any person, entity or “group,” within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act’), (excluding far this purpose, (A) the Company or its subsidiaries, (B) any
employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries which acquires beneficial ownership of voting securities of the
Company, (C) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, or (D) any
corparation owned, directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their
ownership of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors)
of beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, of 50% or more of either
the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding voting
securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors {the "Company Voting Stock™); (ii} the effective time of any
merger, share exchange, consolidation or other reorganization or business combination of the Company if immediately
after such transaction persons who hold a majority of the outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors of the surviving entity {or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity) are not persons who held
the Company Voting Stock immediately prior to such transaction; (iii) the closing of a sale or conveyance of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company; (iv) individuals who were the Board’s nominees for efection as directors
immediately prior to @ meeting of the stockholders of the Company invalving an actual or threatened election contest
relating to the election of the directors of the Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A
promulgated under the

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



-

Exchange Act, cease to canstitute a majority of the Board following the election; or (v) the dissolution or liquidation of the
Company; provided, however, that the term “Change in Control” dees not include a public offering of capital stock of the
Company that is effected pursuant to a registration statement filed with, and declared effective by, the Securities and
Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933.

(c) “Company” includes TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its Affiliates, except where the context otherwise
requires.

(d) “Option Shares” mean the shares of Common Stock underlying the Options.

(e) “Total and Permanent Disability’ means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of
any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or
can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve months. The Administrator may require such proof
of Total and Permanent Disability as the Administrator in its sole discretion deems appropriate and the Administrator’s
good faith determination as to whether the Employee is totally and permanently disabled will be final and binding on all
parties concerned.

2. Vesting. The Options vest in accordance with the vesting schedule identified in the Stock Option Certificate which is
attached hereto and constitutes a part of the Agreement (the "Vesting Schedule”), so long as the Employee is in the
continuous employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company from the Grant Date through the applicable date
upon which vesting is scheduled to occur. No vesting will accrue to any Options after the Employee ceases to be in either
an employment or other service relationship with the Company.

3. Exercise of Options.

(2) Right to Exercise. The Employee may exercise the Options to the extent vested at any time on or before the
Expiration Date or the earlier termination of the Options, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement. Section 4 below
describes certain limitations on exercise of the Options that apply in the event of the Employee’s death, Total and
Permanent Disability, discharge by the Company without Cause or other termination of employment or other service
relationship with the Company. The Options may be exercised only in multiples of whole shares and may not be exercised
at any one time as to fewer than one hundred shares {or such lesser number of shares as to which the Options are then
exercisable). No fractional shares will be issued under the Options.

(b) Exercise Pracedure. In order to exercise the Options, the following items must be delivered to the Administrator
before the expiration or termination of the Options: (i) an exercise notice, in such form as the Administrator may require
from time to time, specifying the number of Option Shares to be purchased, and (i) full payment of the Exercise Price for
such Option Shares or properly executed, irrevocable instructions, in such form as the Administrator may require from
time to time, to effectuate a broker-assisted cashless exercise, each in accordance with Section 3(c) of this Agreement.
An exercise will not be effective untit all of the faregoing items are received by the Administrator.
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(c) Method of Payment. Payment of the Exercise Price may be made by delivery of cash, certified or cashier's
check, money order or other cash equivalent acceptable to the Administrator in its discretion, a broker-assisted cashless
exercise in accordance with Regulation T of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System through a brokerage
firm approved by the Administrator, or a combination of the foregoing. In addition, payment of the Exercise Price may be

made by any of the following methods, or a combination thereof, as determined by the Administrator in its discretion at the
time of exercise:

{i) by tender (via actual delivery or attestation) to the Company of other shares of Commen Stock of the Company
which have a Fair Market Value on the date of tender equal to the Exercise Price, providedthat such shares have been
owned by the Employse for a period of at least six months free of any substantial risk of forfeiture or were purchased on
the open market without assistance, direct or indirect, from the Company;

(ii) by delivery of the Employee’s full recourse promissory note payable to the Company in a form approved by
the Administrator; or

{iii) by any other method approved by the Administrator,

(d) Issuance of Shares upon Exercise. Upon exercise of the Options in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, the Company will issue to the Employee, the brokerage firm specified in the Employee's delivery instructions
pursuant to a broker-assisted cashless exercise, or such other person exercising the Options, as the case may be, the
number of shares of Common Stock so paid for, in the form of fully paid and nonassessable stock. The Company will
deliver stock certificates for the Option Shares as soon as practicable after exercise, which certificates will, unless such
Option Shares are registered or an exemption from registration is available under applicable federal and state law, bear a
legend restricting transferability of such shares.

4. Terminatjon of Employment or Service.

(a) Exercise Perjod Following Cessation of Employment or Other Service Relationship, In General. If the Employee
ceases to be employed by, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any reason other than death, Total and
Permanent Disability, or discharge by the Company without Cause, the Options terminate in their entirety, regardless of
whether the options are vested, immediately upon the Employee's termination of employment or other service
relationship.

(b) Termination by the Company Without Cause. In the event the Employee’s employment or other service
relationship is terminated by the Company without Cause, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of
Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon such cessation, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable
during the 80-day period following such cessation, but in na event after the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the
vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such 90-day period.

{c) Disability of Employee. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4(a) above, if the Employee ceases to be
employed by, or in a service relationship with, the Company as a result of the Employee’s Total and Permanent Disability,
(i) the unvested
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Options, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon such cessation,
and (i) the vested Options remain exercisable during the six-month period following such cessation, but in no event after
the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such six-month
period.

(d) Death of Employee. If the Employee dies prior to the expiration or other termination of the Options, (i) the
unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon the
Employee's death, and (i} the vested Options remain exercisable during the six-month period following the Employee’s
death, but in no event after the Expiration Date, by the Employee's executor, personal representative, or the person(s) to
whom the Options are transferred by will or the faws of descent and distribution. Unless sooner terminated, the vested
Options terminate upon the expiration of such six-manth period.

(e) Misconduct. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Options terminate in their entirety,
regardless of whether the Options are vested, immediately upon the Employee’s discharge of employment or other
service relationship for Cause or upon the Employee's commission of any of the following acts during any period foliowing
the cessation of employment or other service relationship during which the Options otherwise would be exercisable:

(i) fraud on or misappropriation of any funds or property of the Company, or (ii) breach by the Employee of any provision
of any employment, non-disclosure, non-competition, non-solicitation, assignment of inventions, or other similar
agreement executed by the Employee for the benefit of the Company, as determined by the Administrator, which
determination will be conclusive.

(f) Change in Status. If the Employee's relationship with the Company ceases to be a ‘common law employee”
relationship but the Employee continues to provide bona fide services to the Company following such cessation in a
different capacity, including without limitation as a director, consultant or independent contractor, then a termination of
employment or other service relationship shall not be deemed to have occurred for purposes of this Section 4 upon such
change in relationship. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Options shall not be treated as incentive stock options within
the meaning of Code section 422 with respect to any exercise that occurs more than 90 days after such cessation of the
common faw employee relationship (except as otherwise permitted under Code section 421 or 422).

5. Nontransferability of Options. These Options are nontransferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution and during the lifetime of the Employee, the Options may be exercised anly by the Employee or, during the
period the Employee is under a legal disability, by the Emplayee's guardian or tegal representative. Except as provided
above, the Options may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of in any way (whether by
aperation of law or otherwise) and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process.

6. Qualified Nature of the Options. The Options are intended to qualify as incentive stock options within the meaning of
Code section 422 (‘Incentive Stock Options"), to the fullest extent permitted by Code section 422, and this Agreement
shall be so construed. Pursuant to Code section 422(d) the aggregate fair market value {determined as of the Grant Date)
of shares of Common Stock with respect to which ali Incentive Stock Options first become exercisable by the Employee in
any calendar year under the Plan or any other plan of the
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Company (and its parent and subsidiary corporations, within the meaning of Code section 424(e) and (f), as may exist
from time to time) may not exceed $100,000 or such other amount as may be permitted from time to time under Code
section 422. To the extent that such aggregate fair market value exceeds $100,000 or other applicable amount in any
calendar year, such stock options will be treated as nonstatutory stock options with respect to the amount of aggregate
fair market value thereof that exceeds the Code section 422(d) limit. For this purpose, the Incentive Stock Options will be
taken into account in the order in which they were granted. In such case, the Company may designate the shares of
Common Stock that are to be treated as stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of Incentive Stock Options and the
shares of Common Stock that are to be treated as stock acquired pursuant to nonstatutory stock options by issuing
separate certificates for such shares and identifying the certificates as such in the stock transfer records of the Company.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the Employee owns, directly or indirectly through attribution, stock
possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of any of its
subsidiaries (within the meaning of Code section 424(f)) on the Grant Date, then the Exercise Price is the greater of
(a) the Exercise Price stated on the Stock Option Certificate which is attached hereto and constitutes a part of this
Agreement or (b) 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the Grant Date, and the Expiration Date is the
last business day prior to the fifth anniversary of the Grant Date.

Code section 422 provides additional fimitations respecting the treatment of these Options as Incentive Stock Options.

7. Notice of Disqualifying Disposition. If the Employee makes a disposition (as that term is defined in Code section
424(c)) of any Option Shares acquired pursuant to these Options within two years of the Grant Date or within one year

after the Option Shares are transferred to the Employee, the Employee agrees to notify the Administrator of such
disposition in writing within 30 days of the disposition.

8. Withholding of Taxes. At the time the Options are exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as
requested by the Company, the Employee hereby authorizes withhalding from payroll or any other payment of any kind
due the Employee and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision for foreign, federal, state and local taxes required by
law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Options (including upon a disqualifying disposition within the
meaning of Code section 421(b}). The Company may require the Employee to make a cash payment to cover any
withholding tax obligation as a condition of exercise of the Options or issuance of share certificates representing Option
Shares.

The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, permit the Employee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax
obligation which may arise in connection with the Options either by electing to have the Company withhold from the
shares to be issued upon exercise that number of shares, or by electing to deliver to the Company already-owned shares,
in either case having a Fair Market Value equal to the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory minimum withholding
amount due.
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9. Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Other Events.

(a) Stock Dividend, Stock Split and Reverse Stock Split. Upon a stock dividend of, or stock split or reverse stock split
affecting, the Common Stock, the number of shares covered by and the exercise price and other terms of the QOptions,
shall, without further action of the Board, be adjusted to reflect such event unless the Board determines, at the time it
approves such stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split, that no such adjustment shall be made. The Administrator
may make adjustments, in its discretion, to address the treatment of fractional shares and fractional cents that arise with
respect to the Options as a result of the stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split.

(b) Non-Change in Control Transactions. Except with respect to the fransactions set forth in Section 9(a), in the
event of any change affecting the Common Stock, the Company or its capitalization, by reason of a spin-off, split-up,
dividend, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or share exchange, other than any such change that is part of a
transaction resulting in 2 Change in Control, the Administrator, in its discretion and without the consent of the Employee,
shall make any adjustments in the Options, including but not limited to reducing the number, kind and price of securities
subject to the Options. ‘

(c) Change in Control Transactions. [n the event of any transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the QOptions will
terminate upon the effective time of any such Change in Control unless provision is made in connection with the
transaction in the sole discretion of the parties thereto for the continuation or assumption of the Options, or the
substitution of the Options with new options of the surviving or successor entity or a parent thereof. In the event of such
termination, the Employee will be permitted, for a period of at least 10 days prior to the effective time of the Change in
Control, to exercise all of the Options that are then exercisable or will become exercisable upon or prior to the effective
time of the Change in Control; provided, however, that any such exercise of any Options that become exercisable as a
result of the Change in Control shall be deemed to occur immediately prior to the effective time of such Change in Control.

(d) Pooling of Interests Transaction. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan or this Agreement to the contrary, in
connection with any business combination authorized by the Board, the Administrator, in its sole discretion and without
the consent of the Employee, may make any modifications to the Options, including but not limited to cancellation,
forfeiture, surrender or other termination of the Optians, in whole or in part, regardless of their vested status, but solely to
the extent necessary to facilitate the compliance of such transaction with requirements for treatment as a pooling of
interests transaction for accounting purposes under generally accepted accounting principles.

(e) Adjustments for Unusua| Events. The Administrator is authorized to make, in its discretion and without the
consent of the Employee, adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the critetia included in, the Options in
recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the Company, or the financial statements of the Company or any
Affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles, whenever the Administrator determines
that such adjustments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits
intended to be made available under the Options or the Plan,
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(f) Binding Nature of Adjustments. Adjustments under this Section 9 will be made bytthe Administrator, whose
determination as to what adjustments, if any, will be made and the extent thereof will be final, binding and conclusive. No
fractional shares will be issued pursuant to the Options on account of any such adjustments. The terms and conditions of
this Agreement shall apply with equal force to any additional and/or substitute securities received by the Employee
pursuant to this Section 9 in exchange for, or by virtue of the Employee’s ownership of, the Options or the Option Shares,
except as otherwise determined by the Administrator.

10. Confidential information. In consideration of the Options granted to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, the
Employee agrees and covenants that, except as specifically authorized by the Company, the Employee will keep
confidential any trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information of the Company which are now or which hereafter
may became known to the Employee as a result of the Employee's employment by or other service relationship with the
Company, and shall not at any time, directly or indirectly, disclose any such information to any persan, firm, Company or
other entity, or use the same in any way other than in connection with the business of the Company, at all times during
and after the Employee’s employment or other service relationship. The provisions of this Section 10 shall not narrow or
otherwise limit the obligations and responsibilities of the Employee set forth in any agreement of similar import entered
into between the Employee and the Company.

11. Non-Guarantee of Employment or Service Relationship. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall alter the at-will
or other employment status or other service relationship of the Employee, nor be construed as a contract of employment
ar service relationship between the Company and the Employee, or as a contractual right of Employee to continue in the
employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Campany for any period of time, or as a limitation of the right of the
Company to discharge the Employee at any time with or without cause or notice and whether or not such discharge
results in the failure of any Options to vest or any other adverse effect on the Employee's interests under the Plan,

12. No Rights as a Stockholder. The Employee shall not have any of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the
Option Shares until such shares have been issued to him or her upon the due exercise of the Options. No adjustment
shall be made for dividends or distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior to the date such shares are
issued.

13. The Company's Rights. The existence of the Options shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company
ar its stockholders to make or authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the
Company's capital structure or its business, or any merger or consolidation of the Company, or any issue of bonds,
debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or atherwise affecting the Common
Stack or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of the
Company's assets or business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

14, Employee. Whenever the word “Employee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where
the provision should logically be construed, as determined by the Administrator, to apply to the estate, personal
representative, or beneficiary to whom the Options may be transferred by will or by the laws of descent and distribution,
the word "Employee” shall be deemed to include such person.
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15. Notices. All notices and other communications made or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be sufficiently made or given if hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, addressed to the Employee at the address
contained in the records of the Company, or addressed to the Administrator, care of the Company for the attention of its
Corporate Secretary at its principal office or, if the receiving party consents in advance, transmitted and received via
telecopy or via such other electronic transmission mechanism as may be available to the parties.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Options
granted hereunder. Any oral or written agreements, representations, warranties, written inducements, or other
communications made prior to the execution of this Agreement with respect to the Options granted hereunder shall be
void and ineffective for all purposes.

17. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the Administrator in its discretion, provided,
however, that this Agreement may not be modified in a manner that would have a materially adverse effect on the Options
or Option Shares as determined in the discretion of the Administrator, except as provided in the Plan or in a written
document signed by each of the parties hereto,

18. Conformity with Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to all applicable
provisions of, the Plan, Inconsistencies between this Agreement and the Plan shall be resolved in accordance with the
terms of the Plan. In the event of any ambiguity in this Agreement or any matters as to which this Agreement is silent, the
Plan shall govern. A copy of the Plan is available upon request to the Administrator. -

19. Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Agreement, and of any determinations or decisions
made by the Administrator relating to this Agreement, and the rights of any and all persons having or claiming to have any
interest under this Agreement, shall be determined exctusively in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland,
without regard to its provisions concerning the applicability of laws of other jurisdictions. Any suit with respect hereto will
be brought in the federal or state courts in the districts which include the city and state in which the principal offices of the
Company are located, and the Employee hereby agrees and submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue thereof,

20. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

Enclosure: Prospectus of the TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock
Incentive Plan
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Exhibit 10.48

Nonstatutory Stock Option Grant Agreement
Under The
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan

1. Terminology. Al capitalized words that are not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Plan. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following meanings:

(a) “Cause” has the meaning ascribed to such term or words of similar import in the Optionee’s written employment
or service contract with the Company and, in the absence of such agreement or definition, means: (i) the willful
commission by the Optionee of a criminal or other act that causes or is likely to cause substantial economic damage to
the Company or substantial injury to the business reputation of the Company; (ii) the commission by the Optionee of an
act of fraud in the performance of such Optionee's duties on behalf of the Company; or (iii} the continuing willful failure of
the Optionee to perform the duties of such Optionee to the Company (other than such failure resulting from the Optionee's
incapacity due to physical or mental illness), all as determined by the Administrator, which determination will be
conclusive. For purposes of this Agreement, no act, or failure to act, on the Optionee’s part shall be considered “willful”
unless done or omitted to be done by the Optionee not in good faith with the reasonable belief that the Optionee’s action
or omission was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) “Change in Control' means: (i) an acquisition (other than from the Company) in a transaction, or a series of
related transactions, by any person, entity or “group,” within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act’), (excluding for this purpose, (A} the Company or its subsidiaries, (B) any
employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries which acquires beneficial awnership of voting securities of the
Company, (C) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, or (D) any
corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their
ownership of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors)
of beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, of 50% or more of either
the then outstanding shares of commen stock or the combined voting power of the Company's then outstanding voting
securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors (the "Company Voting Stock”); (i) the effective time of any
merger, share exchange, consolidation or other reorganization or business combination of the Company if immediately
after such transaction persons who hold a majority of the outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors of the surviving entity (or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity) are not persons who held
the Company Voting Stock immediately prior to such transaction; {iii) the closing of a sale or conveyance of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company; (iv) individuals who were the Board’s nominees for election as directors
immediately prior to a meeting of the stockholders of the Company involving an actuai or threatened election contest
relating to the election of the directors of the
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Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act, cease ta
constitute a majority of the Board fallowing the efection; or (v) the dissolution or liquidation of the Company; provided,

however, that the term “Change in Control® daes not include a public offering of capital stock of the Company that is

effected pursuant to a registration statement filed with, and declared effective by, the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Act of 1933,

(¢} “Company” includes TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its Affiliates, except where the context otherwise
requires.

{d) “Option Shares” mean the shares of Common Stock underlying the Options.

{e) “Total and Permanent Disabifity" means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of
any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or
can be expected to last for a continuous period of riot less than twelve months. The Administratar may require such proof
of Total and Permanent Disability as the Administrator in its sole discretion deems appropriate and the Administrator's
good faith determination as to whether the Optionee is totally and permanently disabled will be final and binding on all
parties concerned.

2. Vesting. The Options vest in accordance with the vesting schedule identified in the Stock Option Certificate which is
attached hereto and constitutes a part of the Agreement (the “Vesting Schedule"), so long as the Optionee is in the
continuous employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company from the Grant Date through the applicabie date
upon which vesting is scheduled to occur. No vesting will accrue to any Options after the Optionee ceases to be in either
an employment or other service relationship with the Company.

3. Exercise of Options.

(a) Right to Exercise. The Optionee may exercise the Options to the extent vested at any time on or before the
Expiration Date or the earlier termination of the Options, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement. Section 4 below
describes certain limitations on exercise of the Options that apply in the event of the Optionee's death, Total and
Permanent Disability, discharge by the Company without Cause or other termination of employment or other service
relationship with the Company. The Options may be exercised only in multiples of whole shares and may not be exercised
at any one time as to fewer than one hundred shares (or such lesser number of shares as to which the Options are then
exercisable). No fractional shares will be issued under the Options,

(b} Exercise Procedure. In order to exercise the Options, the following items must be delivered to the Administrator
before the expiration or termination of the Options: (i) an exercise notice, in such form as the Administrator may require
from time to time, specifying the number of Option Shares to be purchased, and (i) full payment of the Exercise Price for
such Option Shares or properly executed, irrevocable instructions, in such form as the Administrator may require from
time to time, to effectuate a broker-assisted cashless exercise, each in accordance with Section 3(c) of this Agreement.
An exercise will not be effective until the Administrator receives all of the foregoing items,

2.
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(c) Method of Payment. Payment of the Exercise Price may be made by delivery of cash, certified or cashier’s
check, money order or other cash equivalent acceptable to the Administrator in its discretion, a broker-assisted cashless
exercise in accordance with Regulation T of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System through a brokerage
firm approved by the Administrator, or a combination of the foregoing. In addition, payment of the Exercise Price may be
made by any of the following methods, or a combination thereof, as determined by the Administrator in its discretion at the
time of exercise:

(i) by tender {via actual delivery or attestation) to the Company of other shares of Common Stock of the Company
which have a Fair Market Value on the date of tender equal to the Exercise Price, providedthat such shares have been
owned by the Optionee for a period of at least six months free of any substantial risk of forfeiture or were purchased on
the open market without assistance, direct or indirect, from the Company;

(ii) by delivery of the Optionee’s full recourse promissory note payable to the Company in a form approved by the
Administratar; or

(iii) by any other method approved by the Administrator.

(d) Issuance of Shares upon Exercise. Upon exercise of the Options in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, the Company will issue to the Optionee, the brokerage firm specified in the Optionee’s delivery instructions
pursuant to a broker-assisted cashless exercise, or such other person exercising the Options, as the case may be, the
number of shares of Common Stock sa paid for, in the form of fully paid and nonassessable stock. The Company will
deliver stock certificates for the Option Shares as soon as practicable after exercise, which certificates will, unless such
Option Shares are registered or an exemption from registration is available under applicable federal and state law, bear a
legend restricting transferability of such shares.

4. Termination of Employment or Service.

(a) Exercise Period Following Cessation of Employment or Other Service Relationship, In General. If the Optionee
ceases to be employed by, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any reason other than death, Total and
Permanent Disability, or discharge by the Company without Cause, the Options terminate in their entirety, regardless of
whether the Options are vested, immediately upon the Optionee's termination of employment or other service relationship.

(b) Termination by the Company Without Cause. In the event the Optionee’s employment or other service
relationship is terminated by the Company without Cause, (i) the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of
Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon such cessation, and (i) the vested Options remain exercisable
during the 90-day period following such cessation, but in no event after the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the
vested Options terminate upon the expiration of such 90-day period.

(c) Disability of Optionee. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4(a) above, if the Optionee ceases to be
employed by, or in a service relationship with, the Company as a result of the Optionec’s Total and Permanent Disability,
(i} the unvested Options, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agrezment, terminate immediately upon
such cessation, and (i) the vested Options remain exercisable during the six-month ;.:iod following
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such cessation, butin no event after the Expiration Date. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options terminate upon
the expiration of such six-month pericd.

(d) Death of Optionee. If the Cptionee dies prior to the expiration or other termination of the Options, (i) the unvested
Options, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, terminate immediately upon the Optionee's
death, and (ii) the vested Options remain exercisable during the six-month period following the Optionee’s death, but in no
event after the Expiration Date, by the Optionee’s executor, personal representative, or the person(s) to whom the
Options are transferred by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Unless sooner terminated, the vested Options
terminate upon the expiration of such six-month period.

{e) Misconduet. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Options terminate in their entirety,
regardless of whether the Options are vested, immediately upon the Optionee's discharge of employment or other service
relationship for Cause or upon the Optionee’s commission of any of the following acts during any peried following the
cessation of employment or other service relationship during which the Options otherwise would be exercisable: (i) fraud
on or misappropriation of any funds or property of the Company, or (ii) breach by the Optianee of any provision of any
employment, non-disclosure, non-competition, non-solicitation, assignment of inventions, or other similar agreement
executed by the Optionee for the benefit of the Company, as determined by the Administrator, which determination will be
conclusive,

5. Nontransferability of Options. These Options are nontransferable otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and
distribution and during the lifetime of the Optionee, the Options may be exercised only by the Optionee or, during the
period the Optionee is under a legal disability, by the Optionee’s guardian or legal representative. Except as provided
above, the Options may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of in any way (whether by
operation of law or othenwise) and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process,

©. Nonstatutory Nature of the Options. The Options are not intended to qualify as incentive stock options within the
meaning of Code section 422, and this Agreement shall be so construed. The Optionee acknowledges that, upon exercise
of the Options, the Optionee will recognize taxable income in an amount equal to the excess of the then Fair Market Value
of the Option Shares over the Exercise Price and must comply with the provisions of Section 7 of this Agreement with
respect to any tax withholding obligations that arise as a result of such exercise.

7. Withholding of Taxes. At the time the Options are exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as
requested by the Company, the Optionee hereby authorizes withholding from payroll or any other payment of any kind
due the Optionee and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision for foreign, federal, state and local taxes required by
law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Options. The Company may require the Optionee to make a
cash payment to cover any withholding tax obligation as a condition of exercise of the Options or issuance of share
certificates representing Option Shares,

The Administrator may, in its sole discretion, permit the Optionee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax
obligation which may arise in connection with the Options either by electing to have the Company withhold from the
shares to be issued upon exercise that number
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of shares, or by electing to deliver to the Company already-owned shares, in either case having a Fair Market Value equal
to the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory minimum withholding amount due. :

8. Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Qther Events.

(a) Stock Dividend, Stock Spljt and Reverse Stock $Split. Upan a stock dividend of, or stock split or reverse stock split
affecting, the Common Stock, the number of shares covered by and the exercise price and ather terms of the Options,
shall, without further action of the Board, be adjusted to reflect such event unless the Board determines, at the time it
approves such stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split, that no such adjustment shall be made. The Administrator
may make adjustments, in its discretion, to address the treatment of fractional shares and fractional cents that arise with
respect to the Options as a result of the stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split.

(b) Non-Change in Control Transactions. Except with respect to the transactions set forth in Section 8(a), in the
event of any change affecting the Common Stock, the Company or its capitalization, by reason of a spin-off, split-up,
dividend, recapitalization, merger, consolidation or share exchange, other than any such change that is part of 2
transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Administrator, in its discretion and without the consent of the Optionee,
shall make any adjustments in the Options, including but not limited to reducing the number, kind and price of securities
subject ta the Options.

{c¢) Change in Control Transactions. In the event of any transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Options will
terminate upon the effective time of any such Change in Control unless provision is made in connection with the
transaction in the sole discretion of the parties thereto for the continuation or assumption of the Options, or the
substitution of the Options with new options of the surviving or successor entity or a parent thereof, In the event of such
termination, the Employee will be permitted, for a period of at least 10 days prior to the effective time of the Change in
Control, to exercise all of the Options that are then exercisable or will become exercisable upon or prior to the effective
time of the Change in Control; provided, however, that any such exercise of any Options that become exercisable as a
result of the Change in Control shall be deemed to occur immediately prior to the effective time of such Change in Control.

(d) Pooling of Interests Transaction. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan or this Agreement to the contrary, in
connection with any business combination authorized by the Board, the Administrator, in its sole discretion and without
the consent of the Optionee, may make any madifications to the Options, including but not limited to cancellation,
forfeiture, surrender or other termination of the Options, in whole or in part, regardless of their vested status, but solely to
the extent necessary to facilitate the compliance of such transaction with requirements for treatment as a pooling of
interests transaction for accounting purposes under generally accepted accounting principles.

(e) Adjustments for Unusual Events. The Administrator is authorized to make, in its discretion and without the
consent of the Optionee, adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in, the Options in
recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the Company, or the financial statements of the Company or any
Affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations, or accounting principles, whenever the Administrator
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determines that such adjusiments are appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential
benefits intended to be made availat!e under the Options or the Plan.

(f} Binding Nature of Adjustm :::ts. Adjustments under this Section 8 will be made by the Administrator, whose
determination as to what adjustmer s, if any, will be made and the extent thereof will be final, binding and conclusive. No
fractional shares will be issued pursuzint to the Optians on account of any such adjustments. The terms and conditions of
this Agreement shall apply with equai lorce to any additiona! and/or substitute securities received by the Optionee
pursuant to this Section 8 in exchange for, or by virtue of the Optionee’s ownership of, the Options or the Option Shares,
except as otherwise determined by the Administratar.

9. Confidential Information. In consideration of the Options granted to the Optionee pursuant to this Agreement, the
Optionee agrees and covenants that, except as specifically authorized by the Company, the Optionee will keep
confidential any trade secrets or confidential or praprietary information of the Company which are now or which hereafter
may become known to the Optionee as a result of the Optionee’s employment by or other service relationship with the
Company, and shall not at any time, directly or indirectly, disclose any such information to any person, firm, Company or
ather entity, or use the same in any way other than in connection with the business of the Company, at all times during
and after the Optionee's employment or other service relationship. The provisions of this Section 9 shall not narrow or
otherwise limit the obligations and responsibilities of the Optionee set forth in any agreement of similar import entered into
between the Optionee and the Coripany.

10. Non-Guarantee of Employment or Service Relationship. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall alter the at-will
or other employment status or other service relationship of the Optionee, nor be construed as a contract of employment or
service refationship between the Company and the Optionee, or as a contractual right of Optionee to continue in the
employ of, or in a service relationship with, the Company for any period of time, or as a limitation of the right of the
Company to discharge the Optionec at any time with or without cause or notice and whether or not such discharge results
in the failure of any Options to vest or any other adverse effect an the Optionee’s interests under the Plan.

11. No Rights as a Stockholder. The Optionee shall not have any of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the
Option Shares until such shares have been issued to him or her upon the due exercise of the Options. No adjustment
shall be made for dividends or distributions or other rights for which the record date is prior to the date such shares are
issued,

12. The Company’s Rights. The existence of the Options shall net affect in any way the right or power of the Company
or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the
Company's capital structure or its business, or any merger or consolidation of the Company, or any issue of bonds,
debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the Common
Stock or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or iquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of the
Company's assets or business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

13. Optionee. Whenever the word “Optionee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circurnstances where
the provision should logically be construed, as
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determined by the Administrator, to apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom the Options may
be transferred by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, or another permitted transferee, the word “Optionee” shall
be deemed to include such person,

14. Notices. All notices and other communications made or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be sufficiently made or given if hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, addressed to the Optionee at the address
contained in the records of the Company, or addressed to the Administrator, care of the Company for the attention of its
Corporate Secretary at its principal office or, if the receiving party consents in advance, transmitted and received via
telecopy or via such other electronic transmission mechanism as may be available to the parties.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the Options
granted hereunder. Any oral or written agreements, representations, warranties, written inducements, or other
communications made prior to the execution of this Agreement with respect to the Options granted hereunder shall be
void and ineffective for all purposes.

16. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the Administrator in its discretion; provided,
however, that this Agreement may not be modified in a manner that would have a materially adverse effect on the Options
or Option Shares as determined in the discretion of the Administrator, except as provided in the Plan orin a written
document signed by each of the parties hereto.

17. Conformity with Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to all applicable
provisions of, the Plan. Inconsistencies between this Agreement and the Plan shall be resolved in accordance with the
terms of the Plan. In the event of any ambiguity in this Agreement or any matters as to which this Agreement is silent, the
Plan shall govern. A copy of the Plan is available upon request to the Administrator.

18. Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of this Agreement, and of any determinations or decisions
made by the Administrator relating to this Agreement, and the rights of any and all persons having or claiming to have any
interest under this Agreement, shall be determined exclusively in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland,
without regard to its provisions concerning the applicability of laws of other jurisdictions. Any suit with respect hereto will
be brought in the federal or state courts in the districts which include the city and state in which the principal offices of the
Company are located, and the Optionee hereby agrees and submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue thereof.

19. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

Enclosure: Prospectus of the TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock
Incentive Plan
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Exhibit 10.49

Restricted Stock Grant Agreement
Under The
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock incentive Plan

The Restricted Stock Award Certificate which is attached hereto constitutes a part of this Restricted Stock Grant
Agreement.

1. Terminology. All capitalized words that are not defined in this Agreement have the meanings ascribed to them in the
Plan or the Restricted Stock Award Certificate. All of the provisions of the Plan are expressly incorporated into this
Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following meanings:

(a) “Cause” has the meaning ascribed to such term or words of similar impart in the Emplayee’s written
employment or service contract with the Company and, in the absence of such agreement or definition, means: (i) the
willful commission by the Employee of a criminal or other act that causes or is likely to cause substantial economic
damage to the Company or substantial injury to the business reputation of the Company; (ii) the commission by the
Employee of an act of fraud in the performance of such Employee’s duties on behalf of the Company; or (iii) the
continuing willful failure of the Employee to perform the duties of such Employee to the Company (other than such failure
resulting from the Employee's incapacity due to physical or mental iliness), all as determined by the Administrator, which
determination will be conclusive. For purpases of this Agreement, no act, or failure to act, on the Employee's part shall be
considered “willful’ unless done or omitted to be done by the Employee not in good faith with the reasonable belief that
the Employee’s action or omission was in the best interest of the Company.

(b) “Change in Controf’ means: (i} an acquisition (other than from the Company) in a transaction, or a series of
related transactions, by any person, entity or “group,” within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1834 (the “Exchange Act’), (excluding for this purpose, (A) the Company or its subsidiaries, (B) any
employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries which acquires beneficial ewnership of voting securities of the
Company, (C) an underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities, or (D) any
corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions as their
awnership of the then outstanding voting securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors)
of beneficial ownership, within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, of 50% or mare of either
the then outstanding shares of common stock or the combined voting power of the Caompany's then outstanding voting
securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directars {the “Company Voting Stock™); (i) the effective time of any
merger, share exchange, consolidation or other reorganization or business combination of the Company if immediately
after such transaction persons who hold a majority of the outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors of the surviving entity (or the entity owning 100% of such surviving entity) are not persons who held
the Company Voting Stock immediately prior to such transaction; {iii) the closing of a sale or conveyance of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company; (iv) individuals who were the Board’s nominees for election as directors
immediately prior to a meeting of the stockholders of the Company involving an actual or threatened election contest
relating to the election of the directors of the Company, as such terms are used in Rule 14a-11 of Regulation 14A
promulgated under the Exchange Act, cease to canstitute a majority of the Board following the election; or (v) the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company; provided, hqwever, that the term “Change in Cantrol” does not include a public
offering of capital stock of the Company that is effected pursuant to a registration statement filed with, and declared
effective by, the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933.
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(c) “Company” includes TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its Affiliates, except where the context otherwise
requires.

(d) “Restricted Shares” m=zans Award Shares that are not vested as provided in Section 2 an the relevant date.

(e) “Total and Permanci: Lisability” means the inability to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of
any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or which has lasted or
can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than twelve months. The Administrator may require such proof
of Total and Permanent Disakility as the Administrator in its sole discretion deems appropriate and the Administrator’s
good faith determination as to whether the Employee is totally and permanently disabled will be final and binding on all
parties concerned.

2. Vesting. The Award Shares vest and become nonforfeitable in accordance with the vesting schedule identified in the
Restricted Stock Award Certificate (the “Vesting Schedule”) so long as the Employee is in the continuous employ of, orin
a service relationship with, the Company from the Grant Date through the applicable date upon which vesting is
scheduled to occur. No vesting will accrue to any Award Shares after the Employee ceases to be in either an employment
or other service relationship with the Company.

3. Termination of Employment or Service. If the Employee ceases to be employed by, or in a service relationship with,
the Company for any reason, all Restricted Shares, after giving effect to the provisions of Section 2 of this Agreement, will
be immediately forfeited to the Company upan such cessation for no consideration.

4. Restrictions on Transfer.

(a) Restricted Shares may not be assigned, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or disposed of in any way (whether
by operation of law or otherwise) and shall not be subject to execution, attachment or similar process,

{b) The Company, at its discretion, may impose restrictions upon the sale, pledge or other transfer of the Award
Shares (including the placement of appropriate legends on stock certificates or the imposition of stop-transfer instructions)
if, in the judgment of the Company, such restrictions are necessary or desirable in order to achieve compliance with the
Securities Act, the securities laws of any state or any other law.

(¢) The Company shall not be required to (i) transfer on its books any Award Shares that have been sold or
transferred in contravention of this Agreement ar (ii) treat as the owner of Award Shares, or otherwise to accord voting,
dividend or liquidation rights to, any transferee to whom Award Shares have been transferred in contravention of this
Agreement.

5. Stock Certificates.

(a) The stock certificates evidencing the Award Shares shall be registered on the Company's books in the name of
the Employee as of the Grant Date. Physical possession or custody of such stock certificates shall be retained by the
Company until such time as the shares are vested and, thereafter, the Company shall either deliver to the Employee one
or more certificates in the name of the Employee for that number of vested shares owned by the Employee or provide for
uncertificated, book entry issuance of those shares. If requested, the Employee shall deliver to the Company a stock
power, endorsed in blank, with respect to any Restricted Shares. All regular cash dividends on Restricted Shares shall be
paid directly to the Employee and shall not be held by the Company.
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(b) The stock certificate evidencing the Award Shares shall bear a legend restricting transferability of such shares,
unless such Award Shares are registered or an exemption from registration is available under applicable federal and state
law. If required by the authorities of any state in connection with the issuance of the Award Shares, the legend or legends
required by such state authorities shall also be endorsed on all such certificates.

6. Jax Election and Tax Withholding.

(a) The Employee hereby acknowledges that he has been advised by the Company to seek independent tax advice
regarding the availability and advisability of making an election under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended, and that any such election, if made, must be made within 30 days of the Grant Date. The Employee is not
relying on the Company or any of its officers, directors or employees for tax advice regarding this award. The Employee
expressly acknowledges that he is solely responsible for filing any such Section 83(b) election with the appropriate
governmental authorities, irrespective of the fact that such election is also delivered to the Company.

(b) The Company or any Affiliate shall have the right to deduct from any compensation or any other payment of any
kind (including withholding the issuance of shares of Common Stock) due the Employee the amount of any federal, state,
local ar foreign taxes required by law to be withheld as a result of the grant or vesting of the Award Shares in whole or in
part; provided, however, that the value of the shares of Common Stock withheld may not exceed the statutary minimum
withholding amount required by law. In lisu of such deduction, the Company may require the Employee to make a cash
payment to the Company or an Affiliate equal ta the amount required to be withheld. If the Employee does not make such
payment when requested, the Company may refuse to issue any Common Stock certificate under this Agreement until
arrangements satisfactory to the Administrator for such payment have been made. :

7. Adjustments for Corporate Transactions and Qther Events.

(a) Stock Dividend, Stock Split and Reverse Stock Split. Upon a stock dividend of, or stock split or reverse stock split
affecting, the Common Stock, the number of Award Shares and the number of such Award Shares that constitute
Restricted Shares shall, without further action of the Board, be adjusted to reflect such event, unless, the Board
determines, at the time it approves such stock dividend, stock split, or reverse stock split, that na such adjustment shall be
made. The Administrator may make adjustments, in its discretion, to address the treatment of fractional shares with
respect ta the Award Shares as a result of the stock dividend, stock split or reverse stock split.

{b) Non-Change in Control Transactions. Except with respect to the transactions set forth in Section 7(a), in the
event of any change affecting the Common Stock, the Company or its capitalization, by reason of a spin-off, split-up,
dividend, recapitalization, merger, consalidation or share exchange, other than any such change that is part ofa
transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Administrator, in its discretion and without the consent of the Employee,
shall make any adjustments in the Award Shares, including but not limited to reducing the number and kind of securities
subject to the Award Shares.

(c) Change in Control Transactions. In the event of any transaction resulting in a Change in Control, the Restricted
Shares will be forfeited upon the effective time of any such Change in Contral unless provision is made in connection with
the transaction in the sole discretion of the parties thereto for the continuation or assumption of the Restricted Shares, or
the substitution of the Restricted Shares with new shares of the surviving or successor entity or a parent thereof.

(d) Adjustments for Unusual Events. The Administrator is authorized to make, inits discretion and without the
consent of the Employee, adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the critzria includ=d in, the Award Shares n
recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events affecting the
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Company, or the financial - tai.«i ciis f the Company or any Affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations, or
accounting principles, whenes - ihe Administrator determines that such adjustments are apprapriate in order to prevent
dilution or enlargement of th: ! wn&fils or potential benefits intended to be made available pursuant to the Award Shares
or the Plan.

(e) Binding Nature o: /~- - . ninis. Adjusiments under this Section 7 will be made by the Administrator, whose
determination as 1o what agu. @:ents, if any, will be made and the extent thereof will be final, binding and conclusive, No

fractional Award Shares will result from any such adjustments.

(f) Binding Nature of A3 -c:nenl. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply with equal force to any
additionat and/or substitute se- 1. ii.s received by the Employee in exchange for, or by virtue of the Employee’s ownership
of, the Award Shares, wheth.r ::= a result of any spin-off, stock split-up, stock dividend, stock distribution or ather
reclassification of the Common Stock of the Company, except as otherwise determined by the Administrator. If the Award
Shares are converted into or e :nang:d far, or stockholders of the Company receive by reason of any distribution in total
or partial liquidation or pursuant to any merger of the Company or acquisition of its assets, securities of another entity, or
other property (including casn:, ti2n the rights of the Company under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the
Company’s successor, and this Agreement shall apply to the securities or other property received upon such conversion,
exchange or distribution in the same manner and to the same extent as the Award Shares.

8. Confidential Information. in consideration of the Award Shares granted to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement
the Employee agrees and covenants that, except as specifically authorized by the Company, the Employee will keep
confidential any trade secrets or confidential or proprietary information of the Company which are now or which hereafter
may become known to the Employee as a result of the Employee’s employment by or other service relationship with the
Company, and shall not at aiy time, directly or indirectly, disclose any such information to any person, firm, Company or
other entity, or use the same in any way other than in connection with the business of the Company, at all times during
and after the Employee’s employmenl or other service relationship. The provisions of this Section 8 shali not narrow or
otherwise limit the obligations and responsibilities of the Employee set forth in any agreement of similar import entered
into between the Employee and the Company. :

9. Non-Guarantee of Employment or Service Relationship. Nothing in the Plan or this Agreement shall alter the at-will
or ather employment status or other service relationship of the Employee, nor be construed as a contract of employment
or service relationship between the Company and the Employee, or as a contractual right of the Employee to continue in
the employ of, or in a service relalionship with, the Company for any period of time, or as a limitation of the right of the
Company to discharge the Employee at any time with or without cause or notice and whether or not such discharge
results in the failure of any Award Shares to vest or any other adverse effect on the Employee’s interests under the Plan.

10. Rights as Stockholder. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement with respect to the Restricted Shares, the
Employee shall be entitled to all rights of a steckholder of the Company, including the right ta vote the shares and receive
dividends and/or other distributions declared on the Award Shares.

11. The Company's Rights. The existence of the Award Shares shall not affect in any way the right or power of the
Company or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other
changes in the Company's capital structure or its business, or any merger ot consolidation of the Company, or any issue
of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the
Common Stock or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any
part of the

¥
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Company's assets or business, or any other corporate act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

12. Employee. Whenever the word “Employee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where
the provision should logically be construed, as determined by the Administrator, to apply to the estate, personal
representative, beneficiary to whom the Award Shares may be transferred by will or by the laws of descent and
distribution, or another permitted transferee, if any, the word “Employee” shall be deemed to include such person.

13. Natices. All notices and other communications made or given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be sufficiently made or given if hand delivered or mailed by certified mail, addressed to the Employee at the address
contained in the records of the Company, or addressed to the Administrator, care of thc Company for the attention of its
Corporate Secretary at its principal executive office or, if the receiving party consents in advance, transmitted and
received via telecopy or via such other electronic transmission mechanism as may be available to the parties.

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the pa rties with respect to the Award
Shares granted hereunder. Any oral or written agreements, representations, warranties, written inducements, or other
communications made prior to the execution of this Agreement with respect to the Award Shares granted hereunder shall
be void and ineffective for all purposes.

15. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended from time to time by the Administrator in its discretion; provided,
however, that this Agreement may not be modified in a manner that would have a matetially adverse effect on the Award
Shares as determined in the discretion of the Administrator, except as provided in the Plzn or in a written document
signed by each of the parties hereto.

16. Conformity with Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to all applicable
provisions of, the Plan. inconsistencies between this Agreement and the Plan shall be ~=solvad in accordance with the
terms of the Plan. In the event of any ambiguity in this Agreement or any matters as l which this Agreement is silent, the
Plan shall govern. A copy of the Plan is available upon request to the Administrator.

17. Governing L.aw. The validity, construction and effect of this Agreement, and of any determinations or decisions
made by the Administrator relating to this Agreement, and the rights of any and all persuns having or claiming to have any
interest under this Agreement, shall be determined exclusively in accordance with the Iaxs of the State of Maryland,
without regard to its provisions concerning the appticability of laws of other jurisdictions. Ay suit with respect hereto will
be brought in the federal or state courts in the districts which include Annapclis, Marylar 2, and the Employee hereby
agrees and submits to the personal jurisdiction and venue thereof.

18. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or
interpretation of this Agreement.

Enclosure: Prospectus of the TeleCommunication Systerns, Inc. Fifth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan
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©

STOCK POWER

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned,
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the “Company"), or its successor,
common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company standing in my name of the books of the Company,

, hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

shares of

represented by Certificate No.
appoints
books of the Company with full power of substitution in the premises.

WITNESS:

. which is attached hereto, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and
as my attorney to transfer the said stock on the

Dated;

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



4.

5.

INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING SECTION 83(b} ELECTIONS

. An 83(b) Election is Irrevocable.

If you choose to make an 83(b) Election, an 83(b) Election Form must be filed with the Internal Revenue
Service within 30 days of the date the restricted stock is transferred to you; no exceptions to this rule are
made.

You must provide a copy of the 83(b} Election Form to the corporate secretary or other designated officer of
the Company. This copy should be provided to the Company at the same time that you file your 83(b) Election
Form with the Internal Revenue Service.

In addition to making the filing under [tem 2 above, you must attach a copy of your 83(b) Election Form to your
tax return for the taxable year in which you received the restricted stock.

If you make an 83(b) Election and later forfeit the restricted stock, you will not be entitled to a deduction with
respect to the gross income you recognized under the 83(b) Election.

You are urged to consult your personal tax advisor before making an 83(b) Election to discuss the consequences
thereof and consider whether such an election is advisable under the circumstances,

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



SECTION 83(b) ELECTION FORM

Elec:'c : Pursuant to Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code
tunclude Property in Gross Income in Year of Transfer

The undersigned hereby mak... ..n election pursuant to Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the
property described below and suppiies lhe foliowing information in accordance with the regulations promulgated
thereunder:

1. The name, address, and taxpayer identification number of the undersigned are:

2. The property with reszaot to »iich the election is made is shares of Class A Common
Stock, $0.01 par value, of TeleConnunication Systems, Inc., a Maryland corporation.

3. The date on which the progery was transferred to the taxpayer was , 20

4. The taxable year to which this election relates is calendar year 20

5. The property is subject to forfeiture if for any reason taxpayer's service with the issuer is terminated. The risk of
forfeiture lapses in instaliments, 33-1/3% on the date one year after the date the property was transferred, 66-2/3% on the
date two years after the date the property was transferred and 100% on the date three years after the date the property
was transferred, provided that the taxpayer is in the employ of or a service relationship with the issuer on each such date.

6. The fair market value at the time of transfer (determined without regard to any restrictions other than restrictions
which by their terms will never lapse) of the property with respect to which this election is being made is
$ per share; with a cumulative fair market value of $ . The taxpayer did
not pay any amount for these shares.

7. A copy of this statement was (urnished to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., for whom taxpayer rendered the
services underlying the transfer of such property.

8. This election is made to the same effect, and with the same limitations, for purposes of any applicable state statute
corresponding to Section 83(b) of the Inlernal Revenue Code.

The undersigned understands (hat the foregoing election may not be revoked except with the consent of the
Commissioner of Infernal Revenue.

Signed:
Date:
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Letter for filing §83(b) Election Form
[Date]

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Internal Revenue Service Center

({the Service Center to which individual income tax return is filed)

Re: 83(b) Election of
Social Security Nurnber:

Dear SirfMadam:

Enclosed is an election under §83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 with respect to certain shares of stock of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., a Maryland corporation, that were transferred to me on
20

Flease file this election,

Sincerely,

cc: Corporate Secretary of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

This election must be filed with the internal Revenue Service Center with which the Executive files his or her Federal
income tax retums and must be filed within 30 days after the date of award of the shares. This filing should be made by
registered or certified mall, return receipt requested. The Executive must retain fwa copies of the completed form for filing
with his or her Federal and state tax returns for the current tax year and an additional copy for his or her records.

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



Exhibit 12.1

Supplemental Financial Schedule il

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
{amounts in thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance Additions,
Beginning Costs, and Balance End of

Description of Year Expenses Deductions Year
Year ended Décember 31, 2007 R ‘. ‘ S
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts % 290 $ 123 % (148) $ 265
Allowarice for Inventory Obsolescence - : $ 616 1§ 100 G (7 ) $ 645
Year ended December 31, 2006 o ‘
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ; $ 233 $ 0 2847 %, (227) $  .-200
Allowance for Inventory Obsolescence $ 533 $ 83 3 — $ 616
Year ended December 31,2005 4 : . S
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts , $ 690 $ 243 3 (700) $ 233
Allowance for Invéntory Obsolescence $ - $ 5330 0% —_ $ <533

o]
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-144742, 333-136072,
333-118610, 333-107466, 333-66676, 333-51656, and 333-48026) pertaining to various stock incentive and option plans
and in Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-133018, 333-119431, 333-112759, and 333-104305) pertaining to
various stock offerings of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. of our reports dated February 29, 2008, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements and schedule of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2007,

/sf Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 29, 2008

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 1@;K, March 05, 2008



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors
TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd

We consent o the incorporation, as exhibit 99.01 in December 31, 2007 annual report on Form 10-K of
TeleCommunication Systems Inc, of our report dated March 3, 2008, with respect to the consolidated balance sheet of
TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Spes G

Isf James Cowper

James Cowper
Phoenix House
Bartholomew Street
Newbury

Berkshire

RG14 5QA

March 5, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1

TeleCommunication
TCS Systems

I :ncbiing Convergent Technologies®
CERTIFICATIONS

[, Maurice B. Tosé, certify that:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

) have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report,

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and inlernal control over financial reporting
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and pracedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the peried in
which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control aver financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accardance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our canclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure cantrols and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially
affect the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s} and | have disclosed, based on ocur most recent evaluation of internal
contral over financiai reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors
{or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ Maurice B. Tosé

Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman, CEQ and President

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008
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Exhibit 31.2

T S TeleCommunication
Systems

_ Enabling Convergent Technologies®
CERTIFICATIONS

[, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr, certify that:

a)
b)

c)

d)

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{e}) and intcrnal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Ruies 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposcs in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal cantrol over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially aff~ctad or is reasonably likely to matenially
affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commiltee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are réasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

fs/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr,

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Sr. Vice President & CFO

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



EXHIBIT 32.1

TCS TeleCommunication
, 2 Systems
mm:b[mg Convergent Technologies®

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. 1350
{Section 806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

1, Maurice B. Tosé, President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of TeleCommunication Systems,
Inc. (the “Registrant’), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.8.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2007 (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.5.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Maurice B. Tosé
Maurice B. Tosé
Date:

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



8 EXHIBIT 32.2

TCS g;giggllélmunication

_ Enabling Convergent Technologies™

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Thamas M. Brandt, Jr., Chief Financia! Officer {principal financial officer} of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the
“Registrant”), certify, pursuant to Section 806 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2007 {the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

{2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and resuits of
operations of the Company.

{s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Date:

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or ils staff upon request.

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 05, 2008



Exhibit 99.01

Report of Independent Auditors
To the shareholders of TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of TeleCommunication Systems (Holdings) Ltd &
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and
cash flows. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of TeleCommunication Systems (Haldings) Ltd & subsidiaries at December 31, 2005, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with L1.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

s/ James Cowper

James Cowper

Phoenix House

Bartholomew Street

Newbury ©
RG14 5QA

England

March 3, 2006
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